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DEFINITIONS 

Unless other-wise noted or the context Jequires, aU references in this report. to: 

J.TC Roldings Cmp . .and its subsidiaries 
1'1TC GreafPiains~~ are references· to lTC Great-Plains, LLC, a·whoHy-owned subsidiary ofiTC Grid Development, LLC~ 
' 11TCGrid Developlnent'" are references to lTC Grid Development, LLC, a-wholly-owned subsidiary ofiTC Holdingsj 
"Green Power Express" are-references to Green Power Express LPt.-an·.inditect-.\Vholly-owned sUbSidiary ofiTeHoldings; 
"lTC Holdings'' are.referen.ces·to 1TC Holdings Corp. and not any ofits·-subsidiaries; 
·~ITC Midwest" are references-to ITC Midwest'LLC; a \vho11y-owned subsidiary oflTC-Holding~; 
'*ITCTrnnsmisSion" are-references to International' Transmission Company, a-whol}y-owned subsidiary ofiTC Holdings; 
"METC" are references to Mich~gan Electric Transmission Company,.LLC.·a whoJlywovmed subsldiaty ofMTH; 
"MlSORegulated Operating Subsidiariesn are references to ITCTransmission~ METG and ffC Midwest together; 

·-• ~~Mrn•t·are.referem:es to Michi'gan Transco Holdings • .LLC,. the sole"·merilber ofMETC and· an indirect-wholly~ovmed subsidiary oflTC 
Holdings; 

.. "Regulated Operating:Subsidiaries" are reference.~ to rTCTransmission,. METC; ITC Midwest ·and ITC-Great Plains togelhcr; and 

.... "We,~'-.-11our" and t'US1
' are-refe_rences:to 1TC HcHdjngstogether with aH ofits-,subsid.laries; 

Other definition..f! 
"Consumers- E-nergyn are references1o·Consumers Energy:Company, a wholl)'-owned sUbsidiary ofCMSEnergy Corporation; 
«Detroit-EUison"·-arereferencesio The Detroit Edison· Company,. a WhoH)r~owned subsidiary ofDTE·Energy; 
"DTE Energy"·m-e refercnces·to DTE Energ}•Compal)y; 
'
1Entergy"·are references to· Entergy Go-tporatiOrii 

'-'FERC" are references to the Federal Energy RegulatOry- Commission: 
~~PPA?' are referenc-es to the F eOeral Power Act~ 
>~Jccn are·refCrences·to the IlJinois-.Commerce·connnis~ion; 

.. "JP.&L u are references to Interstate: Power .and Light Company, an Alliant Energy Coqmratfon subSidiary; 
11lSO'~ are references to Independent~ystem Operators;· -· 
tWB'j are references·tothe Iowa Utilities Board; 
"K.CC" artrrefcren--ce:s·tocthe-Kansa.s Corp:Qi'a.ticm:C-orhmiss.ion;· 
"kV" are references to kilovolts (one kilovolt equaling l,OoO-.voltS); 
"IO.V1

' are reference-s to-kilowatts (one kilowatt equaling 1,000-watts); 
"MIS01

' are references to the-Midwest Independent· Transmission System Operator,-lnc., a FERC-approved RTO-which -oversees tbe 
operation oftbcbtiJk powerlransmission ~yslem.for. a substantial portion of-the Mid we-stem United States- and Manitoba, Canada~ and of 
which ITCTr'ansrnission, METC.and lTC:Midwest are members; 
''MOPSC'' are-references to· the Mis.souri PubikSer.viceCommission; 
"MPSC .. are references to the Michigan.Public Servi.ce CQmmi.ssion~-
1'Mr.Ucn are references to·the Minnesota Pub1ic UtHhieS. Commission; 
"MW': are references to megawatts (one megawatt. equaling 1.~000,000 watts); 
"NERe' are.references to the North-American Electric Reli-abll1ty Corporati'On; 
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... "NOLs" are references to net. operating Joss carryforward_~;: for income taxes; 
noCC" are references 1o·.Oklahoma Corporation Commission; 
'

1RT011 are references to Regional Transmission Orgatlizations~-and 
... "SPP..., are references'to Southwest Power Pool, lnc.t a·FBRG·apprbved RTO whi¢h oversees the operation of the bulk power 

transmission system fora-substantial portion of the SOuth Centra] United States, and ofv.ihich ITC.GreatPlains'is·a·member, 
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PART! 

ITI£l\U. BUSINESS. 

Over;view 

Out business consists· primarily of the electric transmission operations of our Regulated-Operating-Subs1diafies.Jn 2002,.ITCHoldings -was 
incorporate-d in the State of Michigan for the purpose -of acquiring·]TCI'ransmission. ITCTransrnission \V--M originally fmmed in 2001 as a 
subSidiary o:f Detroit Edison, 1lll electti"c utility subsidiar:y of DTE Energy~ and was acquired· in 2003 by ITC. HOldings. METC was- miginally 
fonned in ·2001 aS- a subsidiary of-Consumers Energy1 -tm·ele-etric·aiJd gas utility- sUbsidiary of eMS Energy Corporation, and was acquired in 
2006 byc!TC Holdings. ITCMidwestwas formed. in 2007 by lTCHo!dings ro acquire·the transmission assets ofiP&L in December 2007.ITC 
Great Plfiins-,was formed.in 2006 by ITC Holdings and became a.FERC~jurisdictional entity in 2009 after acquiring certain electric·tr'ansmission. 
assets·.in .Kan-sas. We operate high~volta·ge systems in Miclrigan1s Lower PeninSula anrl portions of lowf\,_ ·Minnesota, Illinois, MisSouri .and 
Kan~as tbauransmit electricity from generating stalions'to IOC-31 distribution facilities connected to our· systems. 

Our business. strategy is to operate •. maintajn and invest in·transmission infrastructure·-in·order to· eiihance system integrity and-reliability,. to 
reduce·transmission ·constraints and- to allow new gener-ating resources to interconnect to our tr:ansrriission sy-stems. We also are pursuing 
devel~pmenr projects not witliin our existing systems! WhiCh ·ar~ alsQ intended ·to ·improve overa-ll grid reliability, reduce transmission 
eonsttairits ami facilitate interconnections ofnew generating-resour.ees! as weU.as·to:et;ihartce competitive wholesale electricity- maikets. 

As ele-ctric transmission-utilities with nites~reguiated by-the<FERC, our Regulated OperatiJ;lg Subsidiaries earn reveJluesihrough tariff1:ates 
charged' f<>r the use .of_ their electric transmission ~'s~ems by our customers, which include in-Vestor-owned' utni(ies, municipalities, 
cooperatives-. power marketers and alternative,energy supplier-s-. As~ndependent transmisSion companies, .Qur Regulated Operating ·subsidiaries 
are subject to rnte regulation ~only by the :FERC, The'r.at-es. charg-ed· by our Regula:ted.Operathig StihSidiarles:are·estal)Jished.using cost~bast;q 
fom1ui'a rate template~ as--discussed in· "Item 7 Management1s Discussion and Analysis- of Financial :condition and Results of: Operations­
Cost~Based Formula Rates·with'True~Up MechaniSm.)' 

Development. of-Business 

We are aclive_lydevel~ping transmission infrastructun;.required to·meet re1iabHi:W nee{_{~ and emetging-long~tenn ene~gy-pdli~y. Our long~ 
term growth· plan-includes continued investment in current· transmisSion ~-ystemsj gCJ).erafor .interconnection.s, and our- ongoing development 
projects. Ret'er:to "Item 7 Management's Discusston mri:LAnalysis·.'Qf Finan~a}. Condition arid Re$ults of'Opetalions ___,__ Capiiai Illvestment ~md 
0perating ResuJts·Trendsn for a'dditiona{ details about our fiVe~yeat capital investtnen~ program totalin_g .£4.2 billion for the period 2012 
.:hrough 2016. In addition, we have -entered into··defmitive agreements whereby the electriC transmission buSiness of Entergy will be merged 
with.a -wholl)'~owned subsidiary of ITC Holdings (11Entergy Transaction")' as di-scussed under 11It~m 7 Management's Discussi-on and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and· Results·of Gperations~Capitlil PrOject. Updates and Other Recent Developments.11 Einally~ referio the discussion of 
risks·associated·with ·our strategic d·evelQpment opportunities ill "Item lA RlSl( ,Factors·- Our' Regu;la'ted.Operating Subsidiaries' actual capital 
expenditures may..be lower than·p1anned~ which would decrease expeCted rate' base and therefore.Ollr·revenues. ln.addition, we expect to inve-st 
in strafegl'c developmenf·opportunities to itJ;tpro.ve the effiCiency and reiUibility of the transmission giiQ) -but-we- cannot assure you that we :wHl 
be-abhno-initiate or completMmy of these investments." 

Current Tr.ausmisSion- Systems 

WlJ mwect to i.nvesLapproximateh• $1.6 billion from 2012 through 201'6 at our Rt;?gulated Operating SUbsidiaries in order to maintain and 
replace the Current-transmiSsion infrastructure, enhance systelil integrity and relial:iility-and accOmmodate load wowth. 

Generator I-ttterc-oimectimts 

We expe-ct to invest approxin)<it&ly $0.9 billion froiD 2012 through 20'16 to develop and build trammission. infra-structure to suppOJt 
.generator interconnections. 

In 201'0, We recclve'd Ml$0 approval ofthe Thumb Loop Projec,h.Yhich is primadly located in -ITCTransmission}-s region·. The Thumb Loop 
P.rojec.t.Js a l40~mjie, dbtihle-.clrcuit 34-5 kV transmission line·.and-re1ated·subStations that will serve-as the backbone of the transmission system 
needed--to accommodate future wind development.proje-cts in-the Michigan counties·ofTuscola, Huron) Sariilac andBt. Clair. 

Ba-sed on- the anticipated growth of generating resources, we also foresee. the -need to construct additi-onal transmission faciiltieS that wi11 
provide ihterconllection opportunities for !hose wind facilities. The backbone transniismon network, transmission for wind inte-rconnection and 
for interconnection of other generating facilities may pr-ovide.additional investment opportunities. 
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Development Projects 

We expect. to invest approximately $1.7 bil11on from 2012:·through 2016 to construct our portions of various developrnenl projects that we 
are cunently advancing: in the South Central and North Central regions of the countw. Vle are pursuing stra1egic development opportunities for 
transmission investments related to upgrading the existing transmission grid and regional transmission facilities. primarily to improve overall 
grid reliability, reduce transnUssion constraints, enhance competitive markets and facilitate interconnections of new generating re<;ources, 
incl-uding-wind generation and other renewable-resources. 

South C•ntralRegion 

We have pursuei.i the· opportunity to invest "in "two projects in I{ansas, through ITC Great Plains, known as the Spearville-Knoii~Axtell 
transmission project {the "KETA Projectt!) and fhe Kansas V~Plan Project transmission project runnit:tg fi·om the Spearvllle substation to· 
Medicine Lodge,. Kansas. 

Additfonally,.I'fC.Great .Plains.is lil advartCed·stages. of construCtiriii for the Hugo tO VaUiant Project -in Oklahoma. ITC Great Plains has 
establishe-d a fonnula rate· for these three projects and other projects within the·SEP region. 

North ·Central-Region: 

In 2009, we ·announced the-·Green Power Express project, conSisting of transmissiOn line segments "that wou".ld facilitate the movement of 
.power from· th.e Dakotas1 Minnesota and .Iowa to Midw~ "loatl·centers that .demand energy. Since the announcement of the· Green Power 
Express project.- MISO undertoOk its Regional Generation Outlet· Study ( .. RGOS"j 10 promote investments. in new regionaJ transmisSion 
"infrastructure and impleme.ntcillts MUfti-Value P.rojeet· ("MVPn) cost allocation· me"thodology that beiter··aHgn the costs· of MVJ.i-s w'ith the 
benefits associated wiUrtbem. MIS.O's RGOS and MVP pr.ocesses provide a cihannel for· the. Green Rower Express ·proJect, or its underlying 
segments, to move forward through. the planning approval_ptocess as "M\'Ps. In December .2011, MISO· approve-d the·first: portfOlfQ o:f.MVPs 
ide:ntificil through ·the RGOS \Vbich i~cludes·porti:ons ·of-four .M'VRs·lh:at we· intend· to. build,. own-and operateL The four MVPs <tre..loCated in 
-south:centrai Minnesota~ portions of Iowa, .sautb.West \VisconSin, ·and northeastMissOnrL 

Segments 

We~have olle reportable -s~gmeut oon,sisting of our Regulated· Operating ·S.ubsidiarles .. Adaitionally, we. hav.e other subsld1aties focused 
prima.rHy on business developnient a:cti.Vities- and -a holdi.n.g comp·any Whose;activities include corporate-debt·and.equ.ity financings-and general 
orporate actiVities. A more- detailed discUssion .Of our .reportable -segment, including financial .i:nfonnation about the segment, is included in 

.\/ote iS to the· consolidated financial statementS. 

O.perations 

As transmissiori~on.ly Companies, our·Regulated Oper.ating Subsidiaries function as conduits,.allowing -"for power from generators to· he 
·transmitted to local distribution syst~ms either entirely through their own systems,or in coujunct1on with neighbodng transmiSsion systems, 
Third :parties then transmlt power throilgb these:.- local distribution systems to end-use consumern. ·The transmission of electricitY by our 
RegUlated. Op.eni.ting·Subsidiaries is a centTal function to the._provision of electricity ·to res:identfal, commercia] and in"dusttia1 end-use 
conSumers:·The operations·performed by our Regulated Operaling Subsidiaries· fall into fhe fullowlng categories: 

~ asset-planning; 
Cl;lgirteering, design anrl construction; 
maintenance; and 
real tiine qperati"ons·. 

Asset Planning 

Our Asset Planning group uses d.eudled. system modeis and iong~.term load forecasts to develop oor system expansion capital plans. ·The 
expansion plans identify projects that woUld address potential future .reliability issues and/o.r pr-oduce economic savings for customcn;"by 
eliminating constraints. 

Asset PJannlri._g works closely with Jv11SO and SP:P in the developmctlt of our system expansJon capital plans by peifOnning technical 
evaluations and detailed studies. As the regional planning authorities, MISO and S·PP approve regional system improvement plans which 
include.· projects to be constructed by their memberst including our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. 

"E11;gineeril~g, Design muf.:ConstructioJt 

Our Engineering, Design and Constmction group is responsible for design, equipment specifications, maintenance plans and project 
engineering for cap) tal, operation and maintenance work. Vlc work with-outside contractors to perform some of our etlgineering and design and 
an of.our construction, hut retain internal technical experts who have experience with respect to the 
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key elements of-the transmission system such as· substations, lines, equipment and protective relaying systems. 

Maiutmrauce 

We develop and track preventive maintenance-plans to promote safe and. reliable sy-stems. By performing preventive maintenance on our 
assets, we can minimize·the need for reactive maintenance, resulting in improved reliability. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries contract 
with Utility Lines Construction ("ULC"}, which is a division of Asplundh Tree Expert Co., to perform the majority oftheir maintenance. The 
agreement provides us with. access to an experienced. and scalable workforce with knowledge of our system at an estab1ished rate. In January 
2012, we-gave· notice to ULC"that we intend to tenninate the agreement for all of our RegUlated Operating Subsidiaries upon the conclusion· of 
the six month no1ice period stipulated in -the contracts. \Ve are in the process of n~gotiating and expect to enter intQ new agTeements with the 
same- supplier prior to the end of tl1e 1wtice period ·and do-· not anticipate. atJY disruption· in maintenance services. 

Real 'f.'ime Operations 

System. Operations~ From· our operations facility in-Novi, MiChigan, transmission system operators continuously monitor the perfonnance- of 
the transrnission systems of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries~ using software and communication systemS to- perform analysis to 
_plan-for contingencies and maintain securiiy.and reliability fOllowing any unp)al}ne"d·events on.the system. Transmission system operators ar"e 
also respOnSible for the switching and protectl.ve- ta._ggin~.function, taking equipment in and. out of service to ensure capital construction projects 
and maintenance programs can be completed -safety and :reliably. Similar system operations services for ITC Great. Plains will be provided as 
new·transmission·lines-are placed in-service. · 

Local Bahmi:ing Authority Operator. Under the funcdon~U control of" MlSOt ITCTransmission aud METC operate their electric 
transmission system-s as a <:ombined Local Balancing Authority C'LBA") area~ known ns the Michigan Electric Coordlnated Systems 
("l'i.1ECS\'). From oul' operations facility in Novi, MiChigan, our employees perro·rrn the LBA. functions as outlined in MISO's Balancing 
AUthority Agreeiner.it. These functions include actual interchange. data administration and· ve-rification and MECS LBA area emergency 
procedure implementation and coordination. ITC Midwest and ITC. Great PJains are not responsible .for LBA functions ·f-or their respecti.ve 
.assets; 

Operating Contracts 

Our RegUlated Operating SUbsidiaries have various operating contracts, in-cluding nun1erous interconnection agreement.<:: with generafion 
"ind transmission: providers that address terms and conditions of interconnection. 'f:J1e ·following significant agreements exist at our Regulated 
Jperating Subsidiarie::;: 

lTCTrmrs11tission 

Detroit :Edison operates-the electric-distribution system to which-lTCTransmission 1s·transmission·system connects. A set.ofduee operating 
contracts s~ts .forth the terms -and conditiOns related -to Detroit Edison' s.and ITCT ransmission ~s ongoing working relationship. These- contracts. 
include the following: 

MasterOperating.:Agreement. The·Master Operating Agreement (the "MOA ''), dated as-of February 28,.2003. governs· the-primaty day­
to~day operational·rcsponsibilities of JTCTransmiss:ion and .. Detroit Edison and will remain in effect.nnti1 terminated by mutual agreement of 
the parties (subject to any required FERC approvals) unless eat-Her tenninated pursuant to it" terms. The MOA .identifies the control area 
coord.lnation services that ITCTransmission is obligated to proVide to Detroit Edison. The MOA also requites Detroit Edison to provide 
certain. generation.:based.suppmi servk:e..<> to ITCTransmissiOn. 

GeizenUor::frJterconnection and Operation Agreeme11t. Detroit Edison and lTCTransmission entered into the Generator lntcrconnection 
and Operation Agreement (the "GIOA •'), dated as of February 28, 2003, in order to·-establish1 re•establish and maintain the direct electricity 
interconnection of Detroit Edison 1-5 electricity generating assets with ITCTransmission~s transmission system for the ·purposes of 
transmitting-electric power from and,to the- electricity generating facilities. Unless .otherwise terminated by mutual agreement -Ofthe,parties 
(subject to any required FERC appr-ovals), the GlOA will remain in effect until Detroit Edison elects to temllnate ihe agreement with 
respecno a particular· unit or until ~·particular unit ceases commercial operati.on. 

Coordination and Interconnection Agreement, The Coordination and Interconnection Agreement (the '1CIA"), dated as of February 28, 
20"0·3, governs the- rights, obligations and re-.sponsibilities of ITCfransmission and Detroit Edison regarding. among other things, the 
operation and interconnection of Detroit Edison)s distribution system and lTCTransmission's transmission system~ and the construction of 
new f-aCilities or modification of existing facilities. Additionally, the ClA allocates costs for operation of supervisory, communications and 
metering equipment. The CIA will remain in effect until terminated by mutual agreement of the parties (subject to any required FERC 
approvals). 

METC 

Consumer-s Energy operates the electric distTihlt1iOt1 system to which METC's transmission system connects. METC is a- party to a number 
c,f operating-contracts with Consumers Energy that govenl·th{>Operations and maintenance of its transmission system. 
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These contracts include the f.o1lowing: 

.Amended and Restated Easemenr AgreemeJJt. Under the Amended and ReStated Easement Agreemei1t (the 1'Easemetn Agreement''), 
dated as. of Apri129,2002 and as--further supplemented.; Consumers Energy provides METC viHh.an easement:to the. land, which we-refer to 
as-premises, on whi6h.a nuijority ofMETC1s transmission towers,·poles,lines and other transmission faciiitie.s u..."ed to transrnit·-electricity at 
voltfl.ges of af least 120 kV are 1ocate4,.which we-refer to cOllectively as the· facilities; Consumers-Energy retained for itselfthe rightsio,.and 
the value-of activities associated with, all other uses of the-premises an:d the facilities covered by the Easement Agreement. such as for 
distribution of electricity. fiber optics, telecommunications, gas pipelines and .. agrlcultural useS, Accordingly, METC is not permitted to· use 
the-premises or the facilities covered byihe Easement Agreement-for any purposes other than to provide ele-ctric transmission and related 
seiVices, io inspect, maintain, repairi replace and. remove electric tr<;msmissiOn facilities antl to alter, improve, relocate and constmct 
additional electric transmission facili.ties. The easement is further suOject to the· rights of any·thita_ parties that had rights to use or -occupy 
the. premises or th.e facilities prior to Aprill, 2001 jn a mannernot'inconsistent with METC's-perm"itted uses. 

METC pays Consumers.Energy annu~l rent-·of$10.0 million, in equal quarterly in.sta11ment.c;, for the easement and related rights-under 
the--Easement Agreement. Although METC and. Consumers Ene~gy Share· the use of the premises,and the·faCiiities- covered.hy the-Easement 
Agreeh1ent,· METC ·pays the entire amount of any rentals: .property .taxes, inspeCtion· fees_ and other anwnnts .required to b-e paiG to third 
p-arties with respect to any·use-, occupancy,- Qperations ·or other a"ctivlti"es on. the premises or:llie. facilities and is_genera1ly responsible. for the 
maintenance o{the premises and the facilitles-l.tsed, for e1ectri"o transmisSion .at its expense. METC also musf:maintai11 com.mercia1 general 
1i.2billty insurance-protecting· MBTC ·and Consuniers Energy agai.nsi-claims.fot perso~aT lnjwy, death or-property damage occurring. on the 
premises or"the·facilities and pa)i for aU insurance premiums, M.ETC- iS_ also.responsi-9le fOr-patrolling the premises1llld·.thc facilities~ air 
at its expense at least annuallY and to notify· COnsumers Energy of any unauthorized uses or encroachments discovered. MB!C must 
indemriify Constuners Enetgy for ali Habilities.arisin·g-fJom the-faCilitie:s.covered.by the Easement Agreeffient. 

:Mn.TC-must·notify. ·consumers Ene~gy-befofe a:itering~ improving, re_Iocaiing or coustructin~·additional- transmission facilifies .covered 
by the. Easement Agreement .Consumers Errer_gy m&y .reSpoi1d by nOtifying ·.METC of reasonable work and design restrictions and 
precautions-that -are·needed.to avoiO. endangering e:dstitig ·distribu±ion facilities~ -pUJelines or -cOmmunications -l!n~, in which case·METC 
must-iompjy· with these restrictions and precautions; ME:TC has the right--at its- own -.expense to r-equire "Consumers Energy- to:remove'.and 
relOcate these :facilities, but Consumers- Errer_8y m~y..requir-e payment in advance or the. -provisiOn of reasonable se-curity for payment by 
METC prior-.tci remoVi-ng or relo·cating'these "facilities;- an~- Consumers"En·erg_y need not commence any·relocati:on-work,until an· alternative 
rl~Hlf~way-satisfactory to Consumers Energy is obtained.at METCs expense, 

The·ten'n of tb.-e E-asement Agreement -runs through Dec:emb~r'31, 2050 and is subject io 1.0 automatic. 50-yca.r renewals· after that time 
unless METC- provirles-ouc·year'-s nOtice of its election notH>:renew·the term. Consumers Energy may tenninate the Easement Agreemen1 
30 days after. giving notice ·of a failure. by·METC to: pa_y itS,quartci·jy installment if METC "does-uot· cure tl1e·non:-payment within- ihe. 30~day 
notice period. At- tli.e e11d of the term or upon any earlier- tennination Of. the Easement Agreement, the easement and relate-d ri_ghfs terminate 
and the transmissiOn facilities-revert to ConsumerS Energy. 

Amended and Restated Operathig.Agreemxmf.- Under-_ the Aniended and Restated Operating. Agreemenf(t1ie HQperating Agreemene))> 
dated· as of April 29~ 2002,.METC agrees to· operate its tnmsmission system to pr-ovide ali transmission customers with ·safe, efficient. 
reliable and nondiscriminatory transmission service pursu~t to its-tarJff. Among other things. METC is responsible-under the Operating 
Agreement ·for maintaining and- opetating its transmission ·system, providing Consumers Energy with in'formation and access: to its 
transmission ~ystem and related book-s arid records, -administering and performi11g-the duties of-control area oper.ator (that is1 the-entity 
exercising operational control ·over' the transmission systenl) and~ if. requested ·by Consumers ·Energy, buildi.Q.g connectiorl- facilities 
necessary to permit interacti.Ott · whh .new distribution facilities built by Consumers Energy. Consumers Energy has corresponding 
obligations to provide METC ·with accesS- to -its books and ·records and to btiild distribution facilities necessary to provide adequate- and· 
reliable transmission ·services to whOlesale customers. Consumers Energy- must cooperate with METC as METC p-erforms its duties as 
control area- oper.ator,. jncluding· hy providitJg,reacth-'e supply and vo1tage·contro1 -from generation sources -or otbet ancillaJ)' services· ·and 
reducing_ load. The operating Agreemenf-ls -effective through 2D50 and is subject- to 10 automatic SO"year·renewals- after that time~ unless 
METC provides one year's ndtice ofits-election not to renew. 

Amended and Restated Purchase and Salc.-Agr.eementfor Ancf/IQJy Services. The Amended and Restated.P-urcha.'-ie and Sale- Agreement 
for Ancilli:try Services (the 11AncillaJ]' SerVices Agreement,.) is dated as of April 29~ 2002. Since METC does not own any generating 
facilities, it· must procure ancillary services from 1bird party suppliers, such as Consumers Energy, Currently, under the Ancillary Services 
Agreement, 'METC pays Consumers Energy for providing.eertain generation based services necessary to support the reliable operation of 
the bulk power grid, such as voltage suppolt and generation capability and capacity to· balance loads and generation. METC is no-t precluded 
from procuring the.~ ancillary services from third party suppliers \'/hen available. TOe Ancillal)' Services Agreement is subject to roiJing 
one-year renewals startin.g Mny 1. 2003, miless terminated by either·METC or C<msumers Energy with six months prior· written J10tice. 
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Amended and ReHated Dlstribu!lon-Trtmsmissian interconnection Agreement,. The Amended and Restated Distribution-Transmission 
lnterconnection Agreement -(the "DT Interconnection Agreement11

), dated April 29, 2002 and amended most recently effective- as of 
September 1, ·2010, .provides fur·the interconnection of Consumers Energy"s distribution system with METC's transmission system and 
defines the toniinu\ng rights~ responsibilities and obligations of the parties with 1'espect to the use of cer.tain of thelr own and the other 
party's properties, nssets·and.fac!lities. METC agrees- to provide Consumers-Energy interconnection service at agreed-upon interconnection 
points, and the parties haVe mutual responsibility for maintaining vohage .and -compensating for reactive power losses resulting from ·their 
respective services.- The DT Interco))nection Agreement is effective so long-as any interconnectimt-poiht is connected to METC, unless it. is 
tenninated earlier by mufuai agreement Of"METC and.Consumers En~gy. 

Amended and Restated.'Generator interconnection Agreement. The Amended -aud"Restated Generator Interconnection Agreement (the 
"0enerntor interconnection Agreement'~,·dated as of April29, 2002.and amended most. recently effective as of August l, 2011, specifieS 
the terms and ConditiOns under WhiCh Consumers Enetgy and· METC maintain the interconnection of Consumers Energy's generation 
re-sources ancFMETC's ·transmission· assets. Th~ GeneratOr Jnt-~rcmmeciion Agreement is: effective eitl1er until it' Is replaced by any MISO­
required contraChc Or until mutu·alb' agreed by METC and ·consumers Energy to terminate, but not later than the da1_e· that all listed 
generators cease commercial operation. 

ITC Midwest. 

IP&L operates the-eiccti:ic ·distribution system to which JTC Mi-dweses·transmission system connects, ITC "Mid\•iest iS a .. PartY to a number 
of operatifig,contracts \'lith IP&L that goven\.tho operations and maintenance of-it..:;. transm".ission system. These contr-acts· include the following: 

Distribulion-Timismission Interconnection Agreement. The Distribution-TrmlsrnissiOn Interconnection A:.greernent.(the- 11DTIA .. ), dated 
as·ofDecembcr l?;2Q07.., .govems--tite:riglUs: responsibiliti-es and obligations·ofl'fOMidwest and IP&L,. with,respect to· the use of cerlitln·of 
their own and·'th_e·other ~leS' prope~ty. 4SSets and -facilities, and·the construction of.new facilities··or modification of existing. facilities~ 
Addition8.1ly1 :the·PTIA.sets·forththe terms pursuant to whic'h.the.equipment nnd-facllities and the inrerc:oimecti~n eqUipment ofiP&L will 
continUe to conneCtiTC.Midwest's-facilities thro~gh which ITC Midwest-provides· transmission. service under tl~e 'MISOTransmission and 
Energy··Mark~ts·Tariff. The_DTIA wilLremain in effect until -tenninated.by mutual-agreemenr-by the p3rties-"(subject to any required PERC 
appi"-OvaiS) or as long-as ariyintercoiiDection point of IP&L is coruJected to ·JTC·Mi~west•s· tacilities~ unless mo·dified.by written agreement 
of1heparties .. 

Large Generator Interconnection Agreement.. lTC Midwest, IP&L and MISO entered into- the Large- Generator -lntetconnection 
Agreement (the "LGlA:"}# dated as cif 'Decem.ber 20, ·2001 .. in order to establish, i"e·.establiSh and maintain the direct electricity 
ititerCOilnection of lP&-L 's electridi:t}' generating .-assets with ITC Midwesfs transmission_ system for the· purposes of transmitting ·cleclric 
pO\"iier from and to the electricity .brenerating. facilitie..c;. The LGIA'w1U.remain in effectuntfl tenniriate'd·by ITC·Mirl-west o_r until IP.&L elects 
to.tenninate the agreement if a patiicuiar unit-.ceases commercial operation for three.<:onsecutive years. 

Dpen:UionS Senife,cs Agreement For 34.5 kV TransmissiOn Facilities. ·I:TC ·Midwest anQ JP&L.. entered lnto the· Operations Services 
Agre~ent f6-r-'34S·kV Transmission Facilities: (the "OSA'~)~ effective as of January 1, 2011,.-und·er WhiCh IP&L perfQrms-certai.n operations 
furictions: for"I?fC MidWest's 34:s:. kV transmission system on behatf or" ITD.Midwest. The OSA will remajn .in full force and effect·until 
Deceniber 31~ 2015 and Will extend aut-omatically from year·to yeartherea·fter tmtH~terminated by either party upon not less· than one ye-ar 
prior· written notice:to the other pru.ty. 

JTCGreal Plains 

Amended and. Restat-ed Maimenance Agreement. Mid~K.ansas Electric Compat}y LLC ("Mid~Kansas"~) and lTC Great ·plains have 
entered ihto a ·Maintenance Agreement (the. "Mid~Kansas- Agreement"}, dated .as of Aug~st 24, 201.0-,- pursuant to 1,."\ihich ·Mid-Kan.."as has 
agreed to perform various "field operations and maintenance services related to·.theTfC Great Plains Elm Creek.and flat :Ridge Substations, 
which JTC·Great Plains purchased from Mid~ Kansas. The MiO·Xansas Agreement has an initial- term of lO years ·and automatic 10~year 
reilowB.ls.unJess tenninated {1) due.to'a breach by·the non.:.tenninating party following notice and failure to cure,.(2) by tnutua:l consent of 
the parties, or {3) by LTC Great Plains under certain limited .circUmsl:ances. Services m:ust col:)tinue t-o ·be p.rovided for at least six months 
subsequent to the termination date in-any case. 

Regulatory EnVironment· 

Many regulators and public policy makers support tbe need for further investment in tbe transrriission grid.. The growth in electricity 
generation, wholesale power sales andconsumption.combined with historicaUy inadequate·transmission investment l1ave resulted in signif1cant 
transmission constraints acrosB the United States and increased stress on aging equipment. These problems will continue without increased 
inveslment jn transmissiOJ~ infrastructure. Transmission system investments can also illcrease system reHability and reduce the: frequency of 
power ·OUtages. Such investments can reduce transmission consl"ralnts and improve access to lower -cost ge11eration resources, resulting in a 
lower overall cost of delivered electricity for end~use consumers. After the 2003 blackout tha,t. aff~ted. sections of the Northeastern and 
Midwestem United States and· Ontario, Canada, the 
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Department of Energy (the "DOE11
) established the Office of Electric Transmission and Distribution. focused on working wifh reliability 

experts from fue power industry, state governments, and-their Canadian counterparts to improve-grid re1iability and increase investment in the 
COUI1fl);1S electric -infrastructure. In addition, the FERC bas signaled its- desire for substantial new investment-in the transmission sector by 
implementing various financial and other incentives. 

The FERC·has also issued orders-10 promote non.discrhninator:y transmission access for aU transmission customers. In the'United States, 
ele-cttic tr.ausmission assets are· predominantly owned, operated and maintained by utilities that also--own electricity generation ruid distribution 
assets~ knowrr as vertica:Jiy integrated utilities. The-}"'ERC has reco&rnized that the verticaJlywintegrated utility model inhibits· the provision. of 
non·discrimlnatory transmission access and, in order to alleviate this potential discrimination, the PERC has mandated that all tr.rnsmission 
systems over wl1ich.it has jurisdiction must be operated in a comparable, non-discriminatory manner such that. any seller of electricity affiliated 
with a transmission oW:ner or operator is not provided wHh- preferen.tia1 treatment.. The FERC has also indicated that indepen·dent transmission 
companies -can -play-a,prominent role in-furthering- its·-poiiqy goals and has encouq1ged the legal and functional separation of transmission 
operations-from ,sen-eration.atid .distribution operations. 

On Augusts·~ 2005, the-EJ)ergy·Policy Act was enacted, which requires the FERC to implement mandatory electric tr-ansmis1:.ion reliability 
strutdards to be enforced by an Electric Reliability Organization. Effective. June 2007, the PERC 4pproved manrlatmy adoption .of certain 
re1iability-standards-and·approved enforcement. actions for vit:i1ators,-incilud.irlg fines: of up to $1.0 mitl1on per day. The NERC-was asSigned the 
responsibili-ty ~f-developin_g and enforcing the.<;e·maBdatory reliai;ii:lit.Y standards. We continually :assess our- transmissiOn -systems against 
standards establlshed. by the NERC,.as -we11 as 1he standards of applicable-regional entities unde-r the NERC thar have been -del¢gated certain 
authority· for the purpose of proposing rutd enforcin~·re!iabili!y standards. Finally, the .Energy Policy Act repealed the ~ublic Utility Holding 
Compaoy Act ofl935, .wljich was replaced by the Public Utility Holding·Company. Act of 2005. It also subjected utility. holding cmnpanies to 
refiillations oftbe FERC-related·to access to books andTeeords, arid amenDed Section 203 of the FPA to proviDe explicit antbori_ty for the 
FER.C to review met:gers and--Consolidations invOlving utilitY holding companies in certain· circ-umstances. 

Federttl Rttglila,tion 

As electric transmiSSion companies~_ our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are regulated Qy the-- FERC. The FERC is· an_ indepem;lent 
r~gulatory commi~sion within· the- DOE" that regu1ates-lhe interstate ·transmission:and certain wholesale sales· of natural- gaS, the transmission of 
Oil and oil productS by pipeline,_ and the transmission and·who1esale sale of electriCity in interstate commerce. The· FERC .also idministers 
accounting and .financial reporti-ng- regulations and standards of cO-nduct for the companies-it regulates. In "1996, fn order to facilitate-opyil 
\¢cess transmission for partiCipants in whol-esale power markets·, 1he FBRC issued Order·No. ·88ft The open access-. policy promulgated by~-the 
fi'ERC in Order No. ·888 was· ·upheld in a United States SUpreme Court decision State of New Y·ork vs. FERC, .issued on- March 4. 2002. "To 
fa-ciH.tate open .access, among other things, PERC- Order No. 888 encouraged investor owned utilities to cede operationa1 conn·ol over their 
transmisSion SystemS to ISOs, wbiCl1 are ilot~fur .. pro.fil entities, 

As ·au alternaf\ve to ceding operating contr-rll:of their transmission assets to ISOs. certain .-investor owned utilities began to promote tire 
formation off0r,profit1ransmlssion cornpanjes1 which wonld- assume- control- of the operation_ of the grid. In December t999,.ihe·FERC issued 
Order No. 200"0~·whiCh strongly encouraged utiliti.es·to voluntarily transfer operational-control of their fransmi-&'\ion systems to RTOs. RTOs; as 
envisioned in- Order No. 200U, would assume many of the funstions· of an ISO, hut:the FERC pennitted greater fleXibility with regafd to the 
organization. and structure-ofRTOs than it -had for lSOs. RT-Gs could accommodate the."incilusion of-independen-tly owned, fo-r·profit eqmpanies 
·that· own transmission assets ·-viitb-in.their operating structure .. Independent OwnerShip-would facilitate not only-the "independent operation Oft he 
transmission. systems_- buf a-lso ·the formation of companies with a greater financial·]nterest 'iti maintaining .and augmenting· the capa·cit-Y and 
reliabilitY of those systems. RTOs-suCh as MISO and. SP.P monitor electrfc,reliabiHty.and.are·i·eb110nsible for coordinating-the operation of the 
whOl-esale electric tr-ansmission.system.and ensuring fair~ non·~diScrim.inator:y accesstothertransrnission grid. 

In-JUly .2011, the PERC .issued Order No. 1000 -C'Order 1000") which amends certairi--oX~sting transmission p}annfug and cost allocation 
requirements to·ensur.e that FERC-jurisdW~ional services are provideO. atjust.and reasonable rates and on.a baSis that is juSt and re-.asonable.and 
not undUly discriminatory or preferential. With Tespe.ct"to transmission planning, Order 1000; (1) requires that-each public ut-ility transmission 
provider .participate in a rcgionaJ.iransmission .planning process that produces. a regional tra:nsmission plan; (2) requir~~ that each pub-lic utility 
transmissi-on provider amend its Open Access Transmission tariff (110ATT11

) to ,describe procedures that provide for the ronsi'deration of 
transmission needs &-iven by public policy requireme1tts in the local and regional transmission planning- processes; (3) removes from PERC­
approved ·tariffs and agreements a federal right,of"first.refusal for certain new transmission facilities; and (4-} improves coordination between 
neighboring transmission planning regions for. new intem~gional trru1smission facil1ties. Order 1000 could potentially lead to greater 
competition for certain transmission _pfojects, inc1uding v,ri"thin our current op-erating area. The c-ompliance phase for Ordei 1000 is expected to 
take .up to 1.8 months. 

Re-venue Requirement Calculations amf Cost Sharing for Projects with Regional Benefits 

The cost based formula rates used by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries continue to evolve to include revenue requirement 
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calculations for various- types of projects. Network revenues continue to be the largest component of revenues recovered through our formula 
rates. However, regional cost sharing revenues are growing as a result of projects that have--been identified Qy MISO or SPP as having-regional 
benefits, and therefore eligible for regional cost recovery under their tariff. Separate calculations of revenue requirement are performed for 
J'rojects that have been approved foi regional cost sharing and certain Of these reVenue requirements are -subject to an annual true·up. The 
separate calculations of revenue requirement impact only which parties ultimately pay for the transmission services related1o the.se projects and 
do not impact. our financial results. 

We·have projects that are eligible for regional cost sharing under Attachment FF of the MISO tariff, such as certain network upgrade 
projects, and the MVPs, including the Thumb Loop Project. The FERC accepted MISO's Thumb Loop Project MVP filing in 2010. 
AdditionallyJ certain projects at ITC·.Great Plains are eligible for recovery through a region-wide charge in- the SPP tariff: the KETA Project, 
which was part of the balanced portfolio of projects approved by S·PP in 2009 and the Kansas Y·Plan PrOject, which is subject to SPP's 
highway/byway cost:aUocation.11leFERC approved SPP's highw&y/byway cost allocation methodology in.2010. These projects are-described 
in more detail. in·"Item 7 Management's"Dlscussion and Analysis of-Financial Condition and Re-sUlts ofOperafiohs- Capital P-roject Updates 
and Other Recent Developments." · 

State:Regtilatinn 

The:regulatory agencies in- the .states where our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries~ assets- are located do not have jurisdiction over rates or 
teml-s and· c-onditionS- of service . .lloweve_r} they typicaily have jurisdictiOn over· siting. of transmission facilities and related matters as- described 
below. Additional1y1 we are subject to·ihe regtliatoty oversight of vari.ous state environmental quality departments for compliance \\rith any 
state environmental stanelards and regulations. 

JTCTJ·uusinissifm and METC 

Michigan 

The MPSC:ha&jurisOiction over the S:itlng Of transmission facilities. AdditionaUy, pursuant to Michigan Public. Acts 197 and 198- of2004, 
lTCTransmisSion and "METC have the rj·ght as independent transmission companies to condemn property in the: Slate. of Michigan for· the 
purposes of building or maintaining transmission facilities. 

ITCTransmfssi()fi and METC are also subject to the regulatory oversight of the Michiga-n Department of.Ellvironmental Quality, the 
\1icblgan Department ofNatuial Resources anti certain local anthor.ities for compliance with an environmental--standards-and regulations. 

ITCli1ldwest 

Iowa 

I-owa Code. ch. 478 provides that 1he lUB has the power of-supervision over the construction! op.eraiion, and maintenance of transmission 
facilities in lowa l?Y any entity, -which inClUdes tho power to- issue franchises. Iowa Code ch. 478 further- provides that any entity granted a 
franchise-by.the.1UB is vested with the power.of condemnation in Iowa to the cxtent.theJUB approves and deems neccssaryJor public use. A 
city has·the-powet, .pursuant to lowa Code ch. 364, to grant a franchise to erect, maintain, and operate transmissi-on facilities within the city, 
which·franChise may 1·egulate the conditions required and rnatmer of use- of the,stTeets and public grounds of"the city and may confer "the·power 
to appropriate and condemn private property. 

ITC Mid\vest also is subject to the regulatory oversight of-certain state agencies (including the Iowa Department: of Natural Resources) -and 
certain ltica].authorities with respect to the issuance--of environmm\tal, highway~ railroad~ and· similar permits. 

Minna.sota 

The MPUC has jurisdiction over the siting and routing of new transmissi'on.1ines or upgrades of existing lilies through Minne.'\Ota 1S 

·-Certificate of Need and Route.P~mit Proce-sse-s. Transmission companies are.also required to participate in the State's Biennial Transmission 
Planning Process and are stibjectto the-state's preventative malntenance·.requirements, Pursuant to Minnesota law) ITC- Midwest has the right 
a.~ an independent transmission company to condemn property in the State of Minnesota for the purpose ofbuildingnew transmission facilities. 

ITC Midwest is also subject to the r-egulatory oversight of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: the Minnesota Department ofNatura1 
ResourCes, the MPUC in conjunction with the Department of Commerce/ Office of Energy Security, and .certain local authorities for 
compliance with applicable environmental standards and regulations. 

Illinois 

The ICC exercises jurisdiction over siting of new transmission lines through its requirements for Certificates of Public Convenience and 
Necessity and Right-Of·V/ay acquisition that apply to construct] on of new or upgraded facilitios. 

ITC Midwest also is subject to the regulatory oversight ofthe.lllinois Environmental Protection Agency, the Illinois Department of Natura] 
Resource-s, -the lllinois PoJhnion Co11trol Board and certain local authorhjes for compliance with all environmental 

Exhibit CB·H1 a 



l) 

Exhibit CB~H1e 



standards and regulations. 

Missouri 

Because ITC Midwest is. a «publtc utilitY" and an '~electrical corporation" under Missouri law, -the MOPSC has jurisdiction to determine 
whether ITC Midwest may Operate in such C<!pacity. In this regard, on August: 30, 2007, the MOPSC granted ITC Midwest a certificate of 
publiC conveniooce and necessity to own; operate and maintain a 161 kV 1Tansmission 'line of approXimately 9,5 miles located in--Clark County) 
Missouri which connects the substation. ia Keokuk1 lowa with Ameren Energy Generating Company's transmission substation near Wayland, 
Missouri. The MOPSC also exercises jurisdiction with regard to other non-rat-e matters affecting this Missouri asset such as transmission 
substation construction, general safety and the transfer of the franChise-.or·property. 

ITC ·Midwest is .also sUbject to the ·re_gli.latory oversight of the M-issouri Department of "Natural Resources .for complianc·e with al1 
environmental standatds:and regulations-relating to this transmission line. 

ITc--Greut Pltiins. 

Kansas 

ITO Great PJains--is.!a "public utilitY'' in Kansas and an ''electr-ic utiiijy11 pursuant to state statutes. the KCC issued an order -approving the 
issuance Of a limited cettific~te of.convenience. to 1TC Great Plains ·for- the purposes- of"building, own-ing and operating SPP transmissi-on 
projec1soin Kansas. In addition- to-its:· certificate authority,.theKCC has jurisdicti-on over :the siting;of dectric:transmissiondines .. · 

ITO Great Plains is-also subject to the- regulatory· oversight of the .Kansas.-D-epartment of Health and Environment for complian·ce with -all 
environm_ent~.l standards ancl re-gli:lations·relaling to·the construction phase of.an-y transmission line. 

Oklahoma 

On Septetribe-r ll~ "2008, lTC.Gr.eat Plains .received approval from the -OCC to Qperate in -Qklahoma) pursuarit:.t"o Oklahoma Statutes_ as an 
electric public. utility proVidiilt·oll-ly transmission services. The OCC does not,exercisejurisdiction over the siting of any:transmissioh lines.· 

ITC Gre-at Plains may he sll~j.eqt to the regulatory oversight of Oklahoma Department of Envi-ronmental Quality for compliance with 
. enVironmental standards. and regUlations reiating to construction of -proposed- transmission "lines. 

ITC Great Pl;Uns does not.cun-ehtlyown or operate transmission facilities-in: Oklahoma~ but is constructing -an appro>cJmatCly I9 .. mne- 345 
t;Vtransmission.-Hne and associa:ted facilities in southeastem·Oklahoma, known as the H11go to Vafliant·project. 

Sour~ of-Revenue 

SeC: "Item 7 Management's DiscusSion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of Operations -
Operating Revenues" for a discussion of our.p-rincipal sources of revenue. 

Seasonality 

The cost.,.based formula -rates with a true~ up. mechanism in effect for aU our·R.egulated Operating ·subsid.iaties, as discussed in "Item 7 
Managemenf1s. Discussion and Analysis of Fifiancial Condition and Re-sults· of Operations - Cmt-Based Formula Rates with True-U_p 
Mechanism~') mitigate the·seasonality of:net inoome:for our Regulated-Operat~ng Subsi-diaries. Om' Regulated- Operatiqg Sub!:>idiarie.s accrue or 
defer re\tenues tOihe extent-that 1he-a-ctuai revenue-t:equirementfor the reporfing.period is higher or lower_;_respectiveiY, than tbc amounts·hilled 
relating to ·Utat:reporting period. For example, to t~ extent that" amounts billed are less- than our revenue; requirement ·_for a reporling period;- a 
revenue ac-e.rual Js,recorded for the .difference and·the-·differ.ence results in no'net income-:lmpact. 

Operating cash flows are seasona.l:af our ivrrSO ·Regula.ted.Operating Subsidiar.ies. in ihat cash received for revenues is typically higher in 
the summer months -when:peak load is higher. 

P-rinCipal Customers 

Our principal transmission service customers.are·DetroifEdison, Consumers Energy and IP&L, which accounted for apprOXimately 30.8% ) 
26:0% and 25.3% , respectively, Of o-ur total operating_ revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 . One or more of these customers 
together have consistently represented a significant percentage Of" our operating revenue. These percentages of total operating revenues of 
Detroit Edison1 Consumers Energy and"IP&L include- an estimate· for the 20"11 revenue accrual f.· and deferrals that were included in. our 201"1 
operating revenues, but will not be billed to our customers until 2013. We·have assuri'Jed that the revenues billed to fu·ese- customers in 201_3 
w-ould be in the same proportion of 1he re-spective percentages of network and regional cost sharing revenues hilled to them in 2011. Our­
remaining revenues were generated from. providing service to other entities such as alternative electricity suppliers~ power marketers and other 
wholesale customers that provide electricity to end~use consumers and from transaction~ based capacity reservations. Nearly .all of our re:venues 
are from transmission 
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customers· in the United States. Although we may recognize allocated revenues from time to time-from Canadian entities re..:;er.ving transmission 
over·the Ontario or Manitoba interfaceJ these revenues: have not.been and are not expected to be material to us. 

Billing 

MJSO js responsible for billing and cOllection for transmission services and adnrinisters the transmission tariff in the MISO service 
territory. As the .. billing agent for our' MJSO Regulated Operating-Subsidiaries, MlSO bills Detroit Edison, Consumer.s.Energy1 lP&L and other 
customers on:a monthly basis and collects fee-s for the use of our transmission systems. 

SPP is responsible for billing. and collection for transmission services and adrninisters·the transmission tariff in the SP-P service territory of 
Which ITC' Great- Plains 'js a member. As the billing-agent for lTC Great Plains, SPP independently administers the transmission- tariff. 

See <~Jtem 7 A Quantitative a.trd Qualitative DisClosures.abo-urMatket Risk -·Credit RiSK" for discussion of our credit policies. 

Competition 

Each of our-MiSO Regulated· Operating· Subsidiaries is 1he only transmissiott system in its respective service area and, ther-efore1 effectively 
-has-: no COID;petitors. However~- the competitive environment may change due to the implementation -of Order 1000, See- further discussion of 
-oraer 1000 above· under 11Rcgulatow Environm-ent -.Federal Regutation.n For our subsidiaries focused on development opporttmities for 
.-transmission inve..cttment in other-service areas, the incu!llbent utilities. -or other. entities with .transmission development lnitiatives may compete 
with us by seeking regulatory approval to be named the:par1;)' authorized to bUild new capital._projects that.~we are also-pursuing. Because our 
RegulateU Operating Subsidiaries are currently tbe onJy transtriission companies:that ar¢ iridependent. trom.e1ectricity markei=:participants. we 
belicv~ we are best able to develop these prOjects hi a ·non-discriminatory manner. ·However~ .there are no a..'\Surances -we wltl be selected to 
develop projects that other entities: are -also pursuing. 

Employee-s 

As of December 31,2011 ,:we ha-d 4-52 employees. We consider-our relations with ouremp1oyees·to be- good. 

Emiironinentnl.Matters 

·Our operationS are. .subject to· federal, state1- an(HecaJ environmental laws and regulations, which impose limitations on ille discharge of 
-poll.utalits into =ihe environment, establisl1 standafd!i fOr the management, treatment, storage, ·transportation and disposal of hazardous m~terials­

·.nd of solid ·and· hazardous wastes, and impose obligations to investigate and remediate contamination 'in certain circumstances .. Liabilities: to 
mvestigate or remediate contamination, as well as-other liabilities .con.cerning- hazardous materials or contamination, such as c1airns for personal 
injury- or property dam?ge, may -arise at many 1ocations1 ·including f-armerJy owned or operatetl properties an"d sites- where wastes have been 
treated or disposed of, as: well as.at properties currently- owned or operated by·us. Such liabilities may arise even whete the contamination does 
not.res·uJt·from noncomptiancc·With applicable environmental laws. Under a nunibet~ of environmentallaws1 such liabiiities·may also. be joint 
.and severa:l, meaning- th9.t_ a party can be- he]-Q responsible for more than its share of the liability involve~ or .-even the entire shai'e. 
Environmental requiremetits- gtinera\ly have become -more stringent and .compliance-with those requiremer1ts more expensive. \Ve are not aware 
ofauy specific developments that would· increase our.costs.for such compliance in a mannerthat:would be expected to have·a material effect on 
ourresults- of opemtions, financial position orliqttidity. 

Our asSets aDd-operations also involve the use ofmater-ials-.dassified as hazardous, toxic·or otherwise dangerous. Many ofthepropertjes-:our 
Regulated Qperating Subsidiaries-- own or operate have heettused .for many- years, and .include old&r facilities and -equipment that mfl,y· be more 
likelY- than·.newer ones to contain or be· made from: such materials. Some-of these. properties include .. abovegtound or undergroUnd storage tanks 
and assoCiated .piping. Some of them also .indlude large eleottica1 equipm:ent·filfed wilh mineral -oil, which may contain or previouSlY ·have 
contained polychlorinated. biphenyls·(commonly known as PCBs). Our. facilities and equipment are often situated-close to or on.property owned 
by others so. that, if they are t11e=source- of contamination1 the property· of otherS. may be affectedr·.For-example, aboveground. and underground 
transmission ·1.ines·sometimes traverse properties -that we do not own! and, at some of our-transmission. stations, transmission· assets· (owned or 
operated·by us) and distribution assets (owned or operated.by-our.-transmi-ssion -c:u!.ioffiers} are commingled. 

Some properties in which we have .an ownership interest or al which ·we operate are, and others are -susp-ected of belng, afft.'Cted by 
environmental contamination. We:are'1lot aware of any claims ,pending or threatened against us with respect to environmental contamination, or 
of any investigation or remediation ·of contam-ination at any properties, that ent<iil· costs likely to materially affect us. Some facilities and 
properties.are located near enviromnen~lly sensitive. areas such as wetlands. 

Claims have been made or threatened against electtic uii1hies for bodily injury, disease or other damages allegedly related to exposure to 
electromagnetic fields associated with electric transmission and distribution lines. \1/hile we do not belic\'C that a causal link between 
electromagnetic field exposure and injury has been generally established anrl accepted in the scientific community, if such a relationship is 
establiShed or accepted, the llabiHtics and costs imposed on our business could be signifiex\nt. 
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We are not aware of any claims pending: or -threatened against us for bodily injury, disease or other damages allegedly related to exposure to 
6lectromagnetic fields and electric transmission and distribution lines that entail costs likely to have a material adverse effect on. our results of 
operationS~ financial position or liquidity. · 

Fllings Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

Our internet address is httn://www.itc-holdings.com . You can access free of charge on our web site a1l of our reports filed pursuant to 
Section 13(n) or l5(d) ofthe Securitie.<> ExChange Act ofl934, as amended {the 'cExchange Act")> including our annual reports on. Form 10-K~ 
quarterly reports on Fonn t.O~Q. current reports on Form 8-K and any ameudri1ents·to those reports. These reports are available as soon as 
practicable after they: are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC»). Also on our web site are our: 

Corporate Govemance-Guidelines; 
Code of Business Conduct and·Ethics; and 

·f Committee Charters· for the Audit and Finance Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating/Corporate Governance 
Committee·. 

Our Code orBttsiness Coniluct and Ethics applies to aU directors. officers and employees, including our Chainnan •. President ·.and Chief 
Executive Officer and our EXccntive Vlce ·Presi"dent .an·d ·Chief Financial Offic~r. We wHl·JTOSt any amendments to the Code·of Business 
C-onduct and Ethics,. and any wa1Vers that are 1'eqUirid: to be·disclosed.by the rules of either the SEC or the NYSE,, on our web ·site within ·fhe: 
required;perioUs. The informati·on on our·wehsite is 110t incorporated- by refer.ence.into ibis·report. 

To leatn more about u·s, please visit our webSite ·af http:"//ww\v Jtc.:.holdings.com . We use our website as a channel of dlstl'ibution o"f material 
cOmpany informati-011. Fina-acial and other material "info:rrmition.·regarding us-iscrounuely·posted on our website and- is readily ac~:;essfuk 

YOu may· also read 1in·d :co"RYan)' materials we file· With ihe SEC at the SEC~s Pubric Reference. Room at 100 F"Street1 NE. Washington BC, 
20>49. You m&y obtain info1matiou on the operation of.fue Public "Reference Room by calling the SEC at J-800,SEC0330. The. SllC also 
maihtains· an internet site that contain·s reports, proxy arid information statements, and other information regarding issuers that me 
electronically with the SEC. The addre$ is"httn:l/w~~:sec.gov. 

ITEM-lA. RJSKFACTORS. 

Ri"sl!s .Related to··Our Business 

Ce1•iain.-elements of our Regulatetl£!peratiug Euhsidiaries 1 ·C1Jst recover..wthrougll. rates can he cluillenged, which could rcsu/t.itt.lowered 
rates and/or Mjunds of amounts previously collected- onil thus have tm adverse effect rm our bushu~ss, fimwcial c:o:mlition, results of 
operation& rmtlailsft flows.- We havB also:matle cel'tain commitments to fetlm•f1Land stale regulator.s-with ,·espett"to, among other th;J~gs, 
our rates. itt c01mecthm with. rtweiu.ac.quis"f!ifms·(includlng ITC Mltlwest~s.acquisitiou. of IP&L 's deatrktrrmsmission asset$) tfsat.could. 
htwe:un adt•DJ'Se effect-on our husines~z.financial con.dition1 re$u#s ofoper.atWns uml cash flows. 

Gur·Regulated. Operatiug.Subsidiaries· provide transmission service under rates regulated by· the.FERC. The FERC has approved the cost­
based .formUla rate templates ·used by our R¢gulateQ Operating .Subsidiaries, but it has not expressly approved the amount of actual capitAl and 
operating expenditures to be u.se<I in the· formula rat~. AI! aspects of our 'RegUlated Operating, Subsidiaries' rates approved by tliC FBRC, 
inciuding th.t'formlllarate·templates, !TC'fransmission1s, tvfETC1S, ITC 1:vHdwest's· and ITC Great.Pfalns' respective· all-owed J3.88%, 13.3"8%, 
12~38% and 12.16% rates of ret1llJ1 on the actual equin.• portion of their respecti:.ve capital structures, and the dat~ in.pt1ts provided .h)• our: 
Regulated Operating Subsidi8ries for calcu1a1ion of each year!s rate,·are subject·to chaUenge by"-iutetested.panies at·the"FERC in aproceedjng 
under Sebtion 2.06- of the FPA. If a challenger can establish that any of the.se aspects are unj\L~t. .unreasonable, undu.!-y discriminator-y or 
preferential, then the FBRC will make appropri-ate prospective adjustments to them and/or dib'fillow any of out Regulated Operating 
:SubsidiarieS.'_ inclusion ofthose aspects in the r.ate setting ·formula. This could result-in. lowered r.ates and!or refunds·.of amounts··collected after 
the date that a Section 206 challeqge is :filed. 

The FERC~s· order approving our acquisition of METe was conditioned upon.I'fCT ransmission and MBTC. not recovering "merger•related 
costsll in their rateS: ns described in the order~· unless. a separate informati.onat filing i:s subm.itted to the ·PERC. The informational filing, which 
could be- cha:lletJged by interested parties. would need to identify those costs and show that such costs arC·.·ontweighed by .the benefits of the 
.acquisition. Determinations by ITCTr.ausmission or METC that expenses included in their formula ·rate template for recovery are not 
acquisition related costs are also subject to challenge by interested panies at the.FBRC. If challenged at the- FERC and ITCTranstnission or 
MET.C fail to show tlm1 costS included for recovery are not merger~ related, this also could re:."Ult in lowered rates and/or refunds of amounts 
collected. We'have n.ot sought recovery ofmerger-re}nted costs at !TCTramm"lission or METC. 
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Under -the FERC 1s order approving ITC Midwesfs asset acquisition, lTC Midwest agreed to a hold harmless commitment in wllich no 
acquisition premium will be recovered in rates, nor will lTC Midwest recover through transmission r-ates any tr-ansaction-related costs that 
exceed demonstrateO transaction related savings for a -period of five years. [f during the five year period_ ITC Midwest seeks lo recover 
transaction-related costs through its formula rate, ITC Midwest must make- an informational filing at the- FERC that identifies the transaction~ 
related costs smtght to be. recovered and demonstrates-that those costs are exceeded by transaction-related savjngs. If challenged at the FERC 
and ITC Midwest fans to show that transaction-related costs included for recovery do not exceed transaction .. related savings. ITC Midwest 
could be-SlJbject to lowered. rates and/or refunds of amounts previously collected. Additionally, ln lowa and Minnesota, as part·of'the regulatory 
approval.·process, ITC Midwest committed not to recover the first $15.0 ni.iillon h\ transaction-. related costs u11det- any circumstances. We have 
not sought recovery oftransa:ctio:n-.related costs at ITC Midwest. 

ln the Minnesota regulatory proceeding to appr.ove ITC Midwest1s December 2007 acqUisition of the transmission assets of JP.&L, ITC 
MidweSt also agreed to build iwo transmission projects interided to improve·the reliability and efficiency of our clectric transmission system·. 
Specifically, .. ITC Midwest made commitments to use· commercially reasonable best efforts to complete these projects·prior to December 3·1, 
2009 and 2Qi 1, respectively .. in the event ITC MidWest iS -found to have failed. to meet these commitments, the al1owed 12.38% rate·nf relmn 
oil the-actual equity·port'ton ofl'f-C Midwest's capital structute.-wouHI be reduced to 10.39%-,unt:.ll such- time·as ITC Midwest completes these 
projects, and lTC Midwest would refund with interest- any·amount.S collected since:the·close.d.ate of t1)e-transaction- that ·exce-eded \\ibaf. wmild 
have been .collected jftbe l0.39.%·retllf!) ort·equity·had. been used. The project.tbat was -required. to he comp1eted.prior to December 31. 2009 
was ·completed by: thai deadline. Witb respect·to the second project, the.345 k:\1 SalemwHazelton.line, .certain regti1atory ·'!pprovals weremee<fed 
from the IUB before construction of the --project could .comm_ence. but due to tbe JUB's. case·schedule. these ·approvals were. not received .until 
the secOn·d quarter of 2011. As a.result. of the delay in·the ~eceipt of the· necessary regulatory approvals, the: project was not contpleteq by 
December 31, 20H. WhUe.w.e-be1ieve-we used·comm~rciaUy reasonable best effott~-to meet the December 31) 2011 deadline, any of the events 
detmribed. abov.e could haveH:~ ·material adverse effect on our' business~ financial condition, results··of operations and ~sh ·flows. 

Our Regul.ated·Operatiug Subsidlai'Jes' tUJtual.captttll expendittt"res may be lower than pltumetl, which WOltlticdecreose-expecti!d:.rate base 
tut!J·ther-cfore our expf!cled ·reveuu~ fmd earnings. In additiou, we expect ttJ invest in-strategic developnumt.qpporiunities to Ut!ptove:ilte 
ejjieleiu:J• and reliability of the:transmissicm griil~ hut we ·camwt ussure .you·.that ·we will be-able ·to in"liiate 'Of complete any <!{these 
investJiteltts, 

E·acb of o~r-.R~gulated Operating SubSidlaries' rate base, revenues and eamings·are·determined inprut by addHions to·property, plant and 
equipment- when y>iaced in service. We anticipate making Significant capital investments -over ·the next five years· which include estimated 
.rans-rriission uetwcirk upgrades for generator interconnections. The amounts for network upgrade...- :eou\d change·. sign-ifi-cantly due to fac.turs 
beyond our contrOl, such as- changes in the MfSO queue for generntion projects and whether the ~encrator meets the various- criteria of 
Attachment FF -of the MISO Open Access Transmission, Energy, ·and Operating Reserve Markets '"tariff for the<project to .qualify as.a 
refUndable network 'qpgrade~ among other factors. If our Regulated Operat4l£; SubsidiariesJ capital expenditures and the- resu\ti~g in~service 
:property, plant. and equipment are lower than anticipated Tor any teason, our Regulated Operating Substdiaries will have a lower than 
antidj>at-ed.nlte·base thus.causing their revenue requirements and-future earnings·to. be·.potentitl:lly lower'than anticipated. 

Jn_ ·addition, we are pursuing· broader strategic deve1QplneFit investment opportunities ·fOr transmission construction related to· building 
reglomih_ransmission facilities, interconnections for generating resources, and other investment. opportunities. The incumbent utiJitjcs or other 
entiti~ with transmiSsion development initiatives may cori)pete- with us by deciding to pursue capitaf projects··that we are pursuing. These 
estimates of _potential inveStment opportunirie..<> are based pr-imari\y on foreseeable transmission needs and general transmission construction 
costS1 nOt .necessarily on particUlar project cost estimates. 

Any c~pital investrucnt at our Regulated Operating -subsidiaries or a~ a result of our broader strategi-c· development htitiatives.may b-e-lower 
than expected due to, among other factors-, the impact of actual load.c;:~ forecasted.loads, regional econnm\c conditions, weather conditions, 
union stiJ.ke.c;:.labor shortag€'-..s, material and equipmentprices.and availability~ our ability to obtain financing for such .expen-ditures, if necessaty

1 

limitations on the amOunt of construction that can ·be undertaken em our system or transmission systems .owned by- others at any one time, 
regulatory approvals for reasons relating io Tate construct, environmental. ·siting, regional planning, cost recovery or other issues or as a result 
oflegal.proceedings..:and variances between estimated. and actual c.osts of construction contracts. awarded. Our ability to engage in construction 
projects resulting from pursuing these initiatives is· subject to significant uncertainties,·including the factors discussed above~ and wiJJ depend 
on-· obtaining any necessary regulatory and other approvals for the project -and for us to lnitfate constmction, our achieving status as the builder 
of. the- projec{ in some circumstances and other factors. Therefore. we· can provide no assurance.as to the actual level of investment Wt! may 
achieve at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries or as· a- resu1t ofthe broader strategic development initiatives. 
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The regula.tions to wltich wc:are subject may limit our ability ifl raise cnpital am/lor pursue acquisitious, del-'elopment-opporttmiiies or 
other transactions or may subject u ... .; to "liabilities. 

Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries is a "public utility 11 under the FPA and, accordingly, is subject to regulation by the PERC. 
Approval of the FERC is required under Section 203 of the t"'PA for a disposition or acquisition of regulated public utility facilities, either 
directly-or indirectly through a holding company. Such approval may also be required to acquire securities .in a. public utility. Section 203 ofthe 
FPA also provides the FERC with explicit authority over utility holding co~panies' purchases or ac-quisitions of. and·mergers or consolidations 
with, a public utility. Finally, each of our Regulated Operatil!g Subsidim;ieS must also seek approval by tl1e FERC under Section 204 of the 
FPA for issuances of its securities (including debt securities): 

We are also pursuing strategic development opportunitie-s for construction of transmission facilities and interconnections with generating 
resOurces. These projects require regnlat01y appro\'al by the FERC, applicable RTOs and state regulatory agencies .. Failure to secure such 
regulator~y approval for·new strategic development projects could adversely affect our abili-ty to grow our business and increase our revenues. 
In nddition, we are-subject:to sta.te-and/or local regulations relating to,.among·<other things, £acUity siting. If-we fail to comply with these local 
regulations; we may incur liabilities for such failure, 

ChaHg~r;;.-in federaf.energy"laws,-regulathms or policies coulfl i"mpact.cashjlows and-could J'edltce:the. dividenils we may ha able to pay our 
stbcliholders. 

The fonnU:Ia·rate templates used. by our .Regulated Operating Subsidiaries to: calculate their-respective annual revenue requirements will be 
used by our ·Regulated Opc..·rating· Subsidiar]e..~>; for that purpose until and unles-s .the FER C. determines that·. such rate fonnula is unjust -and 
unreasonable: or- that another mechanism is more appropriate. Su·ch determinations could· result from challenges initiated at the PERC by 
interested parties, by the FERC on its own initiative in a proceeding. under Section- 206 of the FPA or by a successful application initiated-by 
any of our Regutated·Operating Subsidiaries under Section 205 of the FPA. End Muse- consumers and enrit1es supplying electricity to· end~:use 
consumers maY attempt to influence government and/or regtilators to chau~e the rate setting methodOlogies that apply to our R~gulated 
Operating SubsJdiades~ particUlarly ifrate...~·fOl""delivered electricity increase substantia·lly. 

Each of our Regulated Qperating SUbsidiaries is regulated by the FERC·as a '1pub1ic utility" ·under the F·P A-and is a transmission· owner in 
MISO"or·SPP. We cannot ·predi-ct whether the approved rate·methodolOgJes for-any of our Regulated Opemting Subsidiaries wiU be changed. In 
addition. the U:-s. Congress periodically considers enacting energy legislation ·that could shift new responsibilities 'to the FERC, m-odify 
'lmvisions o"f.1he FPA or provide ti~e.FERC or another entity witb increased.authority to regulate transmisSion matters. W-e cannot predict 
.Vhether, and to what extent, our Regulated Operatin-g Subsidiaries may"be affected .by any such- cl1anges in federal enerro• laws, regulations-or 
policies in the future. 

If amount.~ bllle-ilfor trunsmisskm servi.cejQr our Regulated OperatiugSitbsidiaries'lransmission ·systems are lower than expeded, the 
timing-JJf collectifm of our rel'Cuues would.be delayed. 

If amounts billed for transmission servi-ce are lower than expecte~ \\;hich- could result fi:om lower network load .or point'-to-point 
·transmission service on our Regu1ated Operating·Subsidiaries' transmission systems due to weather., a weak economy, changes in the nature or 
composition of the transmission assets of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and Slln'ounding areas,. poor tran_s.mission quality of 
·neighboiing·transmlssi.on systems, or for any other-reason,. tbe fiming of the collection of our revenue--requirement would likely be delayed until 
such circumstances are adjusted-through the twe~up -mechanism in our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' formUla. rate templates. T-ho effect of 
·such tmder~collection would be to reduce the amount of our available cash resources from what we-had expected, v'lllich may require us to 
increase- our outstanding indebtedness. reducing our available bol-TO\-ving.capacity,.anii may require us to pay·interest.at a rate that exceed., the 
·interest-to·-whicb we are entitled-.in connection with the operation oft-he trueMup mechanism. 

EaCh of our MJSO Regulated OparatJng Stlhsidiaries-depimds·oli- Us primary cu.s/IJmer for a·sttbstantlo1poi·tiou ofiM' revenues, ant! any 
ltUiterifll_failure- by those p1'imary ctt-stbfuers io make paym(mts for trammtissiou services -woillil adverse{v affect our revenues nud- our 
ability to service- our debt obligations· and affect om· ability ·to pay dividends, 

ITCTransmission derives a substantial portion of its revenues from the transmission of electricity to DetrriiLEdison•s local distribution 
facilities. Detroit Edi-son accounted for 78.-5% of lTCTronsmission's total operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 201 J and is 
expected to constitute the majority of ITCT.ransmissiou)s revenues for the foreseeable future. Detroit Edison is rated BBB+/stable and 
Baallstab1e by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services and Moody?s 1nvestors Services, Inc., respectively. Similarly, Consumers Energy 
accounted for 79,0% ofMETC's total operating revenues for the y.ear ended December 31, 2011 and is ex:pected to constitute- the. maioritv of 
METC's revenues for the f--ore.'\eeable future. Consumers Energy is rated BBBM/stable and Ba~-.2/stabk by Standard & Poor1S Ratings Ser\~ces 
and Moody's Investors Service, lnc., respec:five!y. Further, 1P&L accounted for 78.9% ofiTC Midw~sCs total operating revenues for the year 
ended December 31, 2011 and is expected to constitute the majority of lTC Midwest's revenues for the fore-seeable future. JP&L is rated 
BBB+!stable and A3/negative by S'tandard.& Poor~s Ratings Services and Moo·dy's lnvestors Service, Inc., respectively. These percentages of 
total operating .revenue..'> of Detroit E<iison,- Consumers Energy and !P&L include an estimate for the 2011 revenue accmal and deferrals 
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that were included in our 20.11 operating revenues1 hut will not be biHed to our· customers until 2013.We have assumed that the revenues billed 
10" t11esecustomers iti:2013 would he jn tbe same proportion of the respective percentages of network and .regional <:Ost sharing revenues billed 
to. thendn '2011. 

Any material failure' by Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy -or 1P.&Lto make payments for transmission services could adversely affect our 
fmanda1 condition and results of operations and our ability to service our debt obligations, ._and could :impact the amount of dividends we pay 
our stockholders, 

A significant amoum of tlte la#d on wltich- {lur R~g-Jilaied- Operating Subsidiaries' asseis are located is 8Ub}ect to easements, miner.al 
rigltts ami other Siinilar encumbrances. As a result, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries must compl.}' with the p,.ovisions of various­
easemettfsJ miniu~tif·rig/tt.c; and other similar·ettcumbr-aJtcCSt which.·mqv-advet'sely imptret- theil' ubirfty to ·complete-construction projects u, 
a:timely manner. 

METC does not own the majority of the land on which its- electric transmisSion assets are located. Instead, under the provisions of an. 
Easement Agreement with Consumers Energy. METC pays annual r.ent-.of $-10.0 million to Consumers-Energy in exchange for rights·of.,way, 

. leases, ·fee interests- and-licenses. which allow METC to use -the "land .on which its transmission lines .are-located~ Under the terms of" the 
.Easement·AgreemeJit,-·METC's e"asement rights· could be e1iminated ifMETC falls to meet certain reqUirements, such as·.payiug contractual 
rent.to Consumers Energy'"in a timely manner. Additionally, a significant amount oftbe-Jand-.on Wh-ich lT.CTransmission:ts, lTC Midwesfs and 
lTG".Great Plains• assets·ar-e located is ·subject to·easements, mineral rights·and other similar encurnbr.ances. As.a:resUlt; they must comply-with 
the·proviSidti§·OfVaiiotis eaSements. mitlenll rights and other-similar encumbrances, which may adversely-impact their -ability·to complete their 
constr.uation projects in a- timely·mannero 

Om~.R~gllkJteiVper:llii~t:g Stlbsidiaries contract with tliii'd.portie~·tl!pr.ovid-e services for caJ'/tli;r--ttspeCts oftheir-buidtresses. If atty of these 
aw·ee~ilents ar.e:termin:trted, our .R(!guloted.-Operrdiug Subsidiaries mayface_:n;-ShOJ~Ulge Qj-lahor or rifp1«J?<!11UJJJl coutPQCtors tf>-pnwldc-Uw 
seJwicesformer1.V.proViilell by tltes(Mliird parties. 

Oui· Re_glilated OperAtiilg St-ibsidiaries enter into various agreements and..-arrangements with third parties to ·provide services for the 
operation .of "Certai-n aspects afthCir buSinesses,. which, if terminated could .result in a shortage of a·readily-available·.workforce to provide· these 
services. ITC M-i(lwest and.IP&L have-·eritered into the-Operations Services Agr-eement For 34.5'k~' Tnnsmission:Facilities.(th~· "OS-A1

'}, under 
WhiCh IP&L petforms:certain operatluns functions-for lTC"Midwesf's 3i1.5 k\1 tiansnllsSion system. The OSA'S 1erm is.from January 1. 2011 
•mtil De.cemQer 31,- 2015~ and by··its terms will:re.main in-full fur:ce and effect from.- year to·year thererifter until terminated ·by either.paf!y upon 
~ot Jess than one year pfior wrltteh·notice to the other party. If the OSA is terminated.for any reason or at a time when ITC Midwest is 

unprepared for such termination, ITC Midwest may face difficulty finding -a qualified replacement work force to provide such services, Which 
could have a material adverse effect on its ability ·to- carry· on -its busine-ss and- on: .its Tesults ·of operations. 

Hazards assodaied with ltigb-voltqge electrid6' transmiS~·ion .may result in suspeu.o;iou Of out Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' 
opm·afions OJ' ihe- impoSition -of ch>il or Cl'iminQ.l penalties. 

The- opefaiions of our Regulated Operating Subsldiaries are subject to· fh-e usual hazards .associated with 11ighpvdltage electricHty 
traniinlission) including explosions, fire-s, incl~ment weather, natural disasters, mechanical failure, unsCheduled dov~_"'Jltime, equipment 
interro.ption:S, remcdiatlon, chemical spills, discharges or releases- of toxic or hazardous SUbStances or gase-s and other environmental risks. The 
hazards can cause persoltai injury and. "Joss of life,- severe -damage· to or destruction of property and eq~pment and environmenta:l damage, and 
may result in suspension of·operatfons and·the imposition of c"ivU or criminal pellalties. We maintain property mid casualty insurance, but we 
are not fully insured at~ainSt -all potential hazards incident to our business, such as damage to poles, towers· and lines· -or losses caused by 
outages. 

Our Regulated Operatiug Subsitllari:es·,are subject .to euvirmtmenud regulations atid to laws that· can give. risa to· substantial. liabilities 
jrt1m eJtv(t·onmental·contundnation. · · 

·The operations of o~r Regu1ated Operating Subsidiaries are subject tO federal, state and. local environmental laws and regulations, which 
impose litnitations on the -discharge of pollutants into the environment, estab1ish standards for the management, treatment, stora-ge. 
transportation and disposal of hazardou-s materials and of-solid and hazardous wastes, anB impose obligations to investigate and remediate 
contamination in certain circumstances. Liabilities to inv·estig~te or·remediate contamination ... as well as· other liabilities concerning hazardous 
materials or contamination such as claims for-personal injury or propeJ1y. damage, may arise at many locations, -including formerly owned or 
operated properties and sites where wastes have been h·eated or disposed of, as well as at properties currently owned or operated by our 
Regulated Operating.Subsidiades. Such liabilities may arise even \Vhere the contamination does not result from noncompliance with applicable 
environmental laws. Under a number of environmental laws, such liabilitie.'i: may also be joint and Se\'eral, meaning that a party can be held 
responsible· for more than its share of the-liability involved, or even the entire share. Environmental requirements generally have become more 
stringent in recent years, a.nd compliance w.lth those requirem.ents more expensive·. 
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Our Regulated Operating Stibsidi_arles ·have ilrctirred expenses in comtection with environmental compliance1 and we anticipate that each 
will continue to do so.in the future. Failure to comp~y with the extensive envjrom:nental Jaws and regulations applicable to each could result in 
significant civil or criminal penalties and remediation costs. 0ur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' assets.and·operations also involve the use 
of. materials classified as hazardous, toxfc, or otherwise dangerous. Some-of ou.r Regulated Openiting Subsidiaries' facilities and properties are 
located·near environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands and habitats··of endangered or threatened specie;."· ln addition, certain pr<;~perties 
in·which our·Regulated Qperating Subsidiaries operate are, or are suspected of being, affected by environmental contamination. Compliance 
with these laws and regulati"ons, .and lia~lities concerning. contamination or· hazardous materials~ may advCrs6ly affect our· costs an~ therefore, 
our business. fmancial condifion and resuits o:f Operations. 

In additionr claims have heen made Or threatened against electric utilities for·bodily injury, disease. or other .damages allegedly related to 
ex.posure to ·elecb·omagnetie fields. associated .With: elecnjc·trnnsmission 'and distribution lines. \Ve cannot.assure--yon:that.such claims will not 
be asserted against us or that, if determined in a manner aOverse· to otir ittteres~, such claims would not have a·.material adverse effect on our 
business;financi.Sl condition and re.<;Ults Qf oper.atiOt)S. 

O~tY · Reifulat!nl Opei-'.flth~g Subsidim;i.es are subject to vufiou"$ reg.uldtbry requiremettts, im:lmfiug reliability standnrd.~i contract flli~!g 
regufremems~· f'eporting, rttcordl;meping .a1ii$ accourrtiug_ reqtiiremettts; and irausllction approvaf.requirements •. Tliolations of lhese.· 
reqiiite~tients, whether in.telliio>Jiif .or· uhiliteft.tionai, mny resu'lf. i_11 pemiltles :tlm{, undet smue Circumstances, could have a materiat 
advm'Se.·effect on, our financial couditiLm, ·rtuullt!NJ.l operatkms:tmd· ca.Sli jlmVs~ 

The various regulatory requil~-ements to v/hiCh .W.e are subject include- reH<ibili~y standards establiShed by the NERC, 'Which acts as the 
nation~s: Electric Reliability Organization approved· by" 'the FBRC in accordance with Section 215 of the .FPA. These .standards address· 
operatimi,filanniug and secut.ity of the bUlk-power-system,. including requirements· with respect to real~time,transmission.-operntions, emergency 
operations, vegetation management, critical infrastructure protection and personnel training. Failure. to comply with these req)lirements can 
resU:lt in .mmietaty penalties as well as·.non~monetary sanctions; ·Monetan'·peoalties vaiy based on an assigned .risk· factor for. each potential 
,~alation, the·· severity of the v:i01ation and ·\<arious other cif:cnffistance~~ sucb.·as Whether the violation was intentional. or concealed, whether 
there·are repelited viohifions: the degree of the·Y.iolat<:na.s,-cooperation in irivestigating and rem.ediating·the -violation and:the presence of.11. 
coll)pli~ce .Program. P"enalty amounts range from $1,000 to a maximum on;J .0 mHiion per day, depending on.'the severity of the'violation. 
Nori-monetalj·sanctions include potenti3.11imitations on the violator?s actiVities or operation·and .. placing the· violator on a watchlist for-major 
viOlators .. Despitt} our·best efforts to comply and the implementation-of a compliance program intended to ensure reliability., there- can be no 
-.ssuraririe that Vi6Iations will not occur·that woti10:result in material penalties-or sanctions. If any of our Regulated :Operating Subsidiaries were 
.) Violate.1he.NERC reliability standaras, even uninteut1ona11y. in any material way, .. any penalties or sanctions imposed againat us -could have a 

materiaJ..adverse·effeot on our·financial condition,. results of operations and cash flows. 

Th.c.RegulatCd Operafu:l$.Subsfdiaries are also·.subject ±o requirements under Sections 203· and 205 of the FPA for approval of transactions; 
reporting, recordkeeping.anrl accmm"ting .requirements; and for filing contracts r.elated to the:provlsion of jurisdictional services. Under FERC 
policy., failure to fil~·jur:isdictional :agreements 'OD a timely basis may result··in ·foregoing the time value of revenues·coHected under· the 
agreement, but not:.to·the point where a·Joss w<;mld"·hy incurred. TheJaiJur.e tO -obtain timely approval. of transactionS subjectto FPA Section 
203, orto comply with .applicable rep.orthtg, recordkeeping-.or accounting requirements under FPASection 205, could suQject·us·-to penalties 
tha.t coUld have a material adverse effect on our finanCial condition, resUlts of OJ?erati.ons,and cash. flows. 

AoiS of war, terrm·ist attacks mtd threats1 including cyher attacks or tln·eats, or the escalation ofmilltary• actil•ltj>:in resptmse ·to such 
attacks or--otherwise· muy negatively ·affect ourdmsluess, flnaucldl: condltioll: amf.caslr,..flows. 

Acts of war, terrorist attacks and. threats, including· oyber attacks or threats, or1he·.escalation of military activity in response to: such attacks 
or otherwise may negatively affect· our business,.financial condition and. cash :flows -in UI'I;predictable ways, such as·increased.-securily measures 
~nrl disruptions of markets. Strategic targets: such as energy related assets, including, for ·example, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' 
transmission facUities and Detroit Edison:s. Consumers Energy'S and IP&L's generation and distribution facilities,. may be at ·risk of future 
terrorist ·attacks or threats. including cyber attacks or threats .. ln addition to the increased .costs associated with heightened security 
requirements, "Such events· may have.an adverse effect on H1e economy in .generaL A !.ower l.evel of economic activity c.ould' resiilt ih a decline in 
energy:consumption, which may adversely·aftCct our business. financial condition and cash flows. 

Risks Reiating to Our Structure and r<inanchl:l Lev.erage 

JTC Holdi~tgs .fs a ltoldittg company with no· opel'utions, and unless we r-eceive ·dividends .or other pll,vm.ents from tmt' subsiditlries1 we may 
be unable to pay dividends and fu!jll/.our other aasli" ohligtriiont.'• 

As a holding company with no business ope1·aiions, ITC Holdings' material assets consist primarily of the stock and membership interests in 
our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and our other subsidiaries, deferred tax assets relating p1imarily to federal income tax NOL~ and cash on 
hand. Our only ~ources of cash to pAy dividencis"to our stockholders are dividends· and other payments 
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received by us-~omtimc·to·time from our RegUlated Operaiing Subsidiaries and our other subsidial'i.es and the. proceeds raised from the sale of 
our debt and equity securities. Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries~ however) is legally ·distinct from us and ·has no obligation~ 
contingent or otherwis~ to· make funds available· to us-for the payment of dividends to ITC Holdings• stockhOlders or otherwise. The ability of 
each- of our-Regulated Operating SUbsidiaries and our other subsidiaries to pay -dividends and make other payments·to us is -subject tO,· among 
other things,ihe availability of funds, after taking ·into account capital expenditure requirements. the.1erms of its indebtedness,._applicable state 
laws and regulations of the FERC and theJ:''PA. Wb.lle w.e currently intend. to co-ntinue to pay quarterly dividends on our common. stock; we 
have no obligation to -do so. The payment of dividends is within ·1he absolute discretion of our board. of directors and win depend on, amor).g 
other things; our results of operations, working capital rcqtllrements, capital expenditure requirements, financi-al condition, contractual 
restrictions, anticipated oash needs and other facfors that our boa.rd.of directors- deems relevant. 

We are· highly leveraged nntl om· dependenc-e on debt ·mny limit our ability to fulfdl our debt oHUgafions anillor to obtaili additiimizl 
financing. 

We are.bighly -leveraged and our consolidated indebtednesS·consists of various outstanding debt;securities and borrow.ings under various 
revolving credit agreoments. This capital smtcture·can have sevetal..irilportant consequenceS1 including,.butnot iimited to, the fOllowing: 

If future cash flows are inSufficfe'nt. we may not be able to 1nake principtil or interest payJnentS on our debt· obligations,: whiCh ·could 
result'in'the occUrr.ence Of: an event of default· und~r-one. or- more of.lhose debt instruments. 
If :future cash flows.-are -insufficient, we may need to incur---further indebtedness in order to make 1he capit~. expenditures and other 
expenses or ·mvestments-planned'by us. 
Our inUi:-btetlness has the: general effect· ofreducing our fleXibility· to react to changing busines-s and economic- conditions insofar as they 
affect Dut financial condition and, therefore, may pose -sUbstantial risk to our- shareholders. A substantial _portion ofthe,di-vldcnds and 
payments in H:eu of taXes we receive from our Regnlatetl Operating·· Subsidiaries will be· dedicated to the payment Of intere."tit on -our 
indebtedness_; th~reby·rcdp.cing the funds avaHable: for-thepayment-ofdividends on our common stock. 
In the:eyent :that,we·areJiquida'ted) our senior or subordinated creditors and the. senior or-subordinated. creditors Of our sUbsidiaries--will 
bo entide<Ho payment in fuJI prior to any di_stributions to tlie,holders of shares. of. our common Stock. 
We-cwTently"'have d&bf instruments outstanding ·with relatively short·Temaining ma1m·ities. Our ability to·secure additiomH financing 
prior to ot after these facilities mature, if need~ may be'.substantially restricted by the existing level of our indebtedness and the 
restrictions contai_ned."i-n'_ Qur=OObt instruments. Additionally,.the interest .rate..'> at which·-we·might secure additional financings may- be 
higher thao our curtently-outstandin.g.debt instruments or. higher than forecasted at·any point in time. 
Market. conditions ·coUld affect our aC".cess:to capital marKets,-r.estrict our ability·to secure: financilig·to·make the capital expenditures and 
otber expenses or inve-Stments p1anned by us and could adversely affect our business1 financial condition, caSh.flows and results of 
operations . 

. We may incur substantial indebtedness 'in the future. The incurrence of·additional indebtedness wou!d inc.rease: the leverage-related risks 
described .here. 

Cartdl.tl p'rovi.~itius in om·-debt insfi•UfJteltt..~ limit our fimuuilal jlexibiilty. 

Our deb.t .instruments .inolude setiior notes, secured notes, first rnor.rgage bonds and revolving credit agreements containing numerous 
:financial and operating c--Ovcna!lts:that place significan1 restrictions on,.amotlg other things, our ability to: 

incur. additional indebtedness; 
engage: in sale and.lease-back transactions; 
create liens or other enoumbrancesj 
enter into mergers, r:onsolidations1 liquidations or dissolutions, or sell or otber.wise dispose of all or substantially all of.our asr;ets;_ 
create antl acquire subsidiaries~ and 
pay dividends or _make distributi-ons on our ana ITCTransmission's capital· stock and 'METC'~. ITC Midwest's, and ITC Great Plains~ 
member capital, 

The revolving·-erCdit agreements,- ITC Holdings' senior notes,lTCTransmissfon*s fi'rst mortgage. bonds, JTC MidwesCS first mortgage bonds 
and METC'-s senior secured notes require us to meet.eettain financial ratios, such· as maintaining certaiil.debt to capital-izatimrratios. Our ability 
to comply with these and other requirements and restrictions may be affected by changes in 
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economic or business conditions, results of operations or other events beyond our cotttrol. A failure to comply with the obligations contained in 
any of our debt instruments could result in acceleration of the· related debt and the acceleratioll of debt under other instruments e\'idencing 
indebtedness that may contain cross~acceleration or cross~default provisions. 

Adverse changes.in our credlt ratings may1:egatively qffect.us. 

Our ability to access capital markets is important to our· ability to operate our business .. ]ncreased scrutiny of the energy industry and the 
impact of regulation, as well as changes in our financial performance and unfavorable' conditions in the c!lp.ital markets could result in credit 
agencies :reexamining our credit ratings. A downgrade in our credit" ratings could· restrict or discontfnue our ability to access capita1 n\arkets al 

attractive rates and increase our borrowing costs. A rating doWUgt'ade could also in.crea~ the interest we pay under our revolving credit 
agreements. 

Provisions ·in (}Ur A·rticks of.Jncorporation amt b)ilaws, .Miclzigan corporate law and -our debt agreements may impede effot·ts by our 
slumtholders.to change the. direction m· mmzagement;of dur campaf!Y· 

Our Articles.of Incorporation and bylaws contain provisious that might enable our management to resist a proposed takeover. These 
proV.isions cou10 .. discourage, delay at prevent a change-· of contrOl or atr acquisition at a·pii.ce that. our sharehoidets m~y firid attractive. These 
proVisions also may discourage proxy contests and make it more "difficult·for OUt sharehOlders to elect directors and take other corporate 
actions. The existence of these :provisions could limit the. price that investors are willingcto:pay in the future for share.s o:f our·common stock. 
These provisions include: 

a restriction·limitin_gmatket participants from voting. or owning 5% or more ofthe·outstand.in:g,shares of our capital stock; 
a .requiremcnt·that special meet:ings.Of out shareholders may be. called only·by our board of directors. the-chainnan of our board of 
directors, our president otthe hOlders of a. majority of the shar-ys-~of our.-outstanding.common-stock; 
advance:notice requirementS for sbarehtilder proposals anrl-.norilinati!)ns;·Md 
the· authority of ·out board to issue, without Shareholder· apProvai, common or preferred ·st-ock, including in ·connection with our 
inip1errieritati.on ofany shareholders tights plan, or ··'poison~"pilt" 

In . .additlon,c<lur revolving credit-agreements provide "that a Change in a majority of lTC HDJdings~ hoard of directors that is not'approved by 
the current iTC .Holdings directors or acquiring beneficial ownership of 35% or .more of ITC Holdings outstanding common share.c; w.Hi 
constitute. a default. under those-agreements. 

Provisions in our Arti.eles of JJ,corpOI7ailon restrict market partiCipants from.- voting or owning 5% or mtJ"rc of the. ·outstanding sltares··of 
our capital stock. 

C'.ertain o'f our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries have been &rranted favorable-rate treatment by·the FERC based on-their independence from 
market prut_idpants.1'be PERC defines -a '1ma!ket partidpantn to·h1cludeany person or· entity that, either directly. odhrough an affiliate, se.Ifs .or 
br6kcFs electri-city, or pro-vides ancillary services to an RT0. An affiliate, for these·puq1oses, includes any person or entity that directly or 
indirectly ownsf controls or holds with the power'·to· vote:S% or more. of the .outstandfng- voting securities of a market participant; TQ help 
ensur.e- tbat·we· and. our subsidiaries will. remaiu independent of market participants, our Articles oflncorporation,impose.certain restrictions-on 
the ownership and voiing of shares of our capital stock, by market participants. h) ·particuJa.r, the Articles oflncw:porntion provide that·we are 
restricted fr.Om isSuing any shar~ of capital stock or recording any ·transfer of ·shares if .the jssuance or transfer wOUld. cause any market 
participant, either individually .or together with members of its "group, (as·-4efined in. SEC beneficial ownership rules), -1o beneficially own 5% 
or tl)Ore of any. class or series -of out capital stock. Additionally. if.-a market ·participan~ together· with its group member-s, acgtiires beneficial 
ownership of 5% or more. of any series Of the outstanding shares of our capital. stock, such maiket participant or any sharehOlder who is a 
member· of n group including a market participant will not be ·able to vote-·or dir.ect or contbJl the votes of Slmres representing 5% or" more of 
aqy .series of our outstanding capit~ll stock. Finally, to the extent a market participant} together with. its group members, acquires benef1eial 
ownership .of 5% or more of the outstanding shares- of any series of our capital stock;,- our Articles of.Incorporation allow our board of dh·ectors 
to redeem any ·Share·s of our capital st<JCk so that, after giving. effect to the redemption, the market-participant, together with itS· group members, 
wil1 cease to beneficially own 5% or more of that series of-our·outstanding capital slock. 

Risks·Related. to the.Entergy Transaction 

We may.ba unable to satiSjl! the condithms or obtain tht!-approJ'als required tf} complete. the Emarg)l Tra!fsacfion or such approvnls may 
contain material restrictions or conditions. 

The consummation of the Entergy Transaction is subject to numerous· conditions, including (i.) consummation of.cettain transactions and 
financings contemplated by 1he merger agreement and the separation agreement (such as the separation ofEntergy's rransm1ssion business from 
its d1sttibution business), (ii) the receipt of lTC Holdings shareholder approvalt and (iH) the receipt of certain regulatory approvals in a form 
that \\'ill not impose a burdensome condition on us or Enter.gy (as described in the. merger agreement). ·we can make n.o asSun:mces that tbe 
Entergy Transaction will he consummated on the tctms or timeline currently contemplate"d1 or at all. We have and will continue to expend 
munageme11fs time and resources and incur expenses due to legal, 
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advisory and financial services'fees related to the Entergy Transaction. Govemmental agencies may not approve the Entergy Transaction or 
may impose conditions to the approval of the Entergy Transaction or require changes to the- terms of the Entergy Transacfion. Any such 
conditions or· changes could have the effect of delaylng completion of the Enterg:y Transaction, imposing costs on ·or limiting-the revenues of 
the combined company fOUowing the Entergy Transaction or otherwise redUcing the.anticipated benefits of· the Entergy Transaction. Any 
condition or Change Whlch results in a burdensome condition on Entergy's tran-smisSion bUsiness and/or us under· the ·merger agreement and 
might cause Entcrgy and/or· us-to restructure or·terminate'the Entergy Transaction. 

If compteted, the E1Jtergy TraJtsttcdon may .not be-successful or achieve-its- untioipatc!il- ba:nefits, 

we entered: into the Entergy TTansaction-with the expecr-.:~.tion that it would resUlt iu various benefits-to us and our-sharehnlders. The-success 
of the Entel'gy Transaction will- depend, in part, on tlu!- .ability of the combined company to· realize anticipated .growth opportunities. The 
combined company*s success in realizing these growth opportunities, ant:l .the timing of this realization) dt;pends in part o:U the- successful 
_integration of o.ur business: and operations with·the newly merged transmission business and Qperations. After·the·Entergy Transaction, wewili 
:have significantly more re"-venue1 .expeoses, assets and emplo_yees than we did prior to the Entergy Transaction. ).Ve may not successfu:lly or 
cost--effectively irifegrate the acquired transmission busi"ness anO·op·erations into our buSiriess,and operations. Even. jf the.combined company is 
.able"to".integrate the:.transmi.ssion businesses and operations sucCessfully, thls. iritegratimi.may.not result in-the rediization of the fnll benefits of 
the·growlh opp-ortunities that we currently expect from the Entergy Transaction within the anO-cipated.timefram~,.or·atall. 

·The merger ag•·eement,contliiifs·jJroviSious 'thaLittllJJ -discourqge other. coJtlpan:ies from tf)ihii;.to -ucquire us .. 

The merger agreement. containS ptoviSions tlult may- discolif?.,ge~ third party from subri1itting a. business ·combination·proposal·to us prior to 
the closing· ofs-the Entcrgy Transaction· that ·might ·resttlt -in greater value tO ITC Holdings sbareholders than the·.Entergy Transaction. The 
merger agr-eement generally·_prohibfts us-from soliciting aQ.y' riltemative:acquisition.proposal, although-we may terminate themerger.-agreemertt' 
in·.or3er to accept.an unsoJicited.alt~emati".vc:·transaction.proposal·that ollr board ofairectors-determines is superior to fue·Entergy Tt-ansaciion. Jn 
addi-ti011, before our·boardma_y withdraw or-modify its rewrnn~endation or we may· tenninnt-e the merger agreement to enter into a transaction 
fha.t ·our: board determines is :sl_\peiior ·to the· Entergy TtausacHont' Entergy· has the opportUtli~y to negotiate with-.. us to modifY the terms of the 
Entergy Transaction in-·respons~ to.fiJl)' competing acqUisition propos81.s ihat.may ·be· madec If the merger agreement is terminated by us or 
Entergy in:.certain limited-circumstances_. we may be oOJigatcil to-pay a termination fee,to· Entergy, whlcb woUld represent an-additional cost· for 
a potentiaJtblrtl party seeking a business combination with us. 

-Failure· to complete the EntergJ' Trmesactlon cmild tidvel"Sdl:t·nffect the market price of JTC Hold1'ngs co1mmm stock as well as cur 
businest,.jimmci-til- condltimUmd.·results ofoperattons. 

If the Eritergy Transaction is not completed for any reason) the priC-e of ITC Iloldin:gs. comrnOll $tock may decline to :tl1e extertt that the 
market price of ITO Holdings common slot:k reflects positive market ass-uqJ.ptions that the Entergy Transaction wilt be completed and the 
reiated benefits will be realiZed, signiflcant-~xpen-ses slich as- legaJ,.advjsory and fmancial service.'> whiCh: generally must be p-aid regardless of 
·whether the Entetgy Transaction is completed mid the requirement ·in the ·merger. a_greement·that) under certain limited circum-stances~ we must 
pay,BntCrg)• a terminati.on.'fee, 

Inv.astors holding shares Of fTC JlhldingS common -stock immedia.tCl)' p1·ior .to .the completion of the Eirte~gy Transaction wilt1 ill the 
aggregate, have a significrmtly -reduced--ownership and·voti.11g-.iuierest.in us after·the Entergy Transaction. amtwill exercise tess influence 
hver mmwgement. 

In-restors holding shares of"ITC Holdings common stock immediately prior. to the completion of the Entetgy Tr-ansaction will, in ·1he 
aggregate, own a significantly Smaller percentage of the combined -company immediately after the completion of the Entorgy Transaction. 
Immediately following the completion- of. the E11tergy Tr:ansaction,.it .is:expected that "Enfcrgy -shareholders wiU hold .at least 50.1% of the lT:C 
Holdings· common -stock and·existing ITC Holdjngs shareholders-will hold no--morethan-49.9% of1TC.Holdings comiTten stook Consequently," 
JTC HoldingS SharehOlders, c-oJiectively~ will be able to exercise less influence over·the management.· and policies of- the combined company 
titan they will bcoab1e t-o exercise over the management and ourvoHcies immediately prior· to· the completi-on of the Entergy Transaction. 
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IVe are reqliired to abide.hy potentiaTly slgnificanf rcstricfions·which could limit our ahility to undertake ceJ'tain co1porate actions (suclt 
as thc-is~~;uance oj1TC-Holdiugs common stock or tile 1utdertaking of a IIU!l'ger or consolidatiott) that othe1~wise ctmld be advantageous. 

The merger agree~erit ·and the separation agreement impose .certain ongoing restrictions on ns to ens\lre that applicable statutory 
requirements under the- Internal Revenue Code- of 198"6, as amended, and applicable Treasury regulatiUns are met so tha't the Entergy 
Transaction qualifies as ta.x~free to Entergy and· its shareholders. As a re.suh of these restrictions, our ability to enga_gc in certain:transa.ctions, 
such as the redemption ofiTC Holdings common stock or the issuance of our equity securltlw(subject to-certain exceptions generally·relating 
to compensation):irla)' be' linlited untii two years and- one-day following the closjng -of the:.Enter!,.ry Transaction {excluding the $700 million 
recapitalization· in the- f-onn..of a special dividend·-an'dlor shar~repurchase to be completed in·.:connection with. the Elltergy Transaction). 

If we take any of an enumerated list of .actions and omissi-ons that would cause the ·Entergy Transaction to become taxable-, we generally 
will be 1·equlred to bear ·the cost. of any resulting tax liability. If the Entergy Transaction became taxable, Entergy would be expected io 
recognize a substantial" ainollJlt. of income, which would result in a :material.amount of-taxes. Any such·taxes allocated·to us would-be expected 
to-be1naterlal to us,_ and c.oulrl cause our business, financial condition and operating xesults to suffet. These restrictions-may reduce our .ability 
to engage in certain·bUsiness transactions that .-otherwise-might ·be advantageous to us. 

ITEM Ill. UNRJ!SOJ.iPBD S!l'AFF CO!IfMENTS. 

Non-e. 

ITEM 2. PROPER11ES. 

0ur. Regulated .Opera.t1ng·SUb.siOiaiies~· transmission facilities are loGated. in Michigan!& Lower Peninsu1a and portions -of Iowa, Minnesota, 
Il1inois, Misso"uri andXansas. (}ur MISO =Regulated-Operating Subsidiaries have agreemems with other uti-lities for the jOint o\'mershi-p,of 
spe-cific substations and ttansnl.ission:Ji-iles.-.See'Note 15 io· the consolidate-.d fmancial statem-ents. 

lTCTransmission.ownsthe assets of a transmission system and related-assets, inCluding: 
•· appr-oXimately 2,800.circuihriiles of' overhead -ana underground transmission Iines--rateU-at voltages of120 kV to 345 kV; 

appr.oximately 1? ,.70"0 transmission. "towers and poles;· 
station assetS~ such as transformers and circuit breakers, at 169 sta:tions and substations wbieh either interconnect ITCTransmission's 
transmission facilit-ies or-·.connect lTCTransmlssiOJi's facilities with generation or distribution fRcnities owned by' others; 
oth_ei' transmission equipment necessary t-o.safcly operate· the-system (e.&, monitoring and metering--equipm-ent); 
warehouses and related·:equipment; 

. • associated land held in fee, rights of way and -easements; 
an ·approximately 188,00"0 square-foot corporate .headquarters facility and operations control room in Novi, MiChigan, incJuding 
fumlturl\ lixtur.es and-office equipment; and 
an approx-imately 40,000 squareJ.foot facility in :Ann-Arbor, M-ichiR:an that"inclucles a back-'up operations control ~oom. 

lTC.'Ir-ansmfssion~s First Mortgage Bonds are issued under lTCTr.ansmission's First Mortg~ge at1d Deed of Trust. As a resUlt, the 
bondholders have-the benefit·ofa first.mortgagdien oil substantialiy all ofl-TCTransmiss"ion's property. 

METC .owns·the assets of a transmission.-system,andrelated-assets~ including: 
approximatefy 5,5_00 circuit- milesofoverheadtransmisslon Hnes.rated at voltages of120 kV to 345 kV; 
approximately 36,500 transmissfon.towers and poles; 
station assets, sucb as transfonners and circuit breakers, -at 94 stations- .and· substa.ti"<ms wJHCb either interconnecf'ME-TO-s· transmission 
facilities' or-connect h-1ETCrs faCi1Hies with generation or,distribution··faCilities owned by others~ 

-• other transmission equipment:necessary to safely-operate the system (e.g-., ·tnonitoring.and metering eqUipment)~ and 
warehouses .and related equipment. 

Amounts borrowed under METCs revolving cred"it agreemen1 are secured by a first priority security intere.st on all of METC1s assets 
through·the issuance of senior secured. notes, coll-ateral sedes, under METC's first mortg·age indenture and the second suppleme-ntal inden1ure 
1hereto. 

METC does not own the majority of the land on which its assets are located, but mider the provisions Of its Easement Agreemenl with 
Consumers Energy, METC.has an easement to use the land~ rights-of-way, leases and licenses in the land on which its 
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transmission lines are- located that are held or controlled by Consumers Energy. See 111tem 1 Business- Operating Contracts-- METC­
Amended and Restated Easement Agreement." 

ITC Midwest owns the- assets of a transmission system and related assets, including: 
~pproximately 7,400 m_iles oftransmission lines rated at voltq_ge-s of-34.5" kV to. 345 kV; 
transmission towers and poles; 
station assets~ suCh as transfonners anO circ-uit breakers) at approximately 261 siations and substarions-which either interconnect ITC 
Midwest~"s transmission· facilities or connect JTCMidwest~s facilities with generation or distrlbutio!l facilities owned by others; 
other mmsmiss-ion equipment-necessary to safely operate the,&ystem (e.g .• monitoring ond metering equipment); 
warehouses. and related equipment; and 
:associated land held·in·fee, rights Of way and easements. 

IT-C'Midwcsfs First Mortgage Bonds are issued under·lTC Midwest's First Mortgage and Deed of Trust. As a result, the-bondholders have 
the benefit of a-firSt mottgage lien on·slibstantially all ofiTC Mi-dwest's-property. 

ITC-Great·Plains .owns:the a&sets of two electric transmisston substations· in Kansas: 
• 138 kV·FJat Ridge.Substation 
• 230 kV Elm. Creek Substaiion 

A,.q,ofDecember 31_, 2011 t -fl)ere were· no liens or· encumbranoes·on the a-ssets·ofiTC Great Plains. 

Tbe assets of our- Regulated· Operat!JJ,g Subsidiaries are suitable: for electric transml-ssion and adequate for tlte electricity demand. in oru· 
service' territory. We· prioiitjze- capital spending based in part on.meeth)g reliability ·standards within the -industry; This includ~s -replacing-and 
Qpgr~(ling existing assets a&~ needed. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PkOOEED!NGS. 

We are involved in certain 1egal-proceedings·before- various-courts, governmental agencies, and mediation panels concerning ma:trers:-arising 
in the ordinary coursc-ofhusiness. These-proceedings include certain contract disputes, regulatory matters and pendlng judi.c1al mattCrs. We 
cannot predict the final dh,.position·of such proceedings. We regularly rcwiew legal matters and-record provisions for claims that arc considered 
probable of l-oss-. The resolution of pending proceedings. is not expected. to have a.material effect on our operations-or conscili"dated finanCial 
1tater'nents in-the period in Wbi"Ch th~y are.res6lve0. 

R:eferto Notes 4 and 16 to the. consolidated :financial statements for -a d5scriptj·on o-f.pending litigation. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY PISCLOSURES. 
Not applicable, 

PARTll 

ITEM 5, MAJI.KET FOR, REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQWTY; RELATED STOOKllOLDER MATTERS ANJJ 
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 

StockPrice and Dividends 

Our -common stock has-traded on lhe l\TYSE sin-ce July 26. 2005 under· the symbol "I-TCH~ Prior·to that time, there was.no-public market. for 
.our stock. As of February"!?, 201-2, tberewere approximately 580 shareholrlers of recor<lor" our common stock. 

The. following tables set fmth the high and low saleS'· price per share- of the common -stock for -each full quatterly peri-od in 201 J and- 2010 , 
as:reported on th"e NYS-E and the -ca~h dividends per share paid during. the periods indicated. 
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Y'ear Ended Dc~emher 31.1011 'Itlgh l.tlw Dividends 

Quarter ended December 31, 20H $M.90 $70.00 $0.3525 
Quarter ended September 30. 2011 $78:89 '·$64.88 $0.3525 
·Quarter·endea June 30,2011 $74,67 $57.46 $0.3350 
Quarter ended March 31, 2011 $70.28 $61.76 $0.3350 

Ycar"l·:nded.DeCj)mber 31. 2010 High Low Di\'idendt 

Quarter enued'Decernber 31, 2010 :$63.1.7 '$59.7? $0.3350 
Quarter ended September 30, 2010 $63.89 $'51.65 $0.3350 
Quarterended"June'30, 2010 (a) ·$56:'66 $2'1.80 $0.3200 
Quarter ended March 31, 2010 $56'.04 $50.75 '$0.3200 

(a) The low· sates price per share for the quarter· ended June 30~ 20i0 occurr.ed on May-6.,.2010, the day when securitypfjces- on the New Yotk 
Stock:b>:Change experienced an intraday· decline of over 1,000 p-oints with1n a few·minutes befOre partially recov.ering. Excluding the sales· 
price _per Share "that occurred on May61 2Q:i0, the1owestsales price per· share for the:quarter·ended June 30t 2010-was.$49.45. 

The-deClaration and payment of diddends is--sUbject to the discretion of.ITC Holdings' board nf directors aDd depends on various factors, 
including Our1Jet"income~ financial tontlition, cash requirements, future.-prospects and other .factors deemed relevant: b}•.ITCHoldings' board of 
directors: .As a 1lolding company with no business operations. ITC :Holdings·' material assets .. consist: primadly o:f·the common stock or 
ownership-interests in its-subsidiarj~,.ae-ferredtax assets· relating primaril)do:federal income tax_ NOLs and·cash .. ITC:liol<fings~ roatetiBJ cash 
inflows afe,·oril~7 from di-vidends- an·a other payrilents·recefv.ed~from time: to time from -hs.subsidiaries and the proceeds. raised from the sale of 
debt and equity securities. ITc:·H01dings m(\y .nOt be:abre to access cash generated ·by its- subsidiafjes in order to pay·dividends·io shareholders. 
The·abilicy <>,fiTC-Holdings' stihsi<liatie5 to. make dividend and other payments to lTC -Holding> is subject to the availability of funds after 
taldng into.accotn'l.f"the subsidiarieS' funCling reqUirements; the"tenns-ofthe st\bsidiaries' indebtedness, the· regulations ·Of the FEROunder FPA, 
and uppliCable State laws. The debt agreements:to w.hich we are parties contain numerous·-financiaLc-ovenants ·that- coUld limit" ITC Holdings 1 

ability-to p_ay dividenGs. as well as covenant-s.th~t prOhibit LTC Holdings from. paying dividends:if.we -ardn defaUlt- under our revolVing credit 
facilities. ·Further, eaCh of our subsidiaries is legally distinct from.ITCHoldings and. has no obligati:ot\,. conti~_gent or otherWise, to make funds 
available to I'fC Holdings. 

If and when ITC 'Holdings pays a diviaend on fts conun-on stock,_ pursuant ·to our special bonus 1Hans for exeCutives ntid certain non­
executive-employeeS, amOunts equivalent to the dividend may be paid to· the special bonus plan. participants,- if approved by the compensation 
committee. We cummtly expect these amounts-to be paid upon the declaration of dividends on ITC Holdings' common stock. 

The board of dir-ectOrs intendS to increase the divjdend rate.fi·_om time· to time as•necessary tc maintain an appropriate dividend payout-ratio, 
subjeCt 'tO prevaiflng business -conditions, applicable restrictions-on dividend _payments, the availability of capital resoUrces: and our investment 
opportunities. 

PriOr to .the consummation Of the- Entergy Transaction, we expect to effectuate a $700 miJlinn r-ecapitalization, currently anticipated 1o take 
the form ofa.onc~time spedal.dividend to I'rc Holding-s' pre-merger shareholders. 

The transfer ag~nt fortbe. common stockiS"Computershare Trust:;(~ompany, N.A.} P.O .. B-ox·43078 Provjdence, ru 02940::.3'078. 

In addilion. the infonnation contained in the Equity Compensati-on table under .. item 12 Security Ownership Of Certain Beneficial Owner-s 
and Management and Related Stockholder Matters'} of this. -report is incorporated herein by reference. 
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StOck Repurc-hases 

The following table sets forth, the repurchases of common stock for the quarter ended December 31 ~ 2011 ~ 

October 2011 

November 2011 

December 2011 

'total 

Period 

'fora! Number-of 
Shares Purcharod{l1 

30,389 

2,492 
.t.253. 

34;!34 

$ 

$ 

Average Price­
Paid pe¥-Sharc 

73.05 
72.93 

75.75 

13.14 

Total Numbe1·or 
Share~ l'urchued as 

Part:ofFubliely 
AnnounccdPlan-or­

ha~ram(2) 

Ma:dmum.Numbcr.or 
Approx.imate.l>olhlr 

Vnlue ofShues thaf.May 
Yet Be Purcha-sed Under t-he Plam 

or Propr.ams(l) 

(1) Shares acquired were delivereO to us- by -employees as payment of tax withholdh\g obligations due to uS upon the vesting of resll_icted­
stock. 

(2) We do not have a publicly aJmounced share repurchase plan. 
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ITEM6. SELECT-ED FINANCIAL DArA. 

Th-e selectecHiistorical financial data presented below should be read together with our consolidated financial statements and the notes to 
those·statements and "ltem 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinanclal Condition .nnd Results of0perations;'1 included elsewhere· i1i 

this Form 10-K. 

(In thousands, extwt·per sbare dstn) 

OPERA'I?!NG REVENUE$ 
OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operation and, maintenance (h) 
Generill and adniinistratfve(b) (c) (d) 
D~tecfaffon·.antl~amoitrzation (e) 
Taxes· other than :income ·taxes (f) 
Othet" Qperatlng-;(incom¢) ·and:expense -onet 

Tot3.1 operating e~p.enses-

OFEib\.ll'lNG'INCGME 
OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME) 

lntere.st:e~pense 
Aflowan.c.e for equity:funds 1lSed during construction 
Loss:o~t.extiJ]gUlslunentofdebt . 
OlherJn¢ome 
Otber.ex.pense 

Total_other·expenses (income) 

JNGOI\1E:BEFORR!NOOMETAXES 

'NCOMETAX PROVISION (f) 

NET INCOME 

Basic- earnings per share 
Diluted -eaming~-ped;bate­
Dividends declared per share 

{ln.thousat'uls) 

BALANGE:SHEBT DATA: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Wor~ing.capital (deficit) 
Property~ plant and equipment- net 
Goodwlll 
Total assets 
L<>ng'tenn.debt; 

lTG Holdings 
Regulate-d .Operating· Subsidiaries 

Total long-term debt 

Total stockholders' equity 

(In thousand~;) 

CASH FLOWS DATA: 
Capita1 expenditures 

$ 

2011 

$ 7$7.397 

l~r288 

82,790 

9~;9&1 

53.430 
:(844) 

359,645 

39.7,752 

l411\<l36 
(16,699) 

(2,&81) 
3,962 

131,318 

266,434 
94 749 

$ 171,685 

$ 3.36 
$ 3.31 

$ 1.375 

2011 

58,344 $ 

(113,g39) 

3;415,823 

950.r63 
4,823,366 

1,459,599 
Ll85,423 

2,645.022 

1.258,892 

2011 

s 556,931 

lTC Holdlngs·andSubsiQiarie!l (a) 

Y¢ar.End.ed De~:embct'Jl 

2010 2009 2008 2007 

$ 696,843 $ 621;11!5 $ 617,877 $ 426.249 

126,528 95,730 113,818 8:1,406 
78,120 69,231 81,296 62,089 
86;976 85,949 94;769 67,928 
48;195 43;905 4'1,180 33,140 

'£297) (6671 :f809). (6SS') 
339,522 294,148 331J,254 244,075 

357,341 326',£67 287.623. 182)74 

l4~SS3 130.209 '122.234 81\86~ 

(J.:l,412) (13,203) (1!,610) (8,145) 
1,263 349 

(2,340) (2,.792) (3.415) (3.457) 
2'588 2;9J8 3,944 1;618 

129,389 118.395 111,153 72,228 

227(932 2~8,472 !.7M70 .109,946 
82,254 77,572 6~,262 36.650 

$ J45,1)78 $ 130',1)00 $ 1~9.208 $ 73.296 

$ 2.89 $ 2.62 $ 2.22 $ 1.72 
$, 2·84 '$ 2.58 $ 2.18.' $ 1,68. 

$ 1.310 $ 1.250 $ 1.190 $ 1.130 

ITGJfofdin"s and Subildlnrics (a) 

As of:Dec.ember 31, 
201(1 2009 200$ 2007 

95,109 $ '14.853 $ 58.110 $ 2,616 

69,33c8 14?;335 1,095 . (30,370) 
2,872.277 2,542,064 2.304,386 1,960,433 

'950;1'63 950,163 951,319 . 959;042 

4,307,873 4,029,116 3,714,565 3,213,297 

1,459,178 1,458,757 1,327,741 1,687J93 
1,037,1\:8 975,M1 920,512 5515.231 

2,496,896 2,434.398 2.248,253 2.243,424 
1,1!7,433 1,011,523 929,063 563,075 

lTC Holdfngs and Sub$illlni~s-(n) 

Year End~d De~en1hcr 31. 

201(1 20.09 2008 2007 

$ 388,401 $ 404;514 $ 401,840 $ 287,170 

(a) ITC Midwest1s results of operations, cash flows and balances are included for the periods presented subsequ~!1biti~quisition of the 



e~ ectric transmission assetS" of IP&L on December 201 2007. 
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,b) The reduction in expem;es for 2009 were due, in part, to efforts to mitigate operation and maintenance ex.penses and general and 
administrative expenses· to offset the impact oflower network toad on cash flows and any potential revciiue- accrual· relating· to 2009. 

(c) During 2011 and 2009, we recogriized $2.0 m:iUi.on and"£10~0 million, respectively. of regulatory assets associate-d w1th the development 
activities of lTC Great Plains as well as certain pre~construction costs for the Kansas V-Pian and KETA prOjects. Upon initial 
establishment of these regulatory assets in 20.11 and 2009, $1.9 million and $8.0 milli-on, respectively, of general and administrative 
expenses were reversed of vihich SlA million and $5.9 million were incun·ed in periods prior to 2011 and 2009, respectively. No initiai 
establislnncnt ofregulatory assets-occun·ed h120.lO·that resulted in :reversal -of expenses. 

(d) During 2011., wo-expensed extemallega1, ad-visor:y·and.flnanciaJ services fees of·$7,0 million·relating.to tlteproposed Entergy"Transaefion 
recorded within gene fa] and administrative expenses of which certain amounts are not expected to be deduc1ihle forincome tax purposes. 

(e) In 2009, the FERC accepted the depreciation studies filed by lTCfransmission and METC that reV.ised.their depreciation rates-In 2010·, 
the FERC acccpied a:·depreciation stuQy filed by lTC.Midwe..'l!: which revised its d(!pr:eciation rates. These-change.•:;· in -accoun:tiiJ.g. estimates 
restilfed in lower composite d"epreciation rates for ITC'fransmission, METC and- JIT'C Midwest primarily due to .the- revision of asset 
serviee 1i~es· and cost.ofremoval·values. The·revised estimate of annual depreciation expense was· reflected-in 2009'·for ITCTranstriissiot-i 
and METC.and in 2010" for ITC"Midwe.·~t. See. discussion in .Note 4 to the consolidated financia1 statemetits-.under ('Deprecia-tion Stu.dies.)' 

(f) The lncrease·.in the fncome tax provision for 2008 compared to 2007 is due: in. part to the.imptementa:tion of the Michigan:BUsiness Tax, 
which was in effect. from 200& through 2011 and was accotmted"for as an income tax, compared to-the Michigan Single Business 'tax in 
effect.prior to-2008-that was accounted for as:a tax other" than income tax. · 

lTEM 7. 1.1ANAGEMENT'S DJ8CUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCML COND/11011' AND RESULTS OF 
OPEii.jj'J'JONS. 

Safe HarborStatementUnder The Private Sccurities·Utlgation R~form Aet <ifT99-5 

Our reports,. filings and -other public announcements coritain certain statements -that describe our managcmenPoS· beliefs concerning future 
bUsiness conditions, plans and "prospects. growth qppottunities ·~nd the-outlook .for ·o-ut ·business and the electric transmission iridustry based 
upon informatiOrhcurrtnt"I.).~ avaihible. Such statements arc HforWard~loOIQng" statements-within the·me..aning of the. Private Seourifies.Litigation 
Reform Act.-of 1995". ·wherever· posSible. we haVe identified these f-or.ward.:.tooking -statements-by words such as· 'f--wilJ," "may/' -?<anticipates," 
"believes/ •(lnten9s,1

' "esti.mates1•• «expects,'' "projects" ruid similar .phrases. These. forward-looking ·statements are based upoit assumptions 
our management believes are reasonab-le. Such fon-'Jard~looking statements -are subJect to risks ·and unc-ertainties which could cause our actual 
tesu1ts, _performance-and. achic:iVements -to differ-materially from .$.o-Se ex.pressed in~ or implied_ by, these statements, inciudingj among- others~ 

1e riSks·and uncenaintieS Usted in 'litem IA Rfsk Factors." 

Because our forV.•ard~1ooking statements are based on estimates and asstunpiions that .are subjemt to significant business, ~onomit and 
competitive uncertainties~ niany of whlcb are beyond our -control or are subject 1o cbange, actuaL results could be materiliU_y different .and any or 
aU ofOUt"forward~looking statements maytutn.·out to be-wrong. Forward-looking statements speakonly as of the date made-: and can be affected 
by·assu:irnltiofis. \Ve might ma'ke or by~ known or·unknovnnisks and uncertainties. Many factors mentioned iu our discussion in ·this report will 
be important .in determining future results~ Corrseqnen~iy, we cam1ot assure you.that· our expectations or forecasts .expressed-' in- such.fmward­
looking .statemeilts will be achieved. AClual future results.,rnay "VaT)' materiaUy. Except as required by law, we undertake no ·obligation to 
publiCly update any of-our forward~ looking or otherstatements, whether as a result of new information, future events. or.otberwise. 

Overview 

Through our Regulated Operati~g Stibs.idiaries, we operate high·voltage··systems ln Micbigan'·s Lower" "Peninsula and portions of Iowa, 
Mfnncsota, Illinois. Missouri and Kansas that transmit el:ectdcity from generating -stations to local distnOution ·facilities connected· to our 
systems. Our· bUsiness strategy is to operate, maintain an"(l invest in ·transmission- infl"astructure in order to enhance. ·system Integrity and 
reliability, to reduce transmisSion con.'>'trilin.ts and to allow· new generating.r.esources to interconnect to our-transmission svstetns. We 9.lsn. are 
pursuing deve}opment.projects-not within our existing systems, :which are also intended -to improve.ovcr.all grid .. reHabUity,.redllce transmission 
constraints and facilitate interconnecfi~ns of new generating .resources, as \v.ell as enhance compefitiye wholesale e1eotrlcity markets. 

A.e;- electric transmissjon utllities With rates regUlated by tile ·PERC, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries earn reVenues through taliffrates 
charged for the use of their electric transmisslon systems by our customers, which include· investor~owned utilities, munictpaHties, 
cooperatives. power marketers and alternative energy suppliers. As independent transmission companies, our· Regulated Operating StibsiOiaries 
are subject to rate--regulation only by the FERC. The. rates charged by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are estab1ished using cosi~based 
fonnula:rate templates, as discussed in "hem 7 Management~-s"Discussion and 
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Analysis of Financial Condition.and.Resitlts ofOperatrons ---'Cost~Based.Formula Rates with True~ Up Mechanism~" 

Our R~gulated QpemtinKSubsidiaries' primary operatjng responsibilities inClude-maintaining) improving. and ex.panding·their transmission 
systems to meet their customers• ongoing needs, scheduling outage...:; on .sysiem elements .to .aliow for maintenance -and construction1 

maintaining -appropriate system voltages and monitoring flows over transmission Jines and other facilities to ensure physical limits ar.e 11ot 
exceeded. 

Significant recent matters-that influellCe!d o.ur financial position and results of operations and cash flows for.·the·ycar ended December 31 1 

20 ll or-may affect future results include: 
Our ~pltal investment of $632.9 mi:l1ion at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries ( 893.0 million , $156.9 rni1fion ~ $269.1 million and 
$113.9 million at ITCTransmission, METC, !TC Midwest and.JTC Great Plains, respectively) for the year ended December 31, 201 I , 
resultipgprimarlty from our focus on improviog·system.reliability·and interconnecting-new.generating resources; 
Debt .issuanceS- and borrowings under -our rev-olving credit agreements in 20-11 and 20IO·to fund capital investment at our Regulated 
Oper-ating Subsidiariest resulting· in- higher intere..'it-ex-pense; 
Finatrecognition Of revenues .for the ITCTransmission rate freeze revenue-· deferral in May 2011 ,. as discussed in "ltem 7 Management's 
Discnssion·and:A-nalysis-ofFlnancial Condition and-Re-sults of OperatiOns~ Cost-Based.F.ormUla Rates with ·Tme~Up Mechanism­
ITCirnnsmiss1onfs Rate Fr-eeze-Revenue Deferral. 11 There was· a $6.9-miUion r-educiion·iu--netWork revenues in 201 l compared: to 2n10 
and 2009 t¢1ating to the collection of the revenue deferral forthe period· from. only January through· May 201-1, which .resulted- in a 
reduction- to after~tax.net income of approximately .$4.3- mi1HQn--in 20-H ·compared to 201.0 and-2U09;·and 
The proposed transaction with E11tergy in which Entergy wili divest.and m-erge its electric iransmissfon.business with ·a .wltOlly-owned 
subsidiary of.ITC Holdings as discussed in ''Item .?.Management's Discussion and Analysis- (WFinancla1 Condition -aird Results of 
Operations-- Capital P.roject Updates· and Other; Recent Developments!' In 2011, we· expensed· eX.tema11egal, ·-advisory and:fmancial 
secvices fees of.S7.0,miUion and certajn intemallabor -costs of' approximately $1.6 milliofi".re}a:ted to the Emerg)• Transaction:ree-Orded 
within generaL and administrative expenses. ·certain. amounts of the ehiCmal costs -are·not expected to be deductible: for income tax 
purposes. The -extern if and in1emal costs -related to the Entergy Transaction- are not ·included as components of revenue: requirement-. as 
they ·were.inourred at ITC Holdings, The transaction feas had;a. signifiCant. effeCt on net income and·eatnings pe1· ·shar:e·,amounts-.for the 
yeaf ended December 31, 2011 and are ex:_pected.to· continue to be significant until the tranSaction is conswnmated. Gompletion·ufthe 
transaction is anticipated to occur in:.-20 13~ 

These items are discussed in more·detail throughout Management's DiscusSion and Analysis -6f Financial Condition and Results of 
Jperations-. 

Cost-Based. Formula Rates with.Tr-u.e..-Up lVIechanism 

Our Regulated Operating ·Subsfdiaries calculate their revenue -requirements using cost~based fotmula ra:te tem]>lates and are effective 
without the need to fikraie cases with lhe FERC, although the rates are sl!hjcct to legal .challenge at the. FERC. Under these formula rate 
tetnplates_. our Regulated- Operating Subsidiaries .rccnver expenses and earn :a return on arid ·recoVer investments ln. property, plant and 
equipment on a ourrent rather than a laggJq.g·--basis. ·.The formula r.ate· templates utilize forecaSted expenses, property, plant arid equipment, 
point-;:to .. poilit revenues~ network load at our ··MISO Regulated Operating SUbsidiaries and other items for the upcoming ·ca-lendar year to 
establish projected revenue Tequlrements for each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries that are \!sea as the baSis for billing for·service on 
their systems- ftoru January I to December 31 of that year. Our cost-.based formula rate templates inClude a· true-up mechanism, whereby our 
R-egu1ate0 ·operating .SubSidiaries compare ·their actual revenue- requirements- 'to their bill.ed revenues fOr eaCh year to determine :any overR or 
un-der-collection ·of revenue. The-over- orunder..:c-ollection typically results fi'om differences between·thC.PT9jected revenue reqUirement used as 
the basis f01' billing and.actual revenue-requirement at eaCh of our-Regulated Operati1~g SUbsidiaries, or·from differences between actua:l and 
projected monthl)~:peak loads-at. our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. In the eV.enfbilled revenues- in a·giVen year are·more-ur less than 
actual revenue requirements, which arc -calculate·d prhnarily uSing information from that" yearts FERC"-FOrm No. 1,. our Regulate'd Operating 
SUbsidiaries Wili refund or collect additional revenues, wifu .ihtere..'lt, within n two,yea-r pe1i'od such that customers pay only the amounts that 
correspond to actual·revenu·e requiremcnts·for that given period, "This ·annual ttue~up CllSutes-that our Regulated Operatii1g Subsidiaries recover 
tbeir allowed costs· and earn theinlllowed returns. 

JTC-Tr.a,Jts~tliss;on. 1S Rate F1·eez.e:Reveuue Dtifen·.al 

ITCT.ransmissi·on1s- rate freeze revenue 'def-en·al -res tilted from. the difference between the revenue lTCTransmission .woUld have- collected 
undet its coSt based formula rate and the aCtual revenue lTCTransmission received for the pedod from February 28~ 2003 through 
December 31, 2004. The revenue deferral was amorti7..ed for r-atemaking on a straight-llne basis for five years from June 2006 through 
May 201 J and was inch1de-d in lTCTransmission's nwcnue requirement for those. pc1'iods. Revenues ofS11.9 
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million· were recogtlized in 2010 and 20"09 re-lating. to the rate freeze revenue deferr.il and revenues of$5.0 million were recogni7..ed in January 
through May 2011. The $6.9 million reduction itr revenues resulted in a reduction 1o. after-tax net income of approximately $43 million in 201 l 
compared to 2010 and 2009. 

Revenue Accruals - Effects ofMnnilt(v· Peak Loads 

For ·our'MISO RegUlated Operating: Subsidiaries, monthly peak, loads are used for bming network revenues, which cmTently is- the Jargest 
component of our operating.revenues. One of the primmy factors th~t impacts the revenue accrual/deferral at our MlSO Regulated··Operating 
Subsidiaries is. actual monthly peak foads experienced as compared to those forecasted in establishing the annual network transmission rate. 
Under their formUla rates that contain .a true-up mechanism, our ·Regulated· Operating Subsidiaries -accrue. or defer revenue..'\ .to ihe extent tb.a.t 
their aCtual·ievenue requirement for the reporting.·pefiod is higher or lower, respectively.~ than the amounts billed relating to 1h~t reporting: 
peiiod .. For·example, to the extent that amounts billed are less than the r'evenue requirement for a reporting period1 a revenue accrual·isrecorded 
for the diffcren!!e. To the extent that amounts billed are more than the revenue r.equirement for a reporting:period, a revenue deferral is recorded 
for the differ-eoce. Although monthly peak loads· do not impact operating revenues recognized, 1~etwork load affects cash flows from 
transniis<Sion; senlice. The monthly peak load of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries is affected by many variables, but is· generally 
impaoteQ by weather and ec!Jnomic conditions and is seasonally shapea With higher load in tbe summer months when cooling demand is 
higher. · 

The.folJowing table sets forth the m011thly peak ioads· during the last three calerrdiu-·years. 

Muntb1y Peak Load{fn.MW} (a) 

1011 1010 :!009-

lTC nc rrc 
TfCTransmission .I\1ETC Mid wen lTC:rnusmisslon METC 'Midwest ITffirsntmis:slon METC Mhlwest 

January 7;326 6,ir45. ' '2;777 7,255 s,,94T 2,'838 7,314 6;009 2;952 
Rebruacy 7#61 6,058' 2,854 . 6,998 5,800 2,782 7;.176 .5t818 2;81.6 
Mardi ·6;.946 s~.'J.f~ ~1(1 6;620• 5;376 .2;5l.'l 7:o70 :5,-548 2;6fi.6 
Apr:H 6,4S3 5,4l(i 2,458 6,501 5,112 2.425 6361 5,!12 2;42.8 
1\·lay "1\),119 7:239 "-2,'17$ 9;4!2 7;240 3,052 u,BOl 5,29b i-;421 
June i 1,488 .8,231 3;403 9,722 1,1:18 3,207 Hr,392 8;063 3;385 

July 12,321 9,389 3,621 11il51 8.49):;' 3,422 8,75·J 6,523: 2,843 

Allgtut ll,f5S 8,538 3,614 ll,OS2 8.422 3.399 9,823 ?,Jfn 3,103 
September ·ll.288 {-,90& 3,456 10:1117 7,353 ·2;804 8'.049 -s;'9t9 2,596 
Oetober 6,642 $,479 2,511 6,?25 5',414 2,4:47 6,456 5,258 2,494 
November 7,.!JO 6,{195 2;519 6,930 . ~;734 2,67'4 . 6;996 ~h778 2,634 

December 7206 6',109 2152 7,324 6,526 2,928 7~661 6,192. 2,856 

Total '10.5/W'S 82,2.22 35':.324 l01,33? 1E;S50 34A95 93.250 72;697 33,224 

(a) Our MISO' Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are ·each .parr Of a joint rate.zone, The load data.preserited is for an transmission. owners "in 
the respective joint rate zone and is used-f.Ot bBilng network revenues. Each of otir."MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries makes up·tbe 
most significant portion of'the ratM or revenue requirement billed to network load within their respective joinlrate.zone. 

The·following·tabli': presents the network transmission rate.S (per k\V/month) for·our ·MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries that are 
releVant to_.our cash flaw.s since January I, 2009: 

Network .'fn:msml![Siolr )lftte, 

January 1, 2009:toDe<i:mber 31, 2009 
January 1. 20!0·1<> Deceinber31, 2010 
Januarj' 1, 2011 to December 3'1, 2011 
January l, 2012 to Decernber 31, 2012 

·ncrr~~nsmfs.sion 

$2:520 
$2,818 
$2.495 
S2.l88 

METC 

$2.542 
$2.310 
$2.331 
$2.409 

ITCMid·we.rit 

"$4.162 
$6,882 
$6,694 
$6.797 

ITC·Great Plains does not receive revenue based on .a·peak load each month and therefore does not hav.e.a seasonal effect on operating cash 
flows. The· SPP tar-it'f applicable to ITC Great Plains is biUed ratably .each month based on its annual projected revenue requirement. 

Revenue Rcquirenu:mt·Crliculatiou 

Under·th~ir cost-based formula rate templates, eaCh of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries separately cUlcu1ates a revenue 
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requirement. based- on financial infom1ation specific to each company. The calculation of actual revenue .requirements for a historic period is 
used to calmllate the amount of network revenues recognized in that p.eriod and to calculate the true.~up adjustment fot that period, The 
calculation of projected revenue requirements. is used to establish the transmission rate. used for billing purposes, and follows the same 
methodology as the calculation of actual revenue requiremm1t. The following steps .illustrate the calculation of revenue requirement ·and the· 
rate-sett1ng·methodology under the fornmla rate template with a.tme·UP mechanism used by our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. IT-c 
Grcat.Plains·follows:a1illni1ar methodology and uses a PERC-approved-return of 12.16% on the common equity. portion of its capital structure; 

Step One-Establish Prq}ectedRate Base and·Calculate Prqfected Allowed Return 

Rate base is prOjected Using the avera.ge of the projected montlt~cnd balances for the months beginning with December Jl of t11e currenr 
year and ending with December 31 of-the upcoming year and -consists prhnarJly of projected in--service property, plant and equipmenl1 net of 
accumulated :Oepreciaiion~ as well as other items. 

Projected rate base is m.u:ltiplieQ,by·the.proj_eeted weighted average-cost of capital to determiile the pr9jected- allowed retum on rate base. 
The weighted aver¥ge· cost of c-apih'\l is c&lculated using a prOjected 10- montb average capital structure, the fore-casted pr-e·tax .cost of the debt 
portion ofthe-capiti\1 structure and nFERC·appl'oved return of 13.88%, 1338%, and 12:3-8% for ITCTransmissit:m) MB1'C! andt ITC MiDwest, 
respe-ctively, on the common equity-portion Ofthe.c-apitaJ structure. 

Step·:]~'O -. Calc::ulate- Projected Gross· Revenue Requirement 

Th~ projeoted.-grOss.revenue requirementis calculated begim1ing with the.projected allowed retum on rate.base.: as calcUlated in Step One 
-above, and adding·projected.recoverable:operatiug.expenses and an allowance for income taxes. 

Step Three-·· CA:ilculate-"Projected Re.venue:R-equirement 

After calculating-:the projecteO gross-rev:enue requirement-in Step Two -above, the prQjected gross·reve"nue requiremenfis a4fusted for any 
_prior year true--up ·adjustment discussed in Step Four and is reduce_d for certain revenues ·-received other ·than neh-vork revenues.-- such as 
projected point·to·poirt~ regional.cost sharingTevenues and rental revenu.es:to atrive at our:projeo:ted-re\tenuerequiretileriL 

Step Four_____. Calculate Tnre.:.upA4iuslment 

The actual-transmission revenues billed for 20.10 were compared to 2010 actual net revenue requirement which is based primarily ou 
amounts· from the·oomp-l.eted-FERC=Form No.-1 ·for 2'01Q The truevup adj"UStment -that rest\lts -from the-difference between the actual revenue 
,i1Jed: and actual revenue requirement for 2010 was add{'",d to the 2012 projected revenue requirement used tO determine the 2012 ·network 
transmission· rate. Interest is aiso.app!ied to the true·~p adjustment. 
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fllustration of Formula Rate S"efting, Set forth below js a simplified illustration of the cillculation of ITCTi"ansmission~s projected revenue 
requirement as weJl ·as.its,component oftlt.e joint zone·network transmission rate for billing purposes under its fonnula rate setting mechanism 
for theperiod'from January 1,2012- through December 31.2012, ·that was based primarily upon projections oflTCTransmlssion's 2012 FERC 

·Form No. l.data .. Amounts below are approximations ofthe-amomns used1o esta:blish.ITCTransmission's 2012 projectedrevenue·requirement 

~tine~, " 'ltem· Iiiitruc'tions 
1 Projecled rate base 

$ 
2 Multfply by projecterl13 month weighte·d average cost of 

capit~l (<!) 

3 Projected allowed return on rate base {Line I x Line 2} 

$ 

4 Projectedrecoverable operating e·xpenses for 20i2 

s 
5 P_r_ojected taxes and depreciation and amortization for 2-01.2 

$ 
6 ·Project.ed·_brross revenue requirements. f.or 2012- {Line 3 +Line. 4 +Line 5) 

$ 

7 Less projectctl:revenue credits-for 2012 
$ 

8 .Plusl(less) 2010 true-up adjustment $ 
9 P.rojected rovenue.requlrementfor 2012 {Line 6 + Line 7 +Line 8) 

$ 
10" Projected average monthly 2012 network load.(in kW) 

ll Annual component o"fthejolnt zone networ-k.tra,nsmis.'iiion rate (Line:-9 divided by Line 10) 
$ 

12 Monlhly component oftbe-joint zone network transmission T-ate ($/kW {Line n divided by 
per month) 11 month's) 

s 

(a) The weighted --average,cosi of capital for purpo·ses Of this illustration_ is.calctilated as follows: 

Debt 
Equity 

Capita.llnvestment.Jlnd 0pc.r-ating.Results Trends 

Percentage hf 

lTCTransmls"sion!~ 

TotAl Capitali"l..aifun 

40.00%. 
60.00% 
!00.00% 

Cost or C.nplrnJ 
5.1:8%,(~re. .. taX)-""' 

13.88% (After tax)·~ 

Amount 

1,028,300,000 

!0.40% 

106,959.251 

60,700,000 

125,900,000 

293,559,251 

(46,900,000) 
(28,850,000) 

217,809,251 

8,295,000 

"Weighted 

Aw~rnge 

Cost. -of 
·caplfG:I 

2,,07% 
11.33% 
JOAO% 

26.258 

2.!88 

\Ve-expect a general·trend of increases in revenu-es and earnings for our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries o-ver the long term. The-primary 
factor that is expected to continue to increase· our actual revenue r-eqnirement·s in, future years is our anticipated capital inve..'tlment in excess of 
depreciat-ion as a re.~ult-of our Regulated Operating SubsidiarieS' long .. term -capital investment programs to improvereliabillty and interconnect 
new generating-resources, as well ru: the Entergy Transaction, In addition, our capital illVestrnent efforts relating tO development inifiatives are 
based on establishing an ongoing pipeline of projects that will position us for long•-term growth. Investments in property, plant and eqUipment, 
when placed in service upon completion of a -eapital project, are added to the rate base of our Regulated Operating Subsi-diaries. Additionally. 
construction work in progress balances for our KETA Pfoject and Kansas v .. Pian Project are inclnded in nlte·base prior to being placed in 
service,. and arc expected to result in significant revenues in 2012 compared·to 2011. 

Our Regulated ·operating Subsidlaries stri-ve for high reliability of their systems ana to improve ac~eSsibiiity to generation source.<:; of 
choice~ including renewable sources. The Energy Policy Act of 2005 requires the PERC to implement mandatory electric transmission 
reiiaOility ·standards to be enforced by an- Electric Reliability Organization. Effective June 2'007, the FERCappmved mandatory adoption of 

maiJ1 reliability standards and approved enforcement actions for violators, including fines of up to $1.0 million per day. The NERC was 
Asigned the responsibility of developing and enforcing these mandatory reliability standards. We continually assess -our transmission systems 
against standards established by the NERC, as well as the standards of applicable regional entities under- the NER~~Ui.~ n:a\rt:l"\reen delegated 



certain authority for the purpose of-proposing and enforcing reliability standards. We believe we meet the applicable standards in all material 
respects; although further investrnent.l.n our transmission systCms and an increase in maintenance activities wm likely be needed- to maintain 
compliance, improve reliability and address any new standards that may be· promulgated. 

On October 7, 2010, the- NBRC issued a recommendation for transmission owners to inspect their transmisSion systems in order to verify 
their fAcUlty rati.ngs·.met'nodology is based on actual field conditions. Each of our MISO Regulated Operating SUbsidiaries will undertake a 
program to assess its system over the· next two years-as a response to· tbe recommendation. There 
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are likfily to be costs 'BSlsociated with the assessment and potential system modifications to mitigate instances where actual field conditions 
necessitate a facility raiing that is unacceptable to the reliable operation of the transmission system. The costs for this mitigation will be 
detennined after the assessment is completedj and the-appropriate'mitigatfon is planned-and may result -in significant operating expenses and! or 
capital investment. TI1ese- operating expenses and capital-investments would be recovered through higher revenue reqilirements under the cost­
based formula rates of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. 

We alSo-assess ow- tr!lllsmission systems against our·own planning- criteria that are filed annually with the FERC. Based on our planning 
studies1 we see needs to make capital investments to (I) rebuild existing property, pfant and equipment; ·(2) upgrade the system to adDress 
demogr~phic changes that have.impactedtransmission load and.the·changingroic·that.transmission·plays in·meeting·the needs of the wholesale 
market, including. accommodntin_g the -sWng Of new generation or to "increase import capacity to meet changes in- peak. electrical deman-d; (3) 
reUeve congestion in the transmission systems; and (4) achieve·statc·-and feOeral poliC}··goats,·such as-renewable generation: portfolio st-andarQ.s. 
The followjng table shows out-expected and actual cap"itai investment for each. of-the R~gulated Operating Subsidiaries: 

lu!tmd-Cap1tttl Foreca.ued Caplfal 

Five~Y~.ar:Capltai lnvestmentfor-the Investment for-the 

(ln.m:lllion~) ln\·cstmenCP.ragram Y~ar'Ended Year E11ding 

Oeerati.lt~fSnbsidin.ry 2012-2016"·(~)" Dceembcr.CH, 2011 (b) December "31. 201Z 

ITCTranst"riission s 719 $ 93.0 $"]35-210 

METC S&'l 156.9· I\15-·l&O 

lTCJ\I!!dwesf 1.128 269.! 295-325 

I:fC·Gt'eatPiains(c) 343 li3;9 •95-T!5 

Development·(d) 1,390 

Total. $ 4,181 • $ ··•632;9 .$'730-83D 

(a) Tlle current five,...year ·c~pita1 investment program does- nOt inClude anticipated expenditures related t-o the Entergy Transaction. The 
investments. in property, plant~aud equipment would be e~pected to -increase siinificantly upon closlng--of.that trnnsaction. 

(b) Capital ·investment amounts differ- from .cash expenditures for property, plant- and eqU-ipment included m- our.·consoli:dated.statements of 
cash flows- due in part"to differences in construction coS:ts··incurred compare-d. to cash :pai:d.-during that period, as 'veU as payments for 
major equlpment·llh•entoly that -are "-lndu.ded in cash- exj)eridi.tures bnt no1 included in capitarlnvestment- unfd.transferred to construction 
work .in progress, among othedactors. 

(c) lTC·Great Plainsf investment_ program includes the KETAPfoject, Kansa~ V~P.lan"Project and H-\lg~Ho~VBHi-ant.Jlroject. 
(d) 1nchides·development:initiati-ves withln the South ana Norl11 Central·Regi-ons. 

lnvestments.jn. property~ l.)l.ant and eqilip-ment coUld .Vary due' to, among oth((f things1 the impact of. actualloads,·foreca-sted Joadst:.regional 
ecoriomic"cond.itions, \\'eathct conditions, union strikes, liibor shortages, material and~equlpment price.s and availabilit)\ our ability to obtain 
financing. for such expenditures, if necessary, li.lnitations ·on the amount of construction that can· be undertaken- on ow systems a!- any one time. 
regulatory approvals for reasons-relating to rate construct, en\di:onmental, siting, regional planning, cost recovery or other. issues or -as a result 
of legal proceedings and vafHmces between estimated and actual costs of constmc:tion contracts awarded. In addition, investments ·in 
transmissiOn -network upgrades for generator interconnection projects could change from prior. estima1es·S~gnificuntly· due 10 cl1anges in -the 
MISO queue for generation· projeCts,. the -generator's~potential.failure to meet the various criteria of Attachment .FF of the MISO tariff for the 
proJect to qualify as a refundable,net\llork.upgrade. and other factors· beyond our control 

Capital PrQjeot Updatescanil Other Recent Developments 

Tlnwih Lof!p P1•oject 

In 2010, we received MISO approval of the Thumb Loop Project located in I'fCTransmission1S region with a total er.pected capital 
investment of $5.10 million. The Thumb Loop- Project ·consists of a J 40.-mile,. douOie•circuit 345- kV transmi-ssion line and related. Substations 
that \\iiU serve as the backbone ofthe transmission system needed to ·accommodate future wjnd development projects in. the Michigan counties 
of Tuscola~ Huron. Sanilac and. St. Clair. Slting .. appiicati-on approval w-as flied with the MP-SC in August 2010 and granted.by the MPSC in 
February 20.1 1. Significant capital investments: fol' this project are expected to occur beginning in 2012. 
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ITC GreatPlmus 

KETA Project 

The·KETA .Pr-oject is a 225·milc transmission line that wi'll run between Spearville, K.ansas -and Axtell, Nebraska. On .January 19~ 20101 tl1e 
FERC issued an order approving the novatiou agreements required by SPP fonhe designation of the right and obligation to build the Kansas 
portion of this project to ITC Great Plains Oy Stmflower Electric P-ower.Corporadon -and Midwest Energy, Inc. The portion of the transmission 
line that JTC..Oi:e;lt Plains is responsible·for constructing will run approximately· t 74 miles. ITG Great Plains has commenced construction for 
the firslphase offhe 3-45 kV KETA ·project, wliich will run.frorn Spearvillef Kansas to Hays,·Kansas, In June.2010, lTC Great Plains received 
siting approval for the second phase of the project, which will nm from Hays, ·Kansas to the Nebraska border .and has secured the reguiatory 
approva1s -reqUi-red to complete the second phase of the- KETA Project. Through December 31, 2011 , ITC Great Plains had recorded 
construction 'Work in progress of $96.9 million for KETA project. We· now estimate that the cost for lTC Great Plains' portion of the KET A 
Project·\vill be approximately $175 million. · 

Kansas V'Pian Pi'Qject 

The Kans·as V-Plan Project is n 200:mile transmission Jine· that wiU vun between SpearvHle and Wichita,. Kansas. In 2009, the KCC 
authorized ITC Great Plains to build a portion of the-segment from Spearville to:Medicinc Lod$e~·Kansas. The .. portlon of the transmission Hne 
that lTC Great Plains·is·responsible for constructlng.-w.ill nm·approximate:ly 120 miles. The Kansa-s Corpor-ation-Commission a:ppr.ove-dlTC 
Great P.lains' request·for a transmission lin.e siting·permit on July 12, 2011 .. l'TC-Greaf Plain·s has obtained the remaining permits necessary 1o 

begin construction of the prqjeet We· estimate: that ITC Great Plains wm invest· approximately $3"00 miilioil to construct its portions oflhe 
_project. 

Regulatory Assets 

As of Deoemher 31, 2011 , we have recorded approximately $B.8 miiHon of regUlatory assetS for start~up and "development" expenses 
incurred by I'fC Great.:P.lains, whi-ch include. certain costs. incurred for the- K.ETA P.roject. and ·the Kn.nsas V ~Plan Proj"ect prlor·to construction. 
In .March 20n, we recognized the Kansas V-Plan Project, regulatory asset of $2.0.million and corresponding reduction to operating expenses •. 
whiCh resultOO in net. inCome of$1.3 miUion . Subsequent-to· the initial recognition of the Kansas V-..Phin ProjeCt regulatory asset in March 
2011, we·recorded.an additional $1.1 million ofcosUncurred.for the Kansas·V.~Plan. Projecf:tbrough De·cembet"31,_,2011 dh'f:ctly to regul?:toey 
·assets. Based on l'f:CGreat Plains' application and the-related FERC order,. ITC Great Plains Wilt be-required to make an additional filiJlg·wlth 
the-FBRC under Section '205.-·ofthc·FPA in order to. reeovel~these-start .. up:. development and pre-construction expenses. 

Development Bonuses 

During 201".1 and"2010 1 we recognized ,general .and. admini"strative·expenses of$L2 million and $1.9. million~ respectivdy. for bonuses for 
the succes&{Ut completion of certaill regulatmy milestones ·relating-" to· the Kansas V-Plan ·Project and KETA Project~ respectiV6.ly. It is 
reasonablypos.<>iblcthat fulure·.develo.pment-r.elated-bonuses would be-a\'tlhorized and awarded·for these or-Other development projects. 

Nol'th Central Il.Qgion De1•elopmcmt 

In 200"9, we· formed-Green Power "Express and rumounced ·1he Green·Power·"Express project1 which consisted. of.transmisSion line· s~gments 
that. would Jacilitate.the·moveme.nt. of po-wer from the Dakotas, Minnesota. ·and -Iowa to Mi"Owest load centers· that ·demand energy. After the 
announcement of the Gr.ecn Power Express pr9jectJ "MJSO undertook RGOS to promote investmentS ill ne\.V regional transmission 
infwstructure and·-implemented its MVP cost allocation methodOlogy. MlSO's RGOS and MVP _pr.ocesses provide a channel for the Green 
Pt)Wer Express project) Ol'. its underlying segments, to move forWard thro~h the planning apProval process as MVPs; In Becember 2011, 
MISO tlpproved the~·first portfOlio ofMVPs. identHied through the RGOS wbich.includes portions:of four'MVPs that we intend to. build,.own 
and operate. The·four MVPs.ardocated hrsouth central Minnesota~portions-OfJowa, southwesf\V"isconsh)1 and northeasi Mi~-souri. 

Green Power·EX:pi'"e!.-s h-rts·certain FBRC~aulhorized transmisSion investment incentives, ·includfl).g the establiShment .of a regulatory asset for 
start~up and. development costs of: Green Power Express and certain pre-constructicn costs for the project to be r.ecovetOO.pursuant to a fUture 
FERC filing. Further, Green Power Express has a FERC•approved formula rate with a return on equity of 12.-38% and. a capital structure 
targeting 60% equity .and 40% ·debt. The. amount nf any future capital expenditures by· Gr.een Power Express is-cun·ently unknown. 

Th~ total development expenses through December31.,..2011 at Green POwer Express that ·may be r.ecovertibkthrough regulatory asset~ 
were approximately $5.5 million , which have been recorded to expenses in the period." in which they were h1curred. If 1n a future reporting 
period it becomes probable that future1·evenues. will result from the authori7.ation to recover these devel:opment expenses, we will recognize the 
regulatOJ)' assets. No regtilatory assets or constructi011 work in progress for Crrecn Power Expres:: have been recorded as of December 31: 2011 
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Bntergy TJ·ausacllon 

As Of December 41 2011, ·Entergy and ITC Holdings execUted definitive· agreements unaer whlch Entergy will divest and then merge its 
electric transmission busineSS with a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Holdings. Enterg}' 1S electric transmission business consists of 
approximately 15~700 miles of interconnected transmission ]ines at voltages of 69 KV and above and associated sub-stations across its utility 
service territory in· the Mid-Smith. 

The Entergy Transaction would expand our·network across the entire middle of the- continental Unite-d States from the Great Lakes-"to the 
Guif Coast. It will approximately double our asset base; add sizable-new markets to our operating and development portfolio, and diversify and 
enhance growth·prospects.through an expanded footprint. 

The terms of the transaction agreements call for Ent-e-rgy to divest its--electric transmission business to a newly-formed entity, Mid South 
TransCo Ll.C ("Mill South TransCO'-'), and. Mi"d South· Tr.ansCo's subsldiaii~, and disti·ibute the._equity interests in Mid ·South TransCo to 
"Enter_gy's shareholders in ihe fonn-of·a: ta.x-free spin~off._ Mid South TransCQ·wi11 tl)en merge -with a newly-created -merg~r subsidiary ofiTC 
Holdings in an afl~stock,.Reverse MorriS Trust transaction, and-win-survive the-rnerger-as·a·Wholly owned subsidiary ofiTCHoldings .. .Prior-to 
the me_rger, :we expect to effettuate inecapitaHzation,"Currently-anticipateU to tnke thC fonn of a one----time·special dividend of$700 million to 
ITO HoldingS' pr.e-merger sh'drehoJders. The merier w1Jl result -hi shareholders ofB-ntergy receiving E!pproximately 5.0.1% of the. shares of pro 
.fonna· FfC Holdings in exchange ~or their shares of Mid.South TransCo, with existing· Shareholders of ITC HoldiJ~gs owning· the remaining 
a_pproximat61yA9:9% of the combined company. In ·additlon! Erttergy will receive gross cash.proceeds of.$.1.77S·O!lHon.from. indebtedness that 
wHI ·be incurred by Mid SOuth TranS~o and its subsidiaries piior to the merger. This indebtedness wUl be aswmeU:by -us. 

Completion o_f.·ib-e,Entergy Transaction is .expected:ill-2013 subject to the satisfac1ion of C-eltain closing· conditions, including the necessary 
approvals ofEutergy's r:ctail regUlators. the:·FERC and ITCH01dingS1 sharehOlders. There· can be no·a:ssurancelhe<Entergy Transaction wiU be 
consummated.- See nuem "lA Risk Factors:-- We may= be unable ·to satisfY the: conditi-on-s or obtain the approvals required to complete the 
Entergy Transaction or such approvals-may contairrmnterial.restrictions,orconditions.~ 

Signffican t -Components ~or Results- of Op e:t.ations 

Revenues 

V/e derive nearly aJi of our revenues: from providing -network transmission service, poinM-o-point transmission service -and other related 
ser.vices over our.R~gulated Operating SubSiGiaries' transmissi"on systems to Detroit Edison; Consumei-s Energy~ lP&L ajjd ·to other entities 
3Uch as alternatiVe el(>.ctricity suppllers.- power marketers and other wholesale customers that. provide electriclty to end~use consumers- and from 
transactinn;.based capac-il,.yreservations;on our transmission_ ·systems. MISO and SPP are responsible for billing and collection. of transmission 
serVice-s. As the: billing- agent for our RegUlated Operating Suhsidiariesi- MISO and SPP collect fees for the use of our transmis-sion-~stems, 
invoicing -Detroit Edison1 Consumers Energy, rP&L-and other customers on -a monthly basis. 

Network Revenues are gener-ated from ·network- custOmers for their use of our electric transmissi-on systems and consist Of both hiHed 
network revenues and accrued or .dCfened revenues as a result of oUT" accounting undet" our cost~based formula: rates tha~ contain a·true-up 
mechanism. Refer to "hem.1 Management'·s DiscusSion and AnalySis,ofEinanCia) Condition and Results of Operations·-- Critical Accounting 
PoHcies- Revenue Recognition ulideri C-ost~Based Foriritila Rates with Tme-.Up JviechanlsmS" for a-dismiSsion of revenue recognifion·relatl:n_g 
to network revenues. The monthly network-revenues· billed to oostomers using the transmission fa-cili-ties of our MlSO Regulated Operafing 
Subsidiaries are·the result ·of a calc-ulat1ottVJhich·can be simplified into·the -following: 

(.1) multiply the network ·loatl·measured-in KW achieved during -the one· hour of-.monthlY- peak; usage for our· transmission ~stems 
by the.·appropriate•montl1ly tariff rate by l2'by the· number of d~eys in that month; and 

(2) divide thnesultby 365. 

Our rates· at. ITC- Great: Plains are bi!Ied ratably each month based on its annual projected revenue requirement and therefore peak usage 
does not-impact-its bille·a network transmission re-venues. 

Point.:.to-P'oint·Revenucs consist-of revenues generated from a. type of transrnission sendee f.or whicb tlte customer pays f-or transmission 
capacity reserved along a·~peci.fled-path-between two points on aii.houriy, daily, weekly-or monthly basi"s. Point~to~pOiut revenues also include 
other components pursuant to schedules under the MISO and SPP transmission tariffs. Point-to-point revenues are .a reduciion in net revenue 
requirement-for network revenues- calculate-d under our c-ost-based fonnU1a rates. 

Regionnl Cost Sharing RcYennes-are generated from transmission cu·stomers throu_ghout RTO regions for their use of our MISO Regulated 
Operating' SUbsidiaries• networ-k upgrade-prcijects that are eligible for regional cost sharing under provjsions of the MISO tariff, incittding MVP 
projects ::;uch as the Thurrib Loop Project. Additionally. tile KETA Project and Kansas V-Plan Project at lTC Great Plains are eligible for 
recovery through a region-wide charge under provisions of the SPP tariff. Regional cos! sharing revenues consist of both billed regional cost 
sharing_ revenues and accrue·d or deferred.re,~enues as a result of our 
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accounting under our cost..:based formula rates that contain a true.;up mecbanh.,n. Tlle amount of the regional cost sharing revenue accruals 
(deferrals) is- estimated for each reporting period. until such time as the regional cost sharing formula rate templates based on actual costs- are 
completed for each of our Regulated Operating Subsi-dia:ries during the following year. 

ScheduJing,.Control nnd Dispatch Revenues are allocated. to our MISO R~_gulated Operating Subsidiarie.~ by MISO as compensation for 
the scrvices_pcrformed in operating the·.trans:ril.ission system. Such services.'htc'lude monitoring OfTeJiability data,. current and next -day analysis, 
implementati.on of-emergency procedures and outage coordination and·switChi:qg. Revenues that are allocated by MISOio-our MISO Regulated 
Operating Subsidiaries relating to these services are determineO based on pr9jected expenses jncurred but are ·not subject to a true-up 
adjustment. In any given year~ our MJSO Regulated Operating ·s-ubsidiaries may cam more or-less scheduling, control and dispatch re-vetmes 
than·our actual expenses- incurred fot control room activiti-es. 

Other Revenues consist of .rental .revenues, easement revenues, revenues relating to utili-zation of jointly ovmed lines under our 
1ransmission ownership and operating agreements and amounts from provjding ancillary services to customers . 

. Operating·.S1:pensc..~> 

Operation--and Maintenance-Expenses consiSt. primarily ofthe costs of contractors to operate and maintain our transmission systems.aud 
-costs for ourpe'rsonnel'involved in operation and maintenance activities. 

Oper-ation expenses include activities related to·CoiltJ:Ql area operations, which involve· balancing loads and generation mid transmission 
system operations activities~-including monitor.ing·the status Of our transuiissi-on lines and stations. The expenses relating to ~\ifETC's Easement 
Agreement are·. also· reMrdeJ within operation expenses-.. 

Maintenance· expenses :include preventive Or planned mahltenance, such as vegetation managem.ent, tower painting and equipment 
inspections, as \Veil as·r.eactive,maintenance .. for equipment failures. 

General and A:dntiuistrative· Expenses consist .Primarily ·of costs for personnel in our legal, ·information t-echnillogy, finance, regula1ory 
and'human resources:.organh:atltins~ general Office- eypenses·and.fees. for profes..~ional services. Professional services are prinCipaliy composed 
of outside legal,,audit and lnfonnation technology. serVices. We capitalize to property;plant and equ~pment portions of-certain general and 
administrative expense..\\ suchas:--compeusation> office·rent, \ltilities and information technology. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expens-es consist primarily of depreciation 6f property, plant and .equipment using the straight;:Jine 
uethod of accounting .. Add.iti-ouany).this conSists of amortization of various regulatory and in1angible assets.- We capitalize to·property, plant 
.md equipment depreciation eXpense- for-vehic-les and eq~tipment- nsed in our construction activit-ies. 

Taxes .otb.er than -Income Taxes consist _prim,arily-ofpr'operfY·taxes and.payroll-taxes. 

OtbCr:operating-.Income and "E¥pense- Net consists primarily- ofgain·s and-losses:associated with the sale of assets .. Additionally, this 
item consists of income. recognized for·tax-gross~ups-recdved from.developerS or generators·.for construction projects as described in Note 2 to 
the.conso1-idated fmanchH St-atements under ~Generator Jnterconnectfon Proj-ects:'~·The tax gross-up represents the difference between th~ tax 
effects of the t:aXahle-income associated with the contilbuiion compared:to the present value of the tax depreciation deduction of the property 
constructed using the taxable .contribution in aid of conStruction. 

Otlter ·items of it~aome or expense 

Interest Expense consists pdtnariJy of inter.est on debt at· ITC Ho'lding~ and our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. Additionally, the 
amortization of debt financing. expenses is recorded to· interest· expense. An allowance for borrowed- funds used during construction is included 
iQ p:ropcrtyf plant and ~uipment accounts and is a reduction to interest -expense . 

. Allowance for Equity Funds Used During--Constructi.qn ("AFUDC-equity") is recOrded as an. item ofolher income and is included in 
property, plant and equipment accounts. The allowance represents ·a return on equity at our· Regulated Operating Subsfdiarie..c; used for 
construction purposes- in accordance -with FERC regulations. The capi.taH7.ation rate. applied to·the construction work in progress ·-balance is 
based-· on the ptopmtion of equity to total capital (which currently include..~ equity and long.,-1enn debt) and the allowed return on equity for our 
Regulated Operating Subsidiarie-s. 

Income ttD.:proviSion 

Income tax provision consists of federal and state income:taxes. 
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Results of'Operations 

·-;.;'·'The following table-summarizes historical operating results for the·periods indicated: 

Year Ended l'crcentage Year end-ed Perecntnge 

December 31, lncreasc lncrease December 31, lnc-rtase- lncrenre· 

(bt tbuutffinds} 2011 20W O>ccrc.Ase) ('Decrease} 2009 (Decrease) {Deems~-) 

OPERATING REVENUES s 757,397 ·s 696,843 s 60,554 &.7% s 621,015 s 75,828 122% 

OPERATING-EXPENSES 

Operation and maintenance 129.288 126;528 2,760 2.2% 95,130 30,798 32.2-% 

General and .administrative- 82,790 78.120 4.6'70 6.0% 69,231 8,889 12.8% 

Depreciat.ionantl.amortization 94,981 86,976 8~005 9.2% 85;949 1,027 "J.2% 

Taxes·othet. than income taxes Slc,430 4&,195 5,235 10.9% 43,905 4,290 9.8% 
Oiher operatln:_g.(income) and 

·ei).pezis"es--'net .(844) __ ._(297) ·(547) 184.2% (667) 370 (55:5)% 

Total operating expenses 359.645 339,522 20.123 5;9% 294,148 45,374 tSA% 

·OEBRA'f!NG INCOME 391;152 l5732l 40,431 -11.3% 326;867 30,454 9..!.1% 
OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME) 

IntereSt e~peflsC· 146,936 142,553 4,383 J~l% 130,209 [2~344 9~5% 
Allowance for:equity funds used 

during ctmstruct-iOn (16,699) (13,414) (3,287) 24.5% (13,203) (209) 1-.6% 

Loss ·on,extiliguislunent"-Of dehi nla 1;203 (1,263) (10(1.0)% 

Other inwme (2:,881) (2,340) (54!) 23.1% (2,792) 452 (16.2)% 

Other-.e:.;pen~e. 3;962 2.58li 1,374. 53.1% z;9J8 (330) (UJ)% 

Total other expenses (jnc9me) 131 3!8 !29,389 1,929 1.5% !18.395 10,994 9:3% 
INCOME BEFOREJNCOME. 

TAXES 266;'434 121,932 38,502 16.9% 20SA72 19,460 9.3% 

INCOME TAX PROVISION 94,149 82.254 12,495 15.2% 77.572 4;682 6.0% 

NET INCOME s 171,685 $ 145.678 s 26,007 17.9% $ 13H.()fl0 $ 14,718 1L3% 

Operatiug Revenues 

Year ended December 31. 2011 compared to yew' ended Decertiber.31, 2010 

The following·· table sets forth the compOnents of and changes in operating- revenues.: 

Pereeutagc 

2(tll 1010 l11crea~ Jn~rl!Jt-S(i 

(ln thous:u:ads} Amount P-ercentage Amount Perc(!nfage (Decrease) (De-ereue) 

Network-revenues $ 637,8.07 84 .. 2% $ 595;07J KIA% s 42;736 7.2'% 
Regional.cost sharing rovenues 87,304 11.5% 55;638 8.0% 31,666 56.9% 

PoinHO.point 15;903 2.1% 26,063 :t7% (10;160). (39:0)% 
Scheduling1 c:oniro1 and dispatch 11,583 1.5% !4,525 2.1% (2,942) (20.3)% 

Other 4,800 .0,7% 5.546 0:8% {746) (135)% 

Total $ 757,397 100.0% $ 696,843 100.0% $ n0.554 8.7% 

Network revenues increased due primari-ly to higher net revenue requirements at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries dm·ing the year 
ended Becember 31, 2011 as compared to the same period in 2010 . Higher net revenue requirements were due primarily to higher-rate base 
assoc.1-ated with higher balances of property,1Jlant and equipment in~service and higher recoverable expenses due to higher operating expenses, 
partially offset by the final moBthly·recognition in May 201.1 of the ITCTratlsmission rate freeze revenue deferral described above under "hem 
7 Management's Discussion and AnalySis of Financial Condition and Rcs11lts of Operations ~ Cost--Based Formula Rates with True~ Up 
Mechanism -lTCTmnsmission's Rate Freeze Revenue Defenal." 

Regional cost sharing revenues increased due plimarily to additional capital ptojects that have been identified by MISO as eligible for 
regional cost sharing and placing these proje<:ts into service. We expect to continue to receive regional cost sharing reve11ues and the amounts 
could increase in th·e near future, including revenues associated with projects that have been or are expected to be approve-d for regional cost 
ilaring. 

PoinHo~point revenues decrease-d due primarily to a decline in the number ofpoint~to-point reservations. Exhibit CB·!-11a 
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Scheduling) control and dispatch revenues- decreased due primarily- to a change in MIS01-s revenue distribution methodology for these types 
of.revenues "in 20ll compared 1o.20l0, The new method was implemented in 2011 to better align the revenues relating- to these services with 
the prqjected expenses. 

Operating revenues for the year ended December3ls 2011 include- the network revenue accmals (deferrals} and regional cost sharing 
revenue accruals (deferra-ls) as -calculated below: 

Totil 

ITCGrcat Net-Rev~nue 

~ Item ITCfransmisSion METC lTCMldwest 1~1ains De.ferf'Ais 

(in thonsrw.ds) 

1. E-Stimated-uetreven'ue-requiremerit 
(notwothevenues.recognize<!).{a) 1> 243·m,? $ 188,517 $ 203,083 $ 2,230 

2 Networkrevenues billed (b) 267,842 !98.lf0 2!2,778 718 

3. Ne~voikrevenue-.accruals(deferralS) 
(lllie'l-'1\ne 2) (23;925} .(9,533) (9;695) ;J.;inz 

4 Regional c·ost sharing-revenue aCcruals 
(deferrals) (e) p;637) (L237) 4088 (3,322} 

5 TOtid.netievenue.deferral~'"{line:-a +·line 
4) $ ,(~S-;562) . ..s (l·a.CJ-?o) $ .(51607') . $ tli810} $ . ,(4SJI49) 

(a) The cnlculatiOn of net revenue. requirement for our·Regu1ated Operating. Subsidiaries is--described in "item 7 Managemenfs Discussion 
and Analysis- of "Financial Condition- and ResultS- of Operations- Costa Based· Ftiirnula· Rates. With 'True-Up Mechaidsm - Net-.Revenu~ 
Requirement C~lculation." The. amount is estimated:fOr each reporting_::period until such time·as,FERC:"Form No. rs :are completed for .oiJr 
Regulated Operating 'SubSidiaries. 

(b) Network revenuM blHed at our MISORegulated:Oper.at-ing Subsidiaries:-are--ca1cul-nted· based- on -the joint zone morithly-netwcrk peak load 
multiplied by their effect;ye.monililynetworkrates for 2011 of,$2.495 per kW/montl1, $2331. pet kWiinonth and;$6,694 per kW/month 
applicable to ITGTransmission, M.BTC.antLITC-Midwest, respectively, aQ.jilsted for·-tJre actual number of.d~:~-ys lnthe month less amounts 
recovered·or·ref1mded-associated with ·our MISO Regul"ated Optrrating.StJbsid,iaries 20.09 tme-up.ad.iustments. The rates for 20n include 
amounts for t1le co-llection and refund of -the 2009 revcnue.accruals and -deferrals and related accrued -interest and tbe revenues billed in 
20n associated with the 2009 revenue accnials and deferralS: are nOt included in these-amounts. Our rates at ITC-Great.Plai-ns are biiied 
r-atab-ly each month based -on its annual projeCted-net revenue:requirerrient. 

(c) Regiona1 cost sharing-revenues are subject,to:aseparate true-upmechanism·wherehy our Regulated-Operating Sub.!:.-1-diarie.."·accrueordefer· 
revenues for any over~ or under~J.ecovery. The related revenue accruals or deferrals- associated. w-ith regional cost sharing revenues_ are. 
inc1Uii"ed in. the regional cOst sha-dng.revenue ainounts. 

Year endeif,December Sf, 2010 compared-to yearended December 31. 2009 

The following table -sets forth lhe -compon.ents -of and changes jn operating-revenues: 

P"ercentagc 

2010 2009 ln~l"e~~'se InCrease 

(in :tho11ssnds) Amount :Per~entuge Amount Percentase (DeereaSi!) (J)eert-a~e) 

Net\\-'Ork.revenues $ 595;011 8$.4% $ 547;279 83:1% $ 47,792 P'% 

Regional cost -sharing revenues 55,638 S.O% 39;7!0 6A% 15,928 40;]% 

Polnt~to~poJnt 26;063 ·n:7% :!7,087 2.8% 8;976 52.5% 
SchedUling, control and dispatch 14,525 2.1% 14,578 2.3% (53) (M)% 

Other 5,546 0~&% 2,361 0.4% 3.:1-85 134.9% 

Total $ 696,843 100.-0% $ 621,015 100.0% $ 75;82~ 12.2% 

Network revenues increased due primarily to higher net revenue requirements at- our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries during the year 
ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009. Higher net revenue requirements were due primariiy to higher rate bases 
associated with higher balances of propeny, plant and equipment in~service and higher recoverable expenses due priruarily to higher ope-ration 
and maintenance- ex.penses,.partia1ly offset by-higher regional cost:.sh<Jring. and poinHo~point revenue-s. 

Regional cost sharing revenues increased due primarily to additional capital project-s-that .have been identified by-·MISO and SPP as eligible 
for 1:cgional. co.st sharing. 

Point-'"to point revenues increased due primarily to an increase in scheduled transmissi.on flow on our transmission systems. 
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Other revenues increased due primarily to revenue recognized at METC for utilization of its jointly owned lines under its transmission 
ownership and operating agreements, 

. Operating revenues· for the y.ear ended December-31, 2010 include the network revenue accruals (deferrals) and regional cost sharing 
revenue accruals (deferrals} as calculate-d below: 

-1d!:!.L Hem 

([n- th~HiSllnds) 

1 · Bstlinatednet:revenue·requjfement 
,(netwcitkrevenues·recognized}(a) 

2 Netwotkrevenues liilled (l>) 
3 . NetwOtkte"verineaccrna1s·.(deferra!s) 

·{lin eel -Iine 2) 
4 Regiomil costsharillg revenue accruals 

(deferrals) (o) 
5 'TOtal.n~t 1:evenue,a.ccm<il~(deferrai~} 

'{line3'~"1ine 4) 

lTCTranlmllsslon 

238,818 

267,441 

(28,623) 

(740) 

MET.C 

$ I7il259 
173,710 

(2,4>U 

(7,086) 

$ (9,5~1) 

ITC'Midwest 

$ 183,095 

183,027 

68 

1,464 

ll'C Great 
PhdM 

$ 1.899 
1,1l70 

829 

(745) 

$ 84 

Total 

NetR<'\'l!nue 

Ddtrnh 

$ (372841 

(a)· The ·oalctilation.-of net revenue teqtiiremetlt for our Regu1ated Operating -su:bsidiarjes is:described in "rtem 7 Managcment's--Discussiort 
-and AnalYsis of,Financial Con<_Ution and Results of op·eratiohS --Cost.:.Jlase~J:.Pormula. Rates with True·Up Mechanis!Tl· - Net Rcveime 
Requirement C';alcnlat-ioD."The-amourtt:is estimated for each reponing period UJltil such. time as FERC.Form·No·. l's ar-e completed for our 
-RegUint¢cl''Opcrating SUbsidiaries. 

(b) Network· revenues billed at our· MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries were calculated. based on. the joint zone monthly network:-peak 
load multiplied by· our effetti:ve monthly network rates for 201{) . Th~ ra:tes·for 2010.inc1ude amounts for the co-llection of the 2008 
revenue· accrvals -and the revenues bHJed in 20 lU· associated with the 2008::revenue accruals are,not included in.the..-.;e·.amounts. Our rateS -at 
ITO: Great Plains are-billed ratably each ·month on its ·amma1.-projected net ·reveuue requirement. 

\.c) Regionai cost sharing revenues are subject to a true·UP mechanism whereby our Regulated -operating Subsidiaries accrue or defer 
revenues for any over· or under-recovery. 

Operatiug.Expenses 

Operation and maintenance. expenses 

-Yeur endet{ Deceniber 31 ~ 2011 compared to year endedDecemberJ-1, 2.01-0 

Operation antf:mainteriance·expense~dncreased by $4.8 m1llion due: to NERC compliance activities associated with surveyjng transmission 
overheailJines, by $3.0 million due. to- higher vehicles and equipment· expenses related to .higher fuel costs a:s well as the age and number of 
vehicles in the fleet1 by $'2.6 rrrliiion due to·liigher· operating and trainiDg expenses, and by $2.5-.million due to higher c.osts of helicopter 
patrolling for infrared and visual inspections--of the system and· transmission lines. These increases were partially- 6ffset by $4.5 milliw due to 
lower veget-ation management requir-ements., $3.0 million due to lower substation facility maintenance expenses, and $3;0 million due to 
teduoed:structure maintenance primarily caused by-reduced tower· painting requirement in ·2orr. 

Year ended December 8.1, 2010 compare</ tQ.year ended December 31, 2-009 

Operation and maintenance expenses incrcased·by $15.1 million due to.bigher vegetation management .expenses, by $6.7 miiJion due to 
higher equipment and structure 1naintenance~ by $4,7 :million due to higher tower painting requirements and $4.4 million due to higher 
substation facntty maintenance e}iopenses. The }Ower operation and maintenance expenses in 2009 were due in part to efforts to mitigate 
operation and maintenance eKpenses and genera} and admhiistrative expenses to offset the impact oflowcr network load on cash flows and any 
potential revenue accrual relating to 2-Q09. 

General and. administrative oxpemres 

Year ended December 31, 201 I compared l-0 year ended December 31, 2010 

General and administrative expenses increased by $7.2 mHlion due to higher- professional advi-sory and consulting services primarily related 
to extemal legal, advisory and fimmcial services feeS" related 10 the Entergy Transaction and by $2.J million due to higher general business 
expenses primarily due to .increased lnfonnation technology support. These increases were partially offset by £3.6 million of lower 
compensation~related expenses and by the reduction of expenses in the first quarter of 2011 of £-1 . .9 million (of which $1.4 million were 
'ncurred- in periods prior to 2011) in connection with the recognition of-the Kansas V -Plan. Project regulatory asset. 
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Year ended December 31,2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009 

General and admh1ist:rative expenses increase(fby $8.0 rniHiori due·to the reduction of expenses· in 2009 in connection with. the recognition 
of regulatory assets relating to development activities of ITC Great Plains as well as certain pre-construction costs for the :K.ETA Project. In 
addition, general and administrative expenses increased by $-ll.O million due to higher compensation and benefit expenses due in part to 
personnel addltions) stock compensation expense and the de\1elopment bonuses for certain projects at lTC Great Plains. These increuses were 
partially offset by lower professional advisory and consulting services of $4.9 ~illion as well as lower general business expenses of $4.0 
m.illion. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 20"10 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased due primarily to a higher depreciable base resultin_g from propetty •. plant.and equipment 
additions. 

Year ended December 31,.2010- compared to year·ended December 31. 2009 

Depreciation and amortization expenses at ow Regulated Operating Subsidiaries increased due· to a higher depreciable. rate base resulting 
from property, plant and equipment addi!im1s. This increase-was partially o-ffset by the effects of the lTC.Midwest depreciation study, Which 
revised lTC Midwest's depreCi-ation Tates used to calculate depreciation expense for the 2010 calendar year and-resulted in a reducti·on of 
depreciation expens·e-of$5J minion as described in Note·41o the consolidated fmantiiiil statements. 

Taxes other than income taxes 

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared io year ended Deceuiber 31, 2010 

Taxes othe!""than income taxes increa.c;ed due to higher property"ti\x·eXpenses primarily due to our MISO Regulated Operating. -subsidiaries' 
2010 capitat additions, which are jncluded in the-assessments for 201:1 personal-property taxes. 

Year ended December 31~ 201 o. compared to year e11ded December 31. 2009 

Taxes other than inaome taxes increaseD. due to higher propenytax expenses primarily due-,to·our MISO.Regulated Operating'S-obsidiaries 1 

2009 capital additions. which ar-e included hnhe assessments for 2010 personal property. taxes. 

Other-expenses (bieame) 

-Yem· ended December 31, 2011 conwared to_year ended December 31, 201.0 

Interest:expense increased due primarily" to an increase in borrowing levels under. our revolVing credit agreements. 

Year en_4ed December 31,2010 comparedloyear ended December 31. 2009 

Interest expense increased due primar"ily to additional interest expense associated with JTC Holdings> $200 million debt issuance in 
December 2009. This increase wa.c; pa1iially off1>et by the effects of lower borrowing levels and -interest rates under our revolving credit 
agreements. 

AFUDC equity increased due· to increased property, plant and equipment expenditures and the resultlng higher construction work in 
progress· balanoes.di.lring 201 0-compared.to 2009. 

Income Tax._P.roJ'ision 

Year ended December 31, 201l c.ompared to yaar cmded December 3.1, .2010 

Our effective tax rates for the .)'cars- ended .December 31, 2011 and 2010 are 35.6% and 36.1% , respectiVely. Our effectiveta;x rate differs 
from our 35% statutory federal income taX rate due. plimariiy to state income taxes as well as the tax effects of AFLJDC equiw which reduced 
the effective tax rate, The amount of income tax expense·reJating to AFUDC equity is recognized as a regulatory asset and·not included. in the 
income tax provision. Our Regulated Operating .Subsidiaries include taxes payable relating to AFUDC equity in their actual revenue 
requirements. We recorded a state income tax provision of$.3.& million (net of federa:l deductibility) during the year ended December 31, 2011 
, compared to a state income tax provision of $5·.9 mi1Iion {net of federal deductibility) for the year ended: December 31~ 2010 . Included in the 
state income tax provision recorded during the year ended December 31 ~ 20 J 1 is the effect ofthe· Michigan tax law change as discussed in Note 
10, \Vhich reduced the· income tax provision by $4.6 miWon. 

Yew· ended December 31. 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009 

Our effective tax rate for" the years ended Deccm:ber 31, 2010 and 2009 are 36,1% and 37.2%, respectively. Our effective rate differs from 
otlr 35% statutory federal income tax rate due primarily to state income tax provision of $5.9 million (net of federal deductibility)-recorded 
during the year ended December 31, 2010 and $"8.0 million (net of federal deductibility) recorded during 
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the year ended December 31, 2009, partially offset qy the tax effoots of AFUDC equity which reduces the effective tax rate. The amount of 
income tax expense relating·to AFUDCequity is.recognized.as a.r~gulatocy·asset and nOt included in the income tax·provlsion. Our Regulated 
Opetatitlg·subsidiaries include faxes payable.relatit;tg to AFUDGequity in their actual net revenue.requirements. Additionally, ·the income tax 
prOvisinn for the year ended December 3:1,2010 hao:; beehreduced bj $0.7 mil1ion-for the settlement of.an.uncenain tax position resulting from 
the deductibility of tr-ansaction costs incurred in.eonne6tion. with the'METC acguisition. 

LiqUidity -and Capital.RCSoutces 

We eXpect to fund-our· future capital requlrement~witb cash from OJ:ler-ations, our eXisting cash and caSh equivalents and amounts avaflable 
unde1· our revolving a·edit agreements (the te_lTII.S of whic-h are described in Note 8 tO the consolidated fillancia[ statements). In addition, we 
may froll') time to time secure debt and equity fund~g_jn. th~ capital .markets, although· we can provide no a..'iSurance that we. will be able to 
obtain fmancing on favorable terms or at all, We expect that our capital requirements· win aris~. principally from our need .to: 

Fund capital expenditute,s at our Regulated Operating Subsidiari-es ·and, following the close of the Entergy Trans:action, capital 
expenditures at the. sUbSidiaries of Mid South TransCo. -Gur plans ·with regarQ to property,. pJant -and equipment investments are 
qe5cribed in detail aboV~ uiJ.det '~Item. 7 ManagemeDt's.DiscuSSion. and Antilysis of Financiaf .Condition and Results of Operations -
CapitallnveStmen1 arid Operating R-esults Trends." 
FUnd "business dev.elQpmeot-expenses and related capital expenditures. We are· pursu-ing development-activities forJransmisslon proj-ects 
vlhieh will contim.te·to result-in the incurrence of development -expenses an-d could result in significant capital expenditures. 
Fund working capital reqp:i~¢inents. 
Funtl our debt serVice requirements. \Vhich are d·cscrlbed in detail below und~r ''Item 7 ·Managemenes D1Scussi"on ·anti Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Res-tilts of-Operations- Contractual Obligations." We·ex'J}ect:our interest payments to:-increase.eaCh·year aS a 
resUlt ofthe addl.tiona}.de&t·we expect-to incur to fund our-capital expenditures. 
F!:!nd:rlividends to holders-of our common stock, 
Fund:contributions to· our· retirement plans,. as described in·Note ri to fuec·consalidated".fmattciiH statements. We expec.fto:contribute up 
to .$11.0 million ro ·these- -plEtns in 2012. The impact of~the· growth: in the ·numb-er .of participants in our retiremen~ benefit plans and 
changes-in the·requb:ements of.the- Pension Protection Act-may require:contributio~ to our retirement plans to· be highetthan we have 
Q~perienccd in the past. 

1n adilitioil tcr1he expected capital. reqUirements above, any· adverse dctennination·relatlng to the conting~dcs·descdbed jn: Note 16 to the 
consOlidated.- financial statements· wculd ·result ill- additional -capital requ"irements. 

We believe that we have sufficient capital resources to meet our currently anticipated short~tenn needs, We. re}y on both interiraJ and 
external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund capital invi'itmen1s. We.ex,pect·to continue 1o utHize our revolving credit 
agreements and· our cash· and cash equival.ent<>·asneeded to·tneet our short-term·cash requirerrtents .. "During- 20:1 1., ·we entered -into new revolving 
oredit agreements at ITC lioldings, ITC Great Plains,.ITC'i'ransrnission and MBTC in the amount of$200.0 million, Sl50.0 million, $100,0 
million and $100;0 million t·respectively) and an additional revolving.credit agreement at.ITGMidwcst for $15:0 mllHon as-described. in Note-:8 
to-the consolidated finatwial statements .. :As ofDeccmber 31, 2011 ,,wfibad consOlidated indebtedness: Wider· our revolVing.-credit·agreements·of 
$201.1 million, with total,unused capaoit:y under the agreementS of:$46~.9'mHlion. 

For our-long .. ienn capital- requirements; including the funtling of the· currently anticipated $70"0 million spe-cial dividend irt conilectlon with 
the-Entergy Transaction, we expect tb-at we wHt-need' to obtain additiona~ debt.fin~cing. Certain of out capital p"t-ojects cotild be del~yed in the 
event-we experienoe:difficuliies In accessing capital. We expect to" be. able to obtain such additional flll<mdng.af:·needed in amolllf1S and upon 
terms1hat will be reasonably satisfactory to us. · 

Credit Ratings 

Credit.ratiQgs·by·nationally recognized statiStical ratiug agencies are an important·Component.of oudiquidi.ty profile. Credit·ratings·relate·to 
our ability to issue debt·securities·-and tbb: ·cost to borrO\\' money~ and should not be vjewed aS an indication of futm-e- stock performance or a 
recommendation to· buy, sell, or- hold securities. Ratings are=subject·to reviSion or withdrawal at any· time and.each rating should"be evaluated 
independently of any other r-ating. Our cun·ent credit ratings· are displayed in. the following table. An explanation of these ratings may be 
obtaine-d from the respective rating.agency. 
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!~suer 

lTC Holdings 
JTCTransmission 
METC 
lTC Midwest 
lTC Greal'Plaios 

hsuan~e 

Senior Unsecured--Notes 
· First Mortgage Bon~s 
Senior 'Secured Notes 
First Mortgage Bonds 
UnsecuredcCreditcFaclllty 

StAndard and Poor's 
Ratings Services {a) 

BBB 
A 
A 
A 

BBB+ 

Moody'slnve.!itor 
Service, Inc. (b) 

Baa2 
AI 
Al 
Al 

Baal 

(a) On December 5)20lt Standard and Poo1-.!s Finanoiat Services upgraded the·credit.r.atings ofiTC Holdings,. IT.CTnmsmission; ME'i'C, lTG­
Midwest and ITC Great Plains debt. All oftheratings.have a.stableoutlook. 

(b) Moocjy's Investor Ser:Vice, Inc. updated their credit opinions on Aprll20, 2011 and made. no changes to the credit ratings. All of·fhe 
ratings have a stable; outlook. 

Covontmts 

Our debt -instruments include senior notes-, secured notes, Tirst .mortgage bonds and revolving credit agreements containing numerous 
financiai and- operating· c-ovenants,- whiCh- are·s-ummarized·in Note 8 to the consolidated finan.ci:al statelnents. \Ve are cCWTently in compliatfce 
with all debt coveoai1ts and.in the· event of a downgraiie :in our credit ratings, none ofihe.covenants-would be directly b.t;~paeted . 

. Casft.:Flows 

The: following table swnmarizes cash flo\VS for-ihe p·eriods ·indicated: 

Vt!aJ'.Endeil-l)ee:ember-:31~ 

{ln:thbusands) 2011 2010 2009 

CAS!f;FLOWS EROJWQPERATING ACTJVITJES 

Net<'income $ 171,685 145,678 $ 130,900 
,Ar;Jjustments-.to r.econCHe netAnco~e-.to:net cash provideci::\?-y.ope-rating:adivities: . 

·Depredation -and af!J-miization expense _ 94,981 86,976 85,949 
._ R~gnitim{ of- and refu'ntl--ana .cQHecti ori ·of.:revenue~accruals:· anti <ieferrafs -

including accrued .interest 56,944 12'!,315 10,912 

Deferred income tax expense 30,797 76,746 75,001 
Ta"{-. benefitfor-excesstax .tleduction:s .of sliare.:,based ·oompensaHort (28;114} (320) (129) 

Other 5'!,623 (7,062) (54,698) 

Net caslrprovideif.by operating-acl:iviries 380;916 423~333 267~<)35 

CASH: FLOW'S. FROM.INVESTJNG AL"TIVJTIES 
Ex_.penditures'fonprojJert_y,p.lant and equipment (556;931) (3S8,4dl) (404,514) 
.other (3,264.) (460} (4,448) 

··Net--cash.used ln·-ln:ve.~in,g-.activities .(560,195) (38~;'86l) .(408;962) 
CASll. }"LOWS FROM FINANCING ACT!VJTIES 

·Net issuancc/r.ep~yment of:lon_g~term-debt (lncluilingcrev6lving--credit agreement~) l41;ll60 62,034 185,802 

Jssuance Of common· stock 18.993 8;908 3.,.576 
Df\i:iClen.<ls,-On.-o·omnion:-s:tock (70,363) (66\041) (62,408) 
Refundable ~eposits ·from and repeyrnents to generators- fot transmission network 

upgrades - net 28,792 (18,295) 35,051 

Tax benefit fOr .excess tax deduction·s of share-based- compensatiOn: 2Vt4 320 129 
Other (10,682) (1,142) (4,379) 

Net-cash provided by (used. in) fmancing--activities· 142,514 (14,:i16) 1S7S70 
NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUlV ALEJ.<"TS (36,765) 20,256 16,?43 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- Beginning of period 95.1.09 74,853 58,110 

CASH.AND CASH EQUJV ALENTS -End of period $ 58,344 95,109 s 74,853 
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Cm:fh Flows-From Opcl'ating Activities 

Yea~· ended December 31, 20l'J compared to year ended December 31, 2010 

Net cash provided.by operating. activities decreased 
$42.4 m-illton in 2011 compared to 2010. The.decrease in .cash provided by operating activities was due primarily to.high_eJ' income taxes·pafd 

of$2"5.3 million and $6.:3-·million of additional interest payments (net of interest capitalized) during 20ll compared to 2010. Additionally, there 
was a decrease.·cif$27:8 miUion due-to recognizing. reducclons ~f federal and state 1ncome tax liabilities related to tax benefits- for excess tax 
dcduc1ions of share-based compensation recognized in 2011 thai-are reflected as financing cas1l inflowS. These decreases were partially offset 
by au increase in cashrecc!ved from operating revenues of$9.3 million. 

Year ended December 31~ .2-()IQ compared to year-ended Decmnher 3"1. 2009 

·Net casb proVided by Qperating activities.lncreased. $15SA mlllion in 20 lO over 2009. The·increase: in cash provided by operatiqg activities 
was due primarily tet an increase.'.in cash received from,operatiq.g-revenues of$173.9 miHion.due- tCJ the collection of $83.8 million Of the 2008 
furmula.rate·revenhe accruals. --and related accrued interest: as weli as the. additional.revenues coJlected.as a result -Of higber monthly peak loads 
in.201'0 compared.to what.had been forecasted ln developing·the n·etwork.transmisSion rates for our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. 
These increa.»es wer~ partially offset by .Sl'O.S million Of additional interest- payments· (net of-interest capitalized) due _primarily to higher 
oUtstanding baiances-oflong.:term d:ebt.as well ashigher.income·-taxespaid of$6.9 mlllion during 2010·-compared to.2009. 

Cash Flows Fr(JmiJwesling ActiYtaes 

Year ended December 3'1, 20],/ compared ro year ended Deeember 31, 2010 

Net cash used in investing activities increased $171.3 miUion in 2011 compared to 2010. T.he inCrease in cash used. in invesliqg activities­
witS due primarily to higher·.fnvestmeilts.in pr.operly1'· piant and equipment 'duritlg-2'0H as we executed our capital investment plan· described 
above under l<_ OverView -·Capital Investment and Ope-rating ResultS Trends." 

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to yea: ended DecemberS], 2009 

Net-cash used·in.investing activities decreased $20-.l million iii 2.'010 over 2009. The deCrease. in cash used-in investing activities was due 
primarily to·lower·payments-auring. 2010 for amounts accrued f'Or prOperty •. plant .and-·equlpmertt compared to payments for such amounts 
during.2009. 

Cush Flows From Financltl_.f: Actb,liies 

Y.ear ended December 3.1, 2011 compared to year ended1Jecember 31. 20JV 

Net _cash from 'financing activities increased.$156.7 mill-ion in 2011 compared to 2010. The inCrease in ch.iih·provided by financing activiUes· 
was due -primarily to -the net increase of'$175~6· million in amounts. outstanding under our revolving credit agreements, an increase of S47 .1 
million ·in net proceeds associated with refundable- deposits 'for transmisSion 11etwork upgrades as well as an increase of-$27 .8 million due to the 
recognition of-federal and state income tax li-ability rednctions·for the excess tax deduction ofshare .. ba-sed- compen~tion during 2011 c-ompared 
to 2010. This increase was:partially -off..,et by no :issuance.s·oflong4erm debt in 2011 ns compared to proceeds of$4.0.0 minion from the dosing 
ofJTC Midwest1s 4;6()% First Mortgage Bonds}' Series D; anCJ proceeds,of$50.0 million received from 'the issuance ofMETOs 5.64% Senior 
.Secured Note& during,20l0. ln.-addition, the Jncrea..::e was partiaily offset by an increase in dividends paW during 2011-compared··to 2010 of 
$4:3 million . 

. Yem· ended December 31, 2iJJO·compored to year ended Deeember 31, 2009 

Net .c-ash from .financing acti.vities.·decreased $172:0 million in 2010 Compared. to 2009. The·decrease in :cash from financing activities was 
due primarily to a reduction in net ·proCeeds associated wlth refundable deposits for tran.smission network upgrades of'$53.3 million during 
20.10 as compared to 2009. in .addition. tb.e issuance of the $20Q.O -million received in December 200-9 fr.om the issnan-ce of ITC. Holdings 
5.50% Senior Note-s, due January 15~ 2020, and the proceeds from the issuance ofth.e $35.0 million ITC Midwest·4.60% First Mottgage Boni:ls. 
Series D {'"Serles D Bonds~1), due Deceniber 17, 2024, exceeded the·.ptoceeds of S40.0· rnHHon from the closing of the Series D Bonds and 
proceeds of $'5.0.0 million received from the issuance ofMETC1s 5.64% Senior· Secured Notes during 2010. These decrea-ses were partially 
offset by a -net increase of$19.9 million in amounts outstanding· under our revolving credit ·agreements. 
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Contractual ObligatiOns 

The· following table details-our contractual obligations as-ofDccerDber 31, 2011 : 

I.ess Th.n.n 1-3 4--5 MoreTban 

Tot:~.! 1 Year Yean Yws 5 Years 

(ln· thous·an:ds) 
Long~tenri debt; 

ITCf:lolding$ Senior Notes $ 1,462,000 $ $ 317,000 $ 305;000 $ 840.000 

1TCTrsnsmissiou Ffrst Mortgage Bonds 3&~;000 lll5,000 200;000 

ITCT ransmission revolving credit agreement 18,000 )8,000 

METC Senior Secured-Notes 275,000 225;000 50,000 

METG1·evolving. cretlit a.grterhen1 37,600 37,600 

rtC'MHhlroS!:F.irsf.Mortgage Bonds 325:,000 40;000 285,000 
1TC Midwest 2008 revolving credit 

agreement 
1TJ>Midwest 20Ho:evolvlligcredit 

40.000 40,000 

agre-eriient 52,200 52;200 

lTC Great·.Piains revolving-credit agreement 53,260 53,260 
lilteresiwl.I.Yments: 

JTCHo1diqgs Senior'Note,. 751,316 85,683 2!8,730 !17,699 329;204 
ITCTi:anslnisSionliirSt'M6tigage..Bonds· l97J7G 20,108. 40,084 23,750 .!d~;2J4 

METC"Seni.or Secured.Notes 129.473 i6.198 44,608 5,640 6:l,027 

11'CMii!west!Eirstill1ortgageBoniis 365,3NI 19,606 5&;816 39,141' .247,749 

Operating teases 1,467 480 918 67 2 

.P.-ur~hase.Obligations 73,342 72;099 1,243 

MBTC'Easemet1.t Agr~ement 389,843 l0,041 .30.123 20;082 329;597 

Total obligaiions $ 4.555,995 $ 224,215 $ l;266i98?. > 606~985 s 2.457;813 

Triterest payments in"cluded above relate only to our fixed-rate long~term debt outstanding at Decenlber 31, 2011 .We -also· expeCt to pay 
interest and conmiitment--fees under our variable~rate revolving credit agreements:that have not been inoluded.above dUe to varying amounts of 
borrowings and interest rates-lll_lder the facilities. In 201L, we· paid $2.2 million of interest and commitment fees under- our revolving credit 
agreementS. 

Purchase obligations- represent commitments for materials, services and equipment that had. not been.received as of Deceniber :n~ 2011 , 
_primarily for construction. and .. maintenance.projects for which we have alLex.ecuted contract. The rnajoiity ofihe items relate to materjals and 
equipmentthat.have 1ong_producHon:Jead times. 

T1te~Basement Agreemen·t-provitles METC with an easement" for transinission purposes-and rights-of~wa~, leasehold intereSts-, fee interests 
and licenses associated with the land over·which the transmission lines cross. The cost for uSe-of the rights-Qfwway is $10.0.nllllioJ). per'year. 
The 1erm of the ·Easement. Agreement runs through December 3"t, -2050- and is· sUbject to 1 O·automatk 50.:.year renewals there-after unless ·METC 
gives notice- of nonrenewal of at "feast one year in advance. Payments to COnsumers Ener_gy under the Easement Agreement are charged to 
operon on -and maintenance.- expense, 

ln-Novernber: 2011, lTCM'idwe.st cotnmittcd to issue $100.0 million Qf3.SO% First Mortgage Bonds, Series E, due-January 2027 (11Ser.ies E 
Bonds1

'). lTC Midwest held a lending commitment from the lenders as of Deceniber 31, 2011 and closed on the·.$100.0 mi-llion of Series- E 
Bonds on Januaty 19,.201.2. The Series E Bonds are not included :in the long-term debt ._obligations and interest payments presented above, 

Critical A-ccounting P.Olities 

Our consolidated financial .statements are pl'epared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America ("GAAP»). The preparation of these consolidated financial_ statements requires the application of appropriate technical ac<:ounting 
rules and guidance, ns well as the use of estimates. The application of these- policies necessarily involves judgments regarding future events. 

These estimates and judgments, in and of themselves, could materially impact the consolidated.iinancial statements and disclosures based 
on varying assmnptions, as future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted,- and even the best estimates routinely rcguirc·a<ljustmcnt. 
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The following is a list of accounting .policies that are most significant to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations 
and/or thahequire management's most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. 

llagulatian 

NearJy all of our Regulated Oper-ating Subsidiaries' busine.ss is subject to regulation by the PERC. As a. result! we apply accounting 
principles in accordance with the standards set forth- by the Financial Accounting. Standards· Board ("FASB~') for accounting for the effects of 
certain types a{ regulation. USe of tltis accounting guidance resUlt.'> in differences in the application of GAAP between regUlated and non~ 
regulated businesses and requires the·recording of re.gulatory ass·ets arrd liabilities for· certain transactions that would have been treated as 
expense or revenue in non-regulated businesses. Future regulatory changes or changes in the competitive envi-ronment could result in 
discontinuing the application of the guidance for accounting for the effects of certain ~ype.s of regUlations, rr we were to discontinue the 
application of this guidance on our Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries' operations~ we may be required to record losses of $174~3 million 
relating to the r<:gulat-01)' assets at December 31, 2011 t1tat are described in Note 5 to the coilsolidate·d financial statements. We also may be 
require-d to record losses of $46.9 miiJion relating to intangible assets at December 31 ~ 2011 that are descdbed in No-te· 6 to the consolidated 
financial statements. Additionally7 we may be required to·reoord·gains of$-181.4 million relating to rego1atory liabilities at Dccember.31 •. 2011 , 
primarily for asset removal costs that ~a:ve· been accrued in advance of incurring the..<.;e costs. 

We believe !hat currently available facts suppartthe-·coutinued applicability of the standards- for accounting for the effects of certain iypes of 
regulation and that·aH·regu'latory assets. and Iiabilirios are recoverable· or refundable under our current rate environment. 

Revenue ·Recognifio11 uuder-Cost~Bused fgnuulti Rtites with True .. Up Mechanism 

Beginning JAnuary !, 2007 for ITCTransrnissiotrand M!lTC, Jnnual')' !, 2008 for !TC Mi<lwest arid August 18, 2009 for !TC Great Plains, 
our Regulated Operating Subsiiliaries·reeover expenses and earn a TCtum. on and Tecover investments in. property. plant and equipment on a 
curr-ent--rather than·a.lagging. basis tmder their forward..:Iooking cosbhased· fmmula.rateswith a.tru·e-up mechanism. 

Under their fOrmula .rates, our Regulated Operating Si.ibsidiarie...~ use forecasted expenses, property, ·pl-ant and e-quipment, poinHo-poinl 
revenues and other·irems·fo-r !he.l)pcomiug calendar year to establiSh their projected r~venue requiremenLan-d their component of the billed 
network rates for service 9n ·their systems· f~om January 1 to· December 31 of that .year. The cost-based forri'luJa. rate templates include .a true-up 
mechariism, whereby our. Regulated ·oPerating s·ubsidiaries compare· their actual revenue requirements -to their billed revenues: for each year in 
order-to:subsequently cOilect or refund -any.under·recovery Or over-recovery of revenues, as·appropriate. The. under- or over~collection typica-lly 
results.from differences bet\Veen the projected· revenue reqUirement used as the basis for billing and actual revenUeTequirement at each-. of our 
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, and from differences between actual and projected monthly peak loads at our M!SO Regulated Operating. 

subsidiaries. 

The nue·up mechanism under our formula Tates meet 1he requirements in the Accounting Standards·Codification for accounting for rate­
regulated utilities and the effects Of certain altemative revenue pr-qgrams. Accoriiingly~ revenue is recognized during eacb reporting period 
based on actual revenue requiremel1ts caiculated -using the cost .. based formula rate. Our· Regulated Operating Subsidiaries accrue or defer 
revenues to the ex-tent that their actual revenue-requirement for the reporting period is higher or lower, respectively, than the amounts billed 
relating to that reporling period. The 1nie~up amount is automatically reflected in:customer bills· within. two years under the proviSions of the­

formula rates. 

ITCTrmtsmi,ITion ls Rate Freeze·Revenue Deferral 

ITCTransmission's rate f'ree.ze revenue defemil resulted from the difference- between the revenue TI'CTransmissi.on would have collected 
untler its cost based formula rate and the actual revenue ITCTransmission received for the period ·from February 28, 2003 through 
Dec:ember31, 2004. The revenue deferral was amortized for ratemaking on a straightwline·hasis for f1ve years from June 2006 through 
May.2011 and was included in ITCTrnfl:stnisSion's revenue requirement for those periods. Revenues of.$11.9 million were recognized ifl 20.iO 
and·2009 rela1ing to tbe rate freeze revenue deferral-and revenues of $5.0 million were recogni-zed in January through May 2011. The $6.9 
million-reduction'in revenues· resulted in a reduction to af\er~iax net income of approximately $4.3· million in 2011 compared to.2010 and 2009~ 

V11luatlon p[Gaodw/1/ 

We have goodwill resulting from our acquisitions oflTCTransmission and METC and J.TC Midwest's acquisition ofth'e IP&L transmission 
assets. In accordance with the standards set forth by the FASB for goodwill, we- are- required to perfonn an impairment test annually or 
\\;henever events or circwnstances inOicakthat the value of goodwill may be impaired. For goodwill impairment testing, we have the- option to 
first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or ci.rcumstances leads to a detennination that it is more likely than 
not that 1he fair value of a reporting unit }s less than its cnnying amount If, after assessing the. totaEcy of events or circumstances, we detennine 
it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reponiQg unit is less than its carrying amount, then performing the two~st~p impairment test 
per the·FASB guidance is unnecessary. The qualitative 
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factors .evaluated inclUde -macroeconomiC conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial performance, our 
historical share-price as Well as other industry specific consideratiOns such as out regu1atory.env'ironment and rate structure. However~ if-we 
conclude otherwise, then we are re-quired to perform the-first step of the two~step impairment ·test by calmilating the fair value of the·repOrting­
Utlit and- comparing the fair value with the carrying. amount of the reporting ~nit. To the extent estilnated market~based valuation multiples 
and/or discounted cash flows. are revised downward, we· mas be required to write do\\'11 aU or a poriion of goodwill, which would advert:.-ely 
impact earnings. As of 'December 3J, 2011 , consolidated gOodwin totaled $950.2 mi1lion and we determined thaf no impairment existed, nor 
do we'believc there is a material risk ofit -being impaired i11·the neat tenn a! IT.CTransmisSion, MET.C or I.TC Midwest ns of our goodwill 
impairment testing date of October !, 2011. 

Cm~fingettt Obligations 

We are subject to.a m1mber of federal and state Jaw.s .. and -regulations, as·weJJ·as other factors and conditions that·p.otentiaily subject us to 
environmental, litigation, income tax and other risks. We··peJiodically evaluate:our-exposure to such risks and record reserve.<> for those matters 
where a loss ls consitlered.probab1e and reasonablv· estimable: in -accordance With GAA.P. The: adequacy of reserves can be significantly affected 
by extema1 ev·ents or cOnditions-that can "be' unpredictable;: thus~ the Ultimate outcome--of ,suCh matters. could materially affect our CQnsolidated 
financial statements. These:· events or conditions include, without limitation, the'f011Qwing: 

Changes'. Ui eXisting state offederal.regu1atiori by ·governmeMal authoriti~{.having jurisdiCtion over-air-quality~ water quality~ cont;rQl of 
toxic substances, ·hazardous and solid wastes~ an·d other-envimnmental matter.s. · 
Cba~gOO-in existing "feneralincome tax--laws or"lntemal Revenue·SeFvice:·regUlations. 
Ideritiftcation and evalmn1on ofpotenihU la:wsuits or complaints inwhiclr we,may be or have been named as' a. defendant. 
ResOlution or progreSsion of existing matters through the legislative process, the courts, the lnfemal ·Revenue Sendee, or the 
En vironmentat·PrOtection Agency. 

-VtdUafion ofShare41asetl"Payments 

Oui:accounting for share.-based.payment-s requires us to determine the faU:-value of awards nf nc Holdii1gS 1 common stock .. we use·Jhe 
value.ofiTC-Holdings'-cominon stock at.the.date ofgra!lt1n;the-ca"lcu1atiou.ofthe·fair Value-of.our share." based awards. The fair value of. stock 
optiOns held by our·employee$ is -determined using. a ·Black~SCholes .option valuatio~ method·,. which is- a ·valuation technique that is acceptable 
for share·basetl p~yment accounting. Key ·assuJl1ptions- in·.determiniug f<:iir value·inc1ude -volatility, risk~free interest rate, .dividend yield and 
expected live$. In ·the event diffelrent assumptions'were:used, a different fair value would: be derived that'cou1d cause the related expense to be 
materfallyhigher or lower. 

Pension .and Posti·etirameut"Costs 

We. sponsor certain post-employment benefits to m.u:·employees, which lnclude-rctirementp~ans and certain postretirement hea·1th carefdental 
and Jife insurance benefits. Our periodic costs and obligations associated with these post ... employment plans are.developed from acturuial 
valuations derive-d.from :a nmnber of assump-tions including rates .of return on. plan assets, the discountrate, .. the rat-e of increase in health care 
costs~ th~ -amount and timing. of plan sportsor·contdbutions and -demographic factors such as r-ctir-emerits~·mortnlity and turnover, ainong others. 
We evaluate these assumptions annually and update them. periodically to reflect our- actual experience. Three critical assumpiions .in· 
determining our-periodic costs and obligatioms.are discount ratei. -expected long-term ·return on plan assets and the rate ofincreases in health 
care .costs. The discount- .rate :represents the market rate for synthesjzed AA rated zero coupon bonds with durations corresponding to the 
expected durations.-of the bcneJ1t obligations and· is. used io calculate the present--value of. the--expected future cash flows "for benefit obligations 
under .our poNt employment plans. For ourxate of return on plan assets, we consider the cutrent and expected asset allocations, as weU.as 

"historical a1td expected long~tcrm rates of return on those types- of plan assets: in determining tbe expected Jong-tenn r.etum on plan assets. 
Asswned health care cost trenO rates ·have. a significarU effect on the:amounts-reported for the· health care· plans as described in Note 11 to· the 
consolidated financial statc:nientS. 

Off~"Ba.ianee Sheet Arrangements 

We have no off-balance sheet -arrangements·.that have or are reasonably likely to ln-ve a material effeCt on our financial condition. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTiTATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAliKET RISK. 

Commodity Pdee Risk 

We have commodity price risk at~our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries-arising fTom market price fluctuations- for materials such as copper, 
aluminum, steelt oil and gas and other goods used in construction and maintenance activities. Higher costs ofthese materials -are·passe-d on to 
us by the c<mtractors for these activities. Th~~e items .affect only cMh flows, as 1he amounts are included as components of net revenue 
requirement and any higher uosts are inclnded- in -rate..' under their cost-based fonnula_rates. 

Interest Rate. Risk 

Fixed-Ratelo~,_g ... Yerm .Debt 

Based on the hoiTowing.rates currently .av.ailable· f.or bank-loans with similar. terms and average maturities, the fai-r va1ue of our consOlidated 
Jong-ierm debt,·excluding.revo1ving-·credit agreements; :Was--$2;8-62.6 miflion·at December 31, 2011 . The total bookva1ue of our consolidated 
long.. term debt, excJuding·revolving credit agt'eeme-nts, was $i,444.0 mi11ion atnecember 31, 2011.. We -perfonned an analysis calculating the 
impact of changes -in interest rates on the fair value of long.:,term debt, excluding rev-OlVing credit agreements, at ·necember.31, 2()1-l . An 
incfease in interest rates of 10% (from 7~0%: to 7.7%1 for example) Ett December 31~ 2011 would decrease the .fair value Of debt b)•·$69.4 
million, and-a decrea:::;e·in.interest,rates of 10% at December ~1, 2011 woUld increase· the fair value of debt by $74.2.mil1lon at that date. 

Revolving Cmtlit-.ilgreements 

At December·31, 201.1 , we had a consolidated total d $201.1 miUl-on ·outstanGing under our revolving credit agreem:ents, which ·are 
·variable rate loans and therefore fair value -approximates- boOk value, A 1-0% ·increase or decrease itlborrQ"YiDg·rates under·the··revolviug ·credit 
agreements comparmf to the weighted average rates in -eft'e<3-t a:t: Deceniber 3_l). 29.11 would increase- or" :decrease the- total intereSt expense by: 
$0.3 million,.respect'ivelyt for an annual period on .. a constanfqorrowing·level o£&201.1 n1il1ion. 

D erivati~·'fi.JnstrUm euts and R edging A cti:vities 

·we us·e derivative financial instruments, including-interest.rate swap co·ntraofs, to matl~geou'r exposure to ·fluctuations in htterest rates. The 
use·of,these financial. instruments mitigates .exposure to these ti.sks and tbe ·VariabiHty of otlt operating re-s tilts, ·We- are· not a party to leveraged 
derivatives and do not .enter into ·derivative fmancial instruments :for trading or sper;:ulative purposes. The jn.terest rate swaps .manage lnterest 
•ate risk associated v.!ith the· forecasted· futuie issuance offix.ed·:rale debr-re1a1ed to·the ·expected re'financing ofthe·$2-67.0 million. lTC Hoidrngs 
S.25%·Setiior Notes, due July 1-51 2013, prior to its maturity. 

Credit Risk 

Our credit ri-sk is primari'ly with Detroit Edison. Consumers Energy and IP&L, Which were responsible f-er 30.8% , 26.0% and 25.3% ~ 
·reSpectively: or $2-33A minion , $196.6 million aud $191.7 minion , respectively, of our consolidated operating revenues for 2011 . These 
per-centages assume a ·portion of. the 20i.1 revenue accruals and deferntis inUluded in our 20ll operating revenues~ which will be b!Bed or 
refunded to our customers in 2013, wOtiHl be paid by Detroit Edison, Consumers -Energy and IP&L in the futur_e based on the te.!opective 
percentage of network arid regional cost sharing, revenues billed to them in 20.11. Under Detroit Edison's-and Consumers Energy's current rate 
structure, Detroit Edison and Consumers Energy incfude in their retail .rates 1he actiia1 cost. of transmissiOn services provided by 
ITCTransmission and MEre~ res)lectively. Ui"their bil1ings to their customerS, effectively pa-ssing.through to end-use·consurners·t11e lotal eost 
of transmission service, IP&L ·currently-Jnclude..r;; in their retail rates an allowance ·for transmission serVices pNvided by ITC Mldwest in their 
billings to their customers. HOwever, any financial difficulties experienced· Qy Detroit EdiSOll~ Consumers Eltergy or .IP&L may affect- their 
-ability to·make·payments for transmission serv-ice to ITCTratismission, METC and.ITC Mid.west, whlch could negatively impact our. business. 
MISO,-as ourMJSO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries• billing agent, bills Detroit.Edison} Consumers Enez:gy, JP&L and other. customers-on a 
monthly ·basis and collects fees for the-use 6f our tranrunission systems. SPP, the hilling agent for lTC Great Plains, began to biU ITC·Great 
Plains' 2009 network TCvenues in January 201 Q. retroactive to August lS, 200!l. MISO and.SPP: have implemented strict credit poHcies for its 
mem-berS' customers, which include customers- using' our transmission systems. -m genera11 if these customers do not· maintain their investment 
grade credit rating or have a histor.y of late payments, MlSO and SPP may require them to provide MISO and the SPP with a letter of credit or 
cash deposit equal to the highest monthly htvoiced amount over the previous tweive-months. 
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ITEM 8, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANI> SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

The·followingfinancial statements and schedules are .included' herein: 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
Report' ofindepen·dent RegiStered Public Accountincr Firm 
Report ofindmendent Remstere<rPubJic Accounting Firm 
Consolidated Statemenfs,ofFinancial Position as: of December 31. 2011 "B.nd 2010 
Consolidated Statement.~--Of'Gnemiions for the Year-s Bnded-Decembet 31 20TL 20iO and 2009 
Consolidate-d Statements :of Changes iri. StoCkholders~ Equity and Comnrehensive Income for·the Years Ended December 31. 20.]1. 

201C and 2009. 
Consolidated Statements ·of Cash Flowsforfhe Years Ended Dec.ember 3 L 2'0 11. 2010 •ndll!ill1 
Notes to· ConsOlidateifFinancial St'1tement-s 
Schednle l- Conde·nsed Financial hiformation of Registrant 
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MANAGEMENT'S·REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCJAL REJ<ORTING 

Management is -responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intema( control over ·financial reporting. Our ·intemal control over 
financiaL reporting is desi.__gned to provide-reasonable, ·not absolti-te, assurance as to the reliability Of our financial reponing and the preparation 
of financial statements in .accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. lntemal control over financial :r~portingl no matter how 
·well designed, bas inherent ]imitations. Therefore, internal control over- financial reporting determined to be effective can provide: only 
reasonable assurance with r-espect to financial statement preparation and may not prevent or detect all mi-sstatements. 

Under managemenf's superVision, an evaluation. of the design and effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting was 
conducted based ou·the.framework inlntema{ ComrOI-.fmegrated-Frameworl- issued by the C-ommittee ofSjlOnsorihg·O.rgan.jzations of the 
Treadway Commissio_n {COSO). Our assessment incltiOed extensive documetiting, evaluating and tesfi.ng of the desi_gn and operating 
effectivenes..~ of Ot!J. futernaf contr-Ol -over financial reporting. Based on this evaluation, managein!mt concluded that our liiterna·J control over 
financial reporting was effective .as of December 31,.2011 . 

Deloltte & Touche L[P, an "independent -registered public accounting f'mn, as auditor-s of our conso1idated financial statements, has issued 
an attestation report-on the effectiveness of our internal control over fmancial-reporting as of December "31~ 2011 . Deloltte & Touche LLP'~ 
repmtJ which expresses an unqua:Jilled opinion on the effccth~eness of our intem<il·contro1 over financial-reporting, is included herein. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTEREn PU.BLIC ACCOUNTING F1RM 

To the Board ofDJrectors.and Stockholders of 
ITC Holdings Corp.: 

We have audited tbe--accort1panying consoliUated statements offmancial position of lTC HOldings COJp. and subsidiaries (the "C.ompany11
) 

·as of December 31, 2011 an·d 20-10 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and comprehensive 
income, and-cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 20tl. Our audits also included the fmancial statement 
schOOule listed in the Index at Item 15. These :financial statements and ffnanCiril statement scltedu'le are the respom;:ibiiity of the Company:s 
management. OurresponsThiiity i:s to· express an opinion on the finaricial statements- and. financial statement schedule based-on our audits. 

W-e nonducied our audits in aC(lordauce with the standards of-Hie Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). TIJOse 
Standards require that we.·plan and perform the audit to obtain· reasonable- assurance-. about whethet the financial statements .are free 'Of material 
misstatement. An audit- includes examining, on a test basis, evidence: Sllpporting the amounts and di-sc1osures in the financial statement.<;. An 
aUdit also·includes assessing the· accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evatus:ting·fue overall 
financial statement presentation. We·belleve·that our audits provide a reasonable basis. for• our- opinion.· 

In-our opinion,-sucl1 consolidated ·-nnancial statements present famy~ in a:ll material.ruspects, fue fi:riancial position ofiTC Holdings-Corp. 
aad S\ibsidiarie...;; as of December 31~- 20 n and 201.0 , .and the Tesiilts ·ofiheir operations and their oash flows. for- each of-the ihree years in the 
pedod· ended December 3l,.20l1 , in conformity with accounting principles.gene~aUy·accepted·inthe United.States·of America, AlSo, in our 
opinl.6n, such financial stateh1ent sbhedu1e, when considered in. relatiOtl to the baSic. consolidated Jiimncial statements taken as· a. whole, present 
fairJy,-in n1i matCrjal.respecis, the informatioh:set forth "therein. 

We have also audited, in acc.ordance with the stanilards Of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uruted States), the 
C-ompanfs internal control over financial reporting as of D'eceinber 31, 20U , based on the:criteria established in lruerna1 Control-­
Integrate8 Framework issuea .by thb'COntmittee Of 'Sponsoring Organizations Of"the Treadway Commission an'd our report dated February 22J 
20l2:.expressed·an-"unquaiified opinion on the COmpany's intermd co~trOI Over financial reporting. 

/sf.DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Detroit~ Mtch:ig~n 
Febmary 22,2012 
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.REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board ofDirectors and StoCkholders of 
ITC Holdings Corp.: 

VIe have. audited the intemal-controt over financial reporting of ITO Holdings Corp. and subsi4iaries (the "Compariy"1
) as of"December 3.1., 

2011 .·bl).c.>ed on criteria established inlnternal Control- )nlegrated.Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponso.rit)g·Organizations-of the 
Treadway Commission-. The Compatl)'1

S management is responsible" -for maintalning cffe:ctive internal control over finan(}hil reporting and ·for 
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, inCluded in the- accompanYing Management's Report ou Internal 
Control Over Financial Reporling .. Our re..<>ponsibility is to expres-s an.opinion.on.the Company's internal control over financhil.reporting·based 
on our audit. 

We conducted our ·audit. in accordance with. the standards of the Public C--ompany Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards r.equlre that we plan and perform ·the. audit tti obtain rea-sonable assurance ·about whether :effeCtive internal control over financial 
reporting was.maintained in all materi.al'Tespects. Our audit jncluded obtaini~g an understanding of·1nternal control over financial reporting~ 
assessing tbe risk that. a.m~teria1 weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contr-ol based on the 
assessed risk, -and perfonning such other proce"dures:as we con.."'iiderid necessary in the Circumstances. We ·believe that our audit provides .a 
reasonable: ba$is:for ou·r opinion. 

A company!.s: internal c-ontrol over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the superVfsion o~ the company's principal 
executive and principal. financial officers, or persons perfonnjng similar .functiOns. and effected Qy the :company's board of directors1 

management! and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabili~y of finanCial reporting and the preparation of 
fi"nancial statements· for extema1 purposes in accordance ·with generally accepted :accounting principies. A companY's intenull control over 
financial reporting includes tbose·policies.aifd.-proeedures that ·(l)~pertain to the maintenance Of rec6rd.s tha~_,. in .reasonaQle detail, aCcttrately 
and fairly reflect the trruisactions·and:disposltions of the a.o;;sets·of the conipanyf(2):provide·reasonable·assurancethat transac~ions.are recorded 
as necessary-to permit preparation Cif"flhancial statements in accordance with generally accepted :acCount~g_principles,:and that•receipts·anci 
expenditures of. the company are being made. only in· -accordance with authotizationS of management and directors of·the company;· and (5) 
provide·.reasonabl6 assurance rcgardii)g prevention odimoly detection of unauthor-ized acquisition> use, or disposition of the company}~\assets 
that could have a material effeut·on the financial statementS·. 

Because of the i.rihereht limitations ··of iil.teinal control over financial r.cportin_g, inCludJn.g the posSibility of collusion or improper· 
management override· of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not· be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, 
projections of any·evaluation·ofthe effectiveness of"thc internal contrOl over finuncial reportin·g to tbture,periods are subject to the Iisktlmt·the 
con.trols mf).y become inadequate because of changes in condhions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. . 

In,onr op.iniort, the Company maintained, in all materiaf respeots;--effecti.ve·intemai controi. over financial reporting·as·of.Decernber 3:1, 2011 
~based on the criteria established in Jntemal Control- integrated Framework .issued by the Cornniittee of Sponsoring "Organizations of the 
'f.reaO.wayComniisSion. 

We have atso audited, "in accordance with tire standards of 1he Pu01ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). the 
consolidated fmancla1 statcme!lts and financial statement-schedule as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 of the Company.and our 
report dated February 22, 2012 expressed .an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.and. financial statement schedule. 

Is! DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Detroit, Michigan 
February 22, 2012 

{hi thou.se.nds, except share data) 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accouuts.rec6ivable 
Inventory 
Deferred income taxe.."" 

ITC HOLDINGS,CORP. ANDBUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSlTION 

ASSETS 

$ 

Regulatory assets- revenue accrnals~ including·accrued. interest 

Dcc~mbl.'r 31, 

200 2010 

58,344 £ 95,109 
76,893 80;417 
34.855 42,286 
20,636 
6.~iblt C8-H1a 28,637 



Other 
Total current.assets 

.Property, planf.:ilntl.equipment (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of$1,193,-164 
and $1, 129,669, rcspectlwely) 

Other assets 
GoodWill 
Intangible assets,(necof accumulated amortization of $15,276 and $12,176, Tespeclively) 
Otherregulatmyassets 
Deferred financing fees (net of accumulated amortization -of$1 4,594 an·d:$1.1,750_;rebpectiVelx) 
Other 

T-otal other assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

UABILITIES AND S'tBCKHOLDERS':EQlHTY 
Current liabilities-

Acc.ounts.payali1e 
Accruedpayroll 
Accr(f.cllintere~t 

Accrue'd·taxes 
RegUlatory -li!ibiliti~s-.ievenue deferrals. hiCfuding -accrued ;interest 
Refllndable·depos_its-from generators .. for tranSmission network upgrades 
Other 

Total current liabilities 
Ac-crued.Jpen.rion:-and;postretirement:Jiabilities 
Defer-red in-C:ome·taxes 
Regdrat~l.1':1ia-bllit10s __,rf0'CIJUe . .f.iC.ferrals,.includig.g. accr.ned,inter.est 
R-egulatory liabiuties- accrued-asset-removal-costs 
"'RefuildHble:O¢pOSitSifrom-.generators,:f0r'trnnsmlssion-nctw.ork-~pgr.adcs 
Other 
Long.:.te~;w debt-

Commitments and contingent" liabilities (Notes-4 and 16) 
STOCiffiOLDERS'CEQUITY 

Common stock, without par value, JOO,OOO,OOO·sharesauthorized;51,323;368 and 50,715,805 
s~ares issued anO outstanding. at December 31, 2-011 and 2010t respectively 

ReftHnci:l.-camingS 
Accumulated other comprehensive- (loss) income 

T ota!.stoCl<ltolders' equity 

TOTAL'LIABILITIES AN·D S'!'OCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

See note.•roto consolidated financial statements; 

f}n:t110mand~, except per-shim.' dnf8.) 

OPERATING'REVENUES 
OPERATING.·EXPENSES 

Operation and .maintenance 
·General and administrative 
Depreciation-and .amortization 
Taxes other than income·taxes 

ITC HOLDINGS CORP .. AND SUBSIDIARJF.S 

CONSOLIDATE!) STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

201-1 

$ 757,397 

l29,288 

82,790 
94,981 
53,430 

Other qperating (incom«;) and expense - net (844} 
T otat operating expenses 359,645 

OPERATING .INCOME 3'17.752 

4.159 5.293 
2(}1;528 251,742 

3,415,1;23 2.872,277 

950,163 950,163 
46,8\l.$ 49,98S 

161,987 138,152 
20,989 !9,949 

I 25,9!11 25,605 
' 

1,206;015 1,18:J,854 

s 4,&23,366 s 4,307;873 

.$ 136;934 $ 66;953 
18,01-3 18,606 
43;642 42~.925 

25,627 !9,46! 
46,5?9 !1,658· 
3.8;805• 10,492 
5.861· .~;509 

3.15;467 182;404 
44,-;Q28. ss;sn 

373.Z6S 3!4,979 
50;<;1~ 43.202 
83;934 90,987 
14,570 14;515 
%,373 ll,646 

2;645,022 2;496,896 

943.444 sso,sos 
3-30,816 229,1fJ1 
(15,368) 1,188 

1.258;S92 1.117A33 
$ 4,823,36.6 $ 4,307,873 

\'car Ended· D-ecember 31 

20JQ 2009 

$ 696;843 $ 621:015 

126,528 95,750 
78,120 69,231 

86,976 85,949 
48,195 43,905 

(297) (M7) 

339,522 294,148 
357\31'lbll C&H1a 326,867 



OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME} 

1nterest.expense .146;936 
Allowance·for·eqriify:funils used during construction (16,699) 

Loss,nn.extingtiis1unen! of debt 
Other .income (2,881) 

Other~e~pense 3,962 

Total other expenses (income) 13L318 

INCOMEJIEFORE lNC{)l\iE T!\..l..'ES 266,434 

INCOME TAKPROVIS!ON 94,749 

NETINCDME • 171.685 $ 

Basic-~ings per common Share (Note 9) $ 3.36 $ 
Dllute.d:carnings-per common:share(Note-9.) s 3.31 $ 
Dividend...:; declared pe:r common share $ L375 $ 

See notes to. consolidatetl fi"nancial.-statements.-

ITC HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDlliRIES 

CONSOVIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES lN 
S.TOCKHQLDERS' EQUITY AND COlliPREHENSIVEINCOME 

(ln thousa)lds, el;;CCpt share- and per share d-att) 
BALANCE, DRCEMRER 31, 2008 

Net-income 

Repurchase and retiremcnt.of common stock 

'11vidends Oeclared on commoo stock ($1 .250 per 
sh1:1re) 

Stock oplion exercises 

Common· stock 

ShaRs 

49.654,$1& s 848,624 

(700} (31) 

22·3,975 2,521 

A~ctnnulated 

Other 

lWalned C~Ymprehenslve 

E:~~rtlln"> Jp.eomell..ossl 

s •1,268 ~ (f,'!9) 

!30,900 

(62,421} 

s 

142,553 
(13.412) 

(2,340) 

2,588 

129;389 

227~932 

82,254 

145;678 

2.89 
2.84 

DID 

Total 

Stoekhold~' 

929.063 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

130,90(! s 
(31) 

(62,421} 

130;209 
(13,203) 

1,263 
{;!,792;) 

2 918 

ll8,395 
208A72 

77,572 

130,900 

2.62 

258 

1.250 

Cnmpr<Jhensi~·e 

Income 

130,900 

Eel\lfilllt CB-H1a 



Share-s issued under the, Employee Stool!: Purehase 
Plan 28,681 1,053 1.053 
tssua:rtce of-l"estdcted-stock 18'1,264 
forfeiture of reslrictOO· stock (1.6,894) 29 29 
Veslingofddferred SICICk-units· 5,21? 
Share-based c<lmpensalioa_, net of forfeitures . 9,977' 9,977 

AmortizatiOn 6f:iaterest rate·1ock.cash 'flow ht..'tlget., 
m:t.of1ax:¢f$3.4 64 (>I 64 

Tax benefir(or.excess tax.-deductions O'f shlltc-based 
compensatiOn 129 129 

Olhet 238 23S 
Comprehensive income s 130,964 

BALANCE, DEC£-l\mER$~, :i009 so,o's4:.ooJ s 862,512 s '149,176 $ (765) $ },011,523 
Net· income 145;678 1.4:5,678 $ t45,678 
Rejmrchase and retirement ofr.:ommon:'!>tocl: (hQ57) (61) (61) 
Divfdenrls deClared on.common stock ($1.310 per 
Share) (66,048) (6b,04S) 
Siock<Uptlon c.~cici~-ei 44>!,264 7,786 .7,786 
ShareS issued under. -the Em_plpyee.Stoek .Purchase 
Plan 24.840 1,122 1,122 
lssuance.-of.t-estricted tdo;%- 152,737 
Porfuiture-ohcstiicted stm':k (14,404) 31 31 
·VestiflR-ofdereo¥··stdck>lmlt~· 5;364 
Share;based_~ompensatio.Q,-ner-Offo'rfe_ttures 14,843 )'A-,843 
iunortlzaliori-=c~r:inter~-rotdntik ca!ih:flow:hedB:es, 

J:Jet~f;taX·,of.$:34 ' · - 64 (~ &f 
Untea:lized-gaiil QD interest I6teswapsrel.aling to 

interest·Tate-cash'tlow hedges, net of tax of$1,211 1.889 1,889 1.~89 
Ta;;;:.-beneftt iOr--excessta].. deductions of ;<ihar«-bused 

-«Jm~nsatioti 320 32oc. 
Other 286 :286 

CornprehenSi\'e·im:ome > 147,631 

BALA.NG,E, DECEMBER :U, 2010 5.0;7-15,805 s 886,808 s 22-9.437 $ l.JS'S ··S 1,1-17,433 

Net-income 171,68~ m:6R> 5 171,685 
Reputeha$e an4 rcliremellt of' common stock (89;715) (6,401) (6,401) 
'Divilliird.'f deciared on.common stuck- {S1..3-7S per 
sbare): (70,363) (10,.363) 
Stock·oplion.ex_eicises'· 543.77> 17,.666 17,66Q 
Shate$.i$.<;ti"ed-.un1ic:r-tbe"Employee Stock:Purchd.se 
l'lan 23,027 1;32? 1~-327 

Issuance of res'fr:lcted- stocK 142,99~} 

Porfeiru~e <if:teSttlctCO ·stOcl: (J-8;'(H2) 5? 57 
V esting--oNleferred siock units ~.489 

Shnre~fu.~a Coll'!pedsatiop. net -of forfeitures 15.334 15;;334 
Amottiza~ion of interest rote. look .o·aSh' flow· hedges, 

net-of'wx of$1 97 97 9? 
UureaUzed loss on- ihtereshate swnpncla tfng ·to 

intere...t rnlc cash Dow·hcttges, ne't Qf_j&-,x of-Sl0.705. (16,653) (16~6$3) (16,653) 

Tax benofH for ex~ tax dednctiOJ~s ofshare~basod 
c:ompensation 28,114 28,114 

Other 59(• 596 
Comprehensive income s 1:55.129 

BALANC£,lJ£CEMBER:31, 2{}11 51.323.362 s ~3,444 -s 330;816 $ (.15,36f;) ' l,2~8-S92: 

See notes· to consolidated firtmtcial statements. 

JTC HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Y car Eotlcd Decembel' 31. 

(In tl10usandl>) 2011 2fifW01! ca-R Ia 2009 



CASRFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net-income $ 171,685 s 145,678 $ 130,9.00 
Adjustments to-reconcile-net income to net cash provided by operating. activities: 

Depreciation and amortization expense 94;981 86,976 85,949 
RecQgnition, refunD and collection· of-revenue accruals:and deferrals --including_ 

acCJ:Ued interest 56,944 121,3i5 10,912 

Deferred income tax· expense 30.797 76,746 75~00! 
Allowance for equitY funds used dutil~g -con·struction (16-;69ll) (!3,4!2) (!3,203) 

Recognition ofiTC Great.Plains regulatory assets (2,011) (8,191} 

'Other 15,3?2 14,31.1 !3.949 
Changes in -assets: and liabilities, exclusive -of changes shown separately; 

Accounts-reCeivable 2,434 (9,47.9) (12,986) 

Inventory 7,431 (5AS2) (14,599) 

·0ther· current<aCf..o;:ets 1.134 (2;049) 903 

Accounts paya~le 12,573 2;210 (6,097) . 

AccruedcpayroU {1,096) -4,893. 2,003 

Accrued=int~est 917 3,626 1.320 

Accrued·tax~· 34;279 (2;071) 3;013 
Tax ·bene_fiffot·excess tax d~uctions Of share~·hased compensation (28;114) (320} (129) 
0 th er· current! iab 1li tics 04<\~ 2;77.0 (2;049) 

Other rton-·cutren1 assets-and liabilities, net . 535 (2,409) !;179 

Net :caSit-prOvlde<tl:>y· operating activities 38Mt6 423,303 267,935 
CASH ·FLOWS.FR.OM'c!NVESTING ACTIVITIES. 
Expenditu~Cs=;rofi:uWertY~·:P1ant and-equipment (55ti,93l) {388;40!) (404,Sl4c} 

Proceeds froffi-sal~tff Securities 3.83\l 14,576 !.182 
·PurchaseS otsedurlties (&;i36) (!4,587} (5;309) 

Other 1,03$ (449) (321) 

--Net cash·used-fuiilvestij]g activities· (560;i'f5} -(3&8;86J:) (408;962) 
CASft.FLOWB-FROM'·FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Issuance nf long-term debt 90,000 333,670 

Rep~ymcnt oflong4enn debt (.100;000) 

Borrowil).g-s under revolving-credit -agreements l.,li65;215 475,62.7 623,966 
Repayments of revolving credit-agreements €917,555} (50:i,593} (671,834) 

Issuance :Of-common stock 18,993 .-s;908 3;515 
Dividends on .. conunon stock (70,363) (66,041) (62,408) 

Refundable deposits-:from generators fortransmiss"ion network upgrades 35,768 21,618 40,279 
Repayment of refundable-<leposits from generators for transmission network upgrades (6,976) (39,913) (5,228} 

Ta:x. benefit f-or.eX.cesS-taX·deductionS of sbare~base(lcompen&'ation 28,114 320 l29 
Oiher (10.682) (1,142) {4,379) 

Net· cash .. piovi ded \ly· (used in) ·financing .activrues 142;514 .(14,216) 157;710 

NET {DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (36;?GS} 20,256 16,74ll 

CASH AND CASii<'EQUIVALENTS -.iiegimilng,of,pcriod •95109 74;853 58;110 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- End·af period $ 58,344 $ 95,109 $ 74,853 

See notes t-o_ consolidated financial statements. 
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I. GENERAL 

lTC HOLDINGS CORP .. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

rrc Holdings Corp. ("ITC Holdings.'' and together with its subsidiaries) ~~we," ''our~' or ('us11
) and its subsidiarie-s are engaged in the 

transmission of electricity in the United States. Through our operating subsidiaries, ITCT-ransmisSion, M.ETC, lTC -Midwest and JTC Gr.eat 
Plains (together, our "Regulated Qperating SUbsidiarieS11

), we operate higb~voltage systems in MichigmPs· Lower Peninsula and .portions of 
lowa,·Minnesota, lllinOis, Missouri andXansas that'transmit electricity from generatil)g sta1ions to·looal distribution facilities connCcted to-our 
-$ystems. ·Our busine:~s strategy is ·to operate, maintain and invest in tumsmission infrastructure in order to enhance ~ystem. int~grity and 
relhibility} to reduce transmission constraints and to allow new generating_ resources to interconnect ·to our transmission :systems. W.e also ar.e 
-pursuing "development _projects not within our exjs(rng systems. which are intended to "improve over3Jl grid reliabiJi.ty. lower electricity 
congestiOn and facilitate interconnections of new-generating resources, as weiLairtO --enhance-competiti\tewholesale electricity maJk-ets. 

Our-Regulated OperatinK Subsidiarjes are independent electric·transmission ntHities, with rates regl.ilnteU ·by the PER-c and ·estab1is11ed on a 
cost~of-service ·model. rratransmission1-S service area is tocated in southeastern MiCbi"gan and METC!-s serVice area <covers -approximately 
two-thirds -o:f"Michi·gart1s.Lower :Peninsula and-fs contig~wus with ITCTransniissi_oU\s s·er.vice. area. ITC. Mitiwest1s ·service area·_ is .located .in 
portions· of Iowa, Minnesota,. TIIinois.-and~Missouri.and ITC Great Plains. currently owns assets located in-Kansas. The Midwest-Independent 
Transmission System Operator, inc. e'MlSOn) bills anU collects revenues froth ITCTransnrission, "METC, and ITC 'M-id-west (''MlSO 
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries") customers. The --southv_test Power Pool,. hrc. (''SPP") bUJs and collects revenue :fi·om 1TC Great Plains 
customers. 

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOUCIES 

A su·mmary of the· major accounting policies foHowea· in the preparation of"the accompanying consoli'dated financial :statements; whic-h 
cottfonn- to accounting principle.~ generally accepted in. the United States of America ("GAAP;'), is presented below: 

·Principles- of Consolidation- lTC Holdings consolidates its majority {)Wned subsidiaries. \Ve. eiiminate an intercompany balances 
and transactions. 

Usebf Estimates- T-he pr~p-aration of the cOnsolidated financial statements ih accordance with GAAP requires us to use estimates 
and assumptions ·that impact the repOrted amounts of assets, liabilities, r.e\~enues and expenses, and the diSclosure of contingent assets 
and. liabilities. Actual results may differ from our eStimates. 

Reg1ilatitm - Our RegUlated Operating Sub".Sidiarie-s are -subject to the ·regulatory jurisdiction· of the FERC, which issues orders 
pertaining to rates1 recovery- of certain costsJ-.jnCluding the costs· of transmission ·assets· and regulatory :assets·, -conditions of servicet 
acc0unting1 finanoing aUthorization and.operating-relatcd ·matters. The- utility operations-of our Regulated Operating:S-ub.sidlaries meet. 
tlre accounting·standards set'forth by the 'Financ_ial A~ounting.Standnrds·Board ('1FABB~l}for ·the-accounthtg effects of certain·types.of 
regulation. These· accounting standards recognize the cost' based .rate setting process, which r.esults in difference-s i-n- the application of 
GMP between regulated and non·regu1ated businesses. These standards require. the recording .of regol:atory assets ·anti ·lhibilitie-s for 
trans:actions that would have been rec-ordetlas revenue and expense in non,.regu1ated bushlesses .. Regulatory assets represent costs that 
will"be included as a-component- of future tariff rates .and.regulatory 1ia-bilitles represent amounts _provided in the- currerit tariff rates: that 
are.:iritenCied to recover costs expected to. be.incurred in the· future or amounts to be-refunded to customerS. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents,___. W~ consider aa unre.<>tricted· highly.:Jiquid temporary iuvesf:ments with an origi'nal' maturity ofthr.ee 
months or Jess· at the aate of purchase· to be cash- equivalents. 

CoJJsolidated.Statement,r; q.f Cash .Flows- The following. table presents certain supplernen"tary cash flmvs-information·forth-e years 
ended December 31,2011 , 2010 and 2009: 

Ye;ar'Enrled Oecemher 31. 

(ln fhuu,ands) '2{)!1 2010 2009 
Supplementary cash flows. information: 

Interest paid (net.Ofinter:est capitalized) $ J42 .. !0i $ !35.771 $ 125,254 

Income·tax.es paid 34,127 S,844 L97l 
Supplementary non-cash-investing and financing aciivities: 

Additionsto_properiy, plant and equipment: (a) $ 102.091 $ 44,496 £ 23.!69 
AltQwance for equity funds used during construction 16,699 13,412 13,203 

(a) Amounts consist -Of current liabilities fot· construction-labor and materials that have not been included in investing activities. These 
amoUnts have not been paid for as of December 31, 2011 , 2010 or 2009 1 respectively: but have been or will be included as a cash 
outflow from investing activitie-S for expenditures f-or propert)', plant and equipment when paid. 
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Excess· tax benefits are recognized as an addition. to cmnmon stock per the share .. based compensation guidance. Cash retained as a 
result of those excess tax benefits are presented in the statement of cash flows as cash Inflows from financing activities and cash 
outflows from operating activities. Any writepoff of deferre-d tax as.<;ets that resulted from book expense exceeding tax deductions 
associated \vi~h recognized compensation cost will be recognize-d as income tax expense unless there· are excess tax benefits from 
previous awards remaining inpaid~in capital to·wbiCh it can he offset. 

Accounts Receivable - We recognize losses for uncollectible accounts based on specific identification of any such items. As of 
December 3lt 2011 and.2010, we·did not' have a!). accounts receivable reserve, 

lnvenlories - Materials and supplie-s inventories are valued at average cost. Additionally. the costs of warehousing activities are 
recorded here and included in the cost of materials when requisitioned. 

Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation and amortization expense on property, plant and equipment was S85;8 million , 
$77.t million andS76.8 million for 2011, 2010and 2009, respectively. 

Property, plant and.equipment in service ·at our Regulated OperatinE "Subsidiaries is stated .at its original cost when first. devoted to 
utility .service. The gross book value of assets retired less salvage proceeds:is charged to.accumulated .depreciatiOn. The provision for 
depreciation of transmission assets is a significant component of. our- Regulated Operating_-Subsidiaries• cost of service under FERC­
approveO rates. Dcpreciation.ls computed over the estimated useful ·lives of tbe assets uSing the strai£ht-=.Jine method for financial 
reporting purposes and accelerated methods: for income tax reporting_purpo!.'eS .. The composite depreciation.rate for· our .Regu1ated 
Operating Subsidiaries.in.clu"ded.in our consolidated.. statements of-operations was 2.4%, 2.4% and 2.6% for 2011 , 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. ITC Midwest impiemented·new depreciation rates effective for·the year ended December 31, 2010. Refer to Note. 4 for 
additional. discussion of these depreciation-rate changes. The composite depreciation rates include depreciation .primarily. :on transmission 
statiou·equipment, towers, ·poles and. overhead and underground lines thatl1ave a ·useful life ranging from 4&·to 60 years. The :porti.on of 
depreciaiion expense related .to asset removal costs ·is added to regulatory liabilities and .removal costs incurred are deducted from 
regulatory li<:ibiHties. Our Regulated Operating Subsidim·ie-s capitalize to propertyf plant and equipment an allowance· for the cost of 
eqUity: and borrowings used during eomtruction eVA.FUDC'') in accordance with .FERC regulations; AFUDC represents: the composite 
cost incurred to fWld -the, construction of assets, including interest· expense·and a ·retum on equity capitOl devoted to constructiOn of 
assets. Tho AFUDC debt..of$4.7 million , .$3.9 million and ·$3·.9 million for 201 J , 2010.11Ild 2009 , respectively, was a reduction to 
interest e>;pense .. Certain.pr:ojects:at ITO Great Plains have been gr.anted an incentive to include construction work in progrOOs balances 
in rate: base~ and we do·not accrue AFUDC on-those.projec(S. 

For acquisitions of property, plant and -equipment- greater than the-net book value (other than asset acquisitions accounted for under 
the purchase.method of accounting that result iu goodwill), the acquisiiion.premiuril is recorded tO propet1-y. plant and ·equipment and 
amortir..ed over the estimated· remaining useful lives of the assets using the straight ... line method fot financial repmting purposes and 
accelerated methods for income tax reporling·pmposes; 

Property} plant-and equipment includes capital equipment inventory stated at original cost· consisting ofit~ms that-are expected. to be 
used exclusively for capital projects. 

We capitalize the.ccosfs associated with computer software we develop or obtain for use in· our "business, wlrich is induded in 
property, plant and equipment. We amortize computer software costs·on a straight-line basis-over the expected. period·ofbenefit once the 
installed software is ready for its·intended use. 

Property.} plant and:. equipment at ITC Holdings and ·non-regulated ·subsidia1ies is stated .at its acquired cost. Proceeds -from salvage 
Jess·the:net:book-va!ue·ofnssets disposed of is recognized as a gain or loss on disposal. Depreciation is computed based on. the·acquired 
cost less·.expected residual value and is recognized over·the estimated usefUl lives of the assets on a straighHine method for fmanciS.l 
reporting·purposes and accelerated .methods for income tax reporting purposeS·. 

/mpainnent of Lcng-Lived Assets - Other 1han goodwill, our "long-Jive-d assets nre reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
cha11ges in-circumstances indicate the carrying-amount of an asset may not be reCQverable. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds 
the expected undiscounted future cash flows generated by "the asset, an .impainnent loss is recognized.resultlng in the asset being written 
down to its estimated fair value. 

Goodwi/l.anif.Iutangible Assets- We comply with··the standards set forth by the FASB for goodwill and other intangible assets. 
Under these. standards, goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite live..<> arc not subject-to amorti?..ation .. However, goodwill and other 
intangibles are· subject to fair value· based -rules for me-asuring impairment, and resulting write-downs, if any, are to be reflected in 
operating expense. These accounting standards require that goodwlll be reviewed at least annually for impairment and Whenever facts or 
circumstances indicate-that the· carrying amounts may not be recoverable. We have goodwiH recorded relating-to the acquJ.shions of each 
our M.ISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. We completed om annual goodwill lmpainnent test by perfonni-ng a qualitative analysis 
for each of our 1\flSO Regulated Operatitlg Subsidiaries as of October 1, 2011 and detennined ihatJlO impairment exists. There were no 
events subseq1.tent to October 1! 201"1 that indicated impairment of our goodw1ll. Our intangible assets have finite lives and are 
amortized over their usefut lives, refer to Note 6 . 

D~ferred Financing Fees and DiscouJit or Premiwn on Debt- The costs relate-d to the issuance oflong-term debt are recorded to 
deferred financing fees and are amortized over the life of the debt issue. The debt discount or premium related to the issuemce of long­
term debt is recorded to long-term debt and amonizcd over the life of the debt issue. We recorded to interest expense the amortization of 
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deferred financing fues and the amoriization of our debt disoounts for 2011 , 2010 and 2009 of $3.8 million , $3.1 million and $3.3 
million., respectively. 

Asset Retirenrent OE!igafions- We comply wfth the standards set forth by· the FASB for asset retirement obligations. As defined in 
the-standards,·a conditional asset retirement obligation refers to a-legal obligation·to perfom\ an asset retirement actiVity in-which ·the 
timing and/or·ffietho-d of settiement are conditiomil on a future event that may or may not be within our control. We.have identified 
conditional asset Tetirement Obligations primarily :associated with the removal of equipment containing polychlor.lnated biphenyls 
("PCBs") .and ·-asbestos. We record a liability .at fair value f.Or a legal asset retirement .Obligation in ;-the period in 'vhiCh it is incurred. 
When:a new legal obligation 1s recorded, we capitalize the CQSts of the liability by incrcasil1g the can:,ying amount of the related long­
lived.asset. We-accrete t1te Jiabill(.}" to· its present value e<ich period:and depreciate·the- c~pitafized cost over the useful. life of the related 
asset. At the et1d ofthe . .asset's--useful life-, we settle-the obligation for its recorded amount or incur a gain or loss. The stf!Ilda:rds-for asset 
reth-ement obligation applied. to our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries reguire us· to recogn.ize regi.1latory assets or liabilities for the 
timi.ng.diffetences between when ·we recover legal asset retiremehf obligations in rates and· .when we would recognize-these costs under 
the.-standards. There have nor been any significant -changes to our asset retirement obligations in 2011_. 0ur asset retirement obligations 
as ofDecember 3i; 20!1 and 2010 of$3.6 million and $3.3 million ,.rospectivel)',.are included in olherliabilitios. 

Finanaiul Ji-lstrumenrs - We .comply \vith the standards set forth ·by t~~ FASB for· d&ivatives and hedging in accounting for' 
.fi11ancial instruments. For derivative instruments that have been designate'd and qualify a:s hedges- of the exposare to varlabilifji in. 
expected fut'ure caSh .flows> the' gain or loss on the,·derfvative is jnitla11y reported. as a con;tpouent of other comprehenSive income (loss.) 
and -reclassified" to. the consolidated statement of-Qperations when ·th~ underlYing·. hedged. tr.ansactiol,l affects ·net income. AllY hedge 
ineffectiveness is:recognized in net-·income·immediately at the·time-the·galn·Or loss on the Uerivaiiv~instruments is calcUlated. -Refer to 
Note·-8 for additional discussion.regarding-deriVative·iuStruments. 

Contingent OOHgations- We: are sUbject to a- number of federal and ·state laws and TtkU:UlatiQn~, as_ well as other factors and 
·conditions that.pbtentiaJly subject· uS to.environmental,: H~igatiou- and other-riSks. We pef:ioi:iically evaluate our-exposure. to such-risks-and 
recor{i'reserves.for those-matter-s where-a loss is conSidered-probable arid:r.easonabJy estimable. in accordance with G-AAP. The adeqll£1cy 
of-r.eserves catr be .Sigriificantly:affected by extem~H~ events or conditions that can be unpredictable; thu_s, the Ultimate outcome of such 
matters cbu1'd'mateiiitHy affe-Ct our-c-onsolidated financial statements . 

. Generator Interconnectiou Projects ~. Certain .capital' irivestment at- our RegU!a.ted Operating 'Subsidiaries·relates'to-investments.we 
make under _generator lnter.connection agreements, Thy generator inte.rc.oruuiCtioti agreements typically -conSist Of both tnmsmis-si-on 
network upgrades., hwhich have been deemed by FERC ·t-a benefit t-he transmission system ~s_.-a: whole, as wen as ·direct connection 
faciHties, which.are need&I-to intercoiinebt- the -generatiilg facility to the transmis.Sipn systel'n and; primarily benefit ·the generating 
fa-cUity. 0\ir investment iil:1ransmjssion' network upgrad-e facilities arerec_oi-ded·to·property. plant--ana equipment. For direct connection 
facilities, we coHect a .contribution in aid of construction from the geilerator f.or: the cost of the facilities and offset the contribution 
against the plant investmeritrecorded to property, plant at1d:equipment. 

We: receive depositso.or··letters of ctedit- from the generator- for the -network upgraOe faciliHe"s·in .advance of-construction. Wh-en the 
generator meets .certain criteria -of AttachmentFF of the MISO tilr1ff, such as havin_g tdong~term sa1e.~.agreement at the commercial 
·operation date-for the' generating·Q.pacity ofth'e -ra:cility, we refund-the cash -deposits or releas-e letter-of.credit that was provided. If·the 
:generator-does· not-meet these, criteria, -the d~osif is-retained or other securitY dr-awn upon,.and is recorded as an offset against the plant 
investment reCorded to propcrty1 plant and equipment. When the. cash or other security received is--not.tefunded under the criteda of 
Atta-chment FF", the rece~pt of cash ·becomes taxable- income for Us for Wltich we biH the generator a tax gross~ up. The tax gross-up 
r~presents the difference between_ the taX effects .of fh.e taxabJe.in.come-.Ussociated ·with· the contribution compared to the:present·vaiue of 
tlre taX. depreciation deUudion of lh.e property const-ructed using the taxable- contributiOn in aid of construction? The· deferred--revenues 
associated with·the- tax:gross-up are recorded-to.o_fher long.o.term liabilities when· collected, and amoriized over the tax depreCiation life of 
the asset- to-oth-er- ~ptlrating .income and expense .. net.. · 

Revenues ~Revenues from ilie- transmisSion. of electricity -are recognized as services are provjded based on EERC .. approved cost­
based formula -rate templates, \Ve record a reserve for· revenue subject to refund When. such refund is probable and can be reasonably 
estin:mte"U. The ieserve-.ls-recorded as a-reduction-to operating revenues. 

The cost-based fonnuia rate templates at oltr' Regulated Opetating Subsidiar-ies incluae a true~I,tp mechanism, whereby they compare 
their actual revenue requirements to their bllled revenues for each year to determine any over- or under-collection of revenue 
requirements and record a-revenue accroal or- deferraJ for the difference. Refer to Note 4 under "Cost·:Sased formula Rates with True­
Up. MeChanism~' for·a discussion of our revenue accounting under our cost--based fonnu}a rate templates. 

Share-Based Payment- We have an Amended and Restated 2003 ~'loCk .Purchase and- Option Pian ·for Key Employees of ITC 
Holdings Corp. and its subsidiaries (the "2003 Plan") and a Second Amended and Restated 2006 Long-Term lncemive Plan (the 
''LTJP10

) pursuant to which we grant various share-based awards, including options and restricted stock Md deferred stock units. 
Compensution expense for employees and directors is recorded for stock -options, restricted :-tack awards a11rl deferred stock units that 
are expected to vest based-on their fair value at gr£\nt date,·and is amortized over the exp-ected ves1ing period. We recognize expense for 
our stock options, which· have graded vesting -schedules~ on a straighi-line basis over the entire vesting_perlod and not for each separately 
vesting portion of the award. The _grant date is the date al which our commitment to iss..ue share based awsrds to the employee or a 
director arises, which ·is generally the later of the board approval date, the date of hire of the employee or the date of the employee's 
compensation agreement which contains the commitment to issue th-e award. Ex.hlblt CB-Hta 



We also have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") which·is a compensatory plan. Compensation expense is recorded based 
on the fair- value of the purchase options at the-grant date, which corresponds to the first day of each purchase period1 and is amortized 
over the purchase period. 

Compri:llensive Income· (Los$) - Comprehensive income (loss) is thf? change in ~-ommon stockhOlderst equity during a per.iod 
arising from transactions -and events from non-owner sources, including net income and any gain or loss recognized for the effective 
J>Ortion of our interest rate sw~ps. · 

Income Taxes -·Deferred income taxe-s--are-recognized for .the expected future tax oonse-quences of events·that have been recognized 
in the:fiu1mCiaJ slatements-or tax returns. Deferred t~ assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences :between the financial 
statements and tax bases qfvarious assets and liabilities using the tax- rates. expected to be in eff6ct for the year jn whiCh the.differeuces 
are expected to reverse~ 

The accounting starrdards for uncertainty lo income taxes prescribe a recognition threshold ond a. measurement attribute· for tax 
positions-taken~ or·expected to be taken; in a tax return that may not be sustainable. 

Weiile"income tax returns with the Ihternal"Rev.enue Sendee and with various state and city jurisdictions. We are no longer subJect 
to U.S. federal tax examination:$ for tax years 2007 and earlier. The Internal Revenue Service completed .its examinaiioo of our 2006'· 
federal tax returns in Ja.nuaty· 2"010. The "Intema:J Revenue Service examination did not result in any material :adjustments to· our 
consOlidated financfal statements; State and dty juri:sdict"ions that. remain subject to examination range-Ji·.Om tax·years ·2007 to 2010. In 
the event ·we ·are assessed interest o·r penalties by any ·income tax jurisdictions, interest would be re<:otded as imerest expense and 
penalties would. be reC<Jrded as other-expense. 

3, RECENT ACCOUNTING-PRONOUNCEMENTS 

PresC·rttation.of Comprehensiv-e- Inc.ome 

Tho· guidance .set:forth·by·the Financia"l Accolltlting Standards Board ("F ASI3 1
·
1
) .for the·presentation: of"comprc11enSi.vC·income in financial 

statements was.revjsed to require. eniities.to repot1 corn.ponents~of comprehensiv.e·Jncome- in either a continuous statement ·Of·compri::hertSive 
income or•two separate bu!" consecutive statements. This r.evi$ion is effectiVe for- our annual.and interim consolidated finwlcial·statemen~ for 
fiscal years-beginnirig after December· J 5, 2011. · 

· Gao·dwill Impairment Testing 

TheFASB ameuded the guidance·forie.sting·goodwilJ.fodmp<iirmeDt Underthe revised guidf1:11CC, entities.teSting goodWi"Ji for impairment 
1a:ve the option of perfonning.a qualitati:ve ar;scssment before calculating the·rair value of the·wporting unit. If entities ·determine, on· the basis 
of qualitative factors, :that the·fairvalue of t11e·re~orting unit is mOre likely than not less than t11e canying amount, fue two-step impairment test 
would be required. This -revision is effective for annual and jnter:im goodwiJJ impairment tests petformed for fiscal years beginni1~g after 
December 15,.1011 with·.early adoption allowed. We·eat-ly adopted the amended .guidance,. and ihe impact did not have an effect on our results 
of operations,. cash flows· or: financial con-dition. RefettO Note2 for additional.informatfcm, 

Balance "Sheet Offsetting Re'gu.irements 

The FASB created· new -disclosure requirernents-segarding.the nature of an entHyts :rights Of Off.10et and related arrangements-associated. with 
iis finanCial instruments and derivative instruments, The guidance requires entities·to disclose, at a mjriimum, the- following infonnation in 
tabular format, separately for assets and liabilities: (~) the gross· amounts of those recognized assets an:d thoSe recognized liabilities; (b) the 
amounts offset to d.etennine the-, net amounts presenied in the statement. of financial position;. (c) the net amounts presented in the statement·of 
fmancial p.osition;:{.d) the amounts subjecno an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement; and (e}:the net amount after 
deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts hi (e). The disclosure requirements are effective for annual r~porting peHods heginning_on or 
aftm· January 1, 2013, and interim periods lherelrt, with retrospective application xequired. Th~·neW disdosure·requirements are.not expected to 
have: a materia! effect, ifanyf on our·rcSults,of-·operatioris, ctish-flows or financiaJ con"dition. 

4. REGULATORYMATTERS 

ITC Great Plains: 

On August 18, 2009~ ITC Great. Plains acquired two e1ectric trausmissjon substations and·became . .an.independent.transmission company in 
SPP. SPP bcgiUl ro bill ITC Great Plains' 2009 network revenues in January 2010, retroactive to August 18, 2009. ITC Great Plains has 
committed to ronstruct certain .transmission projectS in the SPP region~ including ,the Kansas Electric Transmission A-utborit)' ("KETA") 
.Project{a1so known a~ the Spearville- KnoJl-- Axtell Project) and a segment oftheXansas V~Plan. 

In 2009, ITC Great Plains filed an application for a formula rate under Section 205 of the Federal Po\ver Act. The FERC conditionally 
accepted the proposed fonnula rate tariff sheets, subject to refund, and set them for hearing and settlement procedu!'es. In addition, lhe FERC 
approved cert8.iiliransmissicin investment incentives, including the esUiblishrnent ol regulatory as::.-ets for srart-up-and development costs oflTC 
\rreat P-lains and certain pre~construction costs specific to the K.ET A. Project and the Kansas V-Plan to be recovered pursuant to future FBRC 
filings. During the. first quarter of 2010, the PERC accepted ITC Great PlainS' cost .. based formula rate ·tariff sheets, which include an annual 
'"Ue-up mechanism, and their corresponding implementation protocols, 

As of December 31, 201 1 , we have recorded a total ofS13.8 million of regulatory assets for start~ up and develoRment expenses incurred by 
JTC Great Plains, which in.dude certain costs incurred for the KETA Project and the Kansas V-Plan Project·prior /t>'W6>R£fUtlMn. During the 



frrst quarter of.20l1, were-eeived-certain regtilatory approvals relating to the Kansas V~Plan which re~'lulted in the recognition of the Kansas V­
Plau regu){l.tory asset of $2.0 million and corresponding reduction:.to operating expenses, which re.~:;ulted in- net income of $1;3 million . 
Subsequent 1o the initial recognition of the Kansas V -Plan. regulatory asset in March 2011, we recorded an additional S1.1 million of cost 
jncurred for: the Kansas V-Plan Project througb Decem her 31, 2011 directly to regulatory assets. Based on ITC Great Plains1 application and the 
related FERC.order, ITCGreat Pl-ains wiU be required to make an additional fil-i~g with. the FERC under Section 205 of the Federal. Power .Act 
in order to recover these start-up, deveiopment·and pre-construction expenses in future rates. 

Green Power·EJ.presS 

In 200,9, we lormed Green Power Express and announced the Green Power:· Express project, which consisted oftnmsmission line segment-s 
that wou1d facilitate the moyementof.power' from theDakotaS1 Minnesota· and Iowa- to MidWesrload centers that demand energ)'. Green Power 
Express has certain FBRC-authorize4 transmisSion investment incentives. includiQg the estatilishment of a Ye'gUlatory asset ·ror sfuri:-up and 
development costs of Green·Po-wer Express·,and certain: pre-. construction costs for· the project to be recoveretl_pursuant io·a future- FERC filing. 
Further,.Green Power ExpressJ1as a PERC-approved formula ra1e ·witl1 a return on equity of 12.38% ana a capital structttre: targeting 60% 
equity and 40% debt. The amount-of any'futur.e capital expenditures- by-Green·Power Express. is currently urikriown. 

The tota1 deve1opmel1t expenses through December3.l, 2011 at-Green),ower Ex,press that· may be recoVerable through regUlatory as...<;<ets 
were approxilllately $5.-5 million, which haVe: been reCoraed to expenses in.the·per:iods in·w1rlCb-they were incurred. ·If in a-.futufe·J"Cporiing 
period·it becomes probable that·future'revenues·will result 'from the authorization to recover these development expenses,.wewill recQgnize the 
regulatory .asSets, No regulatory .assets or·construeiion wotk in prQgre§SJor· Green. Power Express have been recorded ns Of December' 31,. ,20·f 1 

Cost~Bas-ed·FbJ:mlila Rates with Tru~Up Mechariism 

The· transmission rates at our Regula~ed =Operating Subsiiliaries are: s-e.t annually, u-siug the FERC~-apptoved formula rates.: an'd the·.rates 
remahi.-in.effeotfor·a one -year period. By conip{ctingth:eir formula rate temp-iates--ori an amuml basis• our.R~lated- Operating-Subsidiarie-s:are 
·able to· adjusnhei-r trarlsmiSsion rates to.rcflect·changing operational data and financial perfonnance, inClUding the· amount of network-load on 
their transmission ~ystems (for our ~S.Q Rtgufated Operating Subsidiaries), op.~rating expenses and additions to property> plan1 1md 
equipinei:iJ when ·placed iri service, among o'ther: items. The FERC.,approved f.onnula ·rates do_-not require further action or PERC filings for-.the 
caknlatea-Joint zone·rates to·go into' effect;. although the Tates are subject tQ1egal·challenge at the FERC. Our RegUlated Operating S.t•bsidiarfes 
wm continue to·useformula rates to calculate their res_peetive 
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annual revenue requirements unless the FERC determines··fue rates to be unjust and unreasonable or another:mechanism is determined by the 
PERC to be just and reasonable. 

Our cost-based formula rate templates include a true-up mechanism,. whefeby our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries compare their actual 
revenue reqUirements to their billed. revenues for each year to detemiine any over- or under-collection of revenue· requirements. The over- or 
under-cOllection· typically results .fr.om differences between the projected revenue requirement ··used to establish the Dilling rate and actual 
revenue·requirement at each of. our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, or from difference....: between actual and projected. monthly peak loads at 
our MISO Regulated Operating Subsi·.diarjes. Revenue is-recognized for servkes·provirled duiing each reporting·periotl-based on actual revenue 
requirements calculated using the formUla rate templates. Our Regula.t.ecl" Operating Subsidiaries ae<:rue or defer·revenues to·the.extellt that the 
actual.rcvenue TCquirerncnt for the ·reporting period is hlgber or lower;· respectively, thatl the amounts biHed relating. to that-repOrting period. 
The-amount·of accrued or deferred revenues.Is·reflected in .-customer hHis.wi'ihin.two years:under·fue provlsions·.ofthe formula rate "templates .. 

The regUlatory assets are·re<:orded on· the balance sheet in regulatory assets - revenue-.accrual~ h1ClU.ding-accrued. intereSt" and other no~­
current:assets. The cUrrent an:d non~current regulatorr liabilities are recorded in. regulatory ·tiaiiinti.es- revenue defer.ral1 i"nClriding accrued 
interest. The changes in regulatory assets and liabilities (net) associated· with _our Regniated Operating .Subsidiarie-s' forinuia rate revenue 
accruals anO deferrals. in"Cluding.acerued interest,.were as.follows duringihe·yeal'·ended December 3"l, 20ll : 

(In thousand-s} ITCTran~ml«loil METC J:rCM"idwest rro·Grcat-Flains ·rotal 

Balance as ofbeceniber 31,:2010 $ (33,054) $ (11,'/;:16} S. 21;31\B $ ·62() .$ (2B.27&) 
Net refWJds(colletiffons) of2009 revenue 

deferra.ls ·and accruals,. including .inter~t 3,B14 7,718 (21;679} (628) (J0,775) 
J~et revenue de:fein'tlt>.-for the-year endeil. 

December 31, 2011 :(25,562) •(10;7:70) (5;607) (1,810) (43,149.) 
Net accnred.·intcrest·payable -for the· year 

ended December 31..1011 (1;467) (622} (266) (65) !2,420) 
Balli~c'e.as·ofDecembor 31, 2011 , (56.269.) ... (20:911).) .$ ·{6il64) $ (1<8\'7•) . •$ {85,220) 

Regulatory assets and liabilities associated with our Regulated .Operating· Subsidiaries~ fonnuia rate revenue accruals .and deferrals are 
reCorded· in our consolidated statement of.·financial position. as follows: 

(En' thousands) · 1-TCTrammfnion JHIITC 

Current .assets s 863 $ 1 
Non-current assets -··other 
CurienH iablllties (3l;{l28) (9;34~) 

Nom-current liabilities (26.104) (i!.564) 
Balance as (if December 31, 2011. s .. (56.269) $ ·(20:9t0) 

ITC Mitlwest's ltite··niscount 

I.TC M:idwes! 

$ 5,020 $ 

4,113 
(5,049) 
(9,748). 

:s (1>;164) $ 

fTC Cre:at:PJalns 

754 
1;524 
(£511:) 

(3,501) 
(.i;ll97) 

Tot11l 

s 6.639 

5,637 
.(46,579) 
(50.91 ?) 

$ (t5.21(}) 

As part vf the orders by the·lowa Utility Board ("IUB") and the Minnesota ·PubliC Service Commk•ion ("MP\JC") approving lTC 
MiOwest'S·asset..acqui:Sition~ ITC Midwest agreed·to provide a rate.discount of:$4 .. 1 m.iflion per year to itS customers for eight years,. beginning 
in .the fir.Sf year customers experience an· increase in transmisSion charges friilowiug the consummation of1he:J1~C ·Midwest asset -acguisition, 
Beginning'in 2009 and -extending:. through 2616,.1TC:Midweses·Jlet:revemJe-requirement was or willbe.reducecf by .$4.1 m:iHion for each year. 
The rate discou.rit is recoW,lized as a redilcti"on in revenues when we -provide the· service and charg.e·the reduced rate that inClude.~ the rate 
discount. 

ITCTransmission ,Rate Freeze Revenne'Deferral 

ITCTransmission's rate freeze revenue deferral. resulted from. the difference between the revenu·e ITC.Transmfssion woUld have collected 
under its cost based formula rate and 1he actual revenue ITCTransmission received for the periOd from February 28, 2003 "through 
December 31, 2004. The revenue ·deferral was amortized f.or .ratemak.ing ·on a straight~Hne basis for five years from June 2006 through 
May 2011 and vlas included in ITCTransmission1s revemre requirement for those periods. Revenues·of$11.9 million were recognized in 2010 
and 2009 relating to the rate freeze revenue deferral and· revenues of $5.0· million were rer;ognizcd in Januat)• through May 2011. The $6.9 
million reduction in revenues resulted jn· a. reduction to after--tax net income. of approximately $4.3.million in 2011 compared to 2010 and 2009. 
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Depredation Studies 

ITC Midwest 

Effective January 1, 20.10, the FER.C authorized the impfementation of the d((prcciation study fii!!U by ITC Midwest Which revised its 
depreciation rates. This change in -accounting estimate resulted in lower composite d~preciation rates for ffC Midwest primarily due to the 
revision of-asset· service lives and cost of removal values. 

For ratemaking purposes, the impact of"ITC MiOweses revised.depreciation -rates was initially reflected in J.TC Jv.Hdw.es{1s 2010 re.venue 
requirement. The revised -depreciation rates res:ulted ·in a reduction of depreciation ex.pcnse of$6:4 mllliol'l and S5.1 mHfion. for the· years ended 
Deccmber.31, 2011 and 2010, respective}¥, as compared to the a.mount of depreeiaHon ex.pense·that·woU.ld have been recognized under the 
prevjous depreciation rates Utilized by ITC Mi(twest. Because of the inclusion :of depreciation ·ei,peuse as a component of net revenue 
requirement under lTGMidwesC·s oost-based formula rate,_. the offsetting effect. on revenues and exp.en~ from·thechange.in.depreciation rates 
had. an immaterial effect·on.net income and.eamings per share amounts· forthe-year ended December" 3".1 1 lOll and 20'10 , 

lTC1:ransmissiott and'ME:J'.C 

Effective.January l, 2009~ the.FERC accepted depredation ·studies' flied by ITCTranSmission <ind MB.TC; resp·eotively,.which revised·th€lir 
deprecjat1on rates: This change-in ·accoUnting e.stimate resUlts in ·lower composite depreciation rates·f-or.l'PGTrnnsmission and.MEJ'C primari~y 
due· .to the revision of. asset service lives·ap.d.cost of removaJ values. 

For rateuuiKing purpdses, the FER.C aceepted our filing suoh th;.it the impaet of the revJsed depreciation rates was reflected in 
ITCTransmissfon!s and lv1ETC',s 2009Tevenue requirement. TheTevlsed depredation rates. resulted in: a.teduclion Of..depr.ec1ati.on expense of 
$223 million, $21.~.million.and $!9.6 million for the years ended l'.>eoember 31,.20.11, 2010 and 2009, respectively,.as compared to 1he 
amount of depreciation expense· tbat would have been recognized under the previOps depreciation rates utilized by L'fCTransnltssion and 
METC, Because of the inclusion of depreciation expense as·a cOmponent.o.fnet.revenue requirement under·their cost~bas.ed formula rates, the 
offsetfin,g..offcct-.on revenues-and expel)seS from the.-change in dqmu:iation rates had .an lmmatei:ial cffec,t.on net income antteamings per share 
amounts for ·ore years ended December ill,: 20 II ,2010 and 2009 . · 

5. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Regulatory As.Sets 

.The following table summarizes·the 1·egi.llatory a.~et balances at December 31) 2011 and 2010: 

(In cthous!lnds) 

Regulatory ASsets'l 
Revenue accruals: 

Currenr(ini:!uding accrued interest of$79·,and $266··as of!Jecemher :n, 2011 and:~oHi, respeclivoh'r 
Non .. .current {including accrued' interest of £34 and $22 as ofDecember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) 

Other: 
ITC'J;'ransmission ADIT Deferral (nd of accumulated amorti'zation- of.$26;166 and $2:3,736 as of December 

:n, 2011 and.2010, respectively) 
METC ADITDefemrl (net of.accumulated1tmorlizationcof.$11,793 and:$9,435 as;of.December :li, 20'!i 1llld 

2010, respectively) 
METC Regidlltory Deferrais {net of accumulated amorti7.ation Of$3,857 and $3,086 as ofDecember3·I, 20rl 

an'd ·zoJo. respectively) 
Income taxes recoverabfe relatetLto AFWC ·equity 
ITC Great Plains Start-up and Development 
KETAProje<>t 
Kansas V-Plan 
Pem:.ions and postretirement 

Incomc.taxes recoveriblcrelated to implementation of the Michigan. Corporate lncome Tax 
"Other 

Total 
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2011 

$ 6.639 $ 
5;637 

'33,836 

30;663 

11,571 

38,222 
8,946 

1.179 
3,121 

24;711 
?,630 

tsos 
$ 174,263 $ 
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2010 

2~·.631 

3,947 

36,866 

33,021 

12,342 

28;687 
8,783 

1,748 

16,105 

170,736 



Revenue Accruals 

Refer to discussion of revenue accruals in Note 4 under "Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-Up Mechanism." Our Regulated Operating: 
Subsidiaries do·not earn a retum on the balance ofthe.revenue accruals, but do.accrue interest carrying coslfnvhich are suhjecUo rate recovery 
along with the·principal amount of the revenue accrual. 

!TCTransmissiou ADIT Deferral 

The carrying amount of the ITCT.ransmission ADIT Deferral is the remaining unamonized balance of the portion of ITCTransmis..'lion 's 
purchase price in· excess of-the fair value of net assets acquired approved forinclusion jn fmure rates. by the FERC. ITCTransmission cams a 
return on the remaining unamortized-balance of the ITCTran.smisSion. ADIT Deferra.J that is included in. rate base. The original amount recorded 
for .. this regulatory asset of $60.6 million is being recognized in rates and amortized on a. straight-line basis over 20 years. lTCTransmi.sSion 
recorded amortization expens-e.of $3.0 million annually during 201.1 ) 2010 and 2009 , -which is included in depredation antl amortization and 
recovered through:JTCTransmisSion1s cost-based foninila rate template. 

METC ADIT Deferrals 

The carrying amount ofthe·METC AD1T Deferral-is.the·-remaining unamortized balance ofthe:portion ofMETC's purchase price in excess 
of the ·fair value of net assets acquired from Consumers Energy approved: for inclusion in future rates -by ·the FMC. The original amount 
recorded for the· regulatory asset for ME'FC. ADIT Deferrals of $42.5 million is recognized .in rates and. amortized over 18 years beginning 
January 1, 2007.- METC eams,a return on the-remaining unamortized balance oftheTegulatory assetfor·METC AD.lTDeferrals-ihat is includcil 
in rate base. METC recorded amortization expense- of·$2..4 million annually during· 20Tl , 2010 and 2009 ~ respectively, which is included "in 
depreciation and-amortization nnd·recovered· through METeS eos~ ... ha'>ed formti_la·.rate-k.mplate. 

METCRegulatory.Dejermls 

METC has defemi<4 as a-regulatory asset,_ rlcpreciation·ali.d.related interest eJ::.pense·associated.wlth_ new. transmission asse~ placed in service 
fi:om JanuarY 11 :2001 through December :n, 2005 that" were jncluded on METC's ·baiatiee shee-t at the Hme MTH acqUired METC from 
Consumers Energy'(tl)e "METC.Regu1a:tmy Deferrals~'). The original amount·recorde·d for thf< regulatory asset for METC.Regu]atory Deferrals 
of $15A minion is recognized in rates and amortized over 20 years beginning January .1, 200?. METC earns a return on the remaining 
unamortized,batance·ofthe reguiatocy ass!§t for METC Regulatory Deferrals tl1at is included in rate base. METC recorded amortization expense 
1f·$0.8 million during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 • respectively, whiCh is included ln depreciation and.amortiza1ion and recovered througl1 METC-s 
.;ost.::based formula rate,template. 

Income Taxes RecoJ.terable Related to AFUDC Equity 

Accounting: standards tur income taxes provide that a i'egulatory asser be recorDed if it is prObable that a future increase in taxes· payable 
relating to the hook depredation Of.AFUDC equity·tlmt has. been·capitali~ to_property, plant and equipment will be1·ecovered from customers 
tb.rough future rates. "Because AFUDC equity is a comp.oncnt of property, plant and equipment that is included in ·rate·. base when. the plant is 
placed in service1 and the: related dCferre.d tax HabUities are not a reduction to.rate base, we effective1y.·cam a return on this regulatol)' asset. 

ITC Great.Piaius Start~up and lJeve/.(Jpmenf 

The start~up·arid ·development regulatory asse! conSists of certain costs incurred by ITC Great Plains from inception through the eff.ectfve 
date of the ITGGreat Plains' oost,.based formu·Ja rate, including costs which.had"been incuned.to develop and acquire transmission assets in the 
SPP region. These costs relate primarily to obtaining various state, SPP and PERC approvals necessary for ITC Great Plains to own 
transmission assets and build new facilities in the SPP region1 efforts to establish the lTC Great Plains' cost-based formula rate, the 
establishment of JTC Greaf.P)ains as a public utiJitr in Kansas nnd Oklahoma, as well as obtaining the ne-cessary approvals and authorizations 
forthe state regulators in Kansas and Oklahoma. 

The startup tmd deve]opment regulatory asset accrues carrying-charges at a rate equivalent to·ITC Great Plains~ weighted avemge·cost of 
capit3:!1 adjusted annuffily based on lTC Great Plains' actuaJ ·weighted average cost of capital calculated in TTC Great Plains~ formula rate 
template for that year. The canying charges began to accrue in ·March 2009 ru1d will continue until such time that ·the regulatmy asset is 
included in rate base. The> equity component of"these canying charge...;; including applicable taxes) totaling $3,0 million as of December 31, 
20.1.1 , js not recorded for GAAP accounting and -reporting as the equity return does not meet the recognition criteria of incurred costs eligible 
for deferral under GAAP. Recovery of the start->up and development regulatory asset requires FBRC authorization upon ITC Great Plahts 
making an additional filing under Section 205 of the FPA to .demonstrate ·that .the costs to be recovered are just and reasonable. lf FERC 
authmization is received, ITC Great Plains will include the unaJUmtized balance of the start-up and deveiopmenl regulatory asset~-> in its ra~e 
base and wBi begin amortizing it over a JO -year period upon the in-service date of the KETA Project, the KanS'dS V-Pian or when the total in· 
service gross pwpert)\ plant and equipment at ITC Great Plains exceeds SlOO million, whichever occm·s first. The amortization expense will 
be recovered through ITCGreat Plains 1 cost-based.formula rate template beginning in the period in :which amm1ization begins. 
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RDTA P1·Qject 

The.KETA Project regUlatory asset includes .certain costs incun·ed associated with regulatory activities in Kansas and Oklahoma. and with 
.Partidpan~ i11 SPP to obtain the necessa:r:y approvals and authorization before proceeding further with planS~-·as well as en-gineering studie.<;. 
routing studje,.q and education and outreach io stakeholders on ITC Great PlainS} efforts to bring these projects to the SPP region, and other 
costs;fncmred specific ·to the l(:E'fA Project prior to. construction. 'fhe KET:A Project 1'Cgtilatory asset accrues ca.nyif!g charge.."! at a rate 
equiva1ent:to lTC Great-Plains' weighted average cost of capital) adjusted annually: based on ITO Great Plnins' actual weighted average .cost of 
capital calculated-in its formula rate tell1plate·for·tha.t year. The carrying charges began to accme·jn March 2009 as authorized by the FERC 
ofder.and will continue untU snch'time that tbe.regulatbl)' asset is inCluded ]urate baseL The.equity component of these cnnylng charges 
including applica.ble..taxes, totaling $0.5 million as ofDeceniber-31, . .20H , is not recorded for"GAAP accounting .and reporting as the equity 
return .does not meet 1he recognition criteria ofincurred costs eligible for deferral unOer GAAP .. Recovery of the KETA Project regulatOry asset 
requires. PERC authorization upon IT.C Great Plains making·.an.a<i.dltiona1 filing·untier Section 205 ofthe.FPA to demonstrate-that the costs to 
be- recovered are just and. reasonable. IfFERC -auth.orizatj.oil is receiv.ed, ITC Great Blains- wil1 inClude the unamortized bafance of the KE.TA 
Project .R-egulatory Asset in its rate base and begin ammiizing "it. over a 10 -year period upon the in~service i:iafe- of the KETA Project. The 
amortization expense ·Wilt be recove~ed .through ITC Great J?Iains' cost-basei:J formula rate· temPlate beginning in the period in Which 
amorliZD:tion begins:. 

Klmsas "V..:.PlaJt Project 

The Kansas V-Plan Project regulatory asseJ; includes certain costs incurred associated with regulatory' activities in .Kansas ·and with 
.participants in SPP to obtain the necessary apptovals and authorization before proceedh1g .furthe:r··WHb planS, as-·\vell as·.engineering.studies, 
routini studies and education.and·outreach to stakeholders on. rtGGrcat Plains1 efform to.biing the$e:·projects:to the SPPYegioit, and other. costs 
inourieO:~pecific·to-fhe·Kansas V-Plan Project.prH)r-io construCtiori. The Kansas V~Plan Project r.eygulatory asset-.accmes carrying charges at n 
mt¢ equivalent to··lTOdreat·Rlains' w.ei:ghted -averag-y cost. of capital, aOju:sted annually based on lTC Great "Plain..c;'.actual weighted average cost 
of.capltalcalcu:latecLfn our forniu}a.ra~e.tenlplate for that year. 1lre.cafryh::tg chargeS began to acc~ue- in M·arch";~009 as au.thorlzed by the PERC 
Order ·and wi11 continue ··until such fune·that the regulatory aSset. iS inclUded in ra:te ·base. The :equity :component of these carrying. charges 
including. applic-able taxes, totaling $0.5 million as ofDecembet 3'1~ 2011 ,.is nOt recorded for OAA:P accounting and reporting as:tite equity 
return.tioe.."':not meet the recpg:nition criteria of.a incUtTed costs eligible for deferral under GAAP. Recovery cif.·the Kansas V.,P}an·Project 
regultttOJy asset requfres.FERC-!i.uthodiation upon lTC Great Pl~ins n~aking -an additional filing under .Section 205 of the FPA to demonstrate 
'hat" the cOs"tS to be recovered ar.ejust a.nd reasonable?. IfFERC·authoriUt·iOn iS receivcd1 ITC Great Plains will include the unamortized balance 
,fthe Kansas V-Plan Ptojecf regulatory asset in its .rate baSe and ~egin amortizing it over a 10 -year period upon the in-service date of the 

Kansas V-Plan Project,. The amortiz.ation expense will be recovered througH ITO Great PlainS' cost~based formula rate template beginning in 
. ihe·period in Which-amortizatioil begins. 

·Pentionstmct;Jiostretireuzelil 

Accounting. $huulards for ·defined binefit pension and other po.stretir:ement i)lans f.or rate~regulated entities require that amounts tbat 
othe.rwlse·would have·heen charged and or; credited to accumulated.other comprehensive jncome are recorded as a regulatory asset. or liability. 
As the-unrecognjzed. amounts recotde-4 to th.is regulatory asset-are recqgnjzed, expenses wiU be recovered fmm·customers-in·future rates under 
our cost based fonntilll rates. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries do not earn.a. return on the balance of the· Pension and.Postretirement 
regulatory asset. 

lllcomt Taxes Recoverable-Related il! l.mplmnentafion bftltc :Michigan Corporate lncome.Tax 

On May 25, 2011, the Michigan Business Tax ("MBT") was repealed and replaced with the Michigan CotporJtte. Jncome Tax ("CIT'), 
effective January 1) 2012. Under the-CIT.., w.e wiU he taXed at a·rate of"6".0% on federal taxab1e income that is attributcil"io our operations·in 1he 
state·ofMichigan1 sUbject to certain. adjustments. Ip addition to the traditionalincome tax,_ the MBT.had: also included a modified gross. receipts· 
tax. which allowed for deductions and credits for cert<iin activities, none of Which:are -part. of the· CIT. The change in MiChigan tax law required 
us to remove defe1Ted income tax ·balances recogn1'z:ed: "under the MBT and establish new:deferred ·income tax balances under the. CiT in the 
second quarter of20J 1; and the net.resli.)t was incremental deferred state income thx Jiabilities.at both"i'fCTransmission andMETC. Under our 
cost;.based formula rates with t,rueRup mechanism, the :future taxes recei:val.lle as a result of the tax law change :is expected to be coli.ected.from 
customers through future rates and"has resulteil in the reoognition of a regulatory asset. Recovery ofthe Michigan CIT regulatory asset requires 
PERC authorization upon ITC HOldings maldn.g- an. additional filing under Section 205 of the FPA to demonstrate-that the costs to be recovered 
are just and reasonable.lTCTransmission and METC do not earn a return on the balance·ofthe CIT regulatory asset. · 
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Regulator-y Liabilities 

The following table summarizes the regulator)' liabilities balances at December 31,. 2011 and 2010 : 

{ln-thouNands) 

:Regulatory Liabilitie-s: 
.Acc1ued asset removal costs 

Revenue deferrals (a):-
Curtent (including accrued interest of$Z,l59 and $876 as of December 31, 2010 and 201!, respectively) 
Non-curre~tt(including aecrued interest of $828 and $680 as ofbeceniber 31, 201 I and 20lO,se~Jecfively) 

Total 

$ 

$ 

iOll 1010 

83,934 $ 90,987 

46,579 17,658 
5!),9.17 43,202 

t81,430 $ 151,841 

{a) Refer to. discussion of revenue deferrals in. Note 4 under "Cost.. Base-d Formula Rates with True~ Up-Mechanism/' Our Regulated Operating 
SubsidiariG..~. accrue interest on the true~up amounts which-wm be refunded through rates:along with the principaJ·am:ount Of.revenue 
.deferrals in· future peri oils. 

AccJ·ucd Asset -Removal Costs 

The canying:ammmt·-ofthe accrued a:sset- remova:t costs-represents the cumUlative amount colle-cted from cliStomers·to cover the estimated 
futuTe costs to remove property, plant.and equipment at ·retirement. The- portion of depreciation expense included in-our depreciafibn rates 
related to a-sset-:r.-emoval·.costs is added -to this ·regulatory liability and removal ex.pendltures-in:curred are charged. to: this- regulatory liability:.- In 
additi011, the regulatory liability-is a:lso.adJusted for timing _differences between· when we recover l~gal.asset retirement .obligations in our rates 
and· \\•hen we -wou1d recognize !ho-se costs· under the:standards set forth by the FASB: Our Regulated Operating Subsidiades jnclude this jteni, 
excluding the,cost' component-relaied to ~recognition· of our ·as..c;;et"retir-ement obligations under the··standards· ~et forth by the FASB, within 
accumulated-de_J)r.eciatlon -fonate-makfng purposes, which is~a reduction to rate base, · 

6. .COODW.iLL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

A1 Deccrrtber-I>l, 2011 and.2010, we had goodwill balances· recorded at lTOTransmission, METC and lTC Midwest of $1?3A million , 
~453:,8 niHiion and $32-3.0 million • respeotive~y. which resulted from ·the ITCTransmission acquisition, the METC acquisition ·arid ITC 
MidwesCs asset -acquisition, ·respectively. 

Intangible Assets 

Pursuant ·to the METC acqplsfii.on in October 2006, ·we ht;t"le- "identffled intangible assets with finite lives derived from the portion of 
regulatory ·-assets recorded On METC's historical -F.BRC .financial statements tllat ·were -not recorded on M8TC·~· historical GAAP iinancial 
statements: a-ssoCiated ·with the METC Regulatory Deferrals ana the METC ADIT Deferrals. The,carrying amount of the intangible ·asset for 
-METC: Regulatory DeferralS-at I)ecembet 31, 2011 anct 2010..is $29.7 million.and $3J:7 milHon., respectively, and isoamortized over 2o--ye-ars 
beginning January !, 20U7. The carrying amount of the intangible asset forMETC ADITbeferrals at December3!, 2011 and.2010 is $EM 
million and $14.6:million ~ ~peCti'vely, and -is amortized over IS years b~ginnjng January 1, 2007, whiCh also.e-orr~ponds to the ;unortizat1on­
perlod established .in the METC tate case settlement. l\1ETC earns· an equ"ity·return on the remaining unammtized".balance of both the intangible­
asset for METC Regulatory D.efemt(_s and ·the irltangible aSset for METC ADIT Deferrals and rccovers·ihe ammtJzation expense-through 
METC's- cost~based formula- rate template. 

·ITC Great .Pla1ns has-recoided 1n~angible assets for payments made to certain transmission owners to acquire rights which are required 
unrler the SPP tariff-. to-designate ITC Oreat.P.lains ro build, own and oper-ate projects wlthhrthe SPP region, including-the KETA.Projcct and 
the- K-ansas v .. Plan .. ·The carrying ainount of these intangible assets is $3.6 miUion aud $·3.7 million (net of accumUlat-ed amortization of $0.2 
million and·So.J mlflion) as ofbecember :n. 20.11 and2010 ,respectively. 

Duriligthe years ended December 31, 201J , 2010 and 2009. we:recogtiized"$3.1 million .• $3.1 million and $3.0 minion! respectively, of 
amortization expense of our intangible assets, We expect the ammai amortization of our -intangible assets tbat·have been- recorded as of 
December 31 1 2011 to be as follows: 
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{In-thousands) 

2012 

2013 

201'4 

2015 

2016 

201.7 and thereafter 

Total 

7. PROPERTY, !'LMT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plam and equipmcnt-·nehconsisted·offue.followingat December 3!, 2011 .arrd20l0: 

(ln.thousands} 

Property.,;-p)ant anti iquipment 
Regula!Cd Operating Subsidiaries: 

rtroperty_.·pJant.anO eqUipment .,in ser.vice 
GohS~ruction work in. progress 
eaphn1 equipment inventory-.. 
Olher-

D'CHoldings and Olher 

Total 
. Less ,accumulated~ Oepreci atiQ~\-.and .amortization 

Pi'operty, plant-and equipment- net 

'$ 

$ 

s S;IOO 
3,l00 

3,100 

3,1.00 

3JOO 
311385 

$ 46;885 

2011 20l0 

4,096,211 $ 3;n2,937 

418,056 f'J'i',985 
68,B81 62iHi8 
12,490 12.432 
13;349• .6,424 

4,608,987 4,0(\1,946 

fU93.164) •fL'129;669) 
3,415;823 $ 2;872,277 

Additions-ltYpropertyi plant and equipment in.-servioe and -construction work \n progress- during 20n and 2010 were due;_primarily fur 
JrOjectS to tipgrnOe or T~place eXisting tranSmission p1ant to iinprove· the r-cilillbility of our transmission systems in addition to generator 
interconnections- and -Our ongoing development prOjects. 
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8. LONG-TERMDEBT 

The following. amounts were outstanding at December 31,.2011 and 2010 :· 

(In thousands) 

ITC'Holdings•5c25% Senior Notes due'Jti.ty·:rs, 2013 (nehifdiscouut of $.!R3 and $302, respectively) $ 
JTCJJoldings 6.04% Senior Notes1 Series A1 due September 20,2014 
·lTC ·Holdings 5.875% Senior Notes due September 30, 2016 (net of discount of $16 and ·$!9, 

rospeetive1y) 
ITC Holdh1gs 6.23% Senior Notes; Series B, due September 2fi, 2017 
ITC H6ld4lgs 6.315% Seilior Notes due September 30, 2036 (net of discount of $!89 and SJ97; · 

respectively) 
lTC Holdings 6.05% Senior Notes due January 3\, 2018 {net of discount of $960 and $1,118, 

respectively) 
lTC Holdings 5.50% Senior ·Note,, :dUe. Jamiiley 'l\5, .2020. (net of•discount •of $1,053 ·arid $1,186, 

respectively) · · 
n:OHoldings·.Revolving'CITedit Agrecnwnt ·due May 17, 2016 
ITcTransni!ssiow4;45"/o First'lllortgag~. Bani!!;, ·series ;\.,<ilue 'July 15, 20'13 ·(net cif discount ·of$18 <md 

$30,<respectiv~ly)' · · 
ITCTransmission 6.115% First Mol'tgage Bonds, Series' C.- due M.arcb 31, 2036 (net of discount. of $89 

and -$93;· respectively) 
ITCT-ransmission~$.7"5%-FirsrMortgage"ill(?nils, Series .i).,due Ap!il '1, 2018:(D.et. ofdiscount.of $72 and 

S8:3, 1'especli\<i:lji) 
ITcTronsmission-R6volving Credit.;\greement due May·17.-. 2016: 
IT.CTran·sniiS~ionlMETC·Revo1ving-:Credlt·Agreement-1duC:Ma.rCh.29!-.2012 

ME'i'C-5.?5% Senior Secured Notes due.Decem~e"r 10~ 2015 
METC6;63% Seniot'llecured Notes.dueDeeemberT8, 2014 
METC 5.64% Senior Secured Notes due May 6,:2040 
MBIC.RevOlving·CreditAgreernent due Nf?y l'1t.2016 
1TC'Midwest·6.l5% First Mortgage Bonds1 Series A, due Januacy 31,-2038-(net of discount of$458 and 

$476;.respectively) 
ITC MidweSf.."? .l2~~:FirsrMm:tgag~BOndsf Serins<·B,.du6-December-22;.2017 
"lTC Midwest 7.27%:Firsr Mortgage·.Bonds, Ser:ies-C, dt1e.December 22,- 20'20 
·JTC Midwest 4,60%First'Moltgagel'!onds,.Serfe.'Di<1ueDecember !7, :>.Oi4 
ITC Midwest 200-s: ReVol-Ving-GreOit.Agreemenf-due January .29~ 20.13 
'!TCMidwest.20tLRevolvingCrediU\greement due.Februruy11,'20J3 
JTC Great Plains Revohving-.Credit Agreement· due February 16,.20Hi' 

Total'long,ierm•debt 

The-ammal maturitles oflong~term d6bt as of-December 31, 2011- are-as follows: 

(Ill· thousands) 

2{)12 

2013 
201'4 
2015 
2016' 
2017 and thereafter 

Total 

ITC Holdings 

s 

201! 

'266,817 
so;ooo 

254,984 
50,000 

254;811 

384.040 

198;94~ 

184,982 

99,9Ll 

99,928 
18,000 

t75,000 
50,000 
50,000 
.37,600 

174,542 

40,000 
35,000 
7S,OOO 
40,000 
52,200 
53,260 

2,645;022 

$ 

$ 

s 

•$ 

2010 

266,698 
50,000 

25'4,981 

50,000 

254,803 

383,882 

!Jc9;907 

!3,800 
175,000 
50,000 
50.000 

!?4,524 

~Q,QOO 

35,000 
?S,lJDO 
39,600 

544,200 
100,000 
228,260 
310;600 

1,465,0.00 

2,648;060 

Tlte ITC Holdings Senior Note.s.are issued under:ITC Holdings' indenture. All issuances oflTC Holdings Senior Notes are unsecured. 
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l'I'CTransiDission 

The lTCTransmission First Mortgage. Bonds are issued under;ITCTransmission~s-First Mortgage and Deed ofTr.ust, and therefore have-the 
benefit of a ·first mortgage lien on sUbstantially al~ of1TCTransmission 1S property. 

METC 

On ·May=6, 201 0~ METC issued $50,0 million aggregate principal amount of its 5".64% Senior Secured·Notes, due May 6, 2040 (the .('METC 
Senior SecUred Notes''). The MErc·senior Secured Notes are secured by a-. first mortgage lien on -substantially all ofMETC's real prop.-erty and 
tangible personal property. The proceeds were·used. primarily·to repay amounts outst·anding under the ITCTransmission/METC Revolving 
Credit Agreement, to pa.rtlally fund capital expenditure.~· and for general. corporate purposes. 

lTC Midwest 

On December 17, 2009, lTC Midwest. issued $35.0 million .ofthetotal face amowlt of $75.0 million ofits 4.60% First Mortgage Bonds, 
Series D, due'December 11, 2024·("Seiies.D Bonds"). ITC Midwest closed on the additional $40.0 miliion of Series D Bonds in February 
2010. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the-amounts· outstanding under the ITGMidwest ·Revolvjng Credit Agreement. All O.flTC 
Midwest's Flrst Mortgage "Bonds·are·issued under· its First Mortgage and D"eed of'Tiust,. and therefore have the benefit Of a fimt mortgage lien 
on.ubstantial!y all of,JTC'MidwesHs property. 

In ·November'20ll,1TCMidwest·nonuniited to issue$100,0 million of3.50.%First•Mortgage'Bonds, Series E, due. January 2027 ("SeiiesE 
Bonds"). lTC Midwest held a lending commitment from ·lhe lenders as of Decem her 31, 2011 and closed on thd;JOO.O million of Seiies B 
Bonds on Jai:mary W~- 2012. The proceeds.frorn theJsguance wll!.be used to refinance·existing Indebtedness, ·parti~Jy fund capital e~pen'diture..o:; 
and for-general corporate.·purposes. All .of lTC Mldweses First Mortg-age Bonds are i.sSued underi.ts First Mortgage· and Deed OfTrus~. arid 
therefore·have the·benefit.of a first mOrtgage lieu on substantiaUy:aU oflTC Mldweses propetiy. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 

\Ve use.d.edvative finaucial.lnstrumenis; including. interest rate swap contracts, to manage-our eXposure to·fluotuations in. interest rates. The 
.use of these financial iu.<i-truments·mitigates ex.posureio these risks and. the variability of(lur operating. results. ·We-are not a party to leveraged 
deriVatives -and do not enter into derivative financial instruments for tradlng or speculative purposes. The interest r.at"e ·sWaps listed below 
manage interest" rate risk associated with the forecasted future, issuance· of flxed•rate debt related to the: expected :refinancing ofthe .. maturing 
~267.0 million JTC Holdings 5.25% Senior Notes due July 15, 2013: 

·Interest Rate Swltf!S Notional Amoun1 Fixed Rate Ori.glmtl 'fcrm Effecth·;r D-ate 

{Amountli"ill millions) 

Septeniber:20JO s"·ap $ 50.0 3.6'6% 10-.j:ear.s July 2013 

MarCh 2011 swaps 50.0 4.45% !Oyears July 2013 
May 2011 s\vap 25:0 4.20% IO years :July20B 

August 2(1IJ swaps 50;0 3.80% 10 years July 2013 

Total $ 1.75:0 

The interest ·r.ate swaps call for ITC .Holdings to receive interest .quarterly at a variable rate ,equal to LIBOR and to pay 1nter.cst semi~ 
·annually at various fixed rates effective for 1he JO ~year periotl·beginning July lS~ 2013 after the agreemeritS'have been tenninnted. The 
agreements·. include-a mandatory early termination provision and .will be. terminated no later thanthe.effective-dateof·the interest-rate swaps of 
July ~"5, 2013. The interest rate swaps have= been determined. to be.highlY effective·at offsetti11:g changes m· the fair value of the forecasted 
interest caSh flows associated with the .expected delrt -issuance attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates from the trade date Of the 
interest rate ·swaps·to. the issuance date .of 1he debt obligation. As of December 31~ 201 J ,_·there has been n.o materja[ {neffectiveness recorded in 
the consolidated statement of operations. The·: interest rate swaps qualify for hedge accounting treatment, whereby any pre~tax. gain or loss 
recognized from the trade .date to the effective date for the ·effective portion of the hedge is recorded in accumulated other .comprehensiv.e­
incorrie. These amounts will be .accumulated and amortized as a component of interest expense over the life of the forecasted debt. As of 
Decerriber 31, 2011 , the fair-value. of 0\e derivative instnlments was a liability of$24.3 million recorded to other non~cunent ·liabilities. None 
of.the·interest.ratc swaps·c.ontain.credil-risk~related contingent features. Refer to Note 12 for additional fair value infonnation.. 
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Revolving :Credit Agreements 

On May 17, 2011, ITC H6ldJngs1 1TCTransmission and :METC entered int(? new unsecured, unguaranteed revolving credit agreements~ 
Which repla-ced th-eir existing_ revolving credit agreements that were scheduled to mature on March 29 1 2012. On February 11, 2011, ITC 
Midwest entered iilto a new unsecured1 unguaranteed revolving oredit agreement in addition to.its existing revolving-credit agreement, dated 
January 29, 2:008. On February 16~ 2011, ITC Great Plains entered into an unsecured, unguaranteed revolving credit agreement. At 
Decemhel' 31,'201 I , ITC Holdings and its Regulated Operating Subsidiaries had the fo1lowlngrev.Oiving.credit facilities available: 

Weighted. 

Avernge 

lnterestRnk 

Total on 

Avlillable Ontstnfitling Unwed Outstariding C~mmitment Otigind_ 

(Aniounts in,ri1Hlions-) Capacitv Bnlanc.e {a2 C&~aCltv natance Fee llilte (b) Term DBte'IJfMRturJn' 

RevOlving·Credir-Agreements: 
lTC Holdi•Jgs $ 20M $ $ 200.0 nia (c) 0.25% 5 year~ May 2016 

i'f.CTta:nSlni$si&o. · 100.() .l8i0 82.0 lA% (d) 0;125'% s·years Mny20I6 

METC 'lOt'm 37.6 62A L4% {~) .0.125% 5 year.s May 2016 

lTC'Miilwes(- 2008 ~LO. 4o;o 1.0 0.~% (li) o:o6%' Syears Jmiuary2013 

ITCMitlwest • 2011 1s:a 52.2 22.8 1.5% (g) 0.125% 2 years· February 20 !3• 

ncG..eat:Pia:ins J50Ji 53;3 <)6:1 2~1% .(h) 0.30% 4 years Pebruai)' 20.15 

Total $ 666.0 '$ 20JJ $ 464;9 

(a) IncludeU witliiJ) long-tenn debi. 
(b) CalClilation'based on the:·ave!age.daily unused commitmcnts,.subject..to adjustment·ba'icd-on ihe borrowefs credit rating. 
(c) Loan bears interest at a r-afe·.Cqpaf to- LIBb:R. plus an applicable margin of 1.75% or at ..a ba.w-·rate, which is ·defined as- the higher of-the 

prime rat<:, 0.50% above the .federal funds rate or 1% abOve tbe one month LIBOR, plus an applicable margin of 0-:?5%, subject -to 
adjustments bas_ed -on"ITC Holding.$1

• credh rating. 
(d) Loan -bears intere-st at a rate equal to LIB OR plus an appHcable margin· of 1. I 5% or at a base rate, which is defi.ned as the higher of the 

prjme rate, 0.5-0% above the federai funds r(!.te. or 1% above the one month LIB.OR, plus an: applicable margin of 0.15%, Stibject to 
adjustments based on· ITCTra-nsmiss1on1S credit- rating. 

(e) Loan boors- interest-at a-.rate·equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin--of 1.15% or. at-a· base rate; which is· defined as the higher of the 
prime rate, 0;50% ab:ove the federal funds rare or 1% above the· one month LlBOR~ plus -an applicable margin of0.15%, sUbject tO 
adjustments basedon~METCs credit·rating. 

(f) Loan bears interest at a rate equal to LIB OR plus an applicable margin of0.30% or at.-a. base rate; vihich is defined ·as the h1gher·ofthe 
prime~rat~: or OliO% above the feder:al- funds rate1 subject-' to ~justments based on 1TC"Midwest1s credit'rating. 

(g) Loan bears inter-est.-at-a rate·equaho-LIBOR plus·an.applieable margin of 1.25% or at- a·:baserate1 which is defined as the·hlgher o·fprimc 
rate~ 0.50% above· over th~ federal funds rate or 1% above the one month LIBOR plus an applioa1ile margin of 0.25%~ subject to 
adjustments based on TfC Midwest~s·-credit rating. 

{h) Loan.be-ars. interest-at a rate equal to LIBOR plus an applicable-margin of-1.75%1 or at a base rate, which is defined as the bigherofprime 
rate,.0.50% above the federal .f.unds rate or 1% above the one month LIB OR. plus an applicable margin of·0.75%> subject to adjustments 
based on LTCGreat Plains' credinath1g. 

Cov.ennnts 

Our debt instruments contain 11umerous financial.and operatin-g covenants that place- significant restrictions on certain transactions, --such as 
it1curiing additional indebtedness, engaging- in sale and lease-back tram:;actions, creating liens or other· encumbrances>··entering into- mergers, 
consolidations, Uquidations.or dissolutions, creating or acquiting subsidiaries, selling or otherwise clisposing of all or· sUbstantially all of our 
assets and p~ying dividends-. In addition, the covenants require us to meet certain financial ratioS, sucl1 as malntalning certain funds· from 
operations ratios, de.b1 to capiia:lization ratios and maintaining certaitt interest coverage ratios in addition to nou-GAAP covenants. We are 
currently·in- compliance with aU debt covenants. 
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9. 'EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Were_port both basic.and diluted eamings per-share. A reconciliation ofbotb calculations for the years ended December 31., 20l1 > 2010 and 
2009 is:presented in the· following. table: · 

{ln thousands, -except shnre,.per share data1md percentages) 

Numcrator: 
Net income 
Le"sS::llividen.ds .declare-d -common shares.t restricted shares and 

deferred stock unitsc(a) 
Undistributed earnings 

Percentage a11ocateG:t6 common sbare..~ (b) 
Undistributed-earnings---' common sba.res 
Ai:1d;-,div.idends.dec1ared -·cbinmori·sbares 

NUmerator for basic and.dilutcd.ean1ings per' common share $ 

Denominator; 
Denominator for basic· earnings-per cOmmon share-· welghted~average 

.common shares 
.increm.ental ~irre:d'or'StoC~· options. ~d employee storil(purchnse·p1arr 

Denominator· for diluted earnings per common share·-'- adjusted 
weighted~average shares and a"Ssumed conversion 

P.er·common share.net·Income: 
BaSic $ 
Diiuted $ 

a) ln~ludes:.diVidends paid in ·the form of shares fOr deferred stock units. 

(b) \Veighted-average·conun-on sba-rcs outstanding 
Weighted-average.restricted shares and deferred-stock units (participating 

securities) 

Totil 

Pcrcentage,a"Uocated to· common shares 

Yc11r ll:Jidcd'J)ecember 31;. 

10H :WIO 2009 

171,685 $ .145,678 s 130,900 

(70.10&) !66;017) (62.391) . 
IOI;J80 79#H 68,108 

98.3% "18.3% 98;6% 

99,651 7&,307 67,549 

69;200 64j926 BISl7 
168;857 :$ 143,233 s JZ9:066 

50,289.905 49,526.580 49;196,470 

788;918 8?;i,459 880,963 

51.078,823 50,398,0~9 50.017,433 

3:36 $ 2.89 $ 2:62 
3.31 :$ 2,1:4, $ .2;58 

50,239,905 49;526,5SO 49; 196,47.0 

854,717 842,108 705.7.16 

5l,!H:622 .50.308,ji88 49.902.186 

983% 98.3% 98.6% 

Our restr-icted stock and d~ferred stock units ~ontain rights to receive nonforfeitable dividends and thus, are participating seoudties 
.requiring.the two~Class method of computing·eamings pet Share. 

At December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009, we ha<l 2,100,056 , 2,436,742 and 2,673,12l·outstanding sia<ik options, respectively. Stock 
options are included in the dHuteO. earnings per share calcUlation HSing tbe treasurcy stock method, unless the effect of including the stock 
options would be anti-dilurive. liar the year ended Decelhber31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009, 213,917 , 225,740 andc&l4,gl4 anti-dilutive stock 
options were. excluded from fue dHuted eamings per share-catcUlaiions,.respectiveJy, 

10, INGOMKTAXES 

Our effective tax rate varied from the statutory federal income tax rate due to differences between the boOk an·d tax treatmeni of \'arious 
transactions as. fo1lows: 

{ln:fhousantl$1 

Inc-ome· tax expense at 35% shltUt61)' rate 

State income ta..-xes {net of federal benefit) 
AFUDC equity 

Other- net 
Income tax pro,•ision 

61 

2.01J 

93.251 .$ 
4,766 

(5.292) 

2.023 

94,749 

20lt} 

79,776 $ 

4,208 
(3,998) 

2,268 

82.254 $ 

:W09 

72i965 
7.230 

(4.336) 

1, 7.13 

77.572 
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Component-s.of-tbe income-tax.provisi.on were as follows: 

{ln thmti'B.lldr>) 

Current income tax expense 

Deferred income-tax expense 
Benefits of operating·loss-carcyfonvard 
Change in Michigan tax- laW 

T.otal.irtcoin6iAX pr-ovision 

$ 

2011 

63,952 

33,266 

2,169 
(4,638) 

94,749 

'2()]0 2'009 

5,508 $ 2.571 
6,989 74,001 

69,757 1,000 

82,254 $ 77,572 

Deferr-ed tax assets and 1iabilities are·recogni.zcd. for the estimated future· tax effect.-of temporary differences 06tween the tax- basis of assets 
or liabilities and the{. reported- amounts in the: financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabiHties are classified.-as curr-ent or non--current 
accordin_gto the classification of-the related assets <wliabilities. Deferred tax assets and .liabilities not. related--to asset-s or liabilities.are-bJassificii­
acaordii}g. to the expeCted reversal· date· of the fempo~ary -differences. 

Deferre(l income tax assets (liablli\ics) consisted of Ute following. at December 31: 

(fn lhousands) 

P:ropertyrP-lant~and- e<ju}pment 
Federal income t.axe-s·NOLs 
Mi-c1i1gan·BUSin.ess·T.aX deductions 
ME'rCre~ulatory deferral (a) 
Aoquisitiori.a(ljustments- ADIT'defermls(a) 
Goodwill 
:ReVentte:atcfuAfS1d6fem~lk-<n¢t(lncilutling.accrued interest)(~) 

Pencion~and .poStretirement liabilities 
State inconw· tax'NOL&,{net offederal benefit) 
Shar~"'basid.ccimpensation 
Other-net 

Net deferrul.tax liabilities 

Gross deferredjncome- tax.liabilitics 
Gross deferredincmne·.tax. assets 

Net de fen-ell tax liabilities 

(a) Desoiihell in Note 5 . 

s 

ZOli-
,(303;1ig1) 

1,151 

(15;907) 
tl4,63S) 
(87,J31) 
:>-:M24 
.I.i/;971 
1Q.S82 
.11,54& 
'{-'1;'186) 

(352,632) 

·{ijg5:;940) '' 
83,308 

'(352;632) 

2010 

$ (274,66[) 

2,347 
'21;697 
(16;947) 
(1'6,454) 
(75;017:) 

9,522 
14,030 

2Q;i'52 
13,153 

[15,197·1 
$ (315,375) 

,$ (414;M6)· 

99,241 
s: (315375) 

\Ve have estimated federal income tax NOLs of $3:3' mill-iou as: of.Dec.embcr 31, 20.11 , all of which we expect to .use prior to their 
expiration. Our federal income tax·NOLswould.expire beginning in 2019. 

We-also have·estlmated state ·income tax NOLs.as of December 3.lt 2011, all of which we expect to use priorto their expiration;. Our state 
income· tax. N0Ls'would e~pire beginning jn 202?. \Ve have reCorded estimated state income tax NOL deferred tax assets ofSl 0.6 million as of 
December 31, 201 L We have additional state income tax NOLs of $2.9 million tax effected. net. of federal benefit, that hav.e, not been 
reccigni-Zetl.iu the Consolidated financial statements relating to tax deductions for shar-e-base-d compensation,. The. accounting standar-ds for 
Share-based compensation require ·that the tax deductions that exceed book value be recognized if that deduction reduces tax·es.payable ns a 
result of a realized- ca:Sh:b~mefit·from the deducti-on. 

Michigan Corporate Income Tax 

On May 25, 2011, tbe Michigan Business Tax was rep.ea1ed and replaced with the Michigan Corporate Income Tax, ·eff~tive January l, 
20-12 .. Under the en:. corporations such as ITC Holdings wiU be·taxecl at a -rate of 6.0% on federal-taxable. income apportioned to MiChigan, 
subj-ect to certain adjustments. In addition to the traditional income--tax, the. MBT had also included a mo&fied gross receipts tax which allowed 
for deductions and credits. for ce1iain activities, none of which are part of the CLT. The change in Michigan tax law required us to remove 
deferred income·taK balances recognized \mder the MBT and establish new defen·ed income tax balances under the CIT in the second quarter of 
2011. The change in Mi-chigan tax law resulted i-n a re-duction of income tax. provision of $4,6 million during 2011. AdditionaHy1 \Ve recorded 
regulatory assets for this change in tax law as described in Note 5 . 
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ll. RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ASSETS HELD lN TRUST 

Retirement Plan Benefits 

Vle have a qualified retirement plan for eligible- employeesj comprised of a traditional final average pay plan and a cash balance plan. The 
traditional final. average pay plan is11oncontdbutory, covers select employees, and provides retirement benefits based on the· employees' years 
of benefit service, ave..""il.ge ·final compensation and age at retirement. The cash balance plan is also noncontributory, covers substantiaUy au 
employees, and provides retirement benefits based on eligible compensation. and interest.credits. While we are obligated to fund the retirement 
plan hy contributing the minimum amow1t required. by the Employee Retirement lncome .. Security Act of"l974, as amended, it is our-. practice to 
contribute the maximum allowable amount as defined by section 404 of the Internal Revenue Code. We made contributions of S3.6 million , 
S6.-l mi-llion and $3.2 mitlion ·to the ret1rement plan in 20ll , 2010 and 20D9 • r'espectively, although we had no minimum funding 
requirements. We expect to contribute up "to·$7.0 minlon to the. defined benefit reiirement p1an relating1o.the 2011 plan year in 2012. 

We. have also established two supplemental nonqualified, noncontributory) retirement beneftt plans for selected management ·employees. 
The plans provide for benefits that ·supplement those provided by our other retlrement plans. The~·Obligations Wlder these supplemental 
nonqualified plans. are· included in ihe: pens~on benefLI obligation -calculations below .. The investmentS in trust for-the supplernentallionqua!ified 
retirement plam;·of·$r6.1 m1llion and ·$10."8 million at December 31~ 2011 and 2010 • respcctively1 ar.e.not includ·ed in·Ule pension. plan asset 
amom1ts presenteU below., but are included in other assets on nur consolidated statement of finatlcial position. For the yearS ended 
December 31, 201'1" , 20l0 and 200.9 , we contributed $3.1 million , $0.5 million and ·$4.0 million , respectively, to these ·st,J.pplementai 
nomjuaiified, noncontributory, retirement benefit plans. We account for the assets contributed unOer the supplemental nonqualified, 
noncontr1butory,.retircmenfbenefit plan ~d held in a trust.as trading securities ·for ce1tain investmet'its in debt. ·ahd equity securities per· the 
F.ASB guidance. Accordingly, realized .and unrealized gains or losses on the investments are recorded. as investment income or loss. \Ve 
recognlzed gains of .. $2.2· million. 1 $0.9 million and $0.7 milliori"in other income duiing 2011., 2010 and 2009 , respectively. associated with 
realiz.ed,~md. unrealized· gains and losses on~the· investments held i.il tmSf associat;ed With our-supplemental nonqmilified retirement plans. 

The p1an assets consisted of the following assets· by category: 

. As~(!f_ C:ttegory 

Fixed -income securities 
Equity securities 

Total 

Net pension c.ost for 2011 , 2010 ·.and 2009 includes the following .components: 

On thousands) 

Service cost 

Interest cost 
Expected:Ietum on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service cost 

Amortiz.ation ohmrecognlzed:Joss 

Net pension. ccst 

$ 

$ 

63 

2011 

3,585 $ 
2,458 

(!,1!96) 
(42) 

.2,607 

6,712 $ 

WI! 2010 

53.1% 47:2% 
46.9% 52.8% 

JOO;O% 100.0% 

20l0 2009 

2,868 $ 2,674 

2,222 1,691 
(1;388) (9.87) 

(42) (42) 

r,nz 2,2so 

5,382 =$===5=.58=6= 
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The following table reconciles the ob1igations1 assets and f\mded status ·of the pension plans as well as the amounts recognized as accrued 
p...onsion liilbility in tD.econso1ida.ted statement of financial position as· of December 3-l, 2011 and2010: 

.On thousands) 
Change in Benefit:Obligatiom 

Beginning: projected benefit·obligation 
.Service·coS1 
1nterest cost 
ActuariaJ:net loss 
Benefits paid 

Ending,.ptOfeeted benefit obiigation 
Change in Plans' Assets: 

EreghmJng;pJan;assets a~;faif·value 
Actual return- on -.p1 an.assets 

E~ployer.-contn'burlOris 
Benefits,j>a1d 

Ending:J}lan.issets at".f3irvalue 
Fun-dea status, underfunded 

End'mg accumrilate~benefit obligation 
Am<_)unts recorded as: 

FtfndeifS!atus: 
Accr!led p~sion liabilities 
P.ensiori.assets--.oiher assets- other 

Total 

UD.recogriized Amounts in,Otbed.tegulaton•.A:ssetSt 
Ner-actu-arial :loss 
:Piioi: Sen~ice.cr-edit 

Total 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

20il 

(45.104) 
(J,58S) 
(2,458) 
(~;861) 

\139 
{$6;069) $ 

2010 

(35,734) 
(2,868) 
(2,222) 
(4,856) 

576 
(45,104) 

24,6<17 $, '16,503 
950 2,632 

3i61 s ·6;088' 
(939) (576) 

28 2% -::r.~--:'20':4"';6'.::47::c--
(27,793) =$==(2=0=;45=7=} = 
(46;6?t) ~, '(:B;$i)O) 

(27,793) $ (23,165) 

::Uil8 
(27,793) s (20,457). 

17,487 $ 13,288 
(101) (142~ 

17,386 s 13,146 

The.unrecognized:amountdhat.othenlijse-would··hnve been charged and or credited to a-ccumulated ·other.comprehensive income· associated 
with the. guidance .for empioyersl accounting·forpensions are·recorded as a regulatory. asset on.our consolidated.statements offinanciatpositi.on 
as discussed in Note 5 . 

The amounts recorded as a regulatory asset represent a net- periodic benefit cost to ·be.recognized in- our operating income in- future periods. 

Actuarial .assum:Ptions used to detennine-the-benefi1 obligation for 20J 1 , 2010 and ~009.are.Hsted below~ 

20H 

Disco_titit:rate 4.50 ~ SJJO% 
Anm.ia1 r-ate of salary- increases· s·.oo -6.0"0% 

Aetuarial.assumptions used to determine the benefit· cost for 2011 , 2010 and.2009 are listed below: 

Discount rate 
Annual rate of salary increases 
E-xpected 1ong .. term rate. ofretum on plan assets 

64 

~Oil 

5:17 ~-5.67% 
5.00-6.00% 

7.25% 

26'10 200~ 

~~60% 6;00% 
'SJ\0% 5.00% 

zoro 2.009 

6.00% 5~95% 

5.00% 5.00% 
7.50% 7.25% 
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At December 31, 2011 , the projected benefit payments for the-defined bene"fit reti.remen.t plan calculated using the same assumptions as 
those-used to calculate the:benefit obligation described above. are-listed below: 

{In thouumds) 

2012 

2013 

20.14 
2015 
2016 

201.7 through 2021 

lnvestm.e/Zt Objectives anil Fail' Value Measurement 

$ 1,402 

1,693 
5,132 
3,250 
3,05(] 

17,:>93 

The· general invesiment objectives of the qualified retirement .benefit plan .includes maximizing the return -;,iitbin rea..<::onab1e and prudent 
levels:ofrlsk and controlling administrative and management costs. The targeted asset atlocation is weighted equally between·eqy.ity-anci ftxed 
inCOme investments. ll'!.vestmetlt decisions are-made-by our-retirement.bencftts·boa:rd.as. rleleeated by om board of iiirectors. Eguity investments 
lllf!.Y jnclude ·various iypes of U~S. and international equi~y securities, suoh as -large-cap. mid~cap and small-cap stocks. Fixed- jncome 
investm~nts may· inCluCl.e casb and short'"term instruments • .U.S. Govenunent securities, corporate. bonds. mortgages and other fixed inc-ome 
investmerits~.No inve-stments:are·prohibi.ted for use. in the retiremenq:llan,. including·derivativesj hut.our ex.posure· to ded,vativeR·currenHy-is not 
mate_tiaL We intend .that the long~tenn:. capital. growth. of. the: retirement plan, .. together with employer· contribution·s,. will provide- for·the. p~yment 
of the-benefit obligations. 

We·det.crmine our expected.long•term rate of return on p-lan ·assets based on· the current target:.a1locations ,of the retirement plan ilivestmcm:ts 
arid consjdering,historical retums on comparable fixed income investments anO. .. e,,guity,investm~nts. 

The measuremenl. of..fuir value is based on. a. tbree~tier hierarchy, which priotitizes the- input<; used in measuring :fair" value. Th~e tierS 
inClude:: LeVel 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active.··matkets;. Level 21 defined as inputs other than quoted priCes in 
active m"arkets that are eifhenlirectly or indirectly observable;· .and Level 2, de"fined as unobservable inputs in which ~ittle-or no market data 
exists·~ therefore requiring an entity to develop its own· assumptions·. 

The fair value measurement- ofthe r.etirement·plan as of December 3l, 2011 , was as follows~ 

(ln. tbom:nnd~) 

Financial assets· measured -on. a recurring·basis: 
Pooled separate aceounts- U.S, equity secmities 
Pooled,separate·acc()Ul1ts~-in1emattomil equity securities 

Pooled separate accounts- fixed income s-ecurities 
Guaranteed.dGpoSftfund 

Total $ 

Fnir Value M~sur.(lmentt.at.RI!pm'ting }).atf.<. Uiling 

Quotcd"hiees- in Sigiilfic:ant Significant 

Active M11rkets"£or 

ldc:ntic:al Anc.ts 

(Levell) 

$ 

Other Observable 

Jneun · 

(LeveJ2) 

11,000 

2,270 

13,4S3 
t;62ii 

28,276 

$ 

s 

Unobservable 

lnp11ts 

The fair valuemeasurementoffueretirement plan as or"December 31,.2010 ., was as foUows~ 

(In tlJouund.s) 

Financial assets measured on -a recurring basis; 
Pooled separate accounts -U.S. equity securities 
Pooled separate accounts·- intemationa.l equity securities 
Pooled separate accounts-- fixed ,income securities 
Guaranteed ·deposit .fund 

Total $ 

J.'.air Value Measurements-at Reportiug·Da.te UdnJ: 

Q.uoted Prices-in Signfficant SJgnHic:ttnt 

Active' Markets· for Other·Qbservablt. · U»ohserva b1e 

ldenilc:al Ass~ts 

(l,evd l) 

$ 

s 

Inputs 

(Levd2) 

10.502 

2,506 

9.999 

1;640 

24,647 

(l;evd 3) 

s 

$ 
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Other·Postretirement.Jlenefits 

We-provide certain;postretirementhealth care, dental, and1ife·insurance benefits for employees' who may become eligible fot these benefits. 
We, COBtributed $3.4 million, $3.1 million and $2.5 million to the pos!Tetirement benefit Jllan in 2011 , 2010 and 2009, respeetively. We 
expect .to contribute up· to $4.0 million to the plan in-2012. 

The plan assets con.sisted.ofthefoUowing assets by category; 

,A-sset Cs.twory 

Fixed income Secuiities. 
Equity securities 

T<>tal 

2011 

56.4% 
43.6% 

1'00.0% 

53.2% 

OUr measurement of tbe accuinulated postretirement benefit obljgation as of December·31, 2011 and 2010 does: not reflect. the potentia"! 
rece~pt Of: any subsidies under the Medicare Prescription Dn).g, ImprOvement and.Mo"demization.Act of20.03. 

Net postretirement cost for' 201:(,, 2010 and 2009 iilcludes·thefoltowing components: 

(l.Jt tbo11s1<Jt.ds) 

Service-cost 
Interest cost 
Expected tetum on plan-assets 

Arno~ization ?f:P~~or senijce cost 
Amortization of.uruecognized.loss 

2()11 

3,431 '$ 

.1,285 
{737) 
3B 

. 220 

2010 

2,809 
984 

{469) 

313 

N~:postretirement:cost $ 3,637 
4,512 =·==::::::= 

2009 

$ li841 
921 

(228) 

314 

166 
$ 3,014 

The .following table 1·econciles tl1e Obligations., assets .arid funded status' o{ tbe plans as well as the amounts re:cbgniied as accrued 
postretirement liability in··.the,consolldated statementoffinancia:l position as of December 31,. 201 i -and 2010 : 

(ln.thounrtd~) 

Change.in.B.enefit·Ohi!gatiom. 
Beginning accumulated postretirement·obiigation 

service c.ost 
Interest cost 
Acti.lariti.1.:nef1qss 
Benefits paid 

Eni;lf1m·acctl!Illliate4. postretirement· 6bHgati'on. 
Change in Plan 1S. AssetS: 

Beginning plan llSsets alTair value 
Actual retum on plan .£1Ssets 

Emp l qyer- contributions 
Employer provided· retiree. premiums 
Benefit< paid 

Ertding,p1N:t ·assets at faiT--value 
Funde"d ·status. underfunded 

Amounts recorded as: 
Funded Status: 

Accrued postretirement liabilities 
Total 

Unrecognized Amounts in Other Regulatory Assets: 

Net-actuariallos.s 
Pr.ior service.credit 

Total 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

wn 

(22,409) 
(3,43-l) 
(1,285) 
(3;925} 

371 
.(30;679) 

9,763 
364 

3,422 

311 
(67.1) 

13,549 

(17.130) 
(17.130) 

7,200 

125 
7,325 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

•• 
$ 

$ 

$ 

(17,757) 
(2,809) 

(984) 
(1,189) 

330 
(22,409.) 

5';830 

850 
3\0!1.3 

330 
(330) 

9,763 
(12646) 

(]2,646) 

(12.M6) 

3.121 
438 

3.559 

The unrecognized amount...:; that otherwise would have been charged and or credited to accumulated othet comprehensive income associated 
.-.lith the guidance for employers~ accouming for pensions are recorded as a regtiHrtOl)' asset on our consolidated 
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statements of fmancial position. The amounts recorded as a regulatory asset represent a net. periodic benefit cost to be reco,&..mized in our 
operating income in future-periods. 

Actuarial assumptions tJsed to detennlne the- beneflt obligation for 2011 , 2010 and 2009 are as follows: 

Discount rate 
Annual rate of salal'y increases 
Health care cost.trend rate--assumed tbr .next year 
Rate to which the cosrtrend rate-is assumed to decline 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate·trend rate 
Annual rate.oflncrease in dental benefit costs 

2011 

5.DO% 
5.00% 
9.00% 
5.00% 
2017 

5:00% 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the benefit cost for 2011 > 2010 and 2009 ar:e·as follows: 

2011 

Discount rate: 
Annual rate of salary increases 
Health '-9are:coSHr-entl. -rate. assumed for ne-):t year 
Rate to Which- tho cost trend rate· is-assumed· to decline 
Y ear .. that tht:·Tate:reach-es:the ultimate trend rat~ 

.SA9% 
5.00% 
.9;00% 
5.00% 
.2017 

2010 2009 

5·.60% 6;00% 
5.00% 5.00% 
9:00% 9;00% 
5.00% 5.00% 
2016 2015 

5.00% 5.00% 

2010 200!/ 

·0:0.0% 5.i95.% 
5.00% 5.00% 
9:00% 10~00% 

5'.00% 5',00% 
'lots 201'5 

At December 31, 2011., the projected benefit. payments for 1l1e postretirement- benefi-t plan calculated using the. same assumptions as those 
used fo calculate.th~ benefit .obligations listed above are listed below: 

(Udbousands) 

2012 $ 285 
2013 411 
2014 590 
20!5 751 
20Hi 926 
2011 tbrough 2021 10,465 

Assumed health care cost trend. rates·have ·a -significant effect on tbe amounts reported for the. health care plans. A one-percentage·point 
increase- or decrease in -assumed health care cost "trend rates \Vould have the. following· effects on costs for 2011 and the postretirement benefit 
obligation -at December 31,2011 : 

On th.:nH:ands) 

Eft€c1-on total of service and interest·cost 
Effect· on-pa:stretirement benefit obligation 

InvestmetttObja.ctives and Fair J!alue Mfio.suremenf 

$ 

One·l'cn:entage~ 

Polntlncrease 

920 

3,790 

OmA'er<:entage~ 

Pol"t nccrease 

$ (734) 
(3,067) 

The general .investment objectives of the qualified other poslretirement beaeftt plans include maximizing ·the retun) wi1hin reasonable and 
-pru-dent levels of risk -and controlling administrativ.e ·and management costs. The targeted asset allocation is weighted equally between equity 
and.fixed in-come investments. Investment decisions are-made- by·our retirement benefits board. as delegated by our board.of·directors. Equity 
"investments may include various tYPes of U.S. and international equity securities, such as Jarge~cap,_ rriirl~cap and sma:il·cap stocks. Fixed 
inoome investments may inCl-ude cas1t and short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate- bonds, mortgages and -other fixed 
income investments. No investment& are- prohibited for usc in the other postretirement ·plan, illcluding derivatives, but our exposure to 
derivatives currently is not materiaL We intend that the long-tenn capital growtl1 of the other po.!.trctiremem plans) together with employer 
contributions, will provide for the payment of the benefit obligations. 

We determine our expected long~term rate of return on plan as..<>ets based. on the current target allocations ofthe·retirement plan inve.-'rtments 
and considering historical returns on comparable fixed income: investments and equity investments. 

The measurement of fair value is based on a three·tier hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in mea!>"Uring fair value. These_ tier~ 
include: Level 1, defined as obscr-vabJc inputs such as quoted pf~ces in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other 
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.han quoted prices in active mal'kcts that are .either directly or indirectly observable; and Lev.el 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little 
or no market data exists,. therefore requiring an ent1ty to develqp its own assumptions. 

'fhe fair .value measurement, of the other })OStretirement benefit plans as of Decemb-er.3l, 2011 , was as follows: 

(In Uiousarid$) 

.Financial assets measured .on. a recurring basiS~ 
Cash ru1d cash eqUivalents 

"POoled·s-eparate accounts __,.·lJ.S. et}uit}' se.curities 
Pooled separate accounts- international equity securities 
J~oo)ed Separate accounts--- fixed..irtcome-securitie~ 
Mutual funds --equi-ty· securities-
Muturil funds -:'fixetf'income·securities 
Guaranteed deposit funil 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Quoted:Pr!cc-s in Significant Signlficunt 

AtHve MBrkcts".for Other Oiu:~rvable Unobsen•ablt-
Identlc:d Asren 

{Level: I) 

14 $ 

-
4,895 

4;768 

'9:617- cc$ 

Inputs 

(lAwel Z) 

'851) 
151 
'9lli 

1,947 

fnputs 

(Levd3} 

$ 

The· fe:iirvalue measurement Of the other postretirement benefit plans as. of December 3_ 1~.20 10 ~ was .as. follows: 

(hi: thOusands) 

Financiiil assets measured on· a.TecurrinR basis: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Pooled separate--accounts- U.S. equity--securities 

.Pooled separate:accounts .__international equity securiti-es 

.Pooled separate-.accounts-ifixed income· securities 

l\1ntual funds -equity securiHes 

-Mittual funds -·tixed-·incorne:secuiities 
Guaranteed depositfnnd 

Total 

Defined Coutr.ibutimi Plan 

$ 

F air·Yalue ·Measurements:at-Reporiiug Date· Us tng. 

Quoted.~rieesJn Stgnlfiennt SWiilkant 
Aeth·e Mt~rkets ·for 

ldentfcat-Anefs 

(Level·l) 

27 $ 

3;5!5 
3;3;50 

$ 

'OtherOb~erv.ahle 

Ineuts 
.(Level'2) 

859 
188 
813 

1,011 

~c871 

$ 

$ 

Unobsctvable 

ln nts-

{Level3) 

We also sponsor a defined contribution retirement savings plan. Parficipati·on.·in this plan is- available to substantially a1J. employees. We 
match employee contributions up to. certain predefmed limits based upon eligil::He. compensation and the employee's -contribution. rate. The cost 
of this plan was S3.4 million, $2.7 mrllionand $2;6 million in 201 I , 2010 and 2009, respectively, 

12. FAIR'VALUEMEASUREMENTS 

The nmasurement of fair value is· based on a three-tier hierarchy. which pr-iorhi?.es ·the inp11ts used in measuring fair value. These tiers 
include:- Level 11 defmed as observable input-s such as quoted prices in active. markets;· Level 2, defined as inp-uts other than quoted prices in 
active markets lhat are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no matket data 
exists, therefore requiring· an entity to develop its own assumptions. 

Our.assets and liabilities measured nt fair value subject to the three~1ier hierarchy at December 31) 2011 , were as follows: 

(In tl1ousands) 

t:(in.ancJal assets measured on a recurring basis: 
Cash and cash equivalents- cash equivalents 
Mutual funds- fixed income securities 

Fair Valu!!- MMsurcmen.ts Itt-Reporting 1):~-te Usiug 
Qullled.Pricc!> In Significant Sit!ttlficaut 

Active Marken: far Other Obscrvabk Unobsarvable 
Jdenlica1 Aucu lnpun: lnputi 

(Levell) {Levd2) {Level-3) 

15,004 

1S,551 
34.246 $ 
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Mutual fonDs -·equity securities 
Financial liabilities measured on a recurriri_g-basis: 

Interest rate sv.iap··derivati.ves 

Total 

1.107 

31:662 

(24,258) 

$ 9,988 

Our assets measured at fair va1ue stibject to the threc~tier hierarchy.at December 31, 2'01 0, \Vere as- follows: 

On thousand's) 

Financial asset& meaSured on arecurrl1lg: basis: 

Cash and cash equivalents~ cash. eq~ivalents 
·Mutual funds ~:flxed,income-securltles 

Mtrtuat funds- equity securities 
1i1terest rate sw~p~delivative. 

Total 

Fair Value Measur~;~ment.~ tlt Reporting Date.Usin_g 

QootedJJi-ice~ In Signlficant Signi-Ocam 
AetJve Mark!!ts for Otb.er Ob$ervable Unobservable 

ldc-ntlcat-Assets 

{LeVe.l1)' 

10 
10;479 

896 

11,365 

$ 

$ 

lnputs J11pnts 

(Level'2) (Level3) 

. 84,7.26 $ 

87,825 $ 

As·ofDecembcr 31, 2011 and 2010', we held certain assets ami'Habilitie..~'thllt are· required:-to be rneasurcd-at:fair-value on a reeurrirtg basis. 
'Fhe- assets included in the table consi-st of inveslments recorded -within cash and cash equiVale-nts and other lon-g--t;erm assets, including 
investments-herd, in a .trust.associated with -our-supplemental nonqpa1ified,-nonc0ntributory,.retirernent benefft. plans fOr· selected managemmlt 
employ~ -that ate cla<;Sified as trading securities. The-:liabiHties and assets r-ilated to derivatives .consist-of interest -rate' sWaps- discuss-eO: in 
Note 8 . Our investments included·· in cash equivalents conslst of moJ1ey ·.market mutual funds arid cotnmon.and·collecthre trusts thai. -ire 
administered similar -to money market funds reco-rded -at cost.·plus- accrued interest- to al'proxiinate fair value. Our·nultual fund jnvesfments 
con:si-st ·primarily Of publicly traded mutual 'funds for which market prices are readily· available. Changes in the observed ·trading-pri.ce.-.:;:·.and 
liq"uldity- ofmonc)•.market. funds_,are·monitored a":additional support for determining fair value, and-losses are-recorded in earning's if fair value 
falls below recm'ded.~s:L Tho fair value of our interest rate swap derivat-ives as of becember 31l 201-i and 2010 Is dctennined ·based on a 
discounted caSh fiOW·method using Li:BOR forward~interest swap rates whiCh- are observable at commonly quoted intervil.ls • 

. we also held.non."-financial assets that are.;rf'.{Jtiired to be measured at: fair value· on a non~r.ecurilng basis. These consisl of.goodwiB and 
ltartgible -a.-;sets. We did not record any lmpainnen't charges on long-Jived assets und· no other sfgnfficatit events occurred ·requiring non­

ffnancial assets and liabilities to be measured al fair value (subsequent to initial recognition) during·the yearS ended December:31, 2011 and 
2010. 

Fair Value o"fFinancialAssets·andJ.~iabHities 

Fixed·Rate~Long-1'erm Dibt 

Based on the borrowing .rates currentiy-available·.:for bank loatlS'\Vith siniilar tenns and average maturities, the fii~ value: of our. consolidated 
long.-tenn debt, excluding revolving credit agreements, was $2,-862.6 million and $2~747.2 million :at Decembet31_, 2011 and 2010 , 
r.e&pectively. TJrc total -bo-ok value· of onr consolidated long-.tenn· debt, exCluding revolVing credir agreementS~ was· .5"2-.444.0 million and 
$2,443.5 millionst December 31,2011 nud 2010, respectively. 

Revolviug·Credit.Agreements 

At December 3'1, 2011 --and.2010, we had a consolidated total Of $201A milliOn and.-$53.4 miliion·, respective!~/, outstanding under our 
revolving credit ·agreements, which are-:variablc-rate'loans. The.fair value of these·.Ioan·s·-approximaies book value. 

Trade Accounts Receivables and:P.ayahles 

As- of December 31, 20fl , ouraccounts receivable and. accounts p~yable balances approximate fa'ir valuy rlUe·to-1heir Sho1t term nature. 

13, S:foCKHOLDERS' EQillTX 

Common Stock 

General·-- lTC Holdings" autltorized capital stock consists of: 
• 100 million_share..;ofcommon stock, without par value; and 
• 10 million shares of preferred stock. without par· value. 

As: o~ December 31,2011 , there were 51,323,3'68 shares of our common sto.ok outt.ianding, no shares of preferred stock outstanding and 
575- h-olders ofrecori:1 of our common. stock. 

Voting Rights -··Each holder of lTC H6ldings• common Slock, including holders-of our common stock subject to restricted stock_awards, is 
'titled to cast one vote for each share held of record on aU matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. including the election of Oirectors. 
elders ofiTC HOldings' common stock have no cumulative voting rights. 
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Di-vidends·- Holders.of our common stock, including holders of common stock subject to restricted stock nwards,.are entilled to receive 
dividends or other distributions declared by the "board ofdirector.s. The. right .of the board of directors to declare dividends is subject. to the right 
}f any hcsiders Of lTC Hciidings' preferred stocK. to ·the extent that an_y preferred stock i-s authorized: and issued, .and the availability under the 
Michigan . .Business Corporation Act of sufficient_funds:to pay d-ividends. We have notis.:med -any Shares· of preferred stock, The declaration and 
payment of dividends.is subject'to1he·discretion oflTC.Holdings' board of dire-ctors-and depends. .on various factors, including our net "income. 
financial:condifion, cash·requirernents,.fUture·:prospects and other-factors deemed-r.elevant by ITO Holdings' board of directors. 

As- a holding conwany with no business operations, fTC Holdings' assets consist primalily of the stock and membership interests in its 
subsidiaries, .deferred tax -assets and cash on hnnd, ITC Holdings·• on-ly sources of·cash to pay dividends to our ::;tockholders are· dividends and 
other· payments received by-us from our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and any other suPsidiaries we may'have and the proceeds raised 
from tb,y sale of our debt.and equity securities.· EaCh of our RegUlated Operating,Subsldiaries; however, is Jegally·distinct from lTC HOldings 
and h-Jls.no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to· make fUnds 'available to us for the paymem of diviaends to ITC Holdings' stockholders or 
otherwise. The ability of each of our Regulated -operating Subsidiaries and ·any other subsidiaries we may have to pay dividends and make 
other-payments to ITC Holdi~gs is subject. to, among other -thing~, the avai1a.bilit:y Of funds, after·taking into account capital expenditure 
requirements* -the terms ofits-:]ndebtedness, applicable state Jaws and re~u1ations of the PERC and" the FPA. 

Each of the ITO Holdings Revolving Credit Agreement,. the ITCT:i'ansmission ·Revolving. Credit AW"eement.- the METC RevoJving Credit 
Agre·enient; the ITG MiOwest RevolVing Credit .Agreements, the ITC Great IHains Revolving Credit Agreement and the note purchase 
agreements governing -n'c Holdings' Senior Note-s imposes-re.strictlons on JTC ·Holdings and its subsidiaries' re-spective abilities to pay 
dividends if an eveut of-defaulfhas·ocourr-ed un-aer- the relevant agreement, and thus. ITC Holdings' .ability iO pay t:liVidends on its common 
stock will.depend upon,.among other things,~our: level. of "indebtedness_ at the time Of1l1e proposed dividend .2nd. \Vhether we are ht c6mpliai\ce 
witlt·thB-:covena:nts·under--our-revolving--eredir facilifies.anCi:our oiher.-debt-.instnnnents. ITC Holdl"ngs'·future "divideild policy wiil also depend 
on the. requirements of any .future financing.a-greements·tO which-we may be- a party and other·factor-s considered.rdlwant by lTC Holdings' 
board ofdir.ectors. 

Pursuant to SEC requirements, Schedule I is ·required because of restrictiOns whlch Hmit ihe paym-ent of. dividend~ to ITC Holdings by its 
subsidiaries. ITCTransmi-ssion) METC, IfJ'C·Midwest and..I'J'C""Crreat"Plains are resfiicted by·tbeirrevdlVin-g~credit.agreements in their ability to 
pay dividends to ITC Holdings-. In the- event- of·default on our· reVolving.- credit agreements ot·non\"'c0-n)p1hmce with the covenants under· -our 
revoiving·credit·agreementst we. may nor be: able to Oisburse-Oividends.- ITCTransmission~.METC.·ITC Midwest and ITC Great Pla.ins·were in 
compHa~1ce: with:the covenants under·their revolving: credit agreements-during-2011 . 

Liquidation Rights- Ifl:fC Holdings-is dissolved, the holders of our·-eommon sto-ck will share ratably in the distriQution of all assets that 
Temain after·we-p~y-all of our'liabilities and satisfy our ob1igations to tlle'-ho1ders ofany-ofiTC Holdings1 preferr-ed. stOck, w the ex:trJlt tbat.·any 

referred stock is authorized amr iSsued, 

Preemptive a1td Other Rigl1ts.- Holders of our comman,stock bave. no ·preemptive rigllts- to putc1Jase ot·subscribc for any of our stoCk or 
other securities of. out company and there; are no cm1VCrsion rights-or redeJ.nptioti 0r sinking fun·d ProViSions with Te$pe:ctto ciur·common swck. 

Repurchases~- Jn,20ll , 2010 and 2009 , we repurchased ·89;715 , 1,057 a!id 700 shares of oommon stock for an aggregotecof$6.4 million , 
$0.lmiHion an& less than $0.1 miliion ~respectively, which represented sbates of common.sto·ck delivered to us by employees as payment of 
tSx witlrhOldings due to us upon. the vesting· of restricted stoCk. 

ITC HOidlngs Sales Age·ncy Financing Agreement 

On July 27, 2011, lTC Boldi.ngs. entered into a Sales Agency Financing Agreement {the "SAFA".). Under the terms of the S,AFA, ITC 
Holdings maycissue and sell shares -ef common stoc~: without par-:value, frmri time·to time. up. to an.aggr~gate sales-proceeds amount of_$250.0 
million . The 'SAP A.-terminates -in July 2014} althOugh the :agreement-s relating to··tlte Etitergy Transaction generally prohibit." us -ftom issuing 
shares l.m<ferthe SAFA until.~pproximatefy.two-years after the- closing except.uilder certain limited cir-c:urnstances, 1"'he shares-of common stock 
may be offer-ed in one or more{SeHing periods. Any-shares of common stock sold -under the SAFA. will be offered at. market prices prevailing at 
the time·of srile. Moreover, ITC lloldings will specifY'to 1he sales agent (i)"the aggregate seHing price of-the-shares oi:.common stock to be sold 
during- each ·selling period1 and (li}the minimum price below which sales may not be made.,ITC Holdings Will p~y a commission equal to a 
mutually agreed upon rate with its agent, not to exceed· 2% of the sa1es price of aU-shares of common stock. sold through Hs age11t under "the 
SAFAt plus expeuses. The- shares we would issue under the SAFA have beet1 registered untler 1TC Holdirigs~ shelf registration statement on 
Form S-3 (File No. 333-163716) flied on December 14, 2009 with the SEC. The prior JTc-Holtlings Sales Agency Financing Agreement 
expired on June 27, 2011. No-shares have· been issued under either of these agreements. 

14. S.IL'<RE-BASED COMPENSATION 

Our LTIP, which was adopted in 2006 m1d most recently amended and restated in 2011, penn its the compensation committee to make 
grants of a variety of share~ based av.'ards (such as options, restricted shares and deferred stock units) for a cumulative amount of up to 
4;950,000 shares- to employees, directors and consultants. The LTIP provjdes that no more than 3,25-0~000 of the shares may be granted as 
awards to be settled in shares of common stock other tban .options or stock appreciation right.-;. No awards \V:Ould be pennitted after February 7, 
2016. Prior to the adoption of-the I,t!P, we ma-de various share;..based awards un·der the 2003 Plan, including options and it~stricte<l stocl;. In 
addition1 out board of dir-ectors and-shareholders approved the ESPP, which we implemented effective April 1. 200"7. The ESPP allows for the 

mance of an :aggregate of 180,000 sJ1ares of our common stock. Pwi.icipation iU this plan is available to substantially all employees. ITC 
Jldings issues·new shares to- sati-sfy option cxercises,.restricted ~tock grantsl employee ESPP purchases and settlement of defened·stock units. 
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As of December 31, 2011 ., 2,992,891 shares were available for future issuance under our 2003 Plan, ESPP .and LTIP, including 2;100,056 
shares issuab-le upon-the exerdse of outstanding stock options, of which 1,5771925 were vested. 

Werecordedshare·based compensation ·in 2011 , 2010 and 2009 as follows: 

(ln thou~antlS) 

Operation ana ·1mllntenance. ex,penses 
General and- administratiVe expenSes 
Amounts cap1ti1h:ed to pr-operty~,plant-and equipment 

Total·:share-based compensation 

Total.tax benefit' recognized in fhe consolidated- statemen(of operations 

$ 

$ 

$ 

20J1 

2;540 
7,524 
5,321 

!5,;391 

3;9.76 

2010 2009-

$ 2,098 $ 1,581 
8,074 4,999 
4,102 3,426 

$ 14,874 $ !0.006 

.'$ 4,028 s 2;611 

Tax deductions that exceed the cumulati-ve compensation cost recognized for optiOns exeroisen, restricted shares that vested or· deferred 
stock units that are·sertled-are reeogtiizetl as. common stocl:: only if the tax-deductiOns reduce tru~:es· payable as a result of a·realized cash benefit 
from the deduction. For the years· ended Deceniber 31~ 2011 , 2010 and 20"09 ~we recognized the tax-effects or-the excesS: tax. dedUctiOn's as an 
increase in common stock of$28.1 million, $0-.3 million and $0.1 million rrespectively, as the deductions. have resulted in a reduction· of taxes 
payable. 

Options 

Our option gran:ts vest ·tn equal annual installments over a:furee-- or five -year·perio'd from the date of gr-ant, or as a resUlt:of -othet events 
such.as deatb or di:sabiHty oftheQpti.on holder. 'The options have--a term of. ro years from the grantdate. 

Stock option activity for 2011 was as follows: 

OutstB.nding·~tJanuary 1;-20.1:1- Od?-&A5-1. ex-ercisable witli·a weighted avera:ge~exer-Cise price: Of 
$21.21) . . 

Granted 
EXercised· 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at -December 31, 20 i 1 ( 1 /J17 ;9.25 .exerCisable-with a weighted average exercise pti:ce 
of$2Ml9) 

Nurriberof 

Option~ 

2,436;742 

212;818 
(543,n.'}) 

(5,729) 

2;1{)0;056 

Welgbted 

Avenge 

Exercise Pdce 

$ 27JJ6 
72:15 
32A.! 
48.10 

s 31.45 

Grant- date fair value of the stoek.options awards granted .during. 2011~ 2010 and 2009 was· detennined using a·.mack-Schoies:optlou pricing 
modeL The-:followirig assumptions were used in d~tennining- the- weighted-average fair value per option: 

2011 2010 2009 
0Etlon Grants- 0Etlon Gr&nts 0Etion Grants 

Welghted~average;g_rantOate~falrwalue-·per optiOn $ 18.77 .$ '16.01 $ Ll.93 
Weighted-averagecxpectedvolatility.(a) 29.8% 37.4% 37.5% 
W eighte~.,.average·rlsk .,f]"ee·1nterestTate 2J% 2.5% 2:lf% 
Weighted·average expected term {b) 6 years. 6 years 6 years 
Welght-e'il;,averqge e-xpected -dividend -yield ~1.86% 2.44% 2.95% 
Estimated fair value Of underlying- shares $ 72.15 $ 52.4? $ 41.37 

(a) \V e estimated vOlatility using the histoiical·volatility of our· stoCk. 
(b) The expected term represents the perlod oftime that options granted are expected to be outstanding. We have utilized· the simplified. 

metbod permitted under share-based award accounting standards in detennining the. expected term for -all option grants as we do ·not 
have sufficient historicrll.exercise data to p-rovide a.reasonab1e basis upon which to estimate expected- term due to the limited period of 
time our~equity shares hav.e been_ pub1icly traded. 

At December11. 2011 , the aggregate intrinsic value and the wdghted-Rverage remaining contractual tenn for all outstanding options were 
approximately $93.3 million and 4.7 years, respectively. At December 31, 2011 , the aggregate intrinsic value and -the weighted-:-ave-rage 
remaining contractual term for exercisab1e options were $83.6 million and 3.5 years, respectively~ The aggregate. intrinsic value. of options 
exercised during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 were $20.5 million , S19.3 million and $7.5 million • respectively. At December 31, 2011 , thermal 
unrecognized compensation ·cost related to the unvested options awards was $5.1 miJ!ion and the weighied·average period. over which it is 
expected to be recognized was 1.9 years. 

We estimate that 2,088,211 of the options outstanding at December 31~ 20l1 will ve-st, including those aiready vested. Tne weighted~ 
.v'erage exercise price, aggregate intrinsic value and the vreighted~avcrage remaining contractual tenn for- options shf!.re-s that are vested and 

expected to vest as ofDecember 31. 20rl was $31.33 per share, $93.0 million and 4.6 years, respectively. ExhJb\\ CS.H1a 



Restricted StoCk-Awards 

Ho)ders of restricted sto·ck awards have all the -righl'i of a holder of common stock of ITC Holdings, ·includiq.g dividend and· votiiJg rights·. 
The holder becomes vestee as a result of certain events sltch as death or disability of ihe holder, bllt. not later than the -v~ting date of the 
awards. The-we~ghted-avemge·.-expe<:ted remaining vesting period at December Sl~-201-1 is 1.4 years. H-Olders Ofrestricted·sha:res may not sell, 
-transfer, or Pledge· their re-stricted shares until the shares vest and the restrictions lapse. Restricted stock.awardS.nre recorded at fair value at the 
date ofgran:t, which is based on the closing share- price on·ihe grant date. Awards that were granted "for future services are accounted fcir as 
uneamed compensation~ with amounts amortized. over the vesting-period. 

Restriqted stock awax:d activity for 201:1 was as follows: 

Unvesteil restricted stockawatds at January 1,.2011 
Granted 

VesteU 
Fotfu:ltcd 

Un:vested,estrictcif stocka\wr~at Decembcf31, 2011 

Nlll1lber.:-of 
-Rertrleteil 

Stock 

Awards 

88;5,~40 $ 
l423J99 

(290.346) 
(!8,U12) 

719j98! $ 

Weighted­

Average 

Grant-Date 

Fair- Value 

46.12 
71,27 

4L93 
48.5:i 
'53)06 

The \Veighted;average grant dal¢ fair value of restricted stock awarded during 2010 and 2009 was $53.28 and $4L81 per share, 
respeatively, The. aggregate f.qir value·of restricted stock ·awards as of"Deeember, 31, .2011 was $54.6 million . The aggregate fair··-,.-altre of 
restricted stock awards that vested during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 was $20.7 million , $0.6 million and $0.3 million , respeetive)y. At 
December3l~ 201..1 ,.·the total unrecognized compensa1ion cost related to ihe·-restricted stook awards was $17.1 million and··the weighted­
average pe.no·d over 'Vhich:that cost is expecte-<I to "be.recogl)ized was 2.2 years, 

As of:O'ece~nbet 31, 201"1 ~ -we. estimate that 6.52;507 shares. of the restr1Cted -shares outstanding. -at Decemher·3'1, 20 tl wili vest. The 
wCigbted~averij:ge fair value. aggr¢gate intrinsic valne and the weighted av-erage remaining contractual term for restricted shares ·that are 
expected tovestis $52.65 per shnre ,.$495rnillion and 1.4 years, respectively. · 

Eniployee Sto~k'P.m:chasc :Pla.n. 

The ESPP is a Colllpensatory plan accounted for under the expense recognition-provisions of the .share-based payment accoUntiug standards. 
Compensati'<m expense-iS recorded based on tbe fair market value nfthe purchase options at tbe g;rant date, vihich corresponds 10 the- first= aay 
of each -pwcl1ase p.eriod and is.amortized.over the·purcbase period. During. 2011 • 2010 and 2009 .. , employees -purchased 23,027 ~ 24

1
-840 and 

2-8,68:1 ·.shares, respectively. resulHng "in procee-ds from the safe of oar common stock of St:3 million ~ $Ll million and $1.1 rriiUion , 
r.espedlvely, uridedhe ESPP. The total share-based compensation.amortiZation.forthe ESPP was-·$0.3· million for each·year ended 20n. 2010 
and2009·, 

Deferred. Stock Unit-s 

Our deferred stock units. ·are paid jn share-s of common stock on each. of the fOllowing three annivetsaties of the grant date, in equnJ 
instalJments. The deferred stock units-do not contain any· vesting provisions; ihat is. our common·~stock-wilt.'he issu.ed·at the anniversary dates 
ofthe·gr-ant dates irrespective:Of employment status. The. deferred stock units do not pr-ovide .for any votirt_g rights tm:tif the deferred stock unitS 
.are delivereO as shares of our commo.n stock, The defer~d stock utiits have dividend equivalent rights_. providing the holder with ihe tight to 
any dividends declared on our common stock subs~1uertt to the grant date,·suCh that the,holders·receiv6-:add1HomU:OefCrred stock units. \Vith a 
fair market value equa1 to the cash dividends they ·would have received on the· Shares underlying the deferred ·stockuriits 1hf?Y bold as if such 
underlying shares of common :StoCk ba:a been-outstanding on theTecord date for" the dividend. The add-itional d-ividend equiValent units-granted 
will be-settled in shares of our-common stock at the same time a~nbe d.efen-ed stock units,on which-lhe dividend equivalents are received. The 
deferred stock units are-not tran-sferable·by. the: holder.s, but the shares. issued upon eacb.settlement date will be-immediately transferable. 

Deferred stoc1cunihactivit.y-f:Or 2011 was as-follows: 

Deferred stock units at January 1. 2011 
Granted 
Vested 

Deferred stock .unirs at December 31, 2011 

Numbei o-c 
lleferrcd 

Stock 

Untu 

5,489 

(5.489) 

WCighte"d· 

Avenge 

Grant-Date 
Ft~irValuc 

$ 55.21 

55.21 

$ 

Tbe weighted-average grant date fair value of deferred stock units awarded duril'!g 20l0 and 2009 was $57.60 and $43.54 per share, 
respectively. As of December 31, 2011 , there were no deferred stock units outstanding. The aggregate fair value ~h\Df~{l£pck units that 



vested as of December 3.1, 201 I and 2010 was $0.4 million and.$0.3·miJlion, respectively. As of December 31, 20U , there is no unrecogni?.,cd 
compensation costs related· to the deferred stock units. 

15. JOINTLY OWNED UTUJITY PLANT/COORDINATED SERVICES 

Our :MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries have agreements with other u1ilitjes for the joint ow11ership of substation a.~ets and 
transmission lines. We account for these jointly owned assets by recording property; plant and. equipl'nent for our percentage of ownersllip 
interest, Various agreements provide the authority for construction of capital improvements and for the operating costs associated with the 
substations and-· lines. Generally, each patty is responsible for the capital, operation and maintenance, .and other costs of these jointly owned 
faCilities based upon each participant's undivided ownership intereSt. Our 1\.fiSO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, participating share of 
expenses associated with tbe.se jointly held assets are pri.mnrHY recorded within operating and maintenance expense on our consolidate-d 
statement. of oper-ations. 

We have investments in jointly-owned utili~yassets a." shown in the table·below·as of December 31,2011 : 

Net Construction 

(in thousands) In\lestments fa} Work-in Progress 

Substations $ 19;191 & 1;395 

Lines 83,771 

Tota1 $ 'lll2;962 ·S 1.3<)5 

(a) Amount rep-resents.Qur inve-stment injriintly held plant, which has been reduced' by the ownership interest amounts of other parties. 

ITOTi'ansmisSioit 

The Michignri Public Power Agency (the "lVlPPA") has a 50.4% ownership interest in two ITCrnlllsmission 345 kV transmission lines. 
JTCTransmission's_ net investment in these two lines totaled $21.5 miliion as of December 31,2011 . The . .t\1PPA'-s ownership portion entitres 
them to approximately 234 MW of network transmission service over the ITCTransmission· system. An Ownership and Operating Agreement 
With the -MPPA provtdes ITCfransmission w.ith authority for construction of capital improvements and f.or the operation . .and 1nanagement-.of 
the transmission lines. The.MPPA is responSible for the capital and operating and maintenance costs allocable to their ownerShip interest. 

oiETC 

METC has joint sharing of several assets·within various substations with Consumers Energy, other municipal distribution systems and other 
generators. The rights, responsibilities and obligations for those jointly owned assets are documented in the Amended and Re...;;tatedDistriburion 
- Transmisslon Interconnection Agreement with Consumers Energy and in numerous- Interconnection Facilities Agreements with various 
municipalities and other generators. As ofDecember.3-1~ 2011 , METC bad net· investments ln.jointly owned asset.'> wjtbil1 substations including 
jointly owne-d assets mii:ler consirucfion. totaling $12.2 million of which METC~s ownership percentages for these jointly owned substation 
assets ranged from 6.3% to 92.0% . In ad<}ition. the MPPA. the Wolverine :?ower Supply Cooperative, fnc, (the '~WPSC!'), and the -Michigan 
South Central·Power Agency. (the "MSCPA"), each have an ownersh)pinterest.:in several ME~rc 345 kV transmission Jines. This ownership 
entit1es the'MPPA, \VPSC and MSCPA to -approximately 608 MW of network transmission service over·tbe·METC transmlssion system. As of 
December 3'l~ 2011 ! METC had net investments in joinHy shared transmission lines totaling $"41.0 million of which METC's ownerShip 
percentages for these jointly ovmed.Jines ranged from 35~2% to 64.5% . 

ITCMidwcst 

ITC Midwest has joint .sharing of several substations and transmission lines witb variou.s,parties. N; of December 3lt 2011 , ITC Midwest 
had nednves1ments in.jojntly shared subslations f-acilities :includingjointly shared substationsfaciUties under construction totaling $8.4 miHion 
of which lTC Midwesfs ownership percentages for these jointly owned· substations facilities .ranged from 48;0% to 70.0% . As of 
December 3l, 2011 • ITC Midwest had net investments in jointly shared transmission lines totaling $21.2 million of which 1TC Midwes·cs 
ownership percentage for these jointly owned lines ranged from 28.0% to·70,0% . 

!6. COMMITMENTS AND·CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Environmental ~fattet·s 

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' operations are subject to federal: stat~ and local enviromnental laws a11d regulations, which impose 
limitations on the discharge of pollutants into the- environment. establish standards for the management. treatment, storage_, transponation and 
disposal of hazardous materials and of solid and hazardous wastes, and impose obligations to investigate and remediate contamination i-n 
certain circumstances. Liabilities to investigate or remcdiate C.OJ1tamination, as well as other liabilities concerning hazardous materials or 
contamination, such as claims for personal injmy or property damage, may arise at many localions-, including formerly owned or operated 
uroperties- and ~'ites where wastes have been treated or disposed of, as well as at properties currently owned or operated by our Regulated 

perating Subsidiaries. Such liabilities may arise even where the contamination does not result from noncompliance with applicable 
~nvir.onrnental lav.'S. Under a number of environmental laws, such lhibilities may also be jolnt and several, meaning that a party can be held 
responsible for in ore than its share of the liability involved, or even the em ire share. Environmental requirements g~1}8El~become more 



strh1gent and compliance \Vitb those requirements more expensive. We are not aware of any specifi'c developments that would increase our 
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' costs for -such compliance in a manner that would be expected to have- a material adverse effect· on our 
results of operations, financial· position or liquidity. 

Our RegUlated -operating Subsidiaries' assets and operations also involve· the use of materials classified as bazardous,·toXic or otherwise 
dangerous. Many of the properties our Regulfrted- Operating Subsiiliaries own or f:!perate have beert·us:ed for many·years, and.include older 
facilities.and-e(]ulpment.thatmaybe more likely than newer ones to contain or be.maae.from such materials. ·Some oftlt.ese properties· inClude 
aboveground or underground storage tanh: and.-associated piping. S_ome of them a1so include large.·eleclrical equipment fille-d with mineral oil. 
Which may contain.or.previously-h-ave-contained.PCBs. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries' facilities and equ_ipment are often situated Close 
to or on property owned by·.others·so that, if they are· the source- of contamination~ othefs _properLy .may be a:ffecte:d. For exainple, aboveground 
and undergraun"d transmisSion lines· sometimes traverse properties that our Regulated Operating Subsidiarle.~'do not own. and, at some of our 
Re&Tt.ilated "Operating SubsidiarieS" transnllssion stations, ·transmissi-on assets·(owned .or -Qperated·by our Regulated Operatir~g SubSidiaries) and 
distribution assets (owned- or operated by our Regulated;Qperating Subsidiaries' transmission customer) are"commingled. 

Some PF'Operties· in which our Regulated Operating- Subsidiaries- have an owncrnbip interest ot at which they· .. operate are> and others are 
suspected ofbiing-, affected by environmental contamination. Our Regulated Operating. Subsidia-ries are:nOt aware of any pending -Or threatened 
claims -again-st tl1em with respect to enviromnental contamlnation, or of any investigation or remediation of. contamination at any properties, 
·tl1at -entail costs likely to materially affect them. Some facilities antl. ptoperfles are .located near environmentally sensitive areas such as 
wetlands. 

cta_ims have bee11 made or ·threatened. against electric ·utilities for bodiiy- injury. OJsease or other ·dam-ages altegedly related t6-. exposure to 
electromagnetic fields associated wlth electric-· tr-ansmission and distributio·n·liries. While our ReguJateO Operating S.llbsidiarfes d·o,nof believe 
that-'a causal link between electromagn:etic field.ex.posure·and injury· has: been gcnercil)y·es:tabiished and- acc~pte4in the scientific_. community~. if 
such-.a relationship is established or Sccepted1 ·the JlabiJities and costs imposed: on our busines-s could be significant. ·we are nOt aWare of. any 
pending or threatened claims- against. out Regulated~ Operating· Subsidiaries: for bodily injm:y, disea~~ or other -damages allegedly related to 
eJ>:posure to Clectromagnetic fields anU electric transmission and distribution line..s that·eJltail. costs likely to·have a.material.adv.erse effect on 
our· results of operations; financiai_-position or liquidit)_'. 

Litigation 

Weare involved in certain. legal proceedings before=varjous courts, governmental agencies and.mediation.panels.c-oncerning.matters-arising 
in .the ordinal)' course of business. These- proceedings include certain contract disputes, regulatory matt~ is and pending judicial. matters. We 
cannot predict:the final disposition of such"})roceedihgs. W·e-.regularly revievdega1 matters a"nd record provisions fqt claims 1hat are considered 
'JrObable of lOss, The resOlution of.--pending- proceedings is hot -expected to have a- material effect on our operations or· consolidated financial 
.iatements in. the· period in which they areTesolved. 

Mioblgan S•les·and Use Tax Audit 

The Michigan Department: of treasury condUcted a sales -and- use: tax audit of ITOTransmission for ihe audit. period April 1, 2005 through 
June 30, 2008· and has .denied. ITCTransmission1s·use Of the· industrial processing exemption from use tax it bas taken beginning January 1~ 
2007 .lTCfxmnsmission has certain·.administrative,and judicial aP.pea1Tights. 

ITCTransmi.ssion bclieves:fhat· 'its-"utilization of the· industrial p-rocessing exemption is appropriate and intendS" to defend itseifagains!:the 
denial of such exemption, However, it-is reasonably possible t.hat the assessment of additional use tax co_ul_d be sustained after an: administrative 
appeals andJitigaHoll have been exhal.tsted. · 

The amount. of use· tax liability associated \Vith"thv exemptions taken by -lTCTransmfssion ·through December 31, 2'011 is estimated to be 
approximately $'8. 7 million., which includes .approximately $3.6 mi:Hion asseSsed for the audit period Aprill, 2005 through June jO, 2008, 
ino.luiiing interest. In the event it be~omes appropriate to record additional use .. tax Jinbili1y relaiing to this matier-> ITCTransmission would 
record ·the adaitiona1 use tax primarily as- an lncrease-to the co&t Of property, plant and equipment, .as the majoritY of-purchases". for v~:hich the 
exemption was·taken relate tb·eqillpment purchases associated with capital projects . .MET.-Glias also taken the induStrial processing -exemption'" 
estimated to be approximately s;j OJ million for petio-ds sfit1 SUbject to audit. These 'higher use ·tax expenses would be passetl on to 
J'f.CTransmission's and-METC's customers as the amounts are-included as components of-!lct-;revenue requirements and resulting rates. 

FERC All <lit ofiTC Midwest 

Certain staff of 1he FERC ("EERC audit staff'') have conducted an audii of lTC Midweses compliance with c.ertain of the FERCs 
regulations and the conditions established in the 2007 FERC order approving the acquisi1ion of the transmission assets of JP&L by ffC 
Midwest. On September 30, 2011> FERC jssued an order that identjfied certain findings and recommendations of FERC audit staff relating to 
specific aspects of the accounting treatment for the acquisition which, jf approved by FERC, have the potential to result in a{\_iustments to ITC 
Midweses annual revenue requirement calculaiions and comespondingTeftmds for· 2008 through 2010. On October 31, 2011, we -fiJed a request 
for hearing with the FERC to contest the findings relating to:the-accounting treatment for the acquisition. In December 2011, PERC gave notice 
onhe commencement of a contested paper heating procedure and we filed our initial memorandum on Februruy 13, 201"2. A:U parties who filed 
by February 13t 2012 will ·have 20 days to file reply comments. We believe an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible for the ITC 
MldwMt Jindirigs. ITCTransmission and"METC have applied an accounting treatment for their respective acquisitions tbat is .similar to lTC 
{idwest. We do not believe·the resolution of the FERC audit staff.findings will be material to our re..c;ults_of operations, cash ilows or financial 
.mdition. 

Purchase Obligations and Leases 
Exhibit CB-H1a 



At Dec·ember "31., 2011 , we had purchase .obligations-of $73.3 million re_presenting: commitments for materials, services and e-quipment .that 
bad not bee-n received as.ofDecember 31, 20IJ ~ primariiy for construct-ion and maintenance projects for which we have.ao executed contract. 
.'he maJority of the-items relate.to materials. and equipmentthathave lon:g.production.lead_ tlmes that are:expeatcd to he paia for in 2012. 

We ·have operating leases for office space, equipment and storage facilities. We recognize expenSC!>' relating to our operating lease 
obligations on a straight..-line basis over the term ofthe lease. We recognized. rent expense of$0.7 million, $0.9 million and,$0.4 milliOn for the 
years en-ded December31, 201.1 ~ 2010 and 2009 , respectively, recorded ln general .and administrative and operation and maintenance 
expenses. These amounts and the amounts-·in·the table below do.not include any expense or· payments to be·made under the METC Easement 
Agreement described below under "Other Commftments- METC- Amended.and.Restated Easement Agreement with Consumers Energy!' 

-Future. minimum lease-payments under the leases at December 31, 2tTll were: 

(ln.1housar~ds) 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 and thereafter 

Total minimum ]ease payments 

Other-Commitments 

$ 

$ 

480 

461 

393 

64 
·6Q 

1,467 

Our:Regu1ated.Opemting:Stibsidiaries entered-:into an· Operation and M~!IJtenance Agreement With its primary maintenance contractor-and a 
Suppty·Chain Management Agreement·with its primary purdmsing and invent-ory-management contr-actor. We are not··obligated to take any 
specified ·amount·of services under the terms of the Operation and Maintenance Agreement or the ·suppJy Chain Management Agreement1 

whiCh have five-yeanenns·ending-.Au_gust- 29, 2-013 ancr-automaticaUy·renew·for·additiona:i five·year terms unleSs~tenninatecfby·elther party. ln 
January 20-12, we gave:notice that we intend to terminate the ·Qper-ation and Maintenance Agreement for all of our Regulated Operating 
Subsidiaries no later· than six.months following·the termination notice. w~-.are iit the process ofneg<ilhithlg· .. and expect to enter into a new 
t!gteement with 'the same SliP.P1ier_priorto 1he end of the 11otice period arid do nQt.antioipate any-disruption in.miiintenance services. 

METC 

Amended and Restated PUrchase .and Sale Agreement for Ancillary Services with Consumers Energy. Under the PurChase- and Sale 
.-\:greemen(·for Ancillary Services·with Consumers Energy (the '•Ancillary Service$- Agreemenf'), Consmners.Ehergy·provides·reactive power. 
balancing energy, load following and spinning and supplemental Teserves that are needed by METC ·and MrSO. These -ancillary services are a 
necessary part of the provision. of transmission service. This agreement is necessary·because ME'fC does-not own any generating facilities .an-d 
therefore must procure ancillary ·services fr-om· third party sUppliers inCluding Consumers ·Energy. The Ancillary Services .Agreement 
establishes-thC'.teims and conditions· under which METC obtains an_cillary services from Consumers Energy~ Consumers-Energy will offer all 
ancillary services. as- required by FERC Order ·No. 8-88 at FERC,.approved r-ates. METC- is not precluded from·. procuring these services from 
third party suppliers-and:is free to purchase-anciilacy services from unaffiliateP generator.s··Jocated·within its control area or 'in neighboring 
juriSdictions on a·non~preferentiat, competitive bas-is. This one- year ~greement became effective on May 1, 2002 and is automatically renewed 
each year for successive -one-yeal' periods, with the most recent renewal effective May 1, 2-011. The Ancillary Services Agreement can be 
terminated ·by either partY -with Sh months prior·written notice. Ser\,ices perfonned by Consumers Energy under the Ancillary Services 
Agreement are charged'to operation and.maintenance expense, 

Amtmded and Restated Easement Agreement wit-h Consumers Energy. The Easement Agreement with Consumers Energy (the nBasement 
Agreement1>) provides METC with an easement" for -wansmission purposes· and rlglns~of-way, leasehold interests, fee interests and licenses 
assoCiated ·with the land over which the transmission lines cross. Consumers Energy has reserved for Jtsetf- the rights to and the value of 
.activitientssocib.ted with ·other 1!-Ses of the infrastruCture (such as"for·fiber optics::telecommunications and gas pipelines). The cost for use of 
the rights~of-.way is $1"0.0 mtnion per year. The term of the Easement Agreement runs throu_gh D~ember 315 2050 and is_ subject to W 
-automatic 50 -year renewals thereafter. Payments to ·Consumers Energy under the Easement Agreement ar.e Charged to operat-i'on and 
maintenance expense. 

lTC Midwest 

Operations Services Agreemem For 34.5 kV Tr.ansmisston Facilities. !TC Midwest .and IP&L have entered into the Operations Services 
Agreement For .34.5 ·kV Transmission F-acilities (ti1e "OSN'), under which IP&L perf.otms certain operations of lTC Midwesf's 345 kV 
transmission system. The OSA will remain in full force and effect from year to year thereafter until tenninated ·by either party upon not less 
than one year-prior written notice to the other party. 

Project Commitment. Jn the Minnesota regulatory-proceedi-ng to approve lTC Midwcst>s-Decembcr 2007 acquisition of the transmission 
assets of IP&L, ITC Midwest agreed to build a certajn project in Iowa, the 34:5 kV Salem~Hazelton line, and made a commitment to use 
commercially reasonamc best efforts to complete the project prior to December :31, 2011. In the event1TC Midwest is found to have failed to 

eenhis commitment. the allowed 12.38% rate of return on the actual equity-portion of its capital structure would be reduced to 10.39% until 
... uch time as lTCMtdwest completes· the project, and ITC Midwest wo\dd.refund with interest.any .amounts collected since the cJose date of the 
transacti-on that exceeded what would have been collected if the 10.39% return on equity had been used. Cettain f!millf~provals were 



needed--from the IUB before construction of the project could commence, but due to the TUWs case schedule: these apptovals were not received 
until the second quarter of 2011. As a result of the delay in the receipt of the necessary regulatory approva1S1 the project was not completed by 
December 31, 2011-. We believe we used commercially reasonable· best efforts to meet1be December 31,.2011 deadline· and will continue to do 
so. Therefore, we-.believe the likelihood of·any-materialeffect-from this matter is remote. 

JTC'Great Plaills 

Amende..d and Resulted Maintenance Agreement. Mid-K-ansas.Electl'ic Company LLC (''Mid~Kansas'-~) and lTC Great Plains have entered 
into a Maintenance Agreement (the HMfd~Kansas Agreement':)~ dated as of August .24_. 20l0, pursuant to which Mid~Kansas has agreed to 
perfonn various field operations and maintenance services related:to the ITC Great Plains Elm- Creek antl Fiat Ridge· SUbstations) which ITC 
Great Plains. has purchased from Mid-Kansas. The Mid-·Knnsas Agreemertt:has-an initial term ..of 10 years and-automatic 10 -.year renewal tenns 
unless terminated (1) due: to a breach by the non-terminating-party following ilo1ice om:l failure to cure, (2.).by' mutual consent of·the parties, or 
(3)" by J'FC Great 'Plains under certain limited circwnstances. Services must .continue-to be provided for at least six months sUbsequent to the 
·termination date in any case, 

Concentr<!tion o{Credlt Risk 

Our credit risk ·is. primarily with Detroit Edison,_ Consumers Energy and l!?&Ls WhiCh were responsib"le":fot approx.im·a:telY 30.8% , 2Q~O% 
and.25.3% ) respectively, or $233.4 million , .$19"6:6 miilion and ·-s-191.7 million .• respectively~ of our consolidated Operating revenues fonhe 
-ycar·ended "Deceniber 3i1 :201-l . These percentages otuid:amounts Of to~al opera~ng·rtwenues -ofBetroit Edi-son) COnsumers· Energy and "IP&L 
jnc1ude an estimate for:the-·2011 revenue accttuils ruid: deferrals fhat wcr.:e·included -Jn our" 2011 operating revenues, but willtiot be billed or 
refUnded to our·'custorners until 2013. We have assuln'ed·.that the· revenues -associated-wJth.therevenue accnia:1s and.defcrrals·wotild be billed.or 
refimded to these customers in 2013. "in the same_ proportion ofthe·r-espective. percentages :Of network -a1Yd regional cost shadng revenues billed 
to them in 201 f . Any financiai. difficulties eXperienced by DetroH:-EdiSort,·ConSumers· Eilefgy or lP.&L couid negatively impact our business. 
MISO,_,as our M!SO Regulated Operating Subsid!B.ries' billing agent; bills DetrokEdiSon, C,.onsumers Energy, IP&L and other-customers on. a 
month}y-"basis and coHecis fees fOr the use.·of our transn'lission syStems, S,PP bills customers Of ITC Great .. .Plains on ·a _monthly basis and 
co1lecurfees for the-: use of ITC Great PHii.ns• -assetS.- MISO -and·the· SPP have-implemented strict credit policies for its members' customers·, 
whidl :inClude customerS using our transmis..'iion ·systems. Jn general, if these customers 4o -1101 maintain tlteir investment grade. credit ratfng or 
havMi history of.late payments, MISO and·the SP.P may require-them to proviMMISO-anil the SPP. with a letter. of credit -or ca.s)l deposit·equal 
to· the highest monthly invoiced- amount overthe,_previous·nvelve-'months.- · 

17• ENTERGYTRANSACT!ON 

As of December 4, 2011, Entergy -and .I'f.G Holdings executed defmit1ve·agreements under which Entergy -will dlVest and then merge its 
lectric transmission business with a wholly-:o,Vhed sUbsidiary of JTC Holdings. Entergy•s electric transmission busjnes-~ cm1sists of 

approximately 15,700 miles-of intetaonnected transmission ·Jines at voltages of 69 kV and above and associated substations across i1s utility 
service-territ-ory· in the Mid~S-outh. 

The tenu-s ofthe transaction. agreements call for. Entergy to divest its electric transmisSion ·_business to a newly.:formed entity, Mid South 
TransCo LLC ('1Mid South T.ransC0!1

), and Mid South TransC-o1s subsldiaries, and distribute the·equity .interests in :Mid :South TransCo .. to 
Entergy's shareholdcrs"in the- -_form· Of a .. tax..:free .. spin~off .. Mid. S-outh TransCo will. then merge with a·new))l"'created rncrge1L subsidiary Of·IT.C 
·Holdings in an.all-stoCk, RCverse·Morrii:Ttusttransaction, and wiU surVive-the merger-as a- wholly~owned subsidiary oflTCHoldings .. Pr!or-to 
tbc·merger, we e~pect to effectuate a tecapitaliZatio:Q~ cun·ently anti-cipated to take·the form of a one-time· special dividend to investors holding 
shares ofiTC H-Otdings conunon stock immedi!i!ely:prior to the comp1e~ion of"fhe Entergy Transaction_. The mer-ger wili.result-'in shareholders 
of-Entergy receiving approximately 50.1%-ofthe·shares of pro formn.lTC Holdings in exchange for· their .shares of Mid South'TransCo, with 
exJsting··sharehoiders ofiTC Holdings .. owning the-remaining approxbnately-49.9% of the combined company. In.ndditi"OJ_t, Entergy will receive 
gross ca:sh proceeds-of:SL775" billiun from indebtedness·that will be incurred by.Mi-d ·south TransCo and,its subsidiaries prior to the-merger. 
Comp-letion.ofthe transaction is expected in 2013 subject to the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including the-necessary approvals cf 
Elltergy's retail regulatOr$, tlre·PBRC and ITC.Eio!dings' shareholders. 

As of December 31, 2011 , we ex.pense-rl external legal,. advisory-and financial services fee-s of·S? .0 million and certain "internal. lalwr and 
related costs of approximately -SL6 million relatetl to the Entergy Tmn-saction recorded wiUiin general and. administrative expenses. The 
external and intcmlil corn- related to the Entergy Transaction are noi included a_s components of revenUe requirement at our Regulated 
Operating S1tbsidiarie..~:·as·fhey were incurred at ITC Holdin_gs. 

18. SEGMENTINFOllMATION 

We iaentify reportable segments ba.<;ed on the criteria set forth by the FASB regarding disclosures about segments of an enterprise, 
including·the regulatory environment of our subsidiaries and the business activit-ies-performed to earn revenue...<:; and incur expenses. 

Regulated Operating Subsidim·ies 

VIe aggregate lTCTransmission) MF.TC, ITC Midwest and ITC Great Plains into one reportable ope:;atlng segment based on their similar 
r~guiatory .environment a1-1d economic characteristlcs, among other factors. They are engaged in the tr-ansmission of electricity within tl1e 
United States, cam revenues from the same t)•pe.o;; of customers and are regulated by the FERC. Their tariff rates nre established using cost~ 

'Sed fonnuta rates. 

ITC Holdi1tgs atti! Other 
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Information below for ITC Holdings and Other .consists of a holding company whose activities include debi and equity fmancings and 
general corporate a:otivities i!Jld.. all. Of ITC Holdings• olher subsidiaries, excluding the Regulated ·Operating Subsidiaries, \vhich .are focused 
primarily on business development· activities. 

Regulated 

Operating lTC Holding~; Rceondliationsl 

2011 S!ibsidia.rie~ t~n'd-Other E-liminatiom :r'o1111 

(In thousands} 

Operating revenues ~. 757;465 $ 486 $ (554) $ 757.>97 

Depreciation an-d ·amortizatio~ 94,520 461 94,981 

lnterest,ex.pense 5S;795 88,609 {468) 146,<J36 

Income before income-taxes 361,628 (t01,194) 266,434 
Income tax provision{benefit)(b) 143,416 {48,667) 94,149 
Net income (b) 224,211 .171,685 (224,211.) 111,685 
P.roporty,.planLand. equipment,.nel. 3,404;09! n,n2 3,41'5;823 
Goodwill 950,163 950,163 

TotO! asseur:( o) . 4,7ll,274 2;845~1"82 (2,733\090) 4,823;366 
Capital expenditures 554·,692 7,633 (5,394) 556,931 

Regulated 

Operating lTC H.·olding!> Reeondliftdon.s/ 

1010 Suh5tdinriet and"Otber Eliminations Total 

(In1housandS) 

0perati:itg ... r.evenues- s 696,88~· $ 425 $ (467) $ ;69Gi843 
Deprec:i"ati~n a1}ti· amortizrititin 86,621 355 86,976 

Interest<expense 54l981\ '87;665 (95) 142,553 

Income before income taxes 330,207 (102,7.15) 227,932 

lnc<>mi::taxc pr~vision (benefit)(b) '126;5Si; (M;B02) 82i254 
Net inccme(b) 203,651 145,678 (203,651) 145,678 

?n)perty,-plaut and equipment, net 2,867,008 5.269 2;872,277 

Goothvill 950,163 950,163 

Total a -;sets'( q) 4,1S7,3?4 2,671;022. (2,550~523) 4,30.7,873 
Capital expenditures 391,252 45 (2,896) 388,'101 

ltcg_Uisted 

Oper.titing I'i'C lloldings- Re<:OncHiationS/ 

2009 Subsidiaries {-a} and Other Elimluations Total 

{In tho11sands) 

Operatlng·revenu~· i 621;%1 $ 329 s (3.75) '$ 611,0!5 

Depreciation·aild amortiZatiOn 85,622 327 85;949 

Interest expens.e 49;605 80,604 Bil;209 

Income before ihCome taxes 297,241 (88,769) 2ll8,4?2 

income·.tax prti\>is(on•(benefitHll) 113;954 (36,382) 7.7;572. 
Net income(b) 183,287 130,900 (183287) 130.900 

PrQp~t)•,.p1ant and eq~pm.ent~.net 2,535,826 ·6~2iW 2,542,064 

Goodwm 950,163 950.!63 

Total assets (c) 3,Cil4,898 2,546,755 (2,431,93 7) 4,029,716 

Capital expenditures 410,086 47 (5,619) 404,514 

(z) Amounts include the results of operations from 1TC Great Plains for the period August 18, 2009 through December 31, 2009, in 
connection wHh ITC Great Plains implementing its cost·based fonnularate ln SPP. 

(b) ln December 201 1, the Company converted MTH into a limited liability company ·which is treated as. a corporation for-tax purposes. Prior 
to December 31, 2{)11, METC was organized as a single..:member limited liability company that was a disregarded entity for federal 
inccime tax purposes. METC was treated as a branch of MTH, which was taxed as a multiple~--p-artner limited partnership for federal 
income tax purposes. Since METC and lv1TH1 its immediate parent. filed as a partnership for federal iJ.lco'me tax purposes, they were 
exempt from federal inc-ome taxes. As a-result1 METC-did notrecord a provjsion for federal income taxes in its statements of operations IJr 
record amounts for federal deferred income tax a:ssets or Hab11ities on its statements of financial position. in 2010 and 2009. For PBRC 
regulatory reporting1 hqwever, METC computed theoretical federal income taxes as well as the associated ·«!;WFKR!EiJWflf!W taxes and 



inc1uiled an annual allowance for income taxes in its nct-revenue.requirement used to determine its rates. 

Effective for the reporting.period ended December 31~ 2011, METC.records federal and state-income taxes since the operating entity js no 
longer held by a partnership. The.Regulated Operating Subsidiaries segment. now includes·theallocati<m of taxes for METC for-all periods 
pre-sented. 

(c) Reconciliation of total assets results primarily from differences in the· netting of deferred tax assets and liabilities at ouf Regulated 
Operating Subsidiaries a..~ compared to the-classlfication in our consolidated ·Statements offinancial poSitioi). 

19. SUPPLEMENTARY QUARTERLY FINANCIAL lNFOR:MATION.(UNAUDITEn) 

Quarterly earnings pet share amounts may not sum to the totals for each of the- years, since quarterly-computation are based on weighted 
average cnmmon $:hare..~ outstanding during each. quarter .. 

First S'econ:d. 'rhJro Fourth 

{fn.tbousnnds, exeept·per Share data)- Quarter Quarte-r -Qnartar Quarter. (a} V(!ar' 

2011 
Opera:iing.reveniles $ 179;386 s 185)098 $ ·r9uos $ 201;6W $ 757,397 

Opetll~ing inco~~ 99;975 100,231 9S,S3? 98,7.)3 397:752 

Net-income· 42;002 42;996 44;024 42;663 <17!,68§ 
Basic eam~gs per· s_hare $ 0;83 $ -Oo84 $ 0.86 $ 0.83 $ 3.36 

DilUted ;eamings-;pe.-t ,share ,$ ·.o·.sJ $ '0.83 $ o;zs $ 0.82 $ ·3.31 
2(110 

Operating -revenue_s $ 161,288 $ l68,46S $ .178,020 ;$ .!89,067 $ ·6,96;84;! 
Operating income: 85,348 88,898 93,213 89;862 3'57;321 

iict income 34,2(M 36,301 38,394 36,779 145;67Z 
Basic ~arriiqgs per Share s 0.68 $ 0.72 $ 0.76 $ om $ Vl9 

DilUted earnings .per share s 0.67 $ 0.71 $ om $ 0.71 s 2!84 

(a) Iri the "fourth quarter of 2011, we expensed -extemal legal, advisory and financial services fees of $6,9 million, and ·certain internal labor 
and related cOstS of approximately -$1.5 million related .to· the Entergy Tran!'lnction of Which certain of the- external costs are not exvected 
to be -deductible for income tax. The extemal and. internal costs-related to· the Entergy Tr-ansaction are not included as componro1s of 
revenue requir-ernenf af our RegUlated Operating ·subsidiaries as· they were incurred at !TC Holdi~gs. 

ITEM·9. Clf.lfNGES JN AND DISAGREEMENTS IVITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
.DISCLOSURE. 

None. 

I'f.EM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

Management's Report on Jnternai-Control Over Financial Reporting .is jncluded in Item 8 of this Form W.;K, TJ1e attestarion report of 
beloitte & T-ouche LLP, our independent-r-egistered pUbiic:accountihg finn, on the effectiveness of our intemaJ control over financial reporting 
is also :included in Item 8 of this Fonu 1 0-K. 

DiS-closure Controls and lkOccdm~es 

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures· that are designed- to provide reasonable assurance that material information required to be 
disclosed in our reports that we file or sribmit tinder .the- Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized, and repmted within the time 
periods specified in tlle SEC's rules and forms, and thilt suCh information i-s accumulated and communicated to om management, including our 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer~ as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure. Jn 
designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedurest mam;gement recognized that a control systetn, no 1natter how well designed 
and operateO, can provide only reasoi1able1 not abs-olute, assurance that the objec6ves of the conb:ol sysiem are met. Because of the iriherent 
limitations in aJJ control systems~ no evaluation of controls can provide absolute- assuranc-e- that aU control issues and instances of fraud, if any. 
with a company have been detected. · 

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the superv-ision and with the participation. of our 
.a.nagement, inCluding our Chief Executive Officer and· Chief Financial Officer, of the effect-iveness of the design and opera1ion of our 
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disclosure controls and· procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the- Exchange Act. Based upon .that evaluation~ our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial-Officer C{)ncluded that our disciosure: controls and procedure..<> are effective,. at~ihe·reasonable assurance level. 

;bangcs in Internal Contrrirover Financial.Reporting 

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter en:ded December 31, 2011 that hav.e 
materially affected~ or are reasonably likely to materially affect1 ourimemal control ovedinancial reporting. 

ITEM 911. OTHER.INFORMATION. 

None. 
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PART III 

lTEM lO. .DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COI/PO RATE GOVERNANCE. 

The jnformation .required by thiS Item iS contained under the captions '~Election of Director~,.U "Executive Officers/' ''Section 16(~) 
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance;,, and "Corporate Govemance" in the :Proxy Statement and (ex.c1udi{Jg fue report of tbe Audit 
Oommittee) is incorporated herein by reference. 

iTEMll. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

The .information required by this ftem.ifl contained under the cap-tion "Compensation of Executive Officers and Dfrectors" in the Proxy 
Statement arid is incorporatytfherein by reference. 

lTEM 12. SECU1i.ITY:011'NERSHIPOF OER·TAIN BENEFICIAt-OWNERS ANI> MANAGEMENT AND 1/ELATED 
STOCKHOLDh'/1 MATTERS • 

. 'fhe,Jnformation required by this Item is cqn~ined under the caption ''Security Ownership .of Management ·and. Major Shru.eholders" in the 
Pro~y·.Statement and: is-incorporated herein ~y reference .. 

Eq~lcy Com,peusation: Flans 

At December 31, :Wl-1 ,'lhe"2003 Stock Purchase and Option Plan and the LTIP were,"iuplace, pursuantto which we grant.,stock options and 
restr.ii;::te'd stock and· ofheJ'·equity based compensation to emp1oyees, officers, and directorsi as well as the .E.SPP .. Each of these plans l1a.~:. bcwn 
appt<>Ved by- shareholders. 

1_'h~ fOllowing table set$: forth certain inforination with respect to our equity cotrj.peilsation plans at I>e.cenibet31~ 2011 (sbares in 
thousands): 

Pi.:!1J.Cn1eoory 

Equity compeilsalion_pJans approved by sharehOlders 

Numb_er.qfSbares 

fu"-he-i.swed 

Upon ·Exercise of 
OutstAudin_u.Otltlons 

:),100 

Welghted~Avcr~·ge 

E::~:e.n:lse Price.-of 

OutstandioR·Options 

$31.45 

Nnnibnr of Sh-ares 

.Remaining Available 

(or.-Future·Jssoanee­

Under- Eqult}' 

COmpensniion 
J>JIIJU(ti) 

2,993 

(<!-) The· number af shares ·remaining:available.for future issuanc-e. under equity compensation. plans has- beell reduced-hy 1 YJhe common shares 
isSued. through December 31, 2011 upon exercise of stock options; 2) the number of common.Shares to be issued upon the future exercise 
-of oUtstanding ~oek options and 3) the·number of restri-cted sto.ck awar-ds grnnted that have 110t been forfeited. The·-LTIP imposes a 
separate re.~triction 59 that no·more than 3~50,000- ofthe-·shar.e.s may be_granted ao;- ~wards to·-be settled in shares-of common stock other 
·than optiOns·or stock appreciation rights. 

ITEM1:\. GEl/TAll'/ 1/ELATJONSillPSAND RELATED TIIANSACTJONS, AND "DIREC'l'0/1 INDEPENDENCE. 

The Uifonnation required by this Jtern is contained under the capti'ons "Certain "Transaciions" and "Corporate -Governance - Dir.ector 
Independence~) in the Proxy'Staiement andJs incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM··g :PJ/INCIPAL-ACCOUNTANT FEES-AND SERVICES. 

The information :required ·by this Item is contained ·under the caption 141ndependent Registered PubHc- Accounting Firm" in the Proxy 
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXJIIJJITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

(a) (1) Financilil Statements: 
Management's Report on Internal Cot\.trol over Financial Reporting 
Report oflndepen·dent Registered Public Accounting Finn 
.Report of Independent RtJgistered Public-Accounting Firm 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 3t 201.1 an·d 2010 
Consolidated StatementS of Operations for the Year.s Ended December 31,2011,.2010 and 2009 
CousoiiUated Statements,ofChanges in Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years: Ended December 31, 

.201·1,.2010 and 2009 · · 
ConsoliOateil Statements of Cash ·Flows fodhe Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 
Notes·to Consolidated Financial-statements 

{2) FinanciatStatement S'cheduje 
Schedtllel- Condensed Finanoiallnformation ofR"'gistrant 

All-Other--schedules· for which provision.is·made1n Regulation S~:X:,either (i) are-not required under the related instructions or 
,arc'inappiicable B.m~~--tllerefore,:have been omitted1· or (ii),the infonnat1on.requiredis- inCluded in the .Cohsolidnted financial 
.statements o·r thecnotes:thereto that.are·a Part he.reof.-

(b) The exhibits included .as .parHlf this:repott"are I-isted:in· tbe attached -Exhibft;lndex-, -w:hich:kinoorporated hercin by reference. At 
the requesfofa-n)• shareholder;ITC.Holdings.WDL."furnish oany eXhibit;upon the·paymcnt ofa fee.ofS.lO per page· to cover 
the costs offurn-iShhig~the.erhibit. 
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SCJIEDULE I- Condensed FinanchH Information of.·Registrant 

ITC I!OLlJINGS CORP, 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

On-thousands, el'l~¢pt shal'e data) 

Current assets 

Cash and cash. equiva1ents 
Accounts ·receivable from subSidiaries 
Other 

T otal.curren:f .assets 
Other assets 

Jnvestmentin·subsidiaries 
Deferred -inconie·taxes 

ASSETS 

Defeued.flnancingfees (net of accumulated amortization of$6,590and$5,397, respectively) 

other 
Total otheJ' assets 

TOTAL A:SSETS 

Current:iia'bilitie~ 

Accounts:.payal:>le 
Accrued, payroll 
Accrued interest 
Oilier 

LIAB1L1TillS AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Total current"liitbllifies 
AccrUed-pension aud.·postretirementliabilities 

Dedyative- instruments 

.ottrar 
Long.term dcbi'(nat of discounts ofS2,401 imd·Sl;1l22, respectively} 
STOOI\l!OLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stQoJ; without-par Value, 1.00,000,000 shares authorized, 51,323,368 and 50,715,8.05 
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 20ll and 20W, respectively 

Retained ~mlngs 
Accumulated. other comprehensive (loss) income 

Total stockholders' equ1!)> · 
TOTAL LJABlLITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

$ 

$ 

necembcr31, 

201l 

49,240 
47,815 

954 

98,009 

2,66~,109 

.29,4>14 
1!,756 

4J;>IDS 
2,747,717 

5;930 
;t8,Ql3 

30~892 

'2;108 

56,973 
44;923 
24,258 
1,081 

1.459.599 

943,444 

330,lH6 
(l5,368) 

U58i892 
2,845,726 

$ 

$. 

$ 

$ 
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2010 

71.384 
49,645 
2;520 

123,549 

2;492,969 
9,474 

9~094 

33;877 

2;545;414 

2;668;963 

1,804 
.18,606 

30,827 
B;279 

$4 .• 516 
35,811 

2,025 
1,459.178 

886,808 
229.437 

1,188 

UJ.7,433 
2;668;963 



See notes to.condensed fmanchil statementS"(parent company only). 
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SCHEDULE I- Condensed Financial Information of Registrant 

ITCHOLDINGS CORP. 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (PARENT COMPA.t''Y ONL¥) 

·Y-ear Ended December3l) 

(In thoimmds) 

Other inco1ne 
General and administrative ·expense. 
Interest e:w.ense · 
Loss·on. extitiguishment of debt 
Other expense 
LOSS BEFORK!NCQME Ti\J<'ES 
INCOME"fN.ltJIENEFlT 
LOSS AJ<:mR TAXES 

EQUITY'!Nj;l)BSIDJARIEB' NET. EARNINGS 

NETlNC()ME 

20H 

2;556 
(11,409) 
(88\618) 

(517) 
(97,988) 
(4'iS4o) 
(50i443) 

222;!28 

171,685 

2010 

$ 1.518 
(8,899) 

(87;610) 

·(281') 
{%,272) 
(41;457) 
(53;81~) 

Hi9,493 

s 145,678 

s 

$ 

Exhibit CB-H1 a 

1009 

1;154 
(5,539) 

(80,638) 

(1,263) 
{B44) 

(86;630) 
(35;798} 
(~0;832) 

'181,732 

130,900 



See·notes to condensed financial statements (parent company orily). 
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SCHED.ULE I-Condensed Financial.information of:Registtant 

lTC HOLDINGS CORP. 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS·(PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

Year Ended December 31, 

(In tbou~ands) 2011 2010 

CASHFDQWS.FROM OPERATING ACTfl!ffJES· 

Net income s 17J,685 $ 145;678 
AdJustments:tO reconCile nednC6me- to net Cash-ptovMed by operating.activities:-

Equity-iii sUbSidiarieS, earnings (222,!28) (199,493) 

DiVie!ends":from,fitlbSitiiarieS·· 3V>1,244 :l31,10l 
Deferred.inCoJ?e:tax expense (94,663) (34;623) 

lnt-ercompany.fax-,payments·fmm·subsidiaries 86;226 59~643 

Share~~ased compeusation.expense 15,292 14,874 

Other 3,423. 2;115 
.Clumges .. in:ass.ets -and liabiJHiesi excl~ive Of changes Shown separately: 

Accounls_:Tecefvable-from.subsiiilatieS (llW62) (26,361) 

Other cum.mt:assets 'l;S66 (2,082) 

A'CCO!lnts:payable 4;126 (1,539.) 

.Accrued ptiym1i- (59>) 4,958 

Aceru~:lnt~~i 65 4;47S 

Tax·benefiHor excess -tax.deduc1ions of.-siJare-based -oompchsation (28;114). (320) 

0ther·curxenUiabiliUes 26,144' 3,156 

Othet rf6ii-.cUrrentassets anii1i'abilitics. net 1.008 (1,806) 

Nct>-C2Sh-proW'd~f6y:uperatiDi-acti\•ities 25'7;11!> 199;776 

CASltFl;OWS FROM IN\'ESTINGAOTIVITIES 
Equity·contn'butio.u. tO,stibsidinrieS .(472,964) (l41,91l4) 

Return of capital from subsidiaries 228.600 

Proceed:Hrom sale·of-secur.ities 3,83V 14;576 

.Purchases of seco ri ties (8,1.36) (14,587) 

"'Net.cash used f~in~estll)g;acli!litle.~ '(148;661) (141.915) 

CASli'FLOWS FROM.F!NANC!NG ACTlVITIES 

Js~'Uance-oflong._tenri·deht 

Repayment oflong.:.term debt 

'Borro-wif:!gs under:!ev-Olving. credit-agreements 

Repayments ·or re-vol Vill& credit agreernellts 

issuance,of commou:stoCk 18.99~. 8,90& 

DiVidends· on common filoCk (70,363) (6<J,040 

T al(~benefi t-fbr=cxcess tali. deducti~ns;ti'f share-based compensation 
.. 

28:j~J-J4 320 

Other (7,546) (247) 

Net .caSh.( used ·in) providcif-by'-financing_ -activities (30,802) {57'000) 

NET (DECREASE)'INCREASE IN GASH. AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,144) 80! 

G\:-811 A'ND·CASif EQUIVALENTS- Beginning of period 71384 70,583 

CASfl ANI) CASH EQUIV ALEN'fS- End afperied s 49.240 5 71,384 s 

Supplementary cash -f} ow-& jnfomJation: 

lnterest-pa.id s 86,649 s 81.416 s 
Income taxes-paid 34,127 K,S4-4 

Suppl~entary non.ca~h investing and financing activities: 

Equity transfers1o subsidiaries 12,892- 7.090 

See notes to condensed financial statements (parent company orily). 

~hlbll CB·H1a 

2009 

130,90.0 

(181,734) 

189,200 
(31,776) 

26;950 

10;00~ 

3,498 

(14;371,) 

(J8) 

(342) 

3.31'9 

51? 
(129) 

{2;6!7). 

(1,73J.) 

l3-l-i668 

(152.522) 

3,495 

.(!49,02'1) 

298;670 

(100;000) 

90,715 

(1s&,6nBJ 

3,57S 
(62,408) 

129, 
(3.443). 

.~S;o70 . 

51,2!! 

19372 

'10,583 

78,181 

1,967 

4.149 
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SCHEDULE I-Condensed Financial Information of Registrant 

IT.C HOLDINGS CORP. 

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PAREJ\'1' COMPANY ONLY) 

1. GENERAL 

For ITC'Holdings Corp. ~s {'1ITC Hordings1" "we," "our'' and "us") presentation (Parent Company oulyj. the. inv~enl -in subsidiaries is 
accounted.for u.sing the equity method. The condensed parent company financial statements and notes should be read·in co~junction·with the 
consolidated financial statements and-note..'> oflTC Holdings. appearing in this Annual Repmt.on Form 10-"i:C · 

As aholdi11g company with.no business operations, ITC Holdings) assets consist primarily..ofinvestments in onf"b-ubsidlaries~ deferrcll tax 
assets ·relating primarily to federal income tax operating loss carryforwards and -cash. ITC Holdings' materlai cash inflows .are only from 
divldends:and other payments received from :our subsidiaries and t1le proceeds raiseq. from the sate of debt and equity securities. ITC:Holdings 
may ·not be able to _access cash generated Qy our subsidiaries ·in order to fulfill cash -commitments ·or to· pay dividends to shareholders. The 
abHity of .our· subsidiaries to make dividend and other payments to us is stlbject to ihe avairabiljty .of. fUnds after taJcing into account their 
resp·ecfi-y..e ftmding requirements, the terms of their respective indebtedness. ihe regtilation!l' of tlJe· EBRC under the FPA. :and applicable· state 
laWs. Bach ofo_ur·subsidiaries. however, is'legaJly distinct from us apd-haS no obliB:atiun, contingent or other-wise, to mtike-·funds available to 
us~ 

l. LONG-TERJ\1 DEBT 

As-ofDecemb-er 31,-2011, the maturities·ofour longMterm debt:OUhrtanding were· as "follows: 

(In "f~(IUSAl\dS) 

201:1. 1li 
2013 2"6?,000 
:Wl4 ?o:ooo 
2015 
2016 "255;000 
2017 and thereafter -89Q;OOO 

Total $ 1,462,000 

Refer to·Note S·to·tbe consolida1edfinancial statements for a description o:ftbe 1TC Iloldings SeniofN.otes and theiTCHoldiugs Revolving 
Credit Agreement and related 'items. Based on the borrowing rates currently available to-us for.loans .with.similanerms and average maturities, 
ih:e fR-irvalue of the ITC-.Holdings Senior Notes is $l_,_68-L9 million at -December 3-1, 201J . The total' book value of the ITC Hol-ding-S Senior 
Notes net. of discountis ·5:1,459.6 million at December 31 ~ 2011. 

AfDecember 31, 20U , we were:. in compliance with all.debt covenants. 

3. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTfONS 

ITCTrnnsmission, MTH, ITC Nlidwest and other subsidiaries-paid cash dividends to ITC Holdings totaling.$304.2 million, $23.1.1 million 
and $l-89:2-,m111ion in 2011 ) 2010 ~nd 2009, respectively. lTCTransmis-sion, MTH) JTC Midwest and other-subsidiaries recognized.a return of 
capital \ti ITCHoldings totaling $228.6 million and S3.5 million in 20n and 20Q9, respociively. No return of capital was recognized in 2010 . 

AdditiOnall!f, fTCTransniission paid $'5:1.6. million: $52.8 million- anO "$23:5 million- .to ITC Holdings--under an intercompany-tax sharing_ 
arrangement during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 ,.respectively. MTH paid $23.3 millioJJ, $3.5 million and $3;5 million to lTC Holdings tmder an 
intercompany tax sharing a.mmgement dudng ·2011 , 2010 an-a 2009. respectively, Additionally~ ITC Midwest paid.$11.3 nu11ion and S3.3 
million to ITC Holdings under an intercompany ·taX sharing arrangement during- 2'0 11 and 20 1.0. ~ respectively. N-a payments were made by 1TC 
Midwest in 2009 . 
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SIGNArtiRES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or l5{d) the Securities Exchange Act of 1934_~ the registrant" haS di.ily caused this report-to he 
signed OlT its behalfbyihe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City ofNovi, State of Michigan, -on February 22, 2012 . 

ITC HOLDINGRCORP. 

B)•: ./!;/ JOSEPH L. W ELC!l 

Joseph L Welch 
Chaii-man, Pre..'>idcnt-and Chief_Executive.Of.ficer 

Pursuant to:the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of l934;this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf. of tbe 
r-egistrant and in the c~pa·cities and on the dates indicated: 

Signature 

is/ J OSEPH L. W ELCH 

Joseph L. Welch 

Is! c 'l\MERON M. B READY 

Cameron M. Bready 

lsi CHRISTOPHER H. F RANKLJN 

Christopher H. Franklin 

MEDI'lARD Gc JEPSEN 

Eilward G. Jepsen 

(.';/,RICHARD D. MCLELLAN 

Is! W 1Ll.1AM J. M USELER 

William). M\\WI~ 

lsi HAZEL R:O'L EARY 

,Hazel R. O'Leary 

Is! M. M ICMEL ROUNDS 

M. Michael Rounds 

!s!.G ORDON B ENNE'J)]' S ThWART ,ll! 
Gordon Bennett -stewart, jiJ 

lsf.L:EE C. S TEWARr 

lsi J.C. W ATIS, JR. 

J.C. Watts, Jr. 

llt!i 
Chairmat\1 President and Chief 

Executive Officer {piinc;ipal executive officer) 

Executive Vice President and Chief 
Financia~ Officer (-principa1:financiai officer 

and principal accountin.g officer) 

Director 

Din~c:-tot 

Director 

Director 

Director 

DirectOr 

Director 

Director 

Director 
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Date 

Februazy 22, 2012 

February 22, 2012 

Februacy 22, 20.t2 

Februat;y 22, 2012 

Februazy 22,2012 

Febmary 22, 2012 

February 22,.2012 

Fehruary22,20!2 

Jiebruazy 22, 2012 

February 22, 2012 
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EXHIBITS 

The following exhibits are filed as part ofthis report. or filed previously and incorporated by reference. to the filing indicated. Our SEC file 
number is 001·32576. 

ExhlbU No. 

2.1 

2.2 

3.1 

3.2 

4.1 

4.4 

4:5 

4.6 

4.7 

4.8 

4'.9 

4.10 

4.!2 

4.14 

Description ofExhllilt 

Merger Agreement, dated as ofDecember·4~ 201.l,.among Entergy Corporationt MJd·Soutb TransCO LLC, Registrant and 
Ibis Transaction Subsidiary LLC (fl!e'd with Registrant'S Fonn 8-K filed on Deeember6,20!1) 

Separation A;gr.eem.ent, dated· as·nfDecem.ber 4, 20 ll, among Entergy Corporation, Registrant, Mid South TransCo LLC, 
En1ergy Arkansas, Inc., .Entergy Gulf States Lmiislanai L.L.C., Entergy Lou·isian&., LLC, Eutergy MissisSippi~ Inc., 
·Entergy New Orleans, Inc., Entergy T..exas, inc. and :Entergy Services, Inc .. (filed with Registrant'S Fonn 8-K filed on· 
Deeember•6,.20H) 

Amendeitand Restated :Articles ofincorporaticm ofthe:Registrant (filed with Registrant's Registration. Statement on_Fonn 
S-1, as amended, Reg, No. 333,123657) 

Third Amended and.Restated Bylaws of. Registrant dated as. of February 16, 2011.(fileil with Registraiit's 20!0 Fonn .10· 
K) 

Form of-Certificate of."Common Stock.(:filed with Registranes RegiStratiOn Statement, on Form S-1, as amended,. Reg. No. 
333·!23657) . 

Indenmre,. dated as of July 16, 2003, between 1he Registrant and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as trustee (filed with 
Registrant'~ Registrntion.Statement.on Fonn S-1, as amendeo,.Reg .. No-333-123657) 

First Supplemenful·lndenture,.dated as·ofJuly 16, 2003, supplemental to the !ndertture<lated as ofJu\y 16, 2003, betwee.n 
·the Registrant-and Bh'Y Midwest Trust Companyl as'trustee (filed with Registranfs R(!gistralion Statelnent;Qn Form S~l) 
as amended, Reg. No. 333-123657) . 

First Mortg¥ge an-d Deed· of Trust, dated ·as of Jtily .15, 2003, bet.ween .Inte~national TransmisSion Company and BNY 
Midwest" Trust Compat)y, as trustee (filed with Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S~l. as amended~ Reg. No. 
333-123657) 

First Supplemental Indenture, dntOO as of July 15, 2003, supplementing the.First Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of 
July 15~ 2003,- between Intenrationa[ Tra!lsmission ·com.p~ny and BNY Midwest Trust Company, a-s trustee (filed with 
Registrant~,s Registration Statement on Form S·l, as amend~,.Reg;No. 333p 1236"57) 

Second Supplementallndenture, dated as of July 15, 2003; supplementing the'First.Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as 
of July 15, 20'03_, ·between International Transmissiorr·Company and BNY Midwest Tmst Company~ a~· trustee (filed·with 
Registrant's Registration Statement O!l.Fonn S-1, as amended, Reg.'Nti. 333-\236S7) 

Amendment .to Secon:O Supplemental Indenture. ilated aS ·of January 19~ 200S~ between Interoatlonal Transmission 
Company and Hl\TY.Midwest Trust Company, a..r; trustee (flle4 with Registrant's Registration Statement. on Form S-1, as 
amended, Reg. No .• 333-123657) 

Second Amendment to Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofMar<:h 24, 2006, -between lntemational Transmission 
Company and The Bank of"New York Trust Company~ N.A. (~5; successor to Bl\1Y Mldwe.c;t TruSt Company, as trustee 
(fi\etl with Registrant's.F.orm 8-K filed on March 30,.2006) 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofMarch 28, 2006, supp1ementing the First M01tgage and Deed ofTru~1.·odated as 
of.July 15, 2003, between International Transmission Company anrl·BNY Midwest Trust Company, as trustee (filed with 
Registrant's Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2006) 

Second Supplemental Inde11ture, dated as of October 10. 2006, supplemental to the Indenture dated as of July 16, 2003, 
between tbe·RegistrahUmd The Bank of New York TTust Company, N.A., (as successor to BNY Midwest T.nts! Company, 
as tnlStee) (filed with Registrant's Form 8-K filed on OctOber 10, 2006) 

First Mortgage Indenture between ~ichigan ?lectric Transmission Company, LLC and JPMorg~~~S-~qgk, dated as of 
December 10,2003 (filed with RegiStrant's Fonn 10-Q for the qu.rter ended September 30, 2006) 



4.15 First Sup]ilcmcnta! Indenture, dated. as·.of December lfr, 2003, ~upplemental to the First Mortgage Indenture between 
MiChigan Electric Tnmsmission Company: LLC.and JPMorgan Chase Bank, dated as of December 10, 2003· (filed with 
Registrant's Fonn lO·Q·for the quarter. ended September 30,.2006) 

4.16 Second Supplement<;Jl Indenture, date-d as of December 10, 2003, supplemental to the First Mortgage Indenture between 
MiChigan Ele<:tric. Transmission Company~ LLC and JPMorgan Chase Ban~. to the First Mortgage. Indenture between 
Michigan .Ele-ctric. Transmission Company,.LLC and JPMo~gan Chase Bank, dated as of December 10, 2003 (filed with 
Registrant•s·Fonn ol O·Q.for the·quarter ended September 30, .2006) 
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Exhibit No. 

4.17 

4.18 

4.19 

4.20 

4.21 

4.22 

4.23 

4.24 

4.25 

4.26 

4.27 

4.28 

4.29 

430 

Description or Exhibit 

lTC Holdings Cotp. Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 20, 2007 (filed with Registrant's Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended.Septemher 30, 2007) 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 24,.2008, supplemental to the Indenture dated as of July 16, 2()03, 
between the Registrant and The Bank ofNew York Trust Cornpany)·N.A. (as successor to BNY Midwest Trust Company). 
as trustee (filed .with. Registrant's Form 8·Kfiled.on January 25, 2008). 

•F 

First Mortgage and Deed of Trust,. dated as oUanuary !4, 2008, between J'I:C'MidwestLLC and The Bank of New Yurk 
Trust·Company, N.A.,as trustee (filed with Registrant's Porm8'K filed on February l, 2008) 

First Supplemcntallndenture, dated as· of Januar;y·J4; 20081 supplemental tidhe "First Mortg¥tg~ Indenture between ITC 
Midwest~LLC and Th.e Barik- OfNew York Trust:Company. N.A., as·tr.ustee) First.Mortgage aud.Deed ofTrustJ Qated.as,of 
January 14, 2008 (filed wHh.R~gistrant's Form g"K filed on February-!, 2008) 

Fourth SupplementallndenturG~ dated as ofl\ifarCh 25~ 200"8, hetwyen lrrtemall.onal TranSmissi.ou Company anti-TheBHnk 
of New York.Trust·Company, kA.,-as trustee, to tlre First Mortgageantl Deed of Trust.dated.., of July !5,.2003 (filed 
with· Registrant's.Form 8-K filed orr March 27, 2008) 

Fourth Suppiemental Indenture, dated as.ofDeceniher il, 2008, between ME.'r.C and The Bm\k. of New York Mellon Trust 
Com,panY,~ N.A. (as successor to iPMorgan. Chase Batik, N.A.), as trustee, to the First Mort_g~e Inden1ure hetween. 
.Michig<i.p .Bfectric" T.ransmisslon.Company,.LL.C and JPMorgan Chase· Barik, dated as -of December 10, 2003 (flled with 
Registrant's.form 8-K filed on December·23, 2008) 

Second Supplemental indenture, dated asofDeoembet' 15, 2008, between.ITC·MidWest.LLC and 1'he'Bank of New York. 
Mellon Trusi ·G<>mpany, N.A. (as successor to The Bank of New York Trust Company,. N.A.),.,..s trustee, to the First 
Mortgage and Deed ofTTust, dated as. of January 14, 2008 (:filed with Registrant's Form 8-K filed on December'23, 2008) 

Third Supplemental .indenture, dated as Of November 25;2008, between METC and TbeBahk of New York Mellon Trust 
Company~ N .. A. (.as successor to JPM"organ Chase Bank, N.A.), as trust~ .. to the Rii'St ·Mortgage Indenture. between 
Michigan Electric-iransm:ission Company,.-LLC and JPMorgan chase Bank, .Gated as of·December lO~ 2003 (filed with 

·Registrant's Form 8'K filed on December 23, 2008) · 

Fourth·Supplementai'Jndenture; dated as Of December 11, 2009, between lTC Holdings Corp. ana The BarlkofNew York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A, (f:k:a. The Bank·ofNew York Trust· CoJl]pany, N.A., as succe~or to BNY Midwest Trust 
Company), as trustee (filed with Registrant'• Form N( iiled·on December 14, 2009) 

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofDecembor lQ, 2009, between ITC Miawcst LL<: and The Bank of New York 
MellmJ Trust Company, N.A. "(as successor "to The· Bank of New York Trust ·CompanyJ N.A.)j as trustee (fi1ed with 
Registranes Form·8·K filed on December 17, 2009) 

Fifth Supplementa1lndenture,-date0 as of April 20, 2010, between Michigan Electric Transmissi·on Company, LLC and 
The Bat)k of New YorK Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (as successor to JPMorgan Chase Bau-k)1 as trustee {fi1ed·with. 
Registrant's Fonn8-K filed on·May 10, 2010) 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 15, 2008, between ITC.Midwest LLC and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (Tho Bank ofNewYork Trusl Company, N.A.), as tru&1eo (filed wilh Registrant's Form 10-
Q forihe quarter ended June 50, 2011) 

Fifth SupplementaJ Indenture, dated as of July i 5, 2011., between ITC Midwest LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A. (as successor to The Bank ofNew ·York Trust Company, N.A,), as trustee·(fi.lcd with Registrant1s 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20.1.1) 

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 29, 20.11, between ITC ·Midwest LLC and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Tmst CompanyJ N.A. (as successor to The Banl( of New York Trust Company, N.A.), as trustee. (fi"led with 
Registran.t1s·Form g .. K filed on December 1, 2011) 

Exhibil CB·H1a 



•!0.13 

•!0.27 

!0.28 

Amended arid Restated 2{)03 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for· Key Emplqyees of the Registrant and its Subsidiaries 
(filed with Registrant's Registration Statement on Form ·S'l,.as.amended, Reg. No. 333-123657) 

Deferred Compensation Plan (filed with Registrant's Registration Statement on Fonn S-1. as amended,.Reg. No. 333-
123657) 

Service Level Agreement- Construction and MahHenance!Engineering/System Operations, dated February 28, 2003, 
between The Detroit Edlson Company and International ·Transmission Company (filed with Registrartes Registration 
Statement on Form S-1, as amended .. Reg. No. 333-123657) 
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ExldhltNo, 

*10.34 

*10.% 

*10.38 

*10.44 

"10.45 

*10.46 

"10.51 

10.52 

Destriplion·OfExhlblt 

Form of stock· opti-on agreement·for executive.officers under AIDended.and Restated 2003 Stock Purchase and Option Plan 
for Key Employees of tlH~ Regi~trant and its subsidjaries (filed with R~gistraOt's FonnlO-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2005) 

FOrm of reStricted stock award agreement for directors- and executive officers under Amended atid Restated 2003 Stock 
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees ofthc Registrant and its subsidiaries (:filed with Registr.mt's 2005 Form !O­
K) 

AmendmentNo. 1 dated as of February 8, 2006,.to Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Purchase and· Option Plan for Key 
EmployeesoftheRegistrant (filed with Registrant's.Fonn 8-K filed on Februar;i 14,'2006) 

Form of"Restii.cted. Stock Award Agreement for Non.:..emp1oyee· Di~ectors under Amended and Restated 2003- Stock 
Furchase·nnd Option Plan for"Key"Emplo"yees· ofthe·R!fgistrant.and.its sub.Sidiaries_(filed:wllh Registrant's Fonn 8·K filed 
on August I 8, 2006) 

Fmm ofRcstricted Stock Award Agreement for·Emplqyees under· the Registrant-'s 2006.Long Term Jncentive Plan (filed 
viifuRegistrant's Fonn 8'K filed on August IS, 201X6) 

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Employees under· the .Registrantos 2006 Long Tenn lncentiw Plnn. (filed wlth 
Registiant's.Poml 8-K filetl on August 18, 2006) 

Summary -of Stock Ownership Agreement, effective-August .l6, .2006, for Registrant!s- Directors and Executive:Officers 
(filed with Registrant's Form 8-K filed on August 1S,:2006) · 

Fon:I.'l of Amended and Restated Easement Agreement between Consume!;'~ Energy Comp_any and Michigan ElectTk 
Transn)ission Company (filed withR!lgistrant's Form !O·Q for the quarter ended Scptember30, 2U06) 

AmenOment and R~statement -of the April lt. 2001 Operating Agreement by· .and between Michigan Electric Transmission: 
Company and Consumers Energy Company, effective May 1, 2002 (filed wllb Registmnl's Form .10-Q for the· quarter 
ended September.JO, 2006) 

10.53 Amendme11t and Restatement of the Apr11 .1, 2001 Purchase and Sale Agreement fOr Ancillmy Services between 
Consumers Energy Company and MichJgan Electric Transmission. COmpany, effective May 1, 2002 (filed with 
Registrant's Form 10-Q for·1heo quarter ended September 30, 2006) 

10.58 

f0.59 

10.6-J 

10.62 

JQ.63 

Revol.viog Credit Agreement, dated as ofMarch 29~ 20071 .among·the- Registran't1 as the Borrowert Various· Financial 
Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Time- P.arties Hcreto, as the Lenders~ JPMorgan Chase Bank, :N,A.: as the 
Administrative Agent. J.P. Morgan Securities lnc.1 as Sole.:Lead Arranger and Stile· Bookrunner? and Comedca Balik~ 
Credit Suisse (C.yman Islands Branch) and Lehman Brothers !3onk, FSB, as C""'S}otdication Agents (filed with 
Registrant's Fomt 8-K fi]ed·un April 4, 2007) 

Revol,ving··Credit Agreement; dated .. as of March 29~ 2007, among I»temational Transmission COmpany and Michigan 
Electric Transmission Company) LLC, as ·the Borrowers,· Various Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time to 
T:ime Parties Heretos as the L-enders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A..,_ as 1he Administrative Agent, J;P. Morgan Secui'ities 
.Inc,, as ·sore· Lead .Arranger and Sole Bookrurmer~ and Comerica Bank~ Credit SUisse (Cayman Islands Branch) and 
Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB, as.Co-Syndication Agents{flled with Registrant's Form S~K filed on AptiJ 4, 2007) 

Form of Distribution-Transmission Interconnection Agreement, by and between lTC Midwest LLC, as Transmission 
Ovmer and. Interstate Power·and Light Company, as Local Disnibution Company, dated as of December 17,2007 (fiied 
witb Registrant"'s Fom1 E~K filed on December 21, 2007) 

Form of Large Generator Interconnection Agreement, entered into Qy the Midwest Independent Transmission $ystem 
Operator, Inc., Interstate Power and Light Comprmy and ITC Midwest .LLC (filed with RegistranFs Form S~K filed on 
December 2I, 2007) 

. . Exhlb!t CB·Hia 
Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of January 29, 2008, among ITC Mtdwesl LLC, as the Borrovler, Vanous Financial 



*10.64 

*10.65 

Institutions and Oil1er Persons from Time to Time Parties Hereto, as the L(;nders. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,, as the 
Administrative Agcnt,J:P. Morgan Securities Inc-., as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner,.Credit Suisse (Cayman 
Islands Branch), as Syndication.-Agent and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB, as Documentation Agent (fileO with Registrant's 
Form·8-K filed on January 31, 2008) 

Form of Amended and Restated Exeoutive Group Special Bonus Plan of the Registrant, dated November 12, 2007·(filed 
·with Registrant's 2007 Fonn 1 o~K) 

:Form of Atpended.and Restated Special Bonus Plan of the Registrant, dated November 12, 2007 (filed with Registrant's 
2007'Fonn'JO-K) 
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E-:dtiblt No. 

10.67 

*10.68 

*10.71 

·J0.73 

*10:74 

*10.75 

*10.76 

*!0:77 

•w.n 

*!0.79 

*10.80 

*10.81 

•JU.82 

'')0.83 

10.85 

nerorip1lon ot£Xhlbit 

Commitment lncrease:Supplements of the Lenders, dated December 27, 2007~ related to·the Revqlving CTeditAgreement, 
dated as of March 291.2007, among International Transmi~sion Company and MiChigan Electric Transmission Company, 
LLC, as the Borrowers, Various Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Time .Parties Hereto, as the 
Lenders, JPMorgan Chase .Bank, N .A. 1.as the Administrative Agent, J.P. Morgan Securities lnc., as Sole Lead Arranger 
and Sole Bookrunner, and ·Comerloa Bank, ·Credit Suisse (C-ayman Islands Brancb:) and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB, as 
C<F.Syndication Agent,·(!iJed with Registrant's 2007Form JO;K) 

Deferred Stock Unit Awud Agreement, dated February 25, 2008, pursuant ·to the 2006 Long-Tetm Incentive Plan of 
Registrant; between·theJtegistrant·and .Joseph L~Welch (llled with Registrant's Ponu 10-Q for the quarter ended March 
31, 2008) 

Sales :Agency Financing Aweemenl, dated lull<; 27, 2008, between ·Registrant and BNY·Mellon Capital'Markets, LLC 
(fJed with Registrant's Form·,s-J(uted·onJune'2?, 2001!) 

Foml of Amendment to Stock Option Agreement under-2003 Plan (Jnitial (Jptiort} (Al)gusl2008) (filetfwith Registrant's 
Form'8-K filed on August 19, 2008) 

F.orm• 6f Amendmenl to Stock. Option Agreement under 2003 P.lan .01'0 Optioii) (August 2008) (filed with Registrant's 
Form 8-K filed on August 19, 2008) 

Form of Amendment to ·Restricted .Stock Agreement U!lder 2003 Plan {August .2008) (file<l with Registrant's Form g.!( 
filed·on Augu.'t 19, 2008) 

Form of Amendmem to Management Stockholder's Agreement(Augus( 2008) (filed with Registrant's Form 84( filed on 
August I-9, 200$) 

Form of Amendment to Stock Option Ajp'eementunder 2006 !.;TIP (August 2008) (filedv.1th.Registrant's Form 8-K filed 
onAugust 19, 2008) 

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Agrecment·under 20()6 LTJF){AuguSt 200&) (filed with Registrant's Form 8-K 
fllei>ou August 19,2008) 

Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2006. LTIP (A \I gust. 2008) (filed with Registrant's Form 8-K .flied on August 19, 
2008) 

Form of' Restricted Stock Award Agreement under 2U06J:J:lP (August 2008) (filed with Registrant'£ Form 8-K filed on 
August 19, 2008} · 

Form ofltestdcted Stock Aw.ard A,-greement for Non--employee Directors under Amended and Restated 2003 Stock 
l'urehase and,Option Plan for Ke.y Employee£ ofthe Registrant and its subsidiaries (filed wjflt Registrant's.2008 Form 10-
K) 

Management Supple~ental Benefit Plan (filctf with Registranfs -2008 For1n lO_.K:) 

Executive ·supplemental Retirement Plan (fi.led with .R.egistrant~s 2008 Form 10-K) 

Employment Agreement between the Registrant. and Joseph L. Welch (filed with Registrant's 2008 
Form 10-K) 

Form of Employment Agreements behveen the Registrant and Linda H. Blair,. Jon E. Jipping, Edward M. Rahill, Daniel J. 
Qginsky and Cameron Bready (filed with Registrant's 2008 Form 10-K} 

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of April 29~ 2009, among·the Registrant. as the Borrower, Various Financial Institutions 
and Other Parties ffom Time to Time P.anies: Thereto, as the Lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the Administrative 
Agent, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole -Bookrunner, and PNC Ban~r\llinJeg!j\..(association, as 
Syndication Agent (filed with Registrant-ss-"2009 Form lOMK) 

1 1 



10.86 First Amendment$ dated as of July 22, 2010, to the Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of March .29, 2007, among tlte 
Registran4 as borrower, the lenders party thereto~ JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent, J.P. Morgan 
Securities Inc.t as sole 1ead arranger and sole bookrunner, .and Comerica Bank, Credit SUisse, Cayman Js1ands Branch and 
Lehman Brothers Barik, FSB as co-syndication agents (filed with Registrant's Fonn 8-K filed July 27, 2010) 
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Exl1lhlt No. 

10.87 

10.88 

10.89 

!MO 

10.91 

*10.93 

10.94 

10.95 

10.96 

*10.97 

*10.98 

10.99 

10.100 

D\!seriofion ·OfE:dHbit 

First Amendment; dated as of July 22, 2010, to the Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of March· 29. 2007, among 
International Transmission Company and Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC, as borrowcrs1 the lender~ party 
thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent, J.P. Morgm1 s-ecurities lnc., as sole kad arranger and 
sole bookrunner, and Comerica Bank, Credit Suisse. Cayman Islands Branch a11d Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB as co­
syndication agents (filed with Registranfs Fonn8-K filed- July 27, 2010) 

Second Amendment, dated as of July 22,-20101 to the Revolving.Credil Agreement, dated as· of January 29. 2008, among 
ITC Midwest LLC,- as borrower, the lenders party thereto, JPMotgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent, J.P. 
Morgan Securities lnc., as sole lead arranger and sole hookrunner! Credit·Suisse~ Cayman Islan:ds Branch as $)Indication 
agent and Lehman Brothers Bank~ FSB as·dacum-entation agent (flied with-Registrant's Fonn S~K filed-on July 27, 20l0) 

Revolving Credit Agreement, date-d as of Febmary ll, 2011, among lTC Midwest LLC, as the Borrower~ Various 
.Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Time- Parties Hereto, as the:Lenders,:-JP.Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., 
as· the Administrative Agent and LP. Morgan Securities Jnc., as· -sale Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner (filed with 
Registrant's'Forni 8-K filed on February 17, 2()1 !) 

Revolving-Credit Agreement> dated as of February 16, 201-.1, among J.TC Great Plains. LLC, as the Borrower-. Various 
Financial institutions and Other Persons .from Time to Time Parties.Hereto; as the Lenders, Credit Suiss·e AG, Cayman 
Islands Brancli, -as :the Administrative Agent, Credit "SUisse Securities (USA) LLC and Mor_gan Stanley Senior Funding: 
Inc·,, as.JoiD.t. Lead Arran-gers and ioint Bookrunners, and M-organ Stariley ·senior Funding, lhc., as SyndiCatron Agent 
(filed with Registrant's Form 8-K filed. on February 17, 201 l) 

Amendment and .Restatement of the AprH 1,.2001 Distribution~Transmjssion: Inteteonnection Agreement by .and.hetween 
Michigan Electric T.rarunhission CompanYJ LLC as Tran-smission Provider and Consumers Energy Company as L-Qcal 
Dist:r:ibutiori Company, effective- September- 11 2010 (flied with Registrant's 2010 Form 
10·K) 

Letter Agreement, dated as of Febru!ll'y !, 20ll, between Edward M. Rahill and lTC Holdings Corp. (ftled with 
Registrant's Form 10·Q for the quarter ended March.31, 201 1) 

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2011, among lTC Holdings Corp., as·t11e··borrower, various .:fu1ancial 
imffitations and. other persons from time to· time parties hereto, as the lenders; JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
administrative agent, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Barcilays Capital, as joint lead arraugera an·d joint bookrunners, and 
Barclays Capital, as syndication agent (filed with Registrant's Form 8-K on May 12, 201!) 

RevoJving Credit Agreement, dated as .. of'May 17, 2011, among Intemational Transmission Company, as the b-orrower) 
\'arious financial institutions and other personS from time to time parties hereto, a'> the lenders, JPM.organ Chase Bank, 
N.A.~ as administrative agent, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Barci~ys Capital, as joint lead arrangers and joint 
bookrunners, and Barclays,Capilal, as syJtdication agent (filed with Registrant's Form 8-K on May JQ,.20!1) 

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11:~ 2011, among Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC, as the 
borrower. various fmancial institutions and other-persons fronrtime to time parties hereto. as the lenders> JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, N.A.. as administrative agent, J.P. Morgan Seeurities·LLC and Barclay.s Capital, as joint lead an·angers andj.oint 
bookrunners. and Barolays Capital, as syndication agent (filed with Registrant's Form 8-K on May 19,.2011) 

Second Amended and Restated 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan effective May 26, 2011 (filed with Registrant;s Form S~K 
on June 1,2011) 

I.TC Holdings Corp. Employee Stock Purchase Plan~ as amended and restated Mny 26. 2011 (filed with Registrant'sFonn 
B·K on June!, 2011) 

Sales Agency Financing Agreement, dated July 27., 20-11, between Registranl and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. (filed 
with Registrant's Form 8-K filed on July 27, 20!1) 

Amended and Restated Generator interconnection Agreement entered into by and among MicbifR~1bf5r-Wfi Transmission 
Compan5•, LLC! Consumers Energy Company and the Midwest Independent Transmission ~Ystem dperator, Inc., 



10.101 

21 

effecti"<eAugust !, 2011 (filed with Registrant's Fonn 10-Q for the-quarter ended ·september 30, 2011) 

Employment Matters Agreement, ·dated as of December 4, 20l.l, among Entergy Corporation, Mid .South TransCo LLC 
and Registrant (filed with Registrant's·Form·s-K filed on.December 6, 201 I) 

List of Subsidiaries 
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ExblbifNo. 

23.1 

31.1 

31.2 

32 

*''!Ol.INS 

*"lOl.SCH 

"*lOLCAL 

.. !Ol.DEF 

**.JOLLAB 

**!Ol.PRE 

Descriplion ofExbibft · 

Con~ent OfDeloitte &. Touche LLP relating to the R~gi-stranfand sUbsidiaries· 

Certification of Chief Executive·· Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange, Act of 1934~ as adopted 
pursuanNQ Section 302 of. the ·Sarbanes~Oxl~y Act·.of2002 

Certification of Chief Financial OffiCer·pursuanr to Rule 13a-14 of the Sequrlfies Exchange AcCorl-9341 as adopted 
pursuanf1o Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 

Gettification pursuant to 18 u:s.c. Section 1350, as adopted.pursuant to Section 906 oftheSatbanes,Oxiey Act of 2002 

XBRL· hlstance:·Document 

XBRL Taxonomy:E~tenslo!r Schema. 

XBRL .T:axonomy Extension·Galculation 'hhikbase 

XBRL Tax:onomy Extension Defmirioh Database 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension . .Label Linkbas·~ 

XBRL'Taxoriomy·Extension Presentation Linkbase-

• 
•• 

Management contract or compensatory plan or. arrangement 
XBRL (Extensible Bus.iness Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed herewith~ is not a part of a. registration 
.statement,or·prospectus for pUrposes ofsec1ions. l l or 12 of1hc Secmities Act of1933, is deemednot·fiied for purposes of section 
'18 of the S-ecurities Exchange Act of 19341.and otherwise is not subjeCt to·Jiability under these sections. 

lH 
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EXHIBIT3U 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 1SA-,J4(A) OR 15D-14(A), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE 
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20U2 

I, Joseph L.Welch, certify that: 
1. J have reviewed ibis annual report on Fonn 10-K of fTC Holdings Corp.-; 
2. Based.on. my knowledge, this-report does not-contain any untrue statement of a material fact'or omit to state a materl.al.fat:t necessary 

to make· the statements made,. in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, ·not misleading with respect to the 
period- covered by this report; 

3. Based- on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information .included in this report1 .fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations ana cash· flows -of' the regjstrant as of, and for~ the periods presented in this 
report; 

4. The registranes other certifying officer(s).and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-.15(~) and l5d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rulos·l3a-15(f) and !5d-15(f)) for the·Tegistrant and have: 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controlS and procedures-to be desjgned under our 

supervision~ to ensure: that ·material infonna1ion. relating:to thc.registrant, inchiding its-consolidatcil subsidiaries; is-made. known 
to. us by others within those entities, pimicularly,during·the pedod"in·which 1his repo:rt·is being prepare4; 

"b. Designed such internal conh·oJ over financial reporting, or caused.-·such internal control ovet·financial reporting to be designed 
under out supervisiOn, to pmvide· reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the pr~ar-ati-on. of 
flnanc!ai statements "for ciX:temal purposes in:atcordance·with generaHy -accepted accoUnting p1;indples; 

c. Evaluated the effectiveness .of the registrant's disClosure controls anCI procedures and .presented in this report our conclusions 
ahouf fhe effectiveness of the-disclosure-controls and j>r-ocedures,.as of the end of the period-.-covered by·this.repo.rt based.on such 
evalUatiOn; and 

d. Disclosed in this t~port any ·change in the registrant!s internal contrOl over fmancial repoiting that occurred during the registranfls 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant':s· fourth fiscal.-quarter in 'the case of an annual report} that. has materially-affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially-affect, the,registrant_:s :internal control over financial-reporting; and 

5. The registrant'S other certifYing officer(s) and rhave:disclosed, based on our most recent. evaluation of-internal control over financial 
reponing~ to "the registrant1s auditors and the audit committee of the registrantrs boarO of direttors {or persons perfcrmi'ng lhe 
equivalent functions): 
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design ·or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registr<~nt's ability to record, process, summarize and rep-ort· financial infOnnation; 
.and 

b.. Any fraud, Whether or not material. that invOlve-s management or other employees who have a significant role in the-registrant's 
internal control Over financial reportin-g .. 

Dated:.February 22, 2012 

/sl Joseph L. WelCh 

Joseph L Welch: 
President and Chie:f Executive Officer 
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EXHlBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A44(A)OR 15D-14(A), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTWN 302 OF THE 
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT•OF2002 

I, Cameron M. Bready, certify that: 
L lltave-reviewed this annuai report· on Fonn 10-K oflTC Holdings Corp.; 
2, Bnsed-on:.my knowledge; this report does not contain any untrue statement of a-material fact m· omit to -state a material fact necessary 

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under whiCh. such statements -were made~ not misleading with. respect to the 
period covered by .this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other fmanciaJ inform~tion included in this report, faii·ly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as o~ and for, the peiiOOs presented in lids 
report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s} and I are responsible for establiShing aHd maintaining disclosure Corttr-ois-atid procedure..~'(as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules Ba·l5(~) and 15d-15(e)) arrd internal control over financial reporting (as defined in ExcltangeAct 
Rules 13a-l S(l) and.!5d·15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
a. Designed such disclosurC:contrOJs and procedures, or caused such ilisc:losure cohtrOls·and -procetlure.s tci be designed.under our 

supervision) tO· ensure '1hat material h1fonnatiOn relating to· the i'egistranl;including its consolidated subsiQiaries, is made !r..nown 
to-us by othet-s·within -those·entities, partic-ulatly during the period in which this.report is bein,g-.prepared; 

b. . Designed such .internal control over financial- reporting, or causetl such internal control over .financial reporting -to be desig-ned 
under our supervision~·tO provide reasonable asSurance regarding·the reliability -of financial reportin-g and tll:e preparation. of 
fiB.ancial :statements for extemar.purposes in accordance with ge:nera\_1)1· accepted accountingptinciples; 

c. Evaluated the effe<:rive1_1ess. ofihe· registrant's disClOsure controls ~nd procedures and pre&ef)ted. in this repott our conclusi-ons 
about the effectiveness of the diSClosure controls and·.procedu:rest as :Of the end oft he period covered bTthis Teport based on such 
evaluatiori~ and 

d. Disclosed. in this report any -change In the -registrant's internal contrOl-over finanCial reporting that occurred,during- the ·registrant~s 
most recent fiscal guarter (the registrant~s fourth fiscai quarter itl·the case of an.amma! report) that has materially affected •. or is 
reasonably-likely to materially affect, the registrant'-s intema-1 control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s}.aud I baVe disclosed, based on ounnost·recent·evaluation.ofiutemal control over·fmancial 
r~orting, to the registrant's auditors and ·the audit committee of the. registrant's board. of directOrs (or persons perfonning the 
equivalent function~): 
a. All-s~gnificant deficiencies and material w~a1messes In the design or operation ofillternal control over· financial reporting whicb 

are· reasonably 1ikely to adversely affect·the Iegistrant's ability to rec-ord, process, summarize and report·financial infonnation; 
and 

b. Any frau01 whether Qr nOt mateiial, that involves management or other employees who have a significant:role .in the registrant1s 
internal control over financial r~porting. 

Dated::February 22, 20r2 

lsi Cameron M. Bready 

Cameron M. Bready 
Executive Vice Pre-sident. and Chief Financial Officer 
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EXHIBIT32 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT 1'0.18 U.S.C. ·SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PUUSUANT 1'0 SECTION 90& OF THE SARBANES· 
OXLEY ACTOF2002 

In connection with tbeAmmaJ Report of lTC Holdings Corp. (the "Registrant') on Fonn lO·K for the period ended December 31, 2011 as 
ftled witb the Securities and Exchange Comm.issio·n 011 February 22, 2012 (the "RepOtt'~), we1 Joseph L. WeiCh, President: & Chief Executive 
Officer of the Reg-istrant, and Cameron M. Bready, Executive Vice President & ChicfFin·ancia1· Officer of the Registrant, certify, pursuant· to 
Ji! U.S.C. Section 1350,asadopted J>Utsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002, that: 

(!)The Report fully complies with.the-requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) l11e. information contained jn the Report fairly presents, in all material.respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Registrant. 

Dated! February 22, 2012 

/Siloseph L. Wefch 

Joseph L:Wclch 
P,::esident and CliiefExecutive·Officer 

/sl Cameron M. Bready 

Gamoron·M .. Bready 
.Executive Vice Preslderit arid Chief Financial Officer 
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